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All references herein t‘we”, “us”, “our” or “CenturyTel” refer to CenturyT el, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, inchglifor all references to dates or
periods on or after July 1, 2009 (except as othsevgitated herein), Embarg Corporation and its sdibsies, which we acquired on July 1, 2009. Aferences

to “Notes” herein refer to the Notes to the Finaaicbtatements included in Item 8 of this Annualdrepn Form 10-K.



PART I
Iltem 1. Business

On July 1, 2009, CenturyTel, Inc. acquired Embarg @rporation (“Embarq”) in a transaction that substantially expanded the gie and scope of ot
business. Any references to results of operationfinancial condition or subscriber data in this Anrual Report on Form 10-K include Embarg’s results or
subscriber information after July 1, 2009 only. De to the significant size of Embarq, direct compasgons of our results of operations or subscriber dat
with prior periods are less meaningful. For additonal information on our Embarq acquisition, see “Enbarqg acquisition” below.

General. CenturyTel, Inc., together with its subsidéariis an integrated communications company engag@arily in providing an array of
communications services, including local and lorggashce voice, wholesale local network access,-bfiged Internet access, other data services aad vid
services. We strive to maintain our customer i@iships by, among other things, bundling our serdgfferings to provide a complete offering of grieted
communications services. We primarily conduct@perations in 33 states located within the contalddnited States.

At December 31, 2009, our incumbent local exchadalgphone subsidiaries operated approximately Tlmtelephone access lines in 33 states, with
over 75% of these lines located in Florida, Nor#rdlina, Missouri, Nevada, Ohio, Wisconsin, TeXennsylvania, Virginia and Alabama. According to
published sources, we are currently the fourthdsirépcal exchange telephone company in the UStates based on the number of access lines served.

We also provide fiber transport, competitive loeathange carrier service, security monitoring, {gégphone and other communications, professioreil an
business information services in certain local @gional markets.

In recent years, we have expanded our productioffeto include satellite television services ancbless broadband services. For additional in&drom,
see “Operations - Recent Product Developments'ielo

For information on the amount of revenue derivedbyyvarious lines of services, see “Operationsrvises” below and Item 7 of this annual report.

Embarq acquisition. On July 1, 2009, pursuant to the terms and conwditaf the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated &ctdber 26, 2008 (theMerge
Agreement”), we acquired Embarq through a mergarstaction. Embarg, which was spun-off from Spxiektel Corporation in 2006, became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CenturyTel. As a result of the tagi®n, each outstanding share of Embarq commaik stas converted into 1.37 shares of CenturyTelmom
stock, with cash paid in lieu of fractional shar&¥e also assumed approximately $5.1 billion of Bmts indebtedness upon the consummation of the
transaction. As of the acquisition date, Embargextapproximately 5.4 million access lines andrtilion high-speed Internet customers located8rstates.
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See ltem 1A, Risk Factors, for additional informatconcerning the acquisition of Embarq. Additianéormation about Embarq is included elsewhere
herein and in documents that it previously filedhvithe U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission‘@RE"). See “Where to find additional information
below.

Other recently completed acquisitions On April 30, 2007, we acquired all of the datsling stock of Madison River Communications Cdfpladison
River”) for approximately $322 million cash (inclind the effect of post-closing adjustments). Inmection with the acquisition, we also paid alMddison
River’s existing indebtedness (including accrued intgredtich approximated $522 million. At the timetbfs acquisition, Madison River operated approxat
164,000 predominantly rural access lines in foatest

In June 2005, we acquired fiber assets in 16 melitap markets from KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. (“KM) for approximately $75.5 million cash,
which has enabled us to offer broadband and cotiyeeldbcal exchange services to customers in themdets. During 2008, we sold the assets in Sikese
markets in two separate transactions.

In June 2003, we purchased a regional communicatiompany providing wholesale data transport sesvic other communications carriers over its fiber
optic network located in Missouri, Arkansas, Oklateoand Kansas. In a separate transaction, inmbieme2003 we acquired additional fiber transposetsin
Arkansas, Missouri and lllinois. For additionaldmation, see “Operations - Services - Fiber Tpamnsand CLEC.”

We also acquired approximately 660,000, 490,0006584000 telephone access lines in transactionpleded in 1997, 2000 and 2002, respectively, each
of which substantially expanded our operationse 2802 acquisition of telephone access lines wadefd primarily from proceeds received from the séle
substantially all of our wireless operations in Agg2002.

We continually evaluate the possibility of acquiriadditional communications assets in exchangedsh, securities or other properties, and at angngi
time may be engaged in discussions or negotiatiegerding additional acquisitions. We generallyndd announce our acquisitions or dispositions! uveihave
entered into a preliminary or definitive agreemeatthough our primary focus will continue to be aequiring interests that are proximate to our progs or
that serve a customer base large enough for ysaiate efficiently, we may also acquire other comitations interests and these acquisitions cowe laa
material impact upon us.

Where to find additional information.We make available all of our filings with the SE@c{uding Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K) on our website
( www.centurylink.com) as soon as reasonably practicable after we caenplesh filings with the SEC. These documents aisy be obtained from the SEC’s
website at www.sec.gav You may obtain copies of Embarq’s previous §rwith the SEC from our website or the SEC’s websi
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We also make available on our website our Corpdsateernance Guidelines, our corporate ethics antbtance program and the charters of our audit,
compensation, risk evaluation, and nominating awgarate governance committees. We will furnishtpd copies of these materials free of charge upen
request of any shareholder. If a provision of canporate ethics and compliance program is ameralkdr than by a technical, administrative or otham-
substantive amendment, or a waiver under this progs granted to a director or executive officeg,will post notice of such amendment or waiver an o
website or disclose the amendment or waiver irpanteon Form 8-K filed with the SEC. Only our bdaf directors, or an authorized committee of thart,
may consider a waiver of our corporate ethics amdgiance program for a director or executive @ffic

In connection with filing this annual report, ourief executive officer and chief financial officerade the certifications regarding our financiattlisures



required under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,thadAct’s related regulations. In addition, dur2@09 our chief executive officer certified to thew
York Stock Exchange that he was unaware of anytimi by us of the New York Stock Exchange’s cogp@mgovernance listing standards.

Industry information Unless otherwise indicated, information contdimrethis annual report and other documents filgdi® under the federal securities
laws concerning our views and expectations reggritia communications industry are based on estsmatgle by us using data from industry sourcespand
assumptions made by us based on our managementidddge and experience in the markets in which perate and the communications industry
generally. We believe these estimates and assonspdire accurate as of the date made; howeveimfbishation may prove to be inaccurate becausarihot
always be verified with certainty. You should leage that we have not independently verified dadenfindustry or other third-party sources and canno
guarantee its accuracy or completeness. Our ds$naad assumptions involve risks and uncertaiatielsare subject to change based on various factors
including those discussed in Item 1A of this anmegbrt.

Other. As of December 31, 2009, we had approximate|2@Demployees, of which approximately 6,700 weeeniers of 46 different bargaining units
represented by the International Brotherhood ottileal Workers and the Communications Workers ofekica. We believe that relations with our emplesy
continue to be generally good. Over the last s#dwaars, we announced reductions of our workfpramarily due to (i) progress made on our integragfforts
from recent acquisitions (including the recentlyngdeted Embarq acquisition); (ii) increased contpetipressures and the loss of access lines oedasi
several years, and (iii) the elimination of certeirstomer service personnel due to reduced calhves.

6
We were incorporated under Louisiana law in 1968eive as a holding company for several telephonganies acquired over the previous 15 to 20
years. Our principal executive offices are located00 CenturyLink Drive, Monroe, Louisiana 7120®i aur telephone number is (318) 388-9000.

OPERATIONS

According to published sources, our acquisitioEfbarg on July 1, 2009 positioned us as the fdartfest local exchange telephone company in the
United States, based on the approximately 7.0anilliccess lines we served at December 31, 200, which are digitally switched. “Access linesta
telephone lines that connect homes or businesshe fmublic switched telephone network.

Before the Embarq acquisition, (i) CenturyTel pd®d local exchange telephone services to predothyamal areas and small to mid-size cities in 25
states and (i) Embarg provided local exchangetelae services to a wide variety of markets inta&s, including Las Vegas, Nevada, and surrounaliegs o
Orlando, Florida as well as the suburbs of sevatadr large U.S. cities. At the time of the acdign, the average population density of Centuridahd
Embarq’s local exchange markets was 25 and 94 peyser square mile, respectively. Although theises provided by each company prior to the actjoisi
were substantially similar, the merger resultedeweral important changes to our operations, imetud

e providing services to an expanded number of dens#pulated markets, which tend to afford consisraacess to a greater range of competitive
communications products than less dense marketsxguates the incumbent telephone service provideigher levels of service terminatiol

e reducing the percentage of our total revenuerddrirom governmental support programs, which @ycfocus on disbursing payments to companies
operating in less densely populated ar

e structuring our operations into five newly-configd operating regions in order to provide day-dg-decision making at the regional level as opposed
to Embarcs prior operating model which operated under a mergralized structure; ar

e offering certain services, such as inmate payplsenéces, that CenturyTel did not historically poe:

The following table lists additional informatioro(inded to the nearest thousand lines) regardinganess lines as of (i) December 31, 2009, which
reflects the Embarq acquisition, and (ii) Decenier2008, which pre-dates the Embarq acquisition.
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December 31, 2008
December 31, 200 (1)
Percer Percer
Number o of Number o of
access acces access acces:
State lines lines lines lines
Florida 1,352,00! 19% - -%

North Caroline 1,071,001 15 13,00( *
Missouri 548,00( 8 392,00( 19
Nevada 523,00( 7 - *
Ohio 388,00( 5 59,00( 3
Wisconsin (2 343,00( 5 368,00( 18
Texas 303,00( 4 32,00( 2
Pennsylvani: 271,00( 4 - -
Virginia 260,00( 4 - -
Alabama 254,00( 4 274,00( 13
Washingtor 200,00( 3 147,00( 7
Indiana 186,00( 3 4,00( *
Arkansas 182,00 3 199,00( 10
Tennesse 176,00( 2 22,00( 1
New Jerse) 145,00( 2 - -
Minnesots 144,00( 2 25,00( 1
Oregon 109,00( 2 62,00( 3
All other states (3) 584,00( 8 428,00( 21




7,039,001 10C% 2,025,001 10C%

* Represents less than 1% of access lines.

(1) Access line counts for 2008 reflect lineniebmethodology adjustments to standardize legany@yTel and Embarq line counts.

(2) As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, approteinal5,000 and 48,000, respectively, of thesesliwere owned and operated by our 89%-owned aéfiliat
(3) Includes all of the remaining 16 states/hiich we operate, each of which has less than D0G@cess lines served.

The following table summarizes certain informatrefated to our customer base, operating revenwksapital expenditures for the past five yearse ZI
information includes the Embarq operations we aeguon July 1, 2009. The 2009, 2008 and 2007 mnédion includes the Madison River properties weuaes
on April 30, 2007. All periods reflect access lcmint methodology adjustments to standardize eGanturyTel and Embarg line counts.

Year ended or as of December
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

Access line: 7,039,00! 2,025,001 2,135,001 2,094,00! 2,214,00!
% Residentie 68% 73 73 74 75
% Busines 32% 27 27 26 25

Internet customer 2,259,001 683,00( 623,00( 459,00( 357,00(
% Higt-speed Internet servi 99% 94 88 80 70
% Dia-up service 1% 6 11 20 30

Operating revenue $ 4,974,23 2,599,74 2,656,24. 2,447,73 2,479,25.

Capital expenditures $ 754,54 286,81 326,04! 314,07: 414,87

As discussed further below, during the last sewgzats (exclusive of acquisitions and certain necurring favorable adjustments), we have experignce
revenue declines in our voice and network accessees primarily due to declines in access lingsastate access rates, minutes of use, and fesigpbrt
fund payments. To mitigate these declines, we laamong other things, (i) promote long-termtietaships with our customers through bundling eégrated
services, (ii) provide new services, such as viles wireless broadband, and other additional seswicat may become available in the future duevarces in
technology, wireless spectrum sales by the Fe@almunications Commission (“FCC”") or improvemem®ur infrastructure, (iii) provide our broadbandia
premium services to a higher percentage of ouoauwsts, (iv) pursue acquisitions of additional cominations properties if available at attractivecps, (v)
increase usage of our networks and (vi) markepooducts to new customers. See “Services” and URgign and Competition” for additional information

Services

We derive revenue from providing (i) local exchaagel long distance voice telephone services, (iplesale local network access services, (iii) data
services, including high-speed Internet servicesyell as special access and private line serviggdijber transport, competitive local exchangel aecurity
monitoring services and (v) other related servigé® following table reflects the percentage ofrafing revenues derived from each of these services

2009 2008 2007
Voice 36.7% 33.€ 33t
Network acces 25.t 31.€ 35.4
Data 24.2 20.z 17.4
Fiber transport and CLE 3. 6.2 6.C
Other 10.1 8.4 7.7
100.(% 100.( 100.(

Voice. We offer local calling service to residential angsiness customers within our local service argaserally for a fixed monthly charge. While we
have achieved significant pricing deregulation diree, the maximum amount that we can charge amest for local calling services is still largelygwned by
state and federal regulatory authorities and bycouonpetitors. We offer a number of enhanced ve@eices (such as call forwarding, caller idendifion,
conference calling, voicemail, selective call rimggiand call waiting) to our local exchange custanfer an additional monthly fee. At December 3102, over
65% of both our business and residential custosrscribed to one or more enhanced services. ¥deo#fer long distance services to our customessdban
either usage or pursuant to flat-rate calling plaBsveral Embarq markets currently offer longatise voice services through a wholesale arrangewitmt
Sprint Nextel. We expect to transition such sessito our owned networks during the next few ye#lve anticipate that most of our long distance iserwill
continue to be provided as part of an integratawit®iwith our other service offerings, including dacal exchange telephone service offering.

Total access lines declined 380,000 during 2008l¢elng access lines we acquired from Embarqg op DuP009 but including access lines lost in
Embarq’s markets following such acquisition) conguhto a decline of 136,800 during 2008. We belitese declines in the number of access lines were
primarily due to the displacement of traditionateline telephone services by other competitiveisesvand recent economic conditions. Over theféastyears,
our recently-acquired Embarg markets have expegithégher rates of access line losses than ounmhbent markets due principally to such markets beioge
densely-populated and competitive. Our legacy @sfiel access lines declined 6.6% in 2009 and 592008 while the legacy Embarqg access lines dedlin
9.5% in 2009 and 9.7% in 2008. Based on our ctirsantion initiatives, we estimate that our conaof access line loss will be between 7.5% and 852010
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Network access.We derive our network access revenues primaidnf(i) providing wholesale services to variousriess and customers in connection
with the use of our facilities to originate andntémate their interstate and intrastate voice trassions; (ii) receiving universal support funds giallows us to
recover a portion of our costs under federal aatkstost recovery mechanisms (see “Regulation andgp€tition Relating to Incumbent Local Exchange
Operations” below), (iii) receiving reciprocal coemsation from competitive local exchange carrig@d ECs”) and wireless service providers for terniing
their calls on our networks and (iv) offering céntaetwork facilities and related services to CLEQwr revenues for switched access services dgpémarily
on the level of call volumes.



Substantially all of our interstate network acaes®nues are based on tariffed access chargesipessby the FCC. Certain of our intrastate networ
access revenues are derived through access clibagege bill to intrastate long distance carrierd ather LEC customers. Such intrastate networksscc
charges are based on tariffed access charges, at@cubject to state regulatory commission apprédditionally, certain of our intrastate netwaakcess
revenues, along with intrastate and intra-LATA (&bAccess and Transport Areas) long distance reaggrare derived through revenue sharing arrangesment
with other LECs.

Pursuant to the Telecommunications Act of 1996pffer certain network facilities to CLEC’s on a aésor unbundled basis and allow them to collocate
certain of their equipment in our central officéthe FCC sets general guidelines for pricing odleesunbundled network elements and collocatioeegents,
while the state regulatory authorities approvedtigial prices charged.

Data. We derive our data revenues primarily from monthly recurratgirges for providing high-speed Internet accesscgs and data transmission
services over special circuits and private lin€3enturyTel began offering traditional dial-up Imtet access services to its telephone customdi@9s. In late
1999, CenturyTel began offering high-speed Inteateess services, a broadband data service. Asrfilear 31, 2009, approximately 89% of our accesslin
were broadband-enabled and we provided high-spgethkt access services to over 2.2 million custemBuring 2009, we added approximately 1.591iamill
high-speed Internet customers, which includes agprately 1.465 million we acquired in connectiorttwour acquisition of Embarg.

We offer a range of data services to businesseg,d@stance carriers, wireless carriers and CLEQgr most significant data service is special agces
which consists of providing dedicated circuits cecting other carriers’ networks to their customéosations, wireless carriers’ cell towers to melsivitching
centers or business customers to our network. oAih the traffic handled through special accesiitfas may include voice as well as data, we répevenues
associated with special access as data revenue.
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Fiber transport and CLEC Our fiber transport and CLEC revenues includemnees from our fiber transport, competitive loeathange carrier and
security monitoring businesses.

In late 2000, CenturyTel began offering competitveal exchange telephone services as part of dlédrservice offering to small to medium-sized
businesses in Monroe and Shreveport, Louisiandebruary 2002, we purchased the fiber networkcarstbmer base of KMC's operations in Monroe and
Shreveport, Louisiana and in June 2005, we purchtéeefiber assets in 16 metropolitan markets fkddC. As part of our plan to focus our efforts dret
CLEC markets with the most promise, in mid-2008swkl the assets in six of our CLEC markets to oteenmunications companies in two separate
transactions. At December 31, 2009, our competitical exchange operations provided service ob@mgiles of fiber.

Under the name “LightCore”, we sell fiber capaddyother carriers and businesses over a netwotletimmpassed, at December 31, 2009, nearly 10,30C
miles of fiber in the central United States. Ceyifiel began its fiber transport business duringl2@then we began selling capacity over a 700-nitilerfoptic
ring that we constructed in southern and centrahigian. In June 2003, we acquired the assetsgifaDileleport, Inc., a regional communications gamy
providing wholesale data transport services toratbenmunications carriers over its fiber optic netkvlocated in Missouri, Arkansas, Oklahoma and
Kansas. We have used the network to sell serticasw and existing customers and to reduce oiameg on third party transport providers. In additin
December 2003, we acquired additional fiber trartspgsets in Arkansas, Missouri and lllinois froevel 3 Communications, Inc. to provide serviceslsinto
those described above.

In addition to the above-described fiber netwonkg@nnection with our 2007 acquisition of MadisameR, we acquired ownership in a 2,100 route mile
fiber network located in six states which has eedhis to expand our fiber network business antiéureduce our reliance on third-party transpaotjolers.

We offer 24-hour security and fire monitoring sees to approximately 10,900 customers in selecketsin Louisiana, Arkansas, Mississippi, Texas and
Ohio.

Other. We derive our “other revenues” principally byl&asing, selling, installing and maintaining cusés premise telecommunications equipment and
wiring to our business customers, (ii) providingplone services primarily within our local servteeritories and at various state and county cooeat
facilities around the country, (iii) participatimg the publication of local telephone directoriesich allows us to share in revenues generatetidgale of
yellow page and related advertising to businegg@sproviding network database services and (¥rifig our new services described below under dalmg
“Recent Product Developments”. We also providetprg, direct mail services and cable televisiomvises.
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During 2008, we paid an aggregate of approximzk&49 million for 69 licenses in the FCC’s auctidrv00 megahertz (“MHz") wireless spectrum. We
expect to complete our planning regarding the digki® spectrum in the first half of 2010 and taleour trial phase in late 2010 or early 2011 s&hon our
planning, we are considering developing wirelessevand data service capabilities based on equiposémg LTE (Long-Term Evolution) technology. Give
that simple data devices are not expected to beneonially available until later this year and mooenplex, integrated voice and data devices such as
smartphones are not expected to be available2012, we do not expect to deploy network equipmethier than trial equipment, in 2010.

From time to time, we also make investments in otioenmunications companies.

For further information on regulatory, technolodiaad competitive changes that could impact ouenees, see “Regulation and Competition” under this
Item 1 below and “Risk Factors and Cautionary $tatets”under Item 1A below. For more information on thehcial contributions of our various services,
Item 7 of this annual report.

Recent Product Developments

Since 2005, CenturyTel, in conjunction with DISHtiNerk Corporation (“DISH”), has offered satelliévision service to households in substantially al
of its local exchange service areas. Effectivaidanl, 2007, we changed our relationship with Df8Hh a revenue sharing arrangement to an agency
relationship. Embarq also has an existing salesa@grelationship with DirecTV for certain businesstomers and with DISH for residential customérslate
2005, we initiated our switched digital televisisgrvice in the LaCrosse, Wisconsin market and,dtoker 2007, we commenced a second switched digitab
service offering in our Columbia, Missouri mark&t/e also recently launched switched digital vidervige in Jefferson City, Missouri, a legacy Embarayket.



We also offer wireless broadband Internet senviceglect locations in certain markets in 14 states
Federal Financing Programs

Some of our telephone subsidiaries receive long-ferancing from the Rural Utilities Service (“RUS'a federal agency that has historically provided
longterm financing to telephone companies at relatiatisactive interest rates. For additional infotiraregarding our financing, see our consoliddieadncial
statements included in Iltem 8 herein.
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Sales and Marketing

Subsequent to our acquisition of Embarqg on JuR0D9, we changed our trade name to “CenturyLink! have used this name in our recent marketing
and advertising efforts. We plan to change thellegme of the corporation to “CenturyLink, Inai’May 2010 upon approval of the name change by our
shareholders. In addition, we currently sell fibepacity on our networks under the brand namehtGgre” and our satellite television service iseoéd on a co-
branded basis under the “DISH Network” or “DirecThdme. We expect to discontinue the LightCore drzame in the near future and transition that brand
name to CenturyLink.

We maintain local offices in most of the larger plation centers within our service territories. €k offices provide sales and customer supporicesrv
in the community. We also rely on our call ceqtersonnel to promote sales of services that meetdlds of our customers. Our strategy is to exhaur
communications services by offering comprehensiwedbng of services and deploying new technologiesuild upon the strong reputation we enjoy in our
markets and to further enhance customer loyalty.

Our consumer marketing approach emphasizes custonesited sales, marketing and service with a lpcasence. We market our products and services
primarily through direct sales representativesaloetail stores, telemarketing and third partiége support our distribution with direct mail, biliserts,
newspaper advertising, website promotions, publiations activities and sponsorship of communityres. Our business marketing approach includes a
commitment to deliver communications solutions thaet existing and future business customer néedsgh bundles of services and integrated service
offerings, focusing on end-to-end customers’ comications solutions from small businesses to largerprise customers.

Network Architecture

Our local exchange carrier networks consist of redmiffice hosts and remote sites, all with advandigital switches (primarily manufactured by Nérte
and Siemens) and operating with licensed softw@rar. outside plant consists of transport and distion delivery networks connecting each of ourtloestral
offices to our remote central offices, and ultinhate our customers. As of December 31, 2009, antained over 594,000 miles of copper plant and
approximately 67,000 miles of fiber optic plantoar local exchange networks. Our fiber optic cablihe primary transport technology between ot laad
remote central offices and interconnection poirite wther incumbent carriers. Most of our longtaiice service is provided through reselling arramgygs with
other long distance carriers, with the balancedenovided directly through CenturyTel's own swigshand network equipment. We are currently treomsitg
Embarq’s legacy long distance traffic to our ownetivorks.

13

In our markets, high-speed Internet-enabled teciyie are being deployed to provide significangbizand capacity to our customers. We continue to
remove network impediments to offer high-speedrh@geservice to more customers. At the end of 28pproximately 89% of our access lines were capabl
providing high-speed Internet service to our cugiam

We also maintain networks in connection with prawvigfiber transport and CLEC services. For addaianformation on these networks, see “Services -
Fiber Transport and CLEC.”

Rapid and significant changes in technology areetqul in the communications industry. Our futurecess will depend, in part, on our ability to
anticipate and adapt to technological changes.

Regulation and Competition Relating to Incumbent Laal Exchange Operations

Traditionally, LECs operated as regulated monopdiiaving the exclusive right and responsibilitytovide local telephone services in their francthise
service territories. (These LECs are sometimesmed to below as “incumbent LECs” or “ILECs”). @®quently, most of our intrastate telephone operat
have been regulated extensively by various sta@latory agencies (generally called public sergammissions or public utility commissions) and ouerstate
operations have been regulated by the FCC undeéZdh@munications Act of 1934. As we discuss in tredetail below, passage of the 1996 Act, couplitd
state legislative and regulatory initiatives ancht®logical changes, fundamentally altered theotedae industry by generally reducing the regulatibi.ECs
and creating a substantial increase in the numbesropetitors. We anticipate that these trends tdweduced regulation and increased competitioh wil
continue.

The following description discusses some of theomiaidustry regulations that affect our traditiotelephone operations, but numerous other regulatio
not discussed below could also impact us. Somisl&impn and regulations are currently the subgdégtidicial proceedings, legislative hearings and
administrative proceedings which could substantietiange the manner in which the communicationsstrgl operates. Neither the outcome of these
proceedings, nor their potential impact on us,lmapredicted at this time. The impact of regulatdranges in the communications industry could teave
substantial impact on our operations. See Itenofl#his annual report below.

State regulation The local service rates and intrastate accemgeh of substantially all of our telephone sulasids are regulated by state regulatory
commissions which typically have the power to gi@md revoke certifications authorizing companieprtavide communications services. State commission
traditionally regulated pricing through “rate ofumn” regulation that focused on authorized lew#lsarnings by LECs. Only a few states (represgrai small
portion of our access lines) continue to regulatéthis manner. In recent years, state legisdatand regulatory commissions in most of the 8&stin which
our telephone subsidiaries operate have eithecegtithe regulation of ILECs or have announced th&ntion to do so, and we expect this trend will
continue. In most of our states, we are generatjylated under various forms of alternative regjutethat typically limit our ability to increaseates for loca



services, but relieve us from the requirement tetrgertain earnings tests. Moreover, in a fewestatie have recently gained pricing freedom for the
majority of retail services except for the mostibad services, such as stand alone basic resalesgivice. Additionally, in most of the statesnihich we
operate, we have gained pricing flexibility for &n enhanced calling services, such as callettifitztion, and for bundled services that includedl voice
service.
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For a discussion of legislative, regulatory andhteogical changes that have introduced competitiomthe local exchange industry, see “Development
Affecting Competition.”

As an ILEC, we generally face carrier of last réstligations which include an ongoing requiremienprovide service to all prospective and current
customers in our service territories who requestise and are willing to pay rates prescribed intawiffs. In competitively-bid situations, suck aewly
constructed housing developments or multi-tenargliitvgs, this may constitute a competitive disadage to us if competitors can choose to exclusitiely
service to homeowners’ association fees or choos®rprovide service to customers who are poatitrisks or whom they believe would be uneconotaic
serve. Strict adherence to carrier of last resmtiirements may force us to construct facilitié & low likelihood of positive economic return.féw of our
states provide relief from such obligations undetain circumstances, relieving us of the dutyuidofacilities, typically in developments serveg &lternative
providers with exclusive service arrangements. Addally, we are seeking regulatory approval ig&ded circumstances to deploy service using lestsyco
alternative technologies, such as fixed wirelesd, seeking to share the cost of constructing ndtsvavith those customers. Currently, in certain su@ar costs t
build and maintain network infrastructure are pdltioffset by payments from universal service pavgs.

At the state level, we are responding to carrienglaints, legislation or generic investigationsaieling our intrastate switched access rate lewels i
Minnesota, Missouri, Ohio, Pennsylvania, North Qiaeg Wisconsin, and Virginia. Although outcome®icat be determined at this time, we believe our
intrastate switched access rate levels are appte@nd we plan to vigorously defend them. If weeraquired to reduce our intrastate switched agegss as a
result of any of these complaints, we will seekeicover displaced switched access revenues framwativersal service funds or other services; hanghe
amount of such recovery, if any, is not assured.

Under state law, our telephone operating subsefiare typically governed by laws and regulatitias ¢i) regulate the purchase and sale of LEGs, (ii
prescribe depreciation rates and certain accouptiogedures, (iii) require LECs to provide serviceler publicly-filed tariffs setting forth the tesmconditions
and prices of regulated services, (iv) limit LE@bility to borrow and establish asset liens andrfyjose various other service standards.

Federal regulation Our telephone subsidiaries are required to comyily the Communications Act of 1934, which reqsites to offer services at just and
reasonable rates and on non-discriminatory tersgedl as the 1996 Act, which amended the Commutinica Act to promote competition.
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The FCC regulates interstate services provideduoyedephone subsidiaries primarily by regulating interstate access charges that we bill to long
distance companies and other communications corapémi use of our network in connection with thigimation and termination of interstate voice amdad
transmissions. Additionally, the FCC has prescribedain rules and regulations for telephone congsamcluding a uniform system of accounts andsul
regarding the separation of costs between jurisdistand, ultimately, between interstate servidasaddition, the FCC has responsibility for mainitag and
administering the federal Universal Service FuhBCs must obtain FCC approval to use certain réeiguencies, or to transfer control of any such
licenses. The FCC retains the right to revokeehieenses if a carrier materially violates releMegal requirements.

The FCC requires price-cap regulation of interséaigess rates for the Regional Bell Operating Canegaand permits it for all other LECs. Under pric
cap regulation, limits imposed on a company’s sttge rates are adjusted periodically to refleitaiion, productivity improvement and changes int@& non-
controllable costs. On July 1, 2009, we convesiglostantially all of our remaining rate-of-retutndy areas to price cap regulation. In additidnofethe
properties we acquired from Embarq operate undee jgap regulation.

The FCC has a proceeding underway that would rethevstate of the special access market and cuprising flexibility and price cap policies applide
to ILECs’ marketing of special access servicese FEC is also reviewing requests by some othetrecario order reductions in some or all ILECs’ safier
special access services. It is uncertain whetheow the FCC might order changes in how specieése services are regulated, or in the rates Il&EE€able to
charge for them. If the FCC were to adopt sigaificchanges in regulations affecting special aceessces, the proceeding could have a signifizapact on
our provision and pricing of special access sesvice

Beginning in 2003, the FCC initiated broad interiggrcompensation proceedings designed to creatéfarm mechanism to be used by the entire
telecommunications industry for payments betweeriera originating, terminating, or transiting tetenmunications traffic. In connection therewitie +CC
has received intercarrier compensation proposais geveral industry groups, and solicited publimogents on a variety of topics related to accessyelseand
intercarrier compensation. Broad industry negatiest have taken place with the goal of developirgressensus plan that addresses the concerns igrsdrom
all industry segments. The ultimate outcome ofREE’s intercarrier compensation proceedings coblthge the way we receive compensation from, amd re
compensation to, other carriers, our end user m&t®and the federal Universal Service Fund (th&FU).

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2008 “Recovery Act”) was signed into law in Feby2009. As part of the Recovery Act, the FCC
is required to present a National Broadband Plaa ‘Plan”) to Congress. We expect issues such i@ensal service and intercarrier compensation refaill be
incorporated into the Plan. The FCC is expectatktiver a Plan recommendation to Congress by tHeoéthe first quarter of 2010. We anticipate ttnat
FCC's Plan will propose significant changes whioaseeking additional comment on a variety ofésstanging from universal service funding for bitwett to
open network requirements for providers. Until B@C's proceedings conclude and the changes, iftarthe existing rules, including rules applicatde
intercarrier compensation and USF, are established;annot estimate the impact these proceedirlysavie on our results of operations. The impurct
regulatory change, including those involving intreer compensation and USF, could have a subatamjpact on our operations.
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The Recovery Act also includes certain broadbaiiiives that are intended to accelerate broadilpibyment across the United States. The Recovery
Act approved $7.2 billion in funding for broadbastimulus projects across the United States to barastered by two governmental agencies. The pnog



implemented by the two agencies are expected tdade@rants and loans to applicants for constraabibcertain broadband infrastructure, provision of
certain broadband services, and support of cebi@adband adoption initiatives. This program htaeted a wide range of applicants including state
municipalities, start-up companies and consortiuffs.date we have not applied for funding underRleeovery Act programs; however, we continue tduata
all opportunities for our business. The partidgabf other parties could lead to some overbuddih our networks by competitors in selected arelaish may
increase our marketing costs and decrease ouruesén those areas. We cannot estimate the intipes® programs may have on our operations.

We have been working with other midsize carrierddwelop proposals that would advance universadivand deployment while reforming intercarrier
compensation and universal service funding at dineestime. In December 2009, we and other midsiméers submitted a proposal to the FCC designed to
significantly expand high-speed Internet accegsiial America, in support of the FCC’s broadbangldgment goals, while paving the way for more
fundamental reforms in the future. The proposellides reducing terminating switched access arigreal compensation rates while eliminating lodpksanc
regulatory arbitrage opportunities. Under thispka significant portion of displaced revenue wdakdreplaced with explicit, predictable supportdung to
increase carriers’ ability to attract private inwesnt capital needed for increased broadband demoy We plan to continue to work with other likéaded
carriers to advocate for regulatory outcomes thatnpte broadband deployment while also reformirigrzarrier compensation and universal service fund
support. We cannot predict what part, if any,wftsproposals and advocacy will ultimately be addpt

Our operations and those of all communications@aralso may be impacted by legislation and regudamposing new or greater obligations on use Th
most likely areas of impact include regulationdaovs related to bolstering homeland security, iasieg disaster recovery requirements, minimizing
environmental impacts, enhancing privacy, or addngsother issues that impact our business, inetutie Communications Assistance for Law Enforcéamen
Act, and laws governing local number portabilitydazustomer proprietary network information requiesits. These laws and regulations may cause usuo i
additional costs and could impact our ability tonpeete effectively.
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Universal service support funds, revenue sharimgrgements and related matter& significant number of our telephone subsidisiriecover a portion
of their costs from the federal USF and from simstate “universal supporthechanisms, which receive their funding from felesrged to interexchange carri
and LECs. Disbursements from these programs imadity have focused principally on allowing LEG=n&ing small communities and rural areas to provide
communications services on terms and at price®naddy comparable to those available in urban arefmsvever, use of universal service funding fdrest
social policy goals continues to grow and to epegssure on the size of the fund and the contohutte.

The table below sets forth the amounts receivedusytelephone subsidiaries in 2009 and 2008 fraert@ and state universal service programs. We
anticipate that the percentage of our total 201€rating revenues attributable to these programsweilower than the percentages reflected belowgesitwill
reflect a full year of the combined operations eh@ryTel and Embarq (due to Embarq having hisafiiceceived a substantially lower percentageof i
revenues from these programs than has CenturyTel).

Year ended December &

2009 2008
% of Total % of Total
2009 2008
Amount Operating Amount Operating
Universal
Service Prograr Receivec Revenue: Receivec Revenue!

(amounts in millions

USF High Cost Loop

Program $ 145.2 2.5% $ 151.7 5.€%
Other Federal Programs 163.( 3.2% 128.F 5.C%
Total Federal Receipt: 308.: 6.2% 280.2 10.8%
State Programs 76.€ 1.5% 39.7 1.5%
TOTAL $ 384.¢ 7.7% $ 319.¢ 12.2%

A significant portion of our payments have variegotime based on our average cost to serve cussanapared to national cost averages. Under the
USF High Cost Loop program, which is the USBtincipal program, our payments from the USF détrease if national average costs per loop isereta rat
greater than our average cost per loop. Incréagbe nationwide average cost per loop factor ueedlocate funds among all USF recipients caused
revenues from the USF High Cost Loop program (esieiof USF revenues recognized during the la$tdi&009 in connection with our Embarq acquisi)ito
decrease in 2009 when compared to 2008 paymettie &ame subsidiaries. We anticipate that thigltvell continue in 2010. See Item 7 of Part Iltois
annual report for more information.

Federal USF programs have undergone substantingekaince 1997, and are expected to experienae changes in the coming years. As mandated by
the 1996 Act, in May 2001 the FCC modified its &rig universal service support mechanism for rtephone companies by adopting an interim mechanis
for a five-year period based on embedded, or hiégthrcosts that provide relatively predictabledisvof support to many LECs, including substaniall of our
LECs. In May 2006, the FCC extended this intemechanism until such time that new high-cost suppbes are adopted for rural telephone companies.
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Universal service funds available to ILECs are entlly available to local competitors that (i) crthey will serve all customers in a study aréia offer
nine core services, and (iii) qualify as an “ellgitelecommunications carrier.” Wireless and ottwmnpetitive service providers continue to seefualify to
receive USF funds. This trend, coupled with charigaisage of telecommunications services, hagglatress on the funding mechanism of the USF,wikic
subject to annual caps on disbursements. As # mfshese developments, there is no assurantssttficient funds will be available to provide filing to all
eligible service providers.

Over the past few years, each of the FCC, Univ&salice Administrative Company and certain Corgjoesgl committees has initiated w-ranging



reviews of the administration of the federal US%s part of this process, we, along with a numbestbér USF recipients, have undergone a number of
USF audits and have also received requests fomiation from the FCC'’s Office of Inspector Gendf@IG”) and Congressional committees. In addition,
July 2008 we received a subpoena from the OIG sdingea broad range of information regarding owrdeiation rates and methodologies since 2000jrand
July 2009 we received a second subpoena requeéstorgration about our participation in the E-rategram for Wisconsin schools and libraries since
2004. The OIG has not identified to us any speés$ues with respect to our participation in tf&Rprogram and none of the audits completed toltte
identified any material issues regarding our pgréiton in the USF program. While we believe oartgipation is in compliance with FCC rules and in
accordance with accepted industry practices, wadatgpredict with certainty the timing or outcometloése various reviews. We have complied withaned
continuing to respond to all requests for inforroati

In late 2002, the FCC requested that the Fedeeak 3bint Board on Universal Service (“FSJB”) rewiarious FCC rules governing high cost universal
service, including rules regarding eligibility teceive payments in markets served by LECs and ditmpecarriers. Since then, the FSIB recommeraded
comprehensive general review of the high-cost stppechanisms for rural and non-rural carriers @aggiested comments on the FCC'’s current ruleshéor t
provision of high-cost support for rural companiesjuding comments on whether eligibility requirents should be amended in a manner that would selyer
affect larger rural LECs such as us.

In 2004, the FCC mandated changes in the admitigstraf the universal service programs that temglgrauspended the disbursement of funds under the
USF's E-rate program (for service to Schools arataries), and, more significantly, created questitvat these administrative changes could simidelay the
disbursement of funds to ILECs from the Universaiv&e High Cost Loop support program. Congressgassed bills in recent years granting successige
year exemptions from the federal law that impadthedE-rate program, including a bill extending €xemption through September 30, 2010. Although we
expect funding from this program to continue, werta assure you that the lack of a definitive reSoh of this issue will not delay or impede thelirsement
of funds in the future.
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Several states in which we operate have establigteédown universal service programs. In 2009 reeeived support totaling approximately $76.6
million from state universal service programs inst&es, with the largest amounts received in Tex@sisiana and Kansas. Several states are clyrrent
reviewing their state universal service fund praggawhich could change the support we receive.

Some of our telephone subsidiaries operate inssteltere traditional cost recovery mechanisms, dinlyirate structures, are under evaluation or have
been modified. See “ State Regulation.” Therelm&ano assurance that these states will continpeotade for cost recovery at current levels.

Developments affecting competitiotDver the past decade, fundamental technologiealilatory and legislative changes have signifigampacted the
communications industry, and we expect these ctsawgecontinue. Primarily as a result of regulgtand technological changes, competition has been
introduced and encouraged in each sector of thereoritations industry in recent years. As a resudtjncreasingly face competition from other comination
service providers, as further described below.

Wireless telephone services increasingly constatggnificant source of competition with ILEC sieps, especially since wireless carriers have bégun
compete effectively on the basis of price with mivaglitional telephone services. As a result, scogomers have chosen to completely forego usaditional
wireline phone service and instead rely solely areless service for voice services. This trench@e pronounced among residential customers, wdaaofiprise
68% of our access line customers. We anticipasettbnd will continue, particularly if wirelessrse&e providers continue to expand their coveragas, reduce
their rates, improve the quality of their servicassd offer enhanced new services. A vast majofityur access line customers are currently capaftieceiving
wireless services from at least one competitiveisemprovider. Technological and regulatory depetents in wireless services, personal communicsition
services, digital microwave, satellite, coaxialleafiber optics, local multipoint distribution séces, WiFi, and other wired and wireless techn@sgre
expected to further permit the development of akiives to traditional landline services. Moregvke growing prevalence of electronic mail, texdssaging,
and similar digital communications continues tousglthe demand for traditional landline voice sesi

The 1996 Act, which obligates ILECs to permit conitpes to interconnect their facilities to the ILEEGetwork and to take various other steps that are
designed to promote competition, imposes sevet#@sion an ILEC if it receives a specific requeshf another entity which seeks to connect withrovjle
services using the ILEC’s network. In additioncleéncumbent LEC is obligated to (i) negotiate iotanection agreements in good faith, (ii) provide
nondiscriminatory “unbundled” access to all aspetthe ILEC’s network, (iii) offer resale of itelecommunications services at wholesale ratesighggrmit
competitors, on terms and conditions (includingsathat are just, reasonable and nondiscriminatorgollocate their physical plant on the ILECisperty, or
provide virtual collocation if physical collocatias not practicable. During 2003, the FCC releas®a rules outlining the obligations of incumbe®Qs to
lease to competitors elements of their circuit-sléid networks on an unbundled basis at pricessthmgtantially limited the profitability of theserangements to
incumbent LECs. In response to successful judaiallenges to these rules, in 2005 the FCC reteades that required incumbent LECs to lease wordt
element only in those situations where competingera genuinely would be impaired without accessuch network elements, and where the unbundlmgdv
not interfere with the development of facilitiessed competition. These rules are further desigmedrmove ILECs’ unbundling obligations over time as
competing carriers deploy their own networks arml@xchange competition increases.
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As a result of these regulatory, consumer and olital developments, ILECs also face competiffom CLECS, particularly in densely populated
areas. CLECs provide competing services througéllieg the ILECs’ local services, through usehwf tLECs’ unbundled network elements or througtirthe
own facilities. The number of companies which heaguested authorization to provide local exchaegeice in our service areas has increased in rgeans,
particularly in Embarq’s legacy markets. We apite that similar action may be taken by other aatitgrs in the future, especially if all forms efdferal
support available to ILECs continue to remain afdé to these competitors.

As noted above, wireless and other competitiveises\yproviders have been increasingly aggressigeéking and obtaining USF support funds. This
support is likely to encourage additional competitim enter our high-cost service areas.

Technological developments have led to the devedoprof new services that compete with traditioh#8C services. Technological improvements have
enabled cable television companies to provide ticadil circuit-switched telephone service over thwaible networks, and several national cable compdrave
aggressively pursued this opportunity. As of Deben81, 2009, we believe that approximately 60%ufaccess lines faced competition from cable voice
offerings. Additionally, several large electridlities have announced plans to offer communicatiservices that compete with some ILECs.

Improvements in the quality of Voice over Interfebtocol (“VolP”)service have led several cable, Internet, dateotimel communications companies
well as start-up companies, to substantially ineegheir offerings of VolP service to business asildential customers. VolP providers route gaditially or
wholly over the Internet, without use of ILEC'sauiit switches. VolP providers frequently use ergtbroadband networks to deliver flat-rate, afitdihce
calling plans that may offer features that caneatlily be provided by traditional ILECs. Thesenglanay also be priced competitively or below thosees
currently charged for traditional local and longtdnce telephone services for several reasonsding lower operating costs and regulatory advasgagin



December 2003, the FCC initiated a rulemaking idéehto address the effect of VoIP on intercarr@npensation, universal service and emergency
services. The FCC has not completed the rulemakumigcould address the treatment of VolP traffid aervices by concluding this proceeding or in bimatior
with intercarrier compensation reform proceedingsaaly underway. To date, the FCC has adopted®edablishing broad guidelines for the regulatibsuct
services, including (i) an April 2004 order thatifal a type of IP-telephony service using the publitched telephone network to be a regulated
telecommunications service subject to interstatess charges, (ii) a November 2004 order that naniatérnet-based services provided by Vonage higisli
Corporation should be subject to federal rathen #tate regulation and (iii) a June 2005 order irgggiall VolP service providers whose services are
interconnected to the public switched telephoneogk to provide E-911 services to their customeérkere can be no assurance that the FCC will aaloptrder
addressing the treatment of VoIP, or that any $utthre order will be on terms favorable to ILECs{lwat VVoIP providers will not successfully compéie our
customers.
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Our industry has witnessed an increase in dis@liest the intercarrier compensation rules apple#blarious categories of traffic exchanged betwee
carriers. These disputes are subject to revieth&yCC, state commissions and federal courtsingaiin such proceedings, whether or not we ar@rty pmay
influence our exposure to disputes about our wiaddesharges or to claims against us for prior wéedke billings. We cannot assure you that reguaboicourt
rulings on such issues will not have a materiakask effect on us or our industry.

Similar to us, many cable, technology or other camitations companies that previously offered atthirange of services are now offering diversified
bundles of services, either through their own nétworeselling arrangements or joint ventures.séash, a growing number of companies are competirsgitve
the communications needs of the same customer b&sgeral of these companies started offeringsrvice bundles before us, which could give them a
advantage in building customer loyalty. Such ati¢is will continue to place downward pressure loe demand for our access lines and/or pricing of ou
services.

In addition to facing direct competition from thgz®viders described above, ILECs increasingly famapetition from alternate communication systems
constructed by long distance carriers, large custerar alternative access vendors. These systeimt) have become more prevalent as a result df996
Act, are capable of originating or terminating sallithout use of the ILECs’ networks or switchireg\sces. Other potential sources of competitiarude non-
carrier systems that are capable of bypassing ILECal networks, either partially or completeljprdugh various means, including the provision afcial
access or independent switching services and theeotration of telecommunications traffic on a fefithe ILECs’ access lines. We anticipate thatladke
trends will continue and lead to decreased useiohetworks.

Significant competitive factors in the local teleple industry include pricing, packaging of serviaad features, quality and convenience of servick a
meeting customer needs such as simplified billimd) #mely response to service calls.

As the telephone industry increasingly experiermespetition, the size and resources of each respemampetitor may increasingly influence its
prospects. Some companies currently providingammng to provide competitive communication seegitiave substantially greater financial and mangeti
resources than we do or own larger or more divees&orks than ours. In addition, many of themrasesubject to the same regulatory constraints we
are. Consequently, some competitors may be alueame lower prices for their products and sesjidevelop and expand their communications andarktw
infrastructure more quickly, adapt more swiftlynew or emerging technologies and changes in custmgairements and devote greater resources to the
marketing and sale of their products and servicas tve can.
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Competition can harm us by causing us to lose ousts, or by causing us to lower prices or increasecapital or operating expenses to retain
customers. Competing communications services, asatireless, VolP, electronic mail, text messagind optional calling services, can also reducgeisé
our network and thereby decrease our network acegssues. Competition can also cause customeesitwe either usage of our services or switckgs |
profitable services, and could impede our abilitgiversify into new lines of business dominatedrimumbent providers.

We anticipate that the traditional operations ofdsEwill continue to be impacted by changes in ragomh, technology, and consumer preferences afigcti
the ability of LECs to attract and retain custoraard the capability of wireless companies, CLE@bJetelevision companies, VoIP providers, eleattilities
and others to provide competitive LEC services. @etition relating to traditional LEC services hhag far affected large urban areas to a greatentettian les
dense areas.

Exclusive of acquisitions, we expect our operat@genues in 2010 to decline as we continue to épes downward pressure primarily due to continued
access line losses, reduced universal servicerigratid lower network access revenues. We expehtdeclines to be partially offset primarily dodncreased
demand for our high-speed Internet service offering

Regulation and Competition Relating to Other Operatons

Long Distance Operations We offer intra-LATA, intrastate and interstate§) distance services. State public service cosiamis generally regulate
intra-LATA toll calls within the same LATA and inte. ATA toll calls between different LATAs located ithe same state. Federal regulators have jutisdic
over interstate toll calls. Recent state regujattranges have increased competition to provida-IDATA toll services in our local exchange
markets. Competition for intrastate and interskag distance services has been intense for dexeses, and focuses primarily on price and prigitens, and
secondarily on customer service, reliability anchamunications quality. Traditionally, our principgdmpetitors for providing long distance servicesevarge
national carriers, regional phone companies andadtaund resellers. Increasingly, however, we hexgerienced competition from newer sources, inayd
wireless companies offering attractively-pricedinglplans. Technological substitutions, includiiglIP, text messaging and electronic mail, havéninr
reduced demand for traditional long distance sesicTo counter such competition, we now offernaitéd long distance calling plans.
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Data Operations In connection with our data business, we faceptition from Internet service providers, sateltbmpanies and cable companies
which use wired or wireless technologies to offighbspeed broadband services. As of December(I9,2ve believe approximately 80% of our local exde
markets are overlapped by cable systems offeritey skxvices competitive with ours. Many of thesmpetitors offer content or other features thatcaenot
match. Moreover, many of these providers hawditicaally been subject to less rigorous regulagmsutiny than our subsidiaries, although recent Fale
changes classifying our hi-speed offering as ¢*information servic” has helped reduce regulatory disparities. Adddilgnthe federal broadband stimul



programs could result in greater competition in eahour markets. These recent rule changes fuptfoeide companies the option to deregulate or
detariff high-speed Internet services. During 2G0bof CenturyTel's and Embarq’s operating coniparelected to either deregulate or detariff thajh-speed
Internet services, which decreased regulatory @yerand increased our retail pricing flexibility.

Fiber Transport Operations When our fiber transport networks are used twigle intrastate telecommunications services, wstroomply with state
requirements for telecommunications utilities, utihg state tariffing requirements. To the extauntfacilities are used to provide interstate comivations, we
are subject to federal regulation as a non-domioamtmon carrier. Our primary competitors in theefitransport industry are from other communicaion
companies, some of whom operate networks and feseeirces much larger than ours. Over the lasyéars, several large communications companies have
merged and have implemented strategies to traasfignificant portion of their voice and data tr@ffom our fiber network to their networks. Wepext this
trend to continue as companies seek opportuniiesduce their transport-related costs. In additew IP-based services may enable new entrabt@rtsport
data at prices lower than we currently offer.

CLEC Operations Competitive local exchange carriers are sulifecertain reporting and other regulatory requiretady the FCC and state public
service commissions, although the degree of reigulég much less substantial than that imposed_&CE operating in the same markets. Local goventsne
also frequently require competitive local exchaoggiers to obtain licenses or franchises reguidtie use of rights-of-way necessary to install aperate their
networks. In each of our CLEC markets, we facepetition from the ILEC, which traditionally has lgistanding relationships with its customers. Girae,
we may also face competition from one or more o@I€ECs, or from other communications providers wha provide comparable services.

Other Operations Similar to our CLEC business, we may be requicedbtain licenses or franchises to enter new starfor our switched digital
television and wireless broadband services, whichidcdelay our rollout of these offerings. Theetésion and wireless communications markets we have
recently entered are highly competitive, which ddirhit our ability to compete effectively.
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Environmental Compliance

As discussed in greater detail in Item 3 of thisydal Report on Form 10-K, several decades ago baersubsidiaries acquired entities that may have
owned or operated seven former “manufactured gisit sites that may require environmental reméhatFrom time to time we may incur other envir@ntal
compliance and remediation expenses, mainly reguftom the ownership of other prior industriaksior the operation of vehicle fleets or power $epgor
our communications equipmenAlthough we cannot assess with certainty the impéeny future compliance and remediation obligagiove do not believe tt
future environmental compliance and remediatioreexitures will have a material adverse effect onfimancial condition or results of operations.
Patents, Trademarks and Licenses

We own several patents, patent applications, tnatees, service marks and trademarks in the U@&udimg our “CenturyLink” brand trademark. Our
services often use the intellectual property obathincluding licensed software. We occasionlalgnse our intellectual property to others.

We have incurred claims in the past, and may irffuhee incur claims alleging that we infringe dretintellectual property of others. These claimus lbe
time-consuming and costly to defend and divert rganmeent resources. If these claims are successfutpuld be forced to pay significant damagesap st
selling certain products or services.

Seasonality

Overall, our business is not significantly impachgdseasonality. However, in our Florida markets,typically experience increased demand for new
service orders in the late fall months and a dedlimaccess lines in the early spring months de#ésonal population trends. In certain of oueotharkets
servicing colleges or universities, we experiemzeaased demand for our services while school segsion. Additionally, from time to time weathelated
problems have resulted in increased costs to repainetwork and respond to service calls in sohmpomarkets. The amount and timing of the casts
subject to the weather patterns of any given ymarhave generally been highest during the thi@rgu and have been related to damage from sew@rass
including hurricanes, tropical storms and tornadoesur markets along the lower Atlantic and GuliMexico coastlines.
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OTHER DEVELOPMENTS OR MATTERS

In recent years, our board of directors has appteagious stock repurchase programs under whichave repurchased approximately $401.0 million,
$186.7 million, $437.5 million, $1.028 billion ai$$03.9 million of our shares under separate re@selprograms approved in February 2004, Februdy, 20
May 2005, February 2006 and August 2007, respdgtivieor additional information, see Liquidity a@pital Resources included in ltem 7 of this anmeport.

In June 2008, our board of directors increasedjoarterly cash dividend rate from $.0675 to $.70gbare and in February 2010 our quarterly dividend
was further increased to $.725 per share. Sed ‘IRistors” below for additional information regardiour current dividend practice.

For additional information concerning our businaed properties, see ltems 2 and 7 elsewhere harairthe Consolidated Financial Statements ands
2, 4,5, and 17 thereto set forth in Item 8 elsewiherein.
Iltem 1A. Risk Factors
RISK FACTORS AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS
Risk Factors
Any of the following risks could materially and agely affect our business, financial conditiosutts of operations, liquidity or prospects. Thsks
described below are not the only risks facing Bease be aware that additional risks and uncégainot currently known to us or that we curreuiiyem to be

immaterial could also materially and adversely etffaur business operations.

Risks Related to Our Business



If we continue to experience access line lossesilsinto the past several years, our revenues, eags and cash flows may be adversely impacted

Our business generates a substantial portion ofvisnues by delivering voice and data services aseess lines. We have experienced substantakac
line losses over the past several years due tordauof factors, including increased competitiod aureless and broadband substitution. We exmecohtinue
experience access line losses in our markets fanforeseen period of time. Our inability to retaccess lines could adversely impact our reverasgnjngs ar
cash flow from operations.
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Weakness in the economy and credit markets may esblg affect our future results of operations.

To date, our operations and liquidity have not beeterially impacted by recent weaknesses in thdicmarkets; however, these weaknesses may ne
impact our operations in the future if overall lmoving rates increase. In addition, if the econ@mg credit markets continue to remain weak, it imgyact our
ability to collect receivables from our customensl @ther communications companies. This weaknegsalso cause our customers to reduce or termihaie
receipt of service offerings from us. Economic lwesss could also negatively affect our vendorschRyvents would negatively impact our results of
operations. We cannot predict with certainty theact to us of any further deterioration or weakringhe overall economy and credit markets.

We are also exposed to market risk from changéseiffiair value of our pension plan assets. Shoufdactual return on plan assets be significaotiyer t
our anticipated return, our net periodic pensiopesmse and our required cash contribution to ousiparplan will increase in future periods. Suckrgg would
negatively impact our results of operations andh dkosv.

We face competition, which we expect to intensifidavhich may reduce market share and lower profits.

As a result of various technological, regulatorg ather changes, the telecommunications industybleaome increasingly competitive. We face
competition from wireless service providers, cablevision operators, competitive local exchangeiea and voice-over-Internet protocol, or VolP,
providers. Over time, we expect to face additidoeil exchange competition from electric utilitydasatellite communications providers, municipaitand
alternative networks or non-carrier systems desigoeeduce demand for our switching or accesscsyv The recent proliferation of companies offgri
integrated service offerings has intensified coritipetin Internet, long distance and data servioeskets, and we expect that competition will furtimensify in
these markets.

Our competitive position could be weakened in titare by strategic alliances or consolidation wittiie communications industry or the development of
new technologies. Our ability to compete succeblsfull depend on how well we market our productsi&ervices and on our ability to anticipate arsgphoad tc
various competitive and technological factors afferthe industry, including changes in regulatfatnich may affect us differently from our competgh
changes in consumer preferences or demographidghamges in the product offerings or pricing sigas of our competitors.

Some of our current and potential competitors gyehmarket presence, engineering, technical ankatiag capabilities and financial, personnel arfteot
resources substantially greater than ours, (ii) asger and more diverse networks, (iii) conductragpions or raise capital at a lower cost thar{iusare subject
to less regulation, (v) offer greater online contaTvices or (vi) have substantially stronger draames. Consequently, these competitors may ber leguippe:
to charge lower prices for their products and s to provide more attractive offerings, to depednd expand their communications and network
infrastructures more quickly, to adapt more swiftynew or emerging technologies and changes itoewes requirements, and to devote greater resotodée
marketing and sale of their products and services.
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Competition could adversely impact us in severalsyancluding (i) the loss of customers and masketre, (ii) the possibility of customers reducihgit
usage of our services or shifting to less profiéed@rvices, (iii) reduced traffic on our networig) our need to expend substantial time or moneyew capital
improvement projects, (v) our need to lower pricegicrease marketing expenses to remain compettid (vi) our inability to diversify by succes$jubffering
new products or services.

Changes in technology could harm us.

The communications industry is experiencing sigaifit technological changes, particularly in thearef VolP, data transmission and electronic and
wireless communications. The growing prevalencel@étronic mail and similar digital communicaticzentinues to reduce demand for our traditionadiliae
voice services. Other changes in technology cmgdlt in the development of additional productsemvices that compete with or displace those edféry
traditional ILECs, or that enable current custonteneeduce or bypass use of our networks. Selange electric utilities have announced plans ferof
communications services that will compete with l@achange companies, or ILECs. Some of our coitopgtmay enjoy network advantages that will enable
them to provide services more efficiently or at éowost. We cannot predict with certainty whicthigological changes will provide the greatest thre@ur
competitive position. We may not be able to obtamely access to new technology on satisfactampseor incorporate new technology into our systemescos
effective manner, or at all. If we cannot devebapv products to keep pace with technological adesnar if such products are not widely embraceduy
customers, we could be adversely impacted.

We cannot assure you that our diversification effswill be successful.

The telephone industry has recently experiencestre in access lines and intrastate minutes @fwhkich, coupled with the other changes resuftiom
competitive, technological and regulatory developtagcould materially adversely affect our coreibess and future prospects. As explained elsewhere
greater detail in this Annual Report on Form 10slt access lines (excluding the effect of acquisgt) have decreased over the last several yeatsyaexpect
this trend to continue. We have also earned hgsastate revenues in recent years due to redsationtrastate minutes of use (partially due ®displacement
of minutes of use by wireless, electronic mailt teessaging, arbitrage and other optional callatgises). We believe that our intrastate minufesse will
continue to decline, although the magnitude of simtrease is uncertain. Likewise, similar redudtiare occurring for interstate minutes of use.

We have traditionally sought growth largely throwgtguisitions of properties similar to those cutiseaperated by us. However, no assurance can be
given that properties will be available for purohas terms attractive to us, particularly if theg Burdened by regulations, pricing plans or coitipetpressures
that are new or different from those historicalpphicable to our incumbent properties. Moreoveragsurance can be given that we will be ablereimge
additional financing on terms acceptable to uafttain timely federal and state governmental @apgds on terms acceptable to us, or at
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Recently, we broadened our services and productéfesing satellite television as part of our buettiproduct and service offerings. Our relianceibrer
companies and their networks to provide these seswiould constrain our flexibility and limit theofitability of these new offerings. We provideciiities-
based digital video services to select marketsnaalinitiate other new service or product offeriimgshe future, including new offerings exploititige 700 MHz
spectrum that we purchased in 2008. We anticithatiethese new offerings will generate lower proférgins than many of our traditional services. rdbwer,
our new product or service offerings could be caised by intellectual property rights held by ather could subject us to the risk of infringemelaims
brought against us by others. For these and o#lasons, we cannot assure you that our recentwefdiversification efforts will be successful.

Future deterioration in our financial performanceld adversely impact our credit ratings, our ajstapital and our access to the capital markets.
Our future results will suffer if we do not effeately adjust to changes in our industry.

The above-described changes in our industry haaeegla higher premium on marketing, technologaadineering and provisioning skills. Our future
success depends, in part, on our ability to reainstaff to acquire or strengthen these skilisl, avhere necessary, to attract and retain nevopees that
possess these skills.

Our future results will suffer if we do not effeately manage our expanded operations.

Following our acquisition of Embarg, we may congrto expand our operations through additional aitmns and new product and service offerings,
some of which involve complex technical, enginegriand operational challenges. Our future succegerds, in part, upon our ability to manage ounasn
opportunities, which pose substantial challengesi$éao integrate new operations into our exisboginess in an efficient and timely manner, to sasfully
monitor our operations, costs, regulatory compkaacd service quality, and to maintain other neagdsternal controls. We cannot assure you that o
expansion or acquisition opportunities will be sgsful, or that we will realize our expected opetpefficiencies, cost savings, revenue enhancesnephergie
or other benefits.

Network disruptions or system failures could advelysaffect our operating results and financial coftbn.

To be successful, we will need to continue prowjdinir customers with a high capacity, reliable secure network. Some of the risks to our netwod
infrastructure include:

e power losses or physical damage to our access livtesther caused by fire, adverse weather conditfotluding those described immediately bels
terrorism or otherwis

e capacity limitations
e software and hardware defects or malfuncti
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e breaches of security, including sabotage, tampedogputer viruses and bre-ins, anc
e other disruptions that are beyond our coni

Disruptions or system failures may cause interostiin service or reduced capacity for customérservice is not restored in a timely manner,
agreements with our customers or service standa&tdsy state regulatory commissions could obligate provide credits or other remedies. If nelns®curity
is breached, confidential information of our cuséwgnor others could be lost or misappropriated,veadnay be required to expend additional resources
modifying network security to remediate vulneraf@i. The occurrence of any disruption or systaiife may result in a loss of business, increapemrses,
damage our reputation, subject us to additionalle¢gry scrutiny or expose us to civil litigationdapossible financial losses that may not be fatlyered
through insurance, any of which could have a maitexdverse effect on our results of operationsfarahcial condition.

We face hurricane and other natural disaster riskghich can disrupt our operations and cause us teur substantial additional capital costs.

A substantial number of our access lines are ldcatd-lorida, Alabama, Louisiana, Texas, North Qiaey and South Carolina, and our operations 1
are subject to the risks associated with sevemdabstorms, hurricanes and tornadoes, includimgreéd telephone lines, poweutages, damaged or destro
property and equipment, and work interruptions.

Although we maintain property and casualty insueamic our plant (excluding our outside plant) ang miader certain circumstances be able to seek
recovery of some additional costs through increaatss, only a portion of our additional costs dliferelated to such hurricanes and natural disatave
historically been recoverable. We cannot prediocttivar we will continue to be able to obtain inseeafor hazard-related damages or, if obtainablecanded,
whether this insurance will be adequate to covelaases. In addition, we expect any insurancéisfriature to be subject to substantial deductithesto
provide for premium adjustments based on claimg. #iture hazard-related costs and work interruggtioould adversely affect our operations and owariaial
condition.

Any failure or inadequacy of our information techrogy infrastructure could harm our business.

The capacity, reliability and security of our infuation technology hardware and software infrastmgc{including our billing systems) are importamthe
operation of our current business, which wouldesuiffi the event of system failures. Likewise, ability to expand and update our information tedbgp
infrastructure in response to our growth and chaggieeds is important to the continued implemeottadi our new service offering initiatives. Ouability to

expand or upgrade our technology infrastructurdccbave adverse consequences, which could incheldelayed implementation of new service offerings,
service or billing interruptions, and the diversmfrdevelopment resources.
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We rely on a limited number of key suppliers anchders to operate our business.



We depend on a limited number of suppliers and eentbr equipment and services relating to our netvinfrastructure. Our local exchange carrier
networks consist of central office and remote sisdlswith advanced digital switches. Some of digital switches were manufactured by Nortel, whigh
currently restructuring its operations under thekaptcy laws of Canada, the United States andUthited Kingdom. If any of these suppliers expeci&n
interruptions or other problems delivering or seing these network components on a timely basispparations could suffer significantly. To theent that
proprietary technology of a supplier is an integ@inponent of our network, we may have limited ifddity to purchase key network components from
alternative suppliers. We also rely on a limitesnier of other communications companies in conaedtiith reselling long distance, wireless and siggel
entertainment services to our customers. In afditve rely on a limited number of software vendorsupport our business management systems.e levént
it becomes necessary to seek alternative suppligtvendors, we may be unable to obtain satisfacemlacement supplies or services on economieditigctive
terms, on a timely basis, or at all, which couldr@ase costs or cause disruptions in our services.

We may not own or have a license to use all teclogyl that may be necessary to expand our productiefigs, either of which could adversely affect
our business and profitability.

We may need to obtain the right to use certainrgater other intellectual property from third pestito be able to offer new products and servitfese
cannot license or otherwise obtain rights to useraquired technology from a third party on reasdaaerms, our ability to offer new IP-based praguand
services, including VolP, or other new offeringsyniie restricted, made more costly or delayed. i@alility to implement IP-based or other new offigis on a
cost-effective basis could impair our ability tacsassfully meet increasing competition from companiffering voice or integrated communications
services. Our inability to deploy new technologiesild also prevent us from successfully diversifyimodifying or bundling our service offerings aegult in
accelerated loss of access lines and revenuesemose adversely affect our business and profitabi

Portions of our property, plant and equipment arecated on property owned by third parties.

Over the past few years, certain utilities, coopreea and municipalities in certain of the stataswihich we operate have requested significant
increases for attaching our plant to their fagti To the extent that these entities are sultdé@ssncreasing the amount we pay for these attaents, our futu
operating costs will increase.

In addition, we rely on rights-of-way, doeation agreements and other authorizations giaoyegovernmental bodies and other third partidedate ou
cable, conduit and other network equipment on trespective properties. If any of these authaopat terminate or lapse, our operations could beraely
affected.
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Our relationships with other communications compas are material to our operations and their finaatidifficulties may adversely affect us.

We originate and terminate calls for long distacagiers and other interexchange carriers ovenetwork in exchange for access charges that refrase
significant portion of our revenues. Should theaeiers experience substantial financial diffimgdt our inability to timely collect access charfresn them
could have a negative effect on our business asdtseof operations.

In addition, certain of our operations carry a gigant amount of voice and data traffic for largemmunications companies. As these larger
communications companies consolidate or expand tiedivorks, it is possible that they could transfgrortion of this traffic from our network to theietworks
or some other networks, which could negatively iotgaur business and results of operations.

We depend on key members of our senior managemesannt

Our success depends largely on the skills, expegiand performance of a limited number of seniicefs. Competition for senior management in our
industry is intense and we may have difficulty iitag our current senior managers or attracting naes in the event of terminations or resignatidpsr a
discussion of similar concerns relating to the Erglraerger, see below “Risks Related to our Acgoisiof Embarg on July 1, 2009 — Following the mergee
may be unable to retain key employees.”

We could be affected by certain changes in laborttass.

As of December 31, 2009, over 30% of our employee® members of 46 separate bargaining units repted by two different unions. From time to
time, our labor agreements with these unions lagrsé we typically negotiate the terms of new age®s We cannot predict the outcome of these
negotiations. We may be unable to reach new agretsmand union employees may engage in strikeg slowdowns or other labor actions, which could
materially disrupt our ability to provide servicels addition, new labor agreements may imposeifsagmt new costs on us, which could impair ouaficial
condition or results of operations in the futuMoreover, our post-employment benefit offeringssgus to incur costs not faced by many of our caitops,
which could ultimately hinder our competitive pdsit

Risks Related to our Acquisition of Embarg on July 2009
We expect to continue to incur substantial expenselsted to the integration of Embarg.

We expect to continue to incur substantial expeirsesnnection with integrating the business, peficprocedures, operations, technologies andragste
of Embarq with ours. There are a number of systiusstill must be integrated, including managen@iormation, sales, billing, and benefits. Irdagbn, we
expect to continue to incur integration costs eglab employee severance programs and brandinafivits associated with changing the trade name to
CenturyLink. As explained in our other recent mpdiled with the Securities and Exchange Commissthere are a number of factors beyond our cbtftad
could affect the total amount or timing of our es{eel integration expenses. Moreover, many of ¥perses that will be incurred, by their nature,diffécult to
estimate accurately at the present time. Thesersgs could, particularly in the near term, exdbedsavings that we expect to achieve from theiedition of
duplicative expenses and the realization of ecoasrof scale and cost savings and revenue enhanterakied to the integration of the businessdwesé
integration expenses likely will result in us confing to take significant charges against earnindsture quarters, but the amount and timing afscharges ar
uncertain at present.
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We may be unable to successfully integrate our leghausiness and Embarq’s business and realize theécipated benefits of the merger.

The merger combined two companies which previoaplrated as independent public companies. Asudt ifsthe merger, we will be required to de\
significant management attention and resourcesitegiating the business practices and operatiortieofwo companies. Potential difficulties that ey
encounter in the integration process include thieviang:

e the inability to successfully combine our legdmisiness and Embasgbusiness in a manner that permits us to achlevedst savings and operat
synergies anticipated to result from the mergeicvkvould result in the anticipated benefits of therger not being realized partly or wholly in tiree
frame currently anticipated or at ¢

e |ost revenues or opportunities as a result of cime potential customers or strategic partnemsitbier of the two companies deciding to delay oeda
business with the combined compa

e complexities associated with managing the combmesinesses

e integrating personnel from the two predecessor enigs while maintaining focus on providing consistéigh quality products and customer serv
e potential unknown liabilities and unforeseen insezhexpenses, delays or regulatory conditions egedavith the merger; ar

e performance shortfalls as a result of the diversifbmanageme’s attention caused by integrating the comp:’ operations

It is possible that the integration process coaekltlt in the diversion of managemendttention, disruptions in our ongoing businesseBjconsistencies
standards, controls, procedures and policies, &nyh@h could adversely affect our ability to maimt relationships with customers, vendors and eygas o
our ability to achieve the anticipated benefitshaf merger, or could reduce the earnings or otlseratlversely affect our business and financialtesu
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Following the merger, we may be unable to retainyjkemployees.

Our success will depend in part upon our abilityretain key employees. Key employees may deparause of issues relating to the uncertainty
difficulty of integration or a desire not to remaivith us following the merger. Accordingly, no asance can be given that we will be able to retay
employees to the same extent as in the past.

In connection with completing the merger, we hawahched branding initiatives that are likely to imve substantial costs and may not be favor:
received by customers.

Upon completion of the merger, we changed our brede to CenturyLink, although we will not formatlizange our name until we receive shareholder
approval in 2010. We have incurred, and will coné to incur, substantial capital and operatindscimsre-branding our products and services. Trene
assurance that we will be able to achieve namegretion or status under our new brand that is caatiga to the recognition and status previously yego The
failure of these initiatives could adversely affeat ability to attract and retain customers atfter merger, resulting in reduced revenues.

In connection with approving the merger, the Fedé@ommunications Commission has imposed conditidhat could increase our future capital cos
and limit our operating flexibility.

In connection with approving the merger, the FCStiggl a publicly-available order that imposed a aefmgnsive set of conditions on our operations over
periods ranging from one to three years following tlosing date. Among other things, these cartitcommit us (i) to make broadband service aviailaball
of our residential and single line business custsméthin three years of the closing, (ii) to meatious targets regarding the speed of our broatibarvices,
(i) to enhance the wholesale service levels inlegacy markets to match the service levels in &b markets and (iv) to forbear for one year froreralig the
current status of any facility providing “unbundleatcess to our network or to request any new mgi€iexibility for special access services in our
markets. Although most of these commitments lgrgetrespond to our business strategies, they doatéase our overall future capital or operatiogts or
limit our flexibility to deploy capital in response changing market conditions. Moreover, if fayaeason we fail to meet any of these commitmehésFCC
could assess penalties or fines or impose additamars regulating our operations.

In connection with completing the merger, we assuinarious contingent liabilities and a sizable undiended pension plan of Embarg, which could
negatively impact our future financial position goerformance.

Upon consummating the merger, Embarq became ouityatwned subsidiary and remains responsible fbofits pre-closing contingent liabilities,
including Embarq’s previously-disclosed risks argsunder its tax sharing agreement with Sprint BleRbrporation, its retiree benefit litigation, avatious
environmental claims. Embarq also remains respts$r benefits under its existing qualified definbenefit pension plan, which as of December 8Q92vas
in an underfunded position. If any of these mattgve rise to material liabilities, our consoligatoperating results or financial position will iegatively
affected. Additional information regarding the&ks is available in (i) Item 3 of this Annual Repon Form 10-K, (ii) the periodic reports filed Bynbarqg with
the Securities and Exchange Commission througlakte of the merger, and (iii) Note 11.
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Risks Related to Our Regulatory Environment
Our revenues could be materially reduced or our erges materially increased by changes in stateeofefal regulations.
The majority of our revenues are substantially depat upon regulations which, if changed, couldiltem material revenue reductions. Laws
regulations applicable to us and our competitoreHaeen and are likely to continue to be subjeairtgoing changes and court challenges, which calsic

affect our revenues.

Risk of loss or reduction of network access chaegenues or support fund paymel A significant portion of our revenues is derivieasim access char¢



revenues that are paid to us by long distanceerarbased largely on rates set by federal andregtgatory bodies. Interexchange carriers hded fi
complaints in several of our operating states rstijug lower intrastate access rates. Several gtatkc service commissions are investigating inatsaccess
rates and the ultimate outcome and impact of smadbstigations are uncertain.

The FCC regulates tariffs for interstate accesssamdcriber line charges, both of which are comptmef our revenue. The FCC has been considering
comprehensive reform of its intercarrier compeisatules for several years. Any reform eventuatlppted by the FCC will likely involve significachanges
in the access charge system and could potent&dlyitrin a significant decrease or elimination @fess charges altogether. In addition, our firdnesults coul
be harmed if carriers that use our access serbipesme financially distressed or bypass our netsyarither due to changes in regulation or other
factors. Furthermore, access charges currenttytpais could be diverted to competitors who eatermarkets or expand their operations, eithertdwhanges
in regulation or otherwise.

The FCC and Congress may take actions that woyddtrour access to video programming and pricifdchvcould impact our ability to continue to
expand our video business and impact our compefitosition in our existing video markets.

We receive revenues from the federal UniversaliServund (“USF”), and, to a lesser extent, intressupport funds. These governmental programs are
reviewed and amended from time to time, and we aaprovide assurance that they will not be chargedhpacted in a manner adverse to us. For seyegab
the FCC and the federal-state joint board consitleoenprehensive reforms of the federal USF contidbuand distribution rules. During this perio@rious
parties have objected to the size of the USF ostipreed the continued need to maintain the progreits current form. Over the past few years, hight
support fund payments to our operating subsididréa® decreased due to increases in the natioravielage cost per loop factor used to determine pagsro
program participants, as well as declines in therallsize of the high cost support fund. In additthe number of eligible telecommunications ieaisr receiving
support payments from this program has increaskstantially in recent years, which, coupled withestfactors, has placed additional financial pressm the
amount of money that is available to provide suppayments to all eligible recipients, including us
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Risks posed by state regulatiodge are also subject to the authority of state @guy commissions which have the power to regutdtastate rates and
services, including local, in-state long-distanod aetwork access services. The limited numbeuofLECs that continue to be subject to “rateaifirn”
regulation for intrastate purposes remain subjetité powers of state regulatory commissions talaonearnings reviews and reduce our service ratdsCs
governed by alternative regulatory plans could alsder certain circumstances be ordered to redates or could experience rate reductions folloviirgglapse
of plans currently in effect. Our business coukbdde materially adversely affected by the adopiomew laws, policies and regulations or changesxisting
state regulations. In particular, we cannot asgatethat we will succeed in obtaining or maintagnall requisite state regulatory approvals for operations
without the imposition of conditions on our busisieshich could have the effect of imposing mateaidditional costs on us or limiting our revenues.

Risks posed by costs of regulatory complian&egulations continue to create significant coamie costs for us. Challenges to our tariffs lgylaors
or third parties or delays in obtaining certificais and regulatory approvals could cause us ta sudostantial legal and administrative expenses, iin
successful, such challenges could adversely atfeatates that we are able to charge our custongaus business also may be impacted by legislatiah
regulation imposing new or greater obligationstelao regulations or laws related to bolsteringnbland security, increasing disaster recovery requents,
minimizing environmental impacts, enhancing privamyaddressing other issues that impact our bssjriecluding the Communications Assistance for Law
Enforcement Act (which requires communicationsiegsrto ensure that their equipment, facilities] aarvices are able to facilitate authorized edextr
surveillance), and laws governing local numbergiafity and customer proprietary network informatie@quirements. We expect our compliance costs to
increase if future laws or regulations continuétease our obligations to assist other governaiegencies.

Regulatory changes in the communications industryudd adversely affect our business by facilitatiggeater competition against us.

The 1996 Act provides for significant changes ammteased competition in the communications industigtuding the local communications and long
distance industries. This Act and the FCC'’s im@ating regulations remain subject to judicial rewend additional rulemakings, thus making it difficto
predict what effect the legislation will ultimatetiave on us and our competitors. Several regylaod judicial proceedings addressing communicatissues
have recently concluded, are underway or may seaommenced. Moreover, certain communities natidewave expressed an interest in establishing
municipal telephone utilities that would competedastomers. Finally, recently-enacted federahtmnd stimulus projects and the soon to be anedunc
National Broadband Plan may adversely impact ug. cahnot predict the outcome of these developmeats;an we assure that these changes will not&
material adverse effect on us or our industry.
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We are subject to significant regulations that litour flexibility.

As a diversified full service incumbent local exnbe carrier, or ILEC, we have traditionally beebjeat to significant regulation that does not apply
many of our competitors. For instance, unlike mahgur competitors, we are subject to federal nagesito share facilities, file and justify tariffeaintain
certain accounts and file reports, and state rements that obligate us to maintain service stafsdand limit our ability to change tariffs in a 8y
manner. This regulation imposes substantial caamp& costs on us and restricts our ability to chaates, to compete and to respond rapidly to chgng
industry conditions. Although newer alternativenfis of regulation permit us greater freedoms iresghstates in which we operate, they nonethejgseally
impose caps on the rates that we can charge otomcess. As our business becomes increasingly ctitimperegulatory disparities between us and our
competitors could impede our ability to competétighation and different objectives among federal atate regulators could create uncertainty anédamur
ability to respond to new regulations. Moreovéramges in tax laws, regulations or policies conteéase our tax rate, particularly if state reguiatontinue to
search for additional revenue sources to addredgabshortfalls. We are unable to predict theriactions of the various regulatory bodies thaiego us, but
such actions could materially affect our business.

We are subject to franchising requirements that édumpede our expansion opportunities.

We may be required to obtain from municipal auttiesioperating franchises to install or expanditees. Some of these franchises may require y=to
franchise fees. These franchising requirementsrgdlg apply to our fiber transport and CLEC opienas, and to our emerging switched digital telensand
wireless broadband businesses. These require@ultsdelay us in expanding our operations or iaseethe costs of providing these services.

We will be exposed to risks relating to evaluatiasfscontrols required by Section 404 of the Sarbar@xley Act.



Changing laws, regulations and standards relatirgptporate governance and public disclosure, @iotuthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related regulations
implemented by the SEC, the New York Stock Exchargkthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Board,increasing legal and financial compliance
costs and making some activities more time consgm#mny future failure to successfully or timelymplete annual assessments of our internal comeglsired
by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act couldetthjs to sanctions or investigation by regulatarthorities. Any such action could adversely dftea
financial results or investors’ confidence in usd @ould cause our stock price to fall. If we faimaintain effective controls and proceduresmey be unable
to provide financial information in a timely andiable manner, which could in certain instancestlior ability to borrow or raise capital.
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For a more thorough discussion of the regulat®syds that may affect our business, see ltem liAtmual Report on Form 10-K.
Other Risks
We have a substantial amount of indebtedness ang/meed to incur more in the future.

We have a substantial amount of indebtedness, vduohl have material adverse consequences fonelsding (i) hindering our ability to adjust to
changing market, industry or economic conditioii}, l{miting our ability to access the capital rkats to refinance maturing debt or to fund acqioisg or
emerging businesses, (iii) limiting the amountrekfcash flow available for future operations, #itjans, dividends, stock repurchases or othes use)
making us more vulnerable to economic or industiwiturns, including interest rate increases, anglacing us at a competitive disadvantage to thodseir
competitors that have less indebtedness.

In connection with executing our business strategie® expect to continue to evaluate the possilifitacquiring additional communications assetsl, an
we may elect to finance future acquisitions by micig additional indebtedness. Moreover, to respiancompetitive challenges, we may be requirecite
substantial additional capital to finance new pidir service offerings, including capital neceggarfinance any new offerings exploiting the 7081
spectrum that we purchased in 2008. Our abilitgrtange additional financing will depend on, ametiter factors, our financial position and perfonte, as
well as prevailing market conditions and otherdesteyond our control. We cannot assure youtleatill be able to obtain additional financing @mrhs
acceptable to us or at all. If we are able toiokadditional financing, our credit ratings could &dversely affected. As a result, our borrowiost€ would likely
increase, our access to capital may be adversielgtedl and our ability to satisfy our obligatiomgler our indebtedness could be adversely affected.

We have a significant amount of goodwill on our laaice sheet. If our goodwill becomes impaired, waynbe required to record a significant charge
earnings and reduce our stockholders’ equity.

Under generally accepted accounting principlesdadibis not amortized but instead is reviewed ifmpairment on an annual basis or more frequently
whenever events or circumstances indicate thaaitying value may not be recoverable. If our geidds determined to be impaired in the future, may be
required to record a significant, non-cash chaogearnings during the period in which the impairtrisrdetermined.
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We cannot assure you that we will be able to congrpaying dividends at the current rate.

We plan to continue our current dividend practicelewever, you should be aware that these practioesubject to change for reasons that may in
any of the following factors:

e we may not have enough cash to pay such dividemelsadchanges in our cash requirements, capitaldspg plans, cash flow or financial positic

e while our dividend practices involve the distrilautiof a substantial portion of our cash availableady dividends, our Board of Directors could cte
its practices at any tim

e the actual amounts of dividends distributed anddbesion to make any distribution will remain dttames entirely at the discretion of our Boarc
Directors;

e the effects of regulatory reform, including any ges to intercarrier compensation and the Univesalice Fund rule:
e our ability to maintain investment grade creditrrgs on our senior dek

e the amount of dividends that we may distributémsted by restricted payment and leverage coveniantsir credit facilities and, potentially, the ries
of any future indebtedness that we may incur;

e the amount of dividends that we may distributeuisjsct to restrictions under Louisiana le

Our Board of Directors is free to change or suspemddividend practices at any time. Our commoarsholders should be aware that they hav
contractual or other legal right to dividends.

Our current dividend practices could limit our alify to pursue growth opportunities .

The current practice of our Board of Directors &y pn annual $2.90 per common share dividend tsfltintention to distribute to our shareholders a
substantial portion of our free cash flow. As sute we may not retain a sufficient amount of cesfinance a material expansion of our businesben
future. In addition, our ability to pursue any evél expansion of our business, through acquisstior increased capital spending, will depend riteaa it
otherwise would on our ability to obtain third pafinancing. We cannot assure you that such fimanwill be available to us at all, or at an acedyi¢ cost.

As a holding company, we rely on payments from aperating companies to meet our obligations.

As a holding company, substantially all of our im@and operating cash flow is dependent upon thenggs of our subsidiaries and the distribution of
those earnings to, or upon loans or other paynaritsds by those subsidiaries to, us. As a resudtrely upon our subsidiaries to generate thd$urecessary
to meet our obligations, including the paymentmbants owed under our long-term debt. Our subsatiaare separate and distinct legal entities ave no
obligation to pay any amounts owed by us or, sulteimited exceptions for tax-sharing purposesniake any funds available to us to repay our akibgs,
whether by dividends, loans or other payments.taeof our subsidiaries may be restricted undanlagreements or regulatory orders from transfgftinds tc



us, including certain loan provisions that resttiit amount of dividends that may be paid to usredver, our rights to receive assets of any sidryid
upon its liquidation or reorganization will be effevely subordinated to the claims of creditorghadt subsidiary, including trade creditors. Thetfmtes to our
consolidated financial statements included in fnisual Report on Form 10-K describe these matteeslditional detail.
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Our agreements and organizational documents and laggble law could limit another party’s ability tacquire us.

Our articles of incorporation provide for a clagsifboard of directors, which limits the ability af insurgent to rapidly replace the board. Intauld a
number of other provisions in our agreements agdrirzational documents and various provisions pfieable law may delay, defer or prevent a futalesbver
of CenturyTel unless the takeover is approved byBmard of Directors. This could deprive our slmalders of any related takeover premium.

We face other risks.

The list of risks above is not exhaustive, and gbauld be aware that we face various other risksudised in this or other reports filed by us or &
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Sments

This Annual Report on Form 10-K and other documéled by us under the federal securities lawsudel and future oral or written statements or press
releases by us and our management may includejrcéstward-looking statements relating to the agiens of our company, including without limitation
statements with respect to our anticipated futperating and financial performance, financial gosiand liquidity, growth opportunities and growttes,
acquisition and divestiture opportunities, mergeresgies, business prospects, regulatory and cdtimpeiutlook, investment and expenditure plansestment
results, financing opportunities and sources (idiclg the impact of financings on our financial piosi, financial performance or credit ratings),corg plans,
strategic alternatives, business strategies, dret stmilar statements of expectations or objestiMeaccompanying statements of assumptions that ar
highlighted by words such as “expects,” “anticigatéintends,” “plans,” “believes,” “projects,” “sks,” “estimates,” “hopes,” “should,” “could,” arfchay,” and
variations thereof and similar expressions. SwocWdrdiooking statements are based upon our judgmenassuimptions as of the date such statements are
concerning future developments and events, mamhath are outside of our control. These forwardkiag statements, and the assumptions upon whidh su
statements are based, are inherently speculattvar@nsubject to uncertainties that could causectural results to differ materially from such staents. Our
actual results or performance may differ materifiiyn those anticipated, estimated or projectahd or more of these risks or uncertainties madieeizor if
underlying assumptions prove incorrect. Factoas tould impact actual our results include butrarelimited to:
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[ ] the extent, timing, success and overall effeEtompetition from wireless carriers, VolP provide€LECSs, cable television companies, electridtiat
and others, including without limitation the riskst these competitors may offer less expensivaae innovative products and servic

[ the risks inherent in rapid technological changeluding without limitation the risk that new teaiogies will displace our products and servic

[ the effects of ongoing changes in the reguladibtihe communications industry, including withommitation (i) increased competition resulting from
regulatory changes, (ii) the final outcome of vasdederal, state and local regulatory initiatimes proceedings, including switched access-related
proceedings and legislation, that could impactammpetitive position, revenues, compliance cosipital expenditures or prospects, (iii) the effafcthe
National Broadband Plan, (iv) reductions in reventeeeived from the federal Universal Service Fandther current or future federal and state sug
programs designed to compensate ILECs operatihggh-cost markets, and (v) changes in the regulatispetial acces:

[ our ability to effectively adjust to changes in t@mmunications industn

[ the possibility that the anticipated benefitairthe Embarq merger cannot be fully realized imely manner or at all, or that integrating Embarqg’
operations into ours will be more difficult, distiye or costly than anticipate

[ our ability to effectively manage our expansigportunities, including without limitation our aibyl to (i) effectively integrate newly-acquired npewly-
developed businesses into our operations, (iietttind retain technological, managerial and dihgmpersonnel, (iii) achieve projected growth, reve
and cost savings targets from the Embarqg acquisitithin the anticipated timeframe, and (iv) othessvmonitor our operations, costs, regulatory
compliance, and service quality and maintain ottemessary internal contro

[ possible changes in the demand for, or pricingof products and services, including without tation reduced demand for our traditional telephone
access services caused by greater use of wirelessronic mail or Internet communications or otfamtors;

[ our ability to successfully introduce new prodacservice offerings on a timely and cost-effeetbasis, including without limitation our ability €i)
successfully roll out our new video, voice and lolflmend services, (ii) successfully exploiting th® ®Hz spectrum that we purchased in 2008, (iii)
expand successfully our full array of service affgs to new or acquired markets and (iv) offer Haddervice packages on terms attractive to our
customers
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[ ] our continued access to credit markets on faver@ms, including our continued access to finagéh amounts, and on terms and conditions, negessa
to support our operations and refinance existinglnedness when it becomes ¢

[ our ability to collect receivables from financiatlpubled communications compani

[ the inability of third parties to discharge theamemitments to us

[ our ability to pay a $2.90 per common share dinifiannually, which may be affected by changesiircash requirements, capital spending plans, cash
flows or financial position

[ unanticipated increases in our capital expendift



[ our ability to successfully negotiate collectivedeining agreements on reasonable terms without stoppages
[ our ownership of or access to technology that neagdressary for us to operate or expand our biss
[ regulatory limits on our ability to change the psdor telephone services in response to indusiamges

[ impediments to our ability to expand throughaattively priced acquisitions, whether caused bylagry limits, financing constraints, a decreaséhie
pool of attractive target companies, or competifimmacquisitions from other interested buye

[ uncertainties relating to the implementation of business strategies, including the possible teeethke abrupt and potentially disruptive charigesur
business strategies due to changes in competiggalation, technology, product acceptance or déors;

[ the lack of assurance that we can compete effégtagainst bette-capitalized competitor:
[ the impact of equipment failure, including potehtiatwork disruptions
[ general worldwide economic conditions and relateceutainties, including continued access to creditkets on favorable termr
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[ the effects of adverse weather on our customepsomrerties
[ other risks referenced in this report and from ttmé&me in our other filings with the SecuritiesdaExchange Commissio
[ the effects of more general factors, including withlimitation:

. changes in general industry and market ¢mmdi and growth rates

. changes in labor conditions, including worke levels and labor costs

. changes in interest rates or other genextédmal, regional or local economic conditions

. changes in legislation, regulation or puplidicy, including changes that increase our ta& ra

. increases in capital, operating, medicadministrative costs, or the impact of new busirggg®rtunities requiring significant up-front inte®nts
. changes in our relationships with vendorghe failure of these vendors to provide competifroducts on a timely basis

. failures in our internal controls that couvédult in inaccurate public disclosures or fraud

. changes in our debt ratings

. unfavorable outcomes of regulatory or lggakceedings and investigations, including rate @edings and tax audits

. losses or unfavorable returns on our investsiin other communications companies

. delays in the construction of our networks

. changes in accounting policies, assumptiesismates or practices adopted voluntarily oreggiired by generally accepted accounting principles

For additional information, see the descriptiomof business included above, as well as Item RisfAnnual Report on Form 10-K. Due to these
uncertainties, there can be no assurance thatnticipated results will occur, that our judgmentsassumptions will prove correct, or that unforesee
developments will not occur. Accordingly, you aeutioned not to place undue reliance upon anyiofarward-looking statements, which speak onlpithe
date made. Additional risks that we currently déemmaterial or that are not presently known to osld also cause our actual results to differ maligrfrom
those expected in our forward-looking statemehlt®& undertake no obligation to update or revisearogur forward-looking statements for any reasohether
as a result of new information, future events arelflgpments, changed circumstances, or otherwise.

Investors should also be aware that while we deadbus times, communicate with securities analyisis against our policy to disclose to them
selectively any material non-public informationather confidential information. Accordingly, iniess should not assume that we agree with anyrstateor
report issued by an analyst irrespective of theerdrof the statement or report. To the extentingorts issued by securities analysts containpaojections,
forecasts or opinions, such reports are not oysoresibility.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties.

Our properties consist principally of telephone$incentral office equipment, and land and builgliredated to telephone operations. As of Decembg?!
and 2008, our gross property, plant and equipmieaproximately $15.6 billion and $8.9 billion, pestively, consisted of the following:

December 31

2009 2008

Cable and wir¢ 52.2% 52.t
Central office 29.€ 32.2
General suppol 11.4 9.2
Fiber transpor 2.2 3.7
Construction in progres 2.8 .8
Other 1.7 1.t

100.(% 100.(




“Cable and wire” facilities consist primarily of bed cable and aerial cable, poles, wire, conduit dops used in providing local and long distance
services. “Central office” consists primarily afisching equipment, circuit equipment and relatadilfties. “General support” consists primarilylahd,
buildings, tools, furnishings, fixtures, motor vellels and work equipment. “Fiber transport” corss@ftnetwork assets and equipment to provide fizersport
services. “Construction in progress” includes ety of the foregoing categories that has not laced in service because it is still under comsion.

The properties of certain of our telephone subsiBaare subject to mortgages securing the detiai companies. We own substantially all of thered
office buildings, local administrative buildingsarehouses, and storage facilities used in ourtelep operations.

For further information on the location and typeoaf properties, see the descriptions of our oerain Iltem 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In Barbrasue Beattie and James Sovis, on beh#ieafiselves and all others similarly situated, vatGeyTel, Inc., filed on October 28, 2002, in the Uni
States District Court for the Eastern District oichgan (Case No. 02-10277), the plaintiffs allegfeat we unjustly and unreasonably billed custonf@rgside
wire maintenance services, and sought unspecifiatetary damages and injunctive relief under varlegal theories on behalf of a purported classvef dwo
million customers in our telephone markets. Ond&k0, 2006, the Court certified a class of pléimand issued a ruling that the billing descripave used f
these services during an approximatelyr@ath period between October 2000 and May 2002 legadly insufficient. In February 2010, subjeztcburt approy
and agreement on other terms and conditions, wledéhis case in principle in an amount that eeeleour previously established reserves by $8anilind su
amount was reflected as an expense in the foudheyof 2009.

Over 60 years ago, one of our indirect subsidia@entel Corporation, acquired entities that mayehavned or operated seven former plant sites that
produced “manufactured gas” under a process wigkstyl through the mid-1900s. Centel has been adtaysof Embarq since being spurfifin 2006 from Spr
Nextel, which acquired Centel in 1993. None ofthplant sites are currently owned or operatedthgreSprint Nextel, Embarq or their subsidiari€n three <
Embarq and the current landowners are working tii¢hEnvironmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) purstismadministrative consent orders. Remediation
expenditures pursuant to the orders are not exghéctiee material. On five sites, including the thsites where the EPA is involved, Centel has edtetto
agreements with other potentially responsible pattib share remediation costs. Further, Sprintéléns agreed to indemnify Embarq for most of argnéual
liability arising from all seven of these sitesas®d upon current circumstances, we do not expisdssue to have a material adverse impact omesuits of
operations or financial condition.

In William Douglas Fulghum, et al. v. Embarqg Corgiion, et al, filed on December 28, 2007 in the United Statistr@t Court for the District of Kansas
(Civil Action No. 07-CV-2602), a group of retirefied a putative class action lawsuit in the Unittates District Court for the District of Kanseaballenging
the decision to make certain modifications to Emlsaretiree benefits programs generally effecti@euary 1, 2008. Defendants include Embarq, cedkiits
benefit plans, its Employee Benefits Committee #edindividual plan administrator of certain of litsnefits plans. Additional defendants include Spxextel
and certain of its benefit plans. In addition, anptaint in arbitration has been filed by 15 forn@emtel executives, similarly challenging the betsefhanges. A
ruling in Embarq’s favor was recently entered ie #bitration proceeding. Embarqg and other defetsdzontinue to vigorously contest these claims and
charges. Given that this litigation is still Imetinitial stages of discovery, it is prematur@stimate the impact this lawsuit could have toresults of operation
or financial condition.
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In Robert M. Garst, Sr. et al. v. CenturyTel, Iatal., filed March 13, 2009 in the 14% Judicial District Court of Texas, Midland Countyg€z No. CV-
46861), certain of our former ten-vote shareholadéialenged the effectiveness of the vote to elat@rour timephase voting structure. We believe we follo'
all necessary steps to properly effect the amenthusscribed above and are defending the casediglyr

In December 2009, subsidiaries of CenturyTel fl®d lawsuits against subsidiaries of Sprint Next8print”) to recover approximately $26 million in
access charges for VolP traffic owed under varinterconnection agreements and tariffs. One layBlgd on behalf of all legacy Embarq operatingiges,
is pending in federal court in Virginia, and théet, filed on behalf of all legacy CenturyTel ogdera entities, is pending in federal court in Laoaiga. The
lawsuits allege that Sprint has breached contraifted tariffs, and violated the Federal Comneatibns Act by failing to pay these charges.

From time to time, we are involved in other prodegd or investigations incidental to our businéssluding administrative hearings of state publidity
commissions relating primarily to rate making, ditgs with other communications companies and sepioviders, actions relating to employee claims,
occasional grievance hearings before labor regyl@agencies and miscellaneous third party torbasti The outcome of these other proceedingstis no
predictable. However, we do not expect that tienake resolution of these other proceedings, aftesidering available insurance coverage, willkhamaterie
adverse effect on our financial position, resuftegerations or cash flows.

Iltem 4. [Reserved]

46

PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stocktange and is traded under the symbol CTL. THeviihg table sets forth the high and low sales
prices, along with the quarterly dividends, fortea€ the quarters indicated.

Sales price Dividend pe
common
High Low share

2009:



First quartel $ 29.2% 23.41 .7C
Second quarte $ 33.62 25.2¢ .7C
Third quartel $ 34.0( 28.9( .7C
Fourth quarte $ 37.1¢ 32.2¢ .7C
2008:

First quarte! $ 42.0C 32.0C .067¢
Second quarte $ 37.2¢ 30.5¢ .067¢
Third quartel $ 40.3¢ 34.1: 1.332¢
Fourth quarte $ 40.0( 20.4¢ .7C

Common stock dividends during 2009 and 2008 weie gech quarter.

In June 2008, our board of directors increasedjoarterly cash dividend rate from $.0675 to $.70gbare, and declared a one-time dividend of $.6325
per share, payable in July 2008, which, when calipli¢h the previouslypaid second quarter 2008 dividend, equaled the@78hare quarterly rate. In Febru
2010, our board of directors further increasedquarterly cash dividend rate to $.725 per share.

As described in greater detail in Item 1A of thisrdial Report on Form 10-K, the declaration and pentrof dividends is at the discretion of our Boafd
Directors, and will depend upon our financial résutash requirements, future prospects and oflogors deemed relevant by the Board of Directors.

As of February 26, 2010, there were approximatélp@0 stockholders of record of our common sto&gk.of February 26, 2010, the closing stock pric
our common stock was $34.27.

In February 2006, our Board of Directors authoriaefil.0 billion share repurchase program under hyliicFebruary 2006, we repurchased $500 million
(or approximately 14.36 million shares) of our coamstock under accelerated share repurchase agreewith certain investment banks at an initialrage
price of $34.83. The investment banks completed tiepurchases in mid-July 2006 and in connedtienewith we paid an aggregate of approximately.428
million cash to the investment banks to compentem for the difference between their weighted agempurchase price during the repurchase periothand
initial average price. We repurchased the remgi#B00 million of common stock of this program eno-market transactions through June 2007.
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In August 2007, our board of directors authorizeg780 million share repurchase program which exipine September 30, 2009. We repurchased
approximately 13.2 million shares for $503.9 miilionder this program.

During the fourth quarter of 2009, we withheld 1¥88 shares of stock at an average price of $3GBgimre to pay taxes due upon the vesting of
restricted stock for certain of our employees indder and December 2009.

For information regarding shares of our commonlistaghorized for issuance under our equity compénsalans, see ltem 12.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents certain selected clinisted financial data as of and for each of thergended in the five-year period ended December 31
2009. The results of operations of the Embarq gntigs are included herein subsequent to its JUADQ9 acquisition date.

The selected consolidated financial data shownvbe&lalerived from our audited consolidated finahstatements. These historical results are not
necessarily indicative of results that you can ekfier any future period. You should read this dateonjunction with Management’s Discussion andkris of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations amdfoll consolidated financial statements and ntheseto contained elsewhere in this Annual Repoftorm
10-K.
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Selected Income Statement Data
Year ended December &

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

(Dollars, except per share amounts, and sharegssegxt in thousand
Operating revenues $ 4,974,23 2,599,74 2,656,24. 2,447,73 2,479,25;
Operating income $ 1,233,10 721,35: 793,07¢ 665,53t 736,40
Net income attributable to CenturyTel, li $ 647,21: 365,73. 418,37( 370,02 334,47
Basic earnings per share $ 3.2¢8 3.5¢ 3.7¢ BNIIE 2.5
Diluted earnings per share $ 3.28 3.52 3.71 3.07 2.4¢
Dividends per common share $ 2.8C 2.167¢ .2€ .2E .24
Average basic shares outstanding 198,81 102,26¢ 109,36( 116,67: 130,84

Average diluted shares outstanding 199,05 102,56( 112,78 121,99( 136,08:




Selected Balance Sheet Data

December 31
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Net property, plant and equipme $ 9,097,13 2,895,89: 3,108,37! 3,109,27 3,304,48;
Goodwill $10,251,75 4,015,67. 4,010,91 3,431,13 3,432,64
Total asset $22,562,72 8,254,19! 8,184,55! 7,441,00 7,762,70
Long-term debt $ 7,253,65: 3,294,11 2,734,35 2,412,85: 2,376,07!
Stockholders' equity $ 9,466,79 3,167,80: 3,415,81 3,198,96. 3,624,43,

The following table presents certain selected clisisted operating data as of the following dates:

December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Telephone access lines (1) 7,039,00! 2,025,00! 2,135,00! 2,094,00! 2,214,00!
High-speed Internet customers (1) 2,236,001 641,00( 555,00( 369,00( 249,00(

(1) In connection with our Embarg acquisition in JuB0®, we acquired approximately 5.4 million telepb@tcess lines and 1.5 million high-speed Internet
customers. In connection with our Madison Riveguasition in April 2007, we acquired approximatél§4,000 telephone access lines and 57,000 high-
speed Internet custome

(2) Access line counts for all periods reflect line ebmethodology adjustments to standardize legacyu®gTel and Embarq line coun

See Items 1 and 2 in Part | and Items 7 and 8 &ksexnherein for additional information.
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Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

All references to “Notes” in this Item 7 refer tioet Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements dedun Item 8 of this annual report.

OVERVIEW

On July 1, 2009, we acquired Embarg CorporatiomB&rg”)in a transaction that substantially expanded the and scope of our business. The resu
operations of Embarq are included in our consadidaesults of operations beginning July 1, 2009e B the significant size of Embarq, direct congmars of o
results of operations for the year ended Decembg2@9 with prior periods are less meaningful thamal. We discuss below certain trends that vieuzeare
significant, even if they are not necessarily niatéo the combined company.

Subsequent to the Embarg acquisition, we are nointagrated communications company primarily engageproviding an array of communications
services to customers in 33 states, including landllong distance voice, wholesale network acdegh;speed Internet access, other data servindsyideo
services. In certain local and regional markets algo provide fiber transport, competitive locatteange carrier, security monitoring, and other camications
professional and business information servicese operate approximately 7.0 million access linasserve approximately 2.2 million broadband cust@mne
based on operating data as of December 31, 200@adgitional information on our revenue sources, Note 19. For additional information on our asijon
of Embarq, see Note 2.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we indwarggnificant amount of orténe expenses, the vast majority of which are diyeattributable to ou
acquisition of Embarq. Such expenses are sumnahirizéne table below.

Year endec
Description December 31, 20C
(Dollars in thousand:

Severance and retention costs due to workforcectiahs, including
contractual early

retirement pension benefits for certain particis $ 98,92:
Integration related costs associated with our aitipm of Embarc 86,37:
Net charge associated with certain debt extinguésita 60,84¢
Transaction related costs associated with our aitoui of Embarq,
including

investment banker and legal fe 47,154

Accelerated recognition of shabased compensation expense due to ct

of control

provisions and terminations of employm 21,24
Settlement expenses related to certain executiiremeent plan: 17,83¢
Charge incurred in connection with our $800 milllinidge facility 8,00(

$ 340,37:
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All of the above items are included in operatingenses, except for the $60.8 million net chargerietl associated with certain debt extinguishn
(which is reflected in other income (expense) amdrest expense) and the $8.0 million charge iecLim connection with our $800 million bridge fagil(which
is reflected in other income (expense)). Nonehefdbove items include potesing expenses incurred and recorded by Embaoq torthe effective time of tt
acquisition. Based on current plans and inforomative expect to incur approximately $200 milliohaalditional nonrecurring integration related operat
expenses subsequent to December 31, 2009.

In addition, due to executive compensation limias pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code, a poofithe lump sum distributions related to the
termination of an executive retirement plan madiéfirst quarter of 2009 is reflected as ridmthuctible for income tax purposes and thus inectasir effective
income tax rate. Certain merger-related costsrieduduring 2009 are also non-deductible for incéaxepurposes and similarly increased our effedticeme
tax rate. Such increase in our effective tax was partially offset by a $7.0 million reductiondor deferred tax asset valuation allowance asttisith state
net operating loss carryforwards. In addition2@99, 2008 and 2007, we recognized net after-taefite of approximately $15.7 million, $12.8 miliand
$32.7 million, respectively, primarily related teetrecognition of previously unrecognized tax biésefSee Note 12 and “Income Tax Expense” belaw fo
additional information.

Upon the discontinuance of regulatory accounéfiective July 1, 2009, we recorded a one-tinm&-tash extraordinary gain that aggregated approxig
$218.6 million before income tax expense and notrobimg interests ($136.0 million after-tax andntontrolling interests). See Note 15 for addiion
information.

As further discussed in Note 11, during the seapratter of 2008, we recognized an $8.2 million @ilmtent loss (reflected in selling, general and
administrative expense) in connection with amendiug executive retirement plan. We also recogh&&4.5 million pre-tax gain (reflected in othecame
(expense)) upon liquidation of our investments arketable securities in the executive retiremean ptust in the second quarter of 2008.

On April 30, 2007, we acquired all of the outstamgdstock of Madison River Communications Corp. (tNé@n River”). See Note 2 for additional
information. We have reflected the results of aiens of the Madison River properties in our céidsbed results of operations since May 1, 2(



In the fourth quarter of 2007, we recorded a $16ilBon pre-tax impairment charge to write-down tredue of certain londjved assets in six of our nort
competitive local exchange carrier markets to testimated realizable value. We determined thenagtd realizable value based on proposals receiugdg o
sales process of such properties commenced in 20@&7sold such properties in separate transactiohkay and July 2008. Results of operations festhmark
are included in our consolidated results of operatiup to the respective sales dates.
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During 2007, we recognized approximately $49.0iomllof network access revenues in connection highsettlement of a dispute with a carrier and
approximately $42.2 million of revenues in connectwith the lapse of a regulatory monitoring perfotiwhich approximately $25.4 million is reflected
network access revenues and $16.8 million is reftein data revenues). We do not expect this lef/&dvorable revenue settlements to reoccur irfuhge.

In the fourth quarter of 2007, upon final distriloutt of the remaining proceeds from the Rural TeteghBank dissolution, we recorded a pre-tax gain of
approximately $5.2 million.

During the last several years (exclusive of actjoiss and certain non-recurring favorable adjustsiemve have experienced revenue declines in dgevo
and network access revenues primarily due to dexlim access lines, intrastate access rates, raiofitese, and federal support fund payments. Tigaté thes:
declines, we plan to, among other things, (i) pramlongterm relationships with our customers through bumgddf integrated services, (i) provide new seegi
such as video and wireless broadband, and othéiaadd services that may become available in titare due to advances in technology, wireless spmacsale:
by the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC"lngprovements in our infrastructure, (iii) providar broadband and premium services to a higher
percentage of our customers, (iv) pursue acquistaf additional communications properties if aalié at attractive prices, (v) increase usage ohetworks
and (vi) market our products and services to nestarners.

In addition to historical information, this managent’s discussion and analysis includes certain fooMooking statements that are based on current
expectations only, and are subject to a numbeistbr uncertainties and assumptions, many of wéiietbeyond our control. Actual events and resuléy
differ materially from those anticipated, estimat#dprojected if one or more of these risks or utaiaties materialize, or if underlying assumptigmave
incorrect. Factors that could affect actual resuticlude but are not limited to: the timing, sess and overall effects of competition from a wialgety of
competitive providers; the risks inherent in rapgghnological change; the effects of ongoing charngéehe regulation of the communications indusimgluding
those arising out of the FCC'’s proposed rules relijag intercarrier compensation and the Universah& Fund and the FCC’s National Broadband Plan
scheduled to be released in the first quarter df®@@ach as described elsewhere herein); our ghiliteffectively adjust to changes in the commtivina
industry; our ability to successfully integrate Eandp into our operations, including realizing thetaipated benefits of the transaction and retainarg hiring
key personnel; our ability to effectively manage expansion opportunities; possible changes indbmand for, or pricing of, our products and sergiceur
ability to successfully introduce new product onvéee offerings on a timely and cost-effective basur continued access to credit markets on fableréerms;
our ability to collect our receivables from finaalty troubled communications companies; our abit@ypay a $2.90 per common share dividend annuathych
may be affected by changes in our cash requiremeapstal spending plans, cash flows or financiasjion; unanticipated increases in our capital ergitures
our ability to successfully negotiate collectivedeining agreements on reasonable terms withoukvetoppages;
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the effects of adverse weather; other risks refeed from time to time in this report or other of dilings with the Securities and Exchange Cominissand the
effects of more general factors such as changegeénest rates, in tax rates, in accounting pol&c@ practices, in operating, medical or adminisive costs, in
general market, labor or economic conditions, otdgislation, regulation or public policy. Thesedother uncertainties related to our business and
acquisition of Embarq are described in greater detaltem 1A included herein. You should be awiy@ new factors may emerge from time to time arglriot
possible for us to identify all such factors noname predict the impact of each such factor onbilginess or the extent to which any one or mor®faenay
cause actual results to differ from those refledgtedny forward-looking statements. You are furtteutioned not to place undue reliance on thesedod-
looking statements, which speak only as of the ofatieis Annual Report on Form 10-K. We undertagéebligation to update any of our forward-looking
statements for any reason.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net income attributable to CenturyTet. for 2009 was $647.2 million, compared to $36%illion during 2008 and $418.4 million during Z00Net
income before extraordinary item was $511.3 milli#865.7 million and $418.4 million for the yearsled December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Diluted earnings per share for 28@8 $3.23 compared to $3.52 in 2008 and $3.7107 2iluted earnings per share before extraorgitam
for 2009 was $2.55. As mentioned in the “Overvisection above, we incurred a significant amourdree-time expenses in 2009 related to our acauisaf
Embarg. The increase in the number of sharesamdistg in 2009 is primarily attributable to the aoon stock issued in connection with our acquisitén
Embarg on July 1, 2009. The number of averageeatiishares outstanding declined in 2008 compar28a@ primarily due to share repurchases.

Year ended December & 2009 2008 2007

(Dollars, except per share amounts,
and shares in thousanc

Operating incom: $ 1,233,10 721,35 793,07¢
Interest expens (370,41 (202,21) (212,90¢)
Other income (expens (48,179 42,25: 40,02¢
Income tax expense (301,88)) (194,35 (200,572
Income before noncontrolling interests and extraxany item 512,63: 367,03( 419,62¢
Noncontrolling interest (1,377) (1,299 (1,259
Net income before extraordinary ite 511,25 365,73: 418,37(
Extraordinary item, net of income tax expense ammtontrolling interest 135,95 - -
Net income attributable to CenturyTel, li $ 647,21: 365,73. 418,37(

Basic earnings per she



Before extraordinary itel $ 2.5t 3.5¢ 3.7¢

Extraordinary iten $ .6E - -

Basic earnings per she¢ $ 3.2¢ 3.5¢ 3.7¢
Diluted earnings per sha

Before extraordinary itel $ 2.5 3.52 3.71

Extraordinary iten $ .6E - -

Diluted earnings per she $ 2% 3.52 3.71
Average basic shares outstanding 198,81 102,26¢ 109,36(
Average diluted shares outstanding 199,05 102,56( 112,78

Operating income increased $511.7 million in 2006 tb a $2.374 billion increase in operating rewesnand a $1.863 billion increase in operating
expenses. Such increases in operating revenuestiofg expenses and operating income were sulahadiue to our July 1, 2009 acquisition of
Embarg. Operating income decreased $71.7 millic2008 due to a $56.5 million decrease in operatwgnues and a $15.2 million increase in operating
expenses.
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As mentioned in Note 15, we discontinued the apgibn of regulatory accounting effective July 1090 As a result of such discontinuance, since the
third quarter of 2009 we have eliminated all intenpany transactions with regulated affiliates fhratviously were not eliminated under the applicatid
regulatory accounting. This has caused our reveand operating expenses to be lower by equivakaounts (approximately $108 million) for the yeaded
December 31, 2009 as compared to the year endezhiber 31, 2008.

OPERATING REVENUES
Year ended Decemb

31, 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands

Voice $ 1,827,06: 874,04 889,96(
Network acces 1,269,32. 820,38 941,50¢
Data 1,202,28. 524,19« 460,75!
Fiber transport and

CLEC 172,54: 162,05( 159,31
Other 503,02 219,07¢ 204,70:
Operating revenues $ 4,974,233 2,599,74 2,656,24.

Voice revenues.We derive voice revenues by providing local exgeatelephone services and retail long distancécssrto customers in our service
areas. The $953.0 million increase in voice reesrin 2009 is primarily due to $1.016 billion ofeaues attributable to the Embarq properties aedululy 1,
2009. The remaining $63.2 million decrease is prily due to (i) a $30.9 million decrease due &2 decline in the average number of access iinesr
incumbent markets; (ii) a $14.5 million decreaseustom calling feature revenues primarily duen®dontinued migration of customers to bundlediserv
offerings at a lower effective rate and (i) an B&nillion reduction due to the elimination of alitercompany transactions due to the discontinuafcegulatory
accounting.

The $15.9 million (1.8%) decrease in voice revenneX)08 is primarily due to (i) a $22.5 millionaease due to a 5.9% decline in the average nuafiber
access lines (exclusive of our acquisition of MadiRiver properties); (ii) a $10.8 million decre@seustom calling feature revenues primarily du¢hie
continued migration to bundled service offeringsa &twer effective rate; and (i) a $7.7 millioedine as a result of a decrease in revenues assdavith
extended area calling plans. These decreasespasially offset by $17.0 million of additional remues attributable to the Madison River propesiggired
April 30, 2007 and a $9.9 million increase in lafigtance revenues attributable to an increaseeipéincentage of our customer base subscribinged fate
unlimited calling plans and the implementation aterincreases applicable to several rate plaretén2007 and early 2008.
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Total access lines declined 380,000 during 2008l¢elng access lines we acquired from Embarqg op DuP009 but including access lines lost in
Embarq’s markets following such acquisition) conguito a decline of 136,800 during 2008. We beltteedecline in the number of access lines durb@p2
and 2008 is primarily due to the displacement aditional wireline telephone services by other cetitiye services and recent economic conditionasdsl on
our current retention initiatives, we estimate that access line loss will be between 7.5% and 8tb2010.

Network access revenuedVe derive our network access revenues primandgnf(i) providing services to various carriers andtomers in connection
with the use of our facilities to originate andnémate their interstate and intrastate voice trassions; (ii) receiving universal support funds ghallows us to
recover a portion of our costs under federal aatkstost recovery mechanisms and (iii) receivimmgprecal compensation from competitive local exden
carriers and wireless service providers for teritiigatheir calls. Substantially all of our inteatst network access revenues are based on tardftedscharges
filed directly with the Federal Communications Coission (“FCC”). Certain of our intrastate netwacess revenues are derived through access chiages
we bill to intrastate long distance carriers arfteotLEC customers.

Network access revenues increased $448.9 millidry¢) in 2009 and decreased $121.1 million (12.822008 due to the following factors:



2009 2008
increast increast
(decreas: (decreas:

(Dollars in thousands

Acquisition of Embarg in 200 $ 530,96¢ -
Favorable settlement of a dispute with a carriexd@7 - (48,98
Intrastate revenues due to decreased minutes pfleseeased access rates in

certain states and recoveries from state stifyoals (35,50)) (29,02
Elimination of all intercompany transactions duette discontinuance of

regulatory accountin (26,03)) -
Revenue recognition upon expiration of regulatopnitoring periods in 200 - (25,409
Partial recovery of operating costs through reveshaing arrangements with other

telephone companies, interstate access revamgeeturn on rate ba (17,057) (15,857
Recovery from the federal Universal Serv

High Cost Loop support progre (12,969 (14,59¢)
Acquisition of Madison River in 20C - 12,34¢
Prior year revenue settlement agreements and other 9,51¢ 39€

$ 448,93 (121,12)
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We believe that intrastate access rates and mimdliesontinue to decline in 2010, although we cahprecisely estimate the magnitude of such
decrease. Complaints filed by interexchange aarifeseveral of our operating states or stat@iei legislation could, if successful, place fertdownward
pressure on our intrastate access rates.

As mentioned above, upon the discontinuance oflagégny accounting effective July 1, 2009, we beghminating all intercompany transactions with
regulated affiliates that previously were not efiatied under the application of regulatory accogntin

We currently expect our network accesgmaes to continue to be negatively impacted ir02fia reduction in Universal Service Fund receipts
addition, a wireless carrier has notified us ofritention to migrate a portion of its network fiafrom us in 2010. We currently estimate thesenis, along with
the transition of long distance voice services famholesale arrangement with another carrier tooauned networks, will reduce network access reesnu
approximately $120-130 million in 2010 as compaxethe annual run rate for the last half of 2009.

In March 2006, we filed a complaint against a earfor recovery of unpaid and underpaid accessgeisaior calls made using the carrier’s prepaidraall
cards and calls that used Internet Protocol fasréign of their transmission. In April 2007, wetered into a settlement agreement with the caanerreceived
approximately $49 million cash from them relatedhe issues described above.

Data revenues We derive our data revenues primarily by prawidhigh-speed Internet access services and datniission services over special circuits
and private lines. Data revenues increased $67Blibn in 2009 due to $689.8 million of revenudsiautable to Embarg. Excluding Embarg, data ness
decreased $11.7 million substantially due to a4&dillion reduction due to the elimination of alkércompany transactions resulting from the discoance of
regulatory accounting. Such decrease was partéibet by a $38.5 million increase in DSL-relatedenues primarily due to growth in the number 8D
customers in our incumbent markets.

Data revenues increased $63.4 million (13.8%) i82€ubstantially due to (i) a $57.8 million increas DSL-related revenues primarily due to growih i
the number of DSL customers and (ii) $16.3 millafradditional revenues contributed by Madison RivBuch increases were partially offset by $16.8aniof
one-time revenues recorded in third quarter 20@hwgxpiration of a regulatory monitoring period.

Fiber transport and CLEC. Our fiber transport and CLEC revenues includeneies from our fiber transport, competitive lomathange carrier (“CLEC”
and security monitoring businesses. Fiber trarispat CLEC revenues increased $10.5 million in 200®arily due to $8.3 million of revenues attribte to
Embarqg and a $6.8 million increase in fiber tramspevenues. Such increases were partially offget $4.5 million reduction due to the eliminatiafinall
intercompany transactions resulting from the disioorance of regulatory accounting beginning inttiied quarter of 2009.
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Fiber transport and CLEC revenues increased $2libm{1.7%) in 2008, of which $6.4 million was dteegrowth in our incumbent fiber transport bus:
and $2.5 million was due to additional revenue gbated by Madison River. Such increases werdglroffset by a $2.6 million decrease due to shées of s
CLEC markets that were consummated in the secotidhémal quarters of 2008 and a $3.5 million decesasCLEC revenues primarily due to the loss otaune

Other revenues.We derive other revenues primarily by (i) leasisejling, installing and maintaining customer piggrtelecommunications equipment
and wiring; (ii) providing payphone services prihawithin our local service territories and var®uorrectional facilities around the country; (participating ir
the publication of local directories; (iv) providimetwork database services; and (iv) providingvideo services, as well as other new product andce
offerings. Other revenues increased $284.0 miilio2009, of which approximately $318.1 millionatdd to our acquisition of Embarg. Excluding Enapar
other revenues decreased $34.2 million primarilg essult of a $17.4 million reduction due to thimmation of all intercompany transactions resutirom the
discontinuance of regulatory accounting and a $fdlon decrease in certain non-regulated prodiades and service offerings.

Other revenues increased $14.4 million (7.0%) i6&primarily due to (i) $7.7 million of additioneévenues contributed by Madison River and (ii) 88$2
million increase in directory revenues.
OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended December & 2009 2008 2007




(Dollars in thousands
Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptixi

and amortization $ 1,752,08 955,47 937,37
Selling, general and administrati 1,014,34. 399,13 389,53
Depreciation and amortization 974,71( 523,78t 536,25!
Operating expenses $ 3,741,13 1,878,39! 1,863,16:

Cost of services and productsCost of services and products increased $798li6m(83.4%) in 2009 primarily due to $888.8 nilih of expenses
attributable to the Embarq properties acquiredudy I, 2009. The remaining $92.2 million decressgrimarily due to (i) a $88.7 million reductiom €xpenses
resulting from the elimination of all intercompatmgnsactions resulting from the discontinuanceeghitatory accounting; (ii) a $4.9 million decreaseustomer
service related expenses; (iii) a $4.6 million éase in access expense; and (iv) a $4.1 millioredse in CLEC expenses as a result of the divestifusix CLE
markets in 2008. Such decreases were partialbedly a $15.8 million increase in salaries, wagesbenefits primarily due to increases in pensigrense and
share-based compensation expense and a $12.4miilticease in DSL-related expenses due to an iserieahe number of DSL customers served.
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Cost of services and products increased $18.1ami(lL.9%) in 2008 primarily due to (i) $22.7 mili@f additional costs incurred by the Madison River
properties; (ii) a $12.3 million increase in DSlated expenses due to growth in the number of D&tomers; (i) a $4.9 million increase in costsasated
with initiating switched digital video services;df(iv) a $4.1 million increase due to a one-timenteursement of costs received from our satellievision
service provider in the second quarter of 20070imection with the change in our contractual areamgnt. Such increases were partially offset by §16.6
million impairment charge recorded in 2007 relatedertain of our CLEC assets that were subsequsaltl in 2008; (ii) a $4.4 million reduction insts due to
the six CLEC markets sold; and (iii) a $1.6 millidacrease in salaries and benefits.

Selling, general and administrativeSelling, general and administrative expenses ise@&615.2 million in 2009 primarily due to $50f8lion of
expenses attributable to Embarg (which includesapmately $106.0 million of costs associated véthployee termination benefits, primarily due toesewnce
and retention benefits, contractual pension benafitl acceleration of share-based compensatiomsxesociated with Embarg employee terminationisg
remaining $114.6 million increase is primarily dog(i) $86.4 million of integration costs associhteith our acquisition of Embarq, primarily relatedsystem
conversion efforts; (i) $47.2 million of transamti related merger costs, including investment baakd legal fees associated with our acquisitioBrmbarg; an
(iii) $13.8 million of higher employee benefit cesprimarily due to higher pension expense (pripatiie to $17.8 million of accelerated expense ged®n
due to change of control provisions triggered uponacquisition of Embarg and the termination stipplemental executive retirement plan) and shased
compensation expense (due to the accelerated gestaquity grants of our employees upon the adipisof Embarg). Such increases were partialfgetfby
(i) @ $19.5 million reduction in expenses resultirgn the elimination of all intercompany transaas due to the discontinuance of regulatory acéogn(ii) a
$10.7 million reduction in operating taxes primadue to the favorable resolution of certain tratisa tax audit issues; and (iii) an $8.1 milli@duction in
marketing expenses.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@&9.6 million (2.5%) in 2008 primarily due tpdh $11.4 million increase in marketing expengés;
an $8.2 million increase due to expenses relatélgetaurtailment loss associated with our SERB;&8.0 million of costs associated with our acdgigs of
Embarg; and (iv) $4.8 million of additional costeirred by Madison River. Such increases weregligroffset by (i) an $8.8 million decrease in ogtng
taxes; (ii) a $5.4 million decrease in bad debtegge (most of which was attributable to a favorablement with a carrier in first quarter 200@)) a $4.3
million decrease in salaries and benefits; andgi$p.7 million decrease in information technolegpenses.

Depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amortization increased $4501om (86.1%) in 2009 primarily due to $492.6 nlh of depreciation
and amortization attributable to Embarq (includ#id.8.4 million of amortization expense relatedisocustomer list and other intangible assets). réheining
$41.7 million decrease was primarily due to a $38ilon decrease in depreciation expense resuftiog a reduction in certain depreciation ratesetffe July
1, 2009 upon the discontinuance of regulatory acting (see Note 15) and due to certain assets hiagduily depreciated. Such decreases were phrtifiset
by an $18.8 million increase due to higher levélglant placed in service in our incumbent markets.
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Depreciation and amortization decreased $12.5anil{2.3%) in 2008 primarily due to a $36.7 millimduction in depreciation expense due to certain
assets becoming fully depreciated. Such decreaseartially offset by $13.7 million of additiondépreciation and amortization incurred by MadiBiver anc
a $12.8 million increase due to higher levels aihplin service.

Other. For additional information regarding certain taed that have impacted or may impact our operstisee “Regulation and Competition”.
INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense increased $168.2 million in 2@Apared to 2008 primarily due to $179.9 millionmerest expense attributable to Embargdebtedn
assumed in connection with our acquisition of EmgbaFhe remaining $11.7 million decrease is pritgaitributable to a $4.6 million decrease in iegrexpen
due to favorable resolution of certain transactanaudit issues and a $4.7 million one-time reidndn interest expense in 2009 related to delihgutshment
transactions consummated in October 2009. SeeMNfmeadditional information.

Interest expense decreased $10.7 million (5.092P38 compared to 2007. An $18.0 million decreasetd lower average interest rates was partially
offset by a $9.3 million increase due to increamesrage debt outstanding.

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

Other income (expense) includes the effects ohgeitems not directly related to our core operaidncluding gains or losses from nonoperatingtass
dispositions and impairments, our share of thermedrom our 49% interest in a cellular partnershiferest income and allowance for funds used gurin
construction. Other income (expense) was $(48iltipmfor 2009 compared to $42.3 million for 2088d $40.0 million in 2007. Included in 2009 isgi$72.0
million pre-tax charge related to certain debtmggiishment transactions consummated in October g&#89Note 5 for additional information) and (i) $8.0
million pre-tax charge associated with our $80diamlbridge credit facility (see Note 2 for addit@l information). Included in 2008 is (i) approxtely $10
million related to the recognition of previouslycaged transaction related and other contingen(igs; pre-tax gain of $4.5 million upon the liqaitibn of our
investments in marketable securities in our SERBt(iii) a pretax gain of approximately $7.3 million from the eslof certain nonoperating investments; ar
$3.4 million pre-tax charge related to terminataligof our existing derivative instruments in thest quarter of 2008. The year 2007 includes amaurring pre-
gain of $10.4 million related to the sale of ouenest in a real estate partnership and a $5.®mifiretax gain resulting from the final distribution afrfds from
Rural Telephone Bank redemption mentioned belowr share of income from our 49% interest in a ¢atlpartnership increased $7.0 million in 2009 canep
2008 and decreased $2.5 million in 2008 compar@®@y. We record our share of the partnership ircbased on unaudited results of operations umtitithe 1



receive audited financial statements for the pastrip from the unaffiliated general partner. Upeceipt of the respective audited financial statetseve
recorded unfavorable adjustments in 2008 (upon ¢etiop of the 2007 audit) and favorable adjustm@m007 (upon completion of the 2006 and 2005 tahdi
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The effective income tax rate was 37.2%, 34.7%,3hd% for 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. @erxecutive compensation amounts, including
lump sum distributions paid to certain executiviicefs in connection with discontinuing the Suppéartal Executive Retirement Plan (see Note 11)reftected
as non-deductible for income tax purposes pursigegxecutive compensation limitations prescribedhgyinternal Revenue Code. The treatment of these
amounts as non-deductible resulted in the recagndf approximately $9.2 million of income tax erge in 2009 above amounts that would have been
recognized had such payments been deductible donie tax purposes. Our 2009 effective tax rasdsis higher because a portion of our merger-related
transaction costs incurred during 2009 are non-ctiala for income tax purposes (with such treatmentlting in a $6.9 million increase to income tax
expense). Such increases in income tax expengepaetially offset by a $7.0 million reduction imcbme tax expense primarily caused by a reductiaut
deferred tax asset valuation allowance associatitdstate net operating loss carryforwards prinyattile to a law change in one of our operating stétat we
believe will allow us to utilize our net operatifggs carryforwards in the future. Prior to the lelvange, such net operating loss carryforwards fudlsereserve:
as it was more likely than not that these carryfodg would not be utilized prior to expiration.

Income tax expense was reduced by appedely $15.7 million in 2009, $12.8 million in @8 and $32.7 million in 2007 due to the recognitén
previously unrecognized tax benefits (see CritRatounting Policies below and Note 12) and othgustchents upon finalization of tax returns.

EXTRAORDINARY ITEM

Upon the discontinuance of regulatory accountinguay 1, 2009, we recorded a one-time extraordigaig of approximately $136.0 million after-
tax. See Note 15 for additional information retate this extraordinary gain.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8@&sued guidance regarding the accounting stdedadification and the hierarchy of generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). The caddifion is now the single source of authoritativeited States GAAP for all non-governmental entitiEse
codification, which became effective July 1, 206®anges the referencing and organization of acemyguidance. The issuance of this codificatiomdgad will
not change GAAP, and therefore the adoption ofdgbidance will only affect how specific referente<GAAP literature are disclosed in the notes to ou
consolidated financial statements and elsewheoeiimeports filed with the SEC.
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In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Starsl&ulard issued guidance on business combinatidnishwequires an acquiring entity to recognize
of the assets acquired and liabilities assumediaresaction at the acquisition date fair valuehviinited exceptions. Such guidance also chartges¢counting
treatment for certain specific items, including @isg@ion costs, acquired contingent liabilitiesstrecturing costs, deferred tax asset valuatiamwalhces and
income tax uncertainties after the acquisition d@aue is effective for us for all business combimasi for which the acquisition date is on or afeamuhry 1,
2009. We have accounted for our acquisition of Bmlusing this guidance. During 2009, we incuapgroximately $47.2 million of transaction-related
expenses (primarily investment banker and lega)feslated to our acquisition of Embarg. Suchsase required to be expensed as incurred aneéfeeted in
selling, general and administrative expense incomsolidated statement of income for the year efismémber 31, 2009.

In June 2008, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@@ssued guidance on determining whether instnisngranted in share-based payment transactions
are participating securities. Based on this guidawe have concluded that our outstanding noredesstricted stock is a participating security dretefore
should be included in the earnings allocation impating earnings per share using the two-classadetfrhe guidance was effective for us beginninfirgt
guarter 2009 and required us to recast our prelyigaported earnings per share. Under the newuattoy guidance, we have recast our previouslyntego
diluted earnings per share for 2008 ($3.56 peregteard 2007 ($3.72 per share) as $3.52 per shaP808 and $3.71 for 2007.

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Stansl&uolard issued guidance regarding noncontrollitgré@sts in consolidated financial statements,
which requires noncontrolling interests to be retipgd as equity in the consolidated balance shéetaddition, net income attributable to such remimolling
interests is required to be included in consolidatet income. This guidance is effective for flsgars beginning on or after December 15, 2008r f@ancial
statements as of and for the twelve months endeérleer 31, 2009 reflect our noncontrolling inteses equity in our consolidated balance sheetr Periods
have been adjusted to reflect this presentation.

In January 2009, we adopted new accounting guideiated to employers’ disclosure about postretinentbenefit plan assets, which expands the
disclosures required by previous guidance to dstus assumptions and risks used to compute fhiear each category of plan assets. See NotemdO
11 for additional information.

We are subject to certain accounting standarddifate fair value, establish a framework for meagufair value and expand the disclosures abaut fa
value measurements required or permitted under attedunting pronouncements. The fair value acogiguidance establishes a three-tier fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used to swa fair value. These tiers include: Level 1ifed as observable inputs such as quoted marlatspin active
markets), Level 2 (defined as inputs other thartegiprices in active markets that are either diyemtindirectly observable), and Level 3 (defires
unobservable inputs in which little or no marketedexists). See Note 18 for additional informatio
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our financial statements are prepared in accordaitbeaccounting principles that are generally @ted in the United States. The preparation ofghes
financial statements requires management to makeates and assumptions that affect the reportezliats of assets, liabilities, revenues and expendés
continually evaluate our estimates and assumptimisding those related to (i) revenue recogniti@if allowance for doubtful accounts, (iii) pensiand
postretirement benefits, (iv) intangible and lohgedl assets, (v) business combinations and (vormetaxes. Actual results may differ from thegerestes and
assumptions and these differences may be mat&albelieve these critical accounting policies di&sed below involve a higher degree of judgment or
complexity.

Revenue recognitiol We collect in advance fees for fixed rate sewjceich as local service, unlimited long distahdgh;-speed Internet and certain d



services, and defer revenue recognition until tlseseices are provided to the customer. We billriears variable rate billing services, includmigute
driven long distance, data and access revenuesidwemultiple billing cycles spread throughout eainth resulting in accounts receivables and dederr
revenue balances at the end of each reportinggeliothe event that the variable rate usageidatet available at the end of a reporting peried estimate
revenue based on historic usage and other reléaetors. Service activation and installation faesdeferred and amortized on a straight-line lasss the
average life of the customer. Operating revennelsidle certain revenue reserves for billing dispated contract interpretations. These reservesreeq
management’s judgment and are based on many fastdusling historical trends, contract and taniffaérpretations and developments during the reswiuti
process.

Allowance for doubtful accountsin evaluating the collectibility of our accoumezeivable, we assess a number of factors, inuaispecific customes’c
carrier’s ability to meet its financial obligatiots us, the length of time the receivable has lpeest due and historical collection experience. eBam these
assessments, we record both specific and geneeales for uncollectible accounts receivable tacedhe related accounts receivable to the amoentltmate
expect to collect from customers and carriersirfumstances change or economic conditions wasgeh that our past collection experience is nodomgleval
we may need to increase our reserves from thedegéiected in our accompanying consolidated baaheet.

Pension and postretirement benefitdccounting for pensions and postretirement béméfivolves estimating the cost of benefits to tevjged well into
the future and attributing that cost over the tmeiod each employee provides service to us. Toraplish this, extensive use is made of variousrapsions,
such as discount rates, investment returns, migrtalirnover, medical costs and inflation througtofiaborative effort by management and independent
actuaries. The results of this effort provide ngemaent with the necessary information on whichasebits judgment and develop the estimates usepare
the financial statements. Changes in assumptised could result in a material impact to our finahesults in any given period.
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The pension plan we assumed in connection wittEthbarqg acquisition was underfunded by approximekél® billion with respect to the projected
benefit obligation as of the July 1, 2009 acquositilate. In the third quarter of 2009, we conteliu$115 million to the legacy Embarg pension pleve
currently expect to contribute approximately $300iom to the legacy Embarq pension plan in 20Based on current actuarial estimates as of Decefiper
2009 that assume a $300 million contribution in@Qhe utilization of our existing remaining crebilance to partially satisfy future required cashtributions
and assuming no further discretionary contributiaresmade, we would not be required to make a nuimiroontribution to the legacy Embarq pension platil u
2012. Our minimum required contributions to ourestpension plans are immaterial. The actual lezebntributions required in future years can den
significantly depending on discount rates and dcttarns on plan assets.

A significant assumption used in determining oungien and postretirement expense is the expectegdtiEym rate of return on plan assets. For 20@0 an
2008, we utilized an expected long-term rate afrebn plan assets of 8.25% for our incumbent pengian and 8.50% for the pension plan we assumed i
connection with the Embarq acquisition. We belisueh return assumptions reflect the expected terg-rates of return in the financial markets basedur
current plan asset allocation. We also reviewedhibtorical rates of return on those plan assedslong-term periods that ranged from 10 to 20 ye® 25
basis point decrease in the return on plan assetgsion would increase our annual combined pereighpostretirement expense approximately $8.0
million.  Should we experience asset returns @natsignificantly below our 8.25-8.50% long-teraer of return assumptions, we may experience ifutivee
higher levels of pension expense, higher levelegtired contributions and lower stockholdexguity balances (due to accumulated other compsdlefosses

Another assumption used in the determination ofpansion and postretirement benefit plan obligatisrthe appropriate discount rate. The discoatet r
is an assumed rate of return derived from highityudébt securities that, if applicable at the meament date to a specified amount of principaligrovide
the necessary future cash flows to pay our pertsémefit obligations when they become due. Fompeamsion plans, the discount rate used for the Dbeefil,
2009 and 2008 measurement dates were derived lmhimgtprojected benefit payments to bond yieldsioled from the CitiGroup Pension Discount Curve
(Above Median) which are ultimately derived fronethA-rated corporate bond sector. For the year endediger 31, 2007, we utilized the CitiGroup Pen
Discount Curve to derive our discount rate. Qacalunt rate for determining benefit obligationslenour pension plans at December 31, 2009 ranged5.5
to 6.0% compared to 6.6 to 6.9% at December 318.20We discount rate can change from year to lpased on market conditions that impact corporate bo
yields. We use a similar methodology to detesnifre discount rate for our postretirement plamfilizing as a reference the Hewitt Top QuartileMiCurve
as of the end of the year. Our discount rate &ewnining benefit obligations under our postretieat plans at December 31, 2009 was 5.70-5.80% a@dio
6.9% at December 31, 2008. A 25 basis point deergathe assumed discount rate would increaseadnombined pension and postretirement expense
approximately $2.0 million.
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Intangible and long-lived assetsWe are subject to testing for impairment of Idivgd assets (including goodwill, intangible assats other long-lived
assets) based on applicable accounting guidelines.

We are required to review goodwill recorded in bess combinations for impairment at least annuaily are required to writdewn the value of goodw
only in periods in which the recorded amount ofdyeitl exceeds the fair value. As disclosed intillgle below, substantially all of our goodwill issaciated
with our local exchange telephone operations. &misnt to our acquisition of Embarg on July 1, 20@9 have managed our local exchange telephone
operations based on five geographic regions (Wvielinternally refer to as Mid-Atlantic, Southerrgush Central, Northeast and Western) and have derei
these five operating regions to be our reportinigsuin testing for goodwill impairment of our telepne operations. Prior to our Embarq acquisiteemanaged
our local exchange telephone operations basedrea greographic regions. The remainder of our gdbdwassociated with our competitive local excgan
carrier (CLEC), fiber transport, security monitayiand other operations of our business, all of tvkie treat as separate reporting units in our gdbdw
impairment testing.

The breakdown of our goodwill balances as of Deaam3i, 2009 by reporting unit is as follows (amatintthousands):

Telephone operations (IV-Atlantic) $ 2,224,69
Telephone operations (Southe 2,294,99i
Telephone operations (South Cent 2,486,04.
Telephone operations (Northea 2,250,39
Telephone operations (Weste 945,83«
CLEC operation: 29,93t
Fiber transport operatior 10,60
Security monitoring operatior 4,96¢
All other operations 4,281

Total goodwill $10,251,75



We estimate the fair value of our telephone openatreporting units using a multiple of earningbkeinterest, taxes and depreciation (EBITDA), as
described below. For each telephone reporting waitcompatre its estimated fair value to its cagyialue. If the estimated fair value of the réipgrunit is
greater than the carrying value, we conclude thatmpairment exists. If the fair value of the rep@ unit is less than the carrying value, a selccaiculation is
required in which the implied fair value of goodvisl compared to its carrying value. If the implifair value of goodwill is less than its carryimalue, goodwill
must be written down to its implied fair value.
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As of September 30, 2009, we completed the reqainedial test of goodwill impairment. Such impainniest excluded the goodwill associated with our
acquisition of Embarq pending finalization of thetefmination of the fair values of assets acquanedi liabilities assumed in connection therewithe W
determined that our goodwill was not impaired aswath date. As of December 31, 2009, we perforasabsequent impairment test that included the gitlod
associated with our Embarq acquisition and condutat our goodwill was not impaired as of Decen@fer2009.

The multiple of EBITDA we utilize in our goodwilhipairment testing for our telephone operationsigpsrted by a sum-of-the-parts independent
valuation analysis performed and updated annuglly imajor investment banking firm on behalf ofdlients. This valuation report includes Centurydasiwell
as other peer companies in the local exchangescamdustry. In the most recent analysis perfortmethis firm, valuations of specific assets weasédx on a
combination of public and private market comparafaled EBITDA multiples were affected by accesstieads and the future expectations of those
trends. Based on the above, we utilized an EBITDUtiple of 5.6 times for our goodwill impairmemalyses performed as of September 30, 2009 and
December 31, 2009. For the past several yearbawe consistently utilized the EBITDA multiples ted from this independent analysis. The EBITDA
multiple derived in the analyst report and utilizedur goodwill impairment testing decreased frés® in 2007 to 6.5 in 2008 to 5.6 in 2009, in lapget we
believe due to the continued erosion of access.line

As of December 31, 2009, the estimated fair vafutb® Southern region exceeded its carrying vajuless than 5%. Should events occur (such as
continued access line losses or other revenue tiedsgthat would cause the fair value to decliebty its carrying value, we may be required to rd@non-
cash charge to earnings during the period in witiehimpairment is determined.

We estimate the fair value of our other reportingsiusing various methods, including multipleEE&ITDA (as described above) and multiples of
revenues. We completed the tests of goodwill immpent (as of September 30, 2009 and December 88) 26r our other reporting units and determineat thui
goodwill was not impaired as of such dates.

The carrying value of long-lived assets other thaadwill is reviewed for impairment whenever evemtgircumstances indicate that such carrying
amount cannot be recoverable by assessing theaetlity of the carrying value through estimatediiscounted net cash flows expected to be genebgtéue
assets. If the undiscounted net cash flows asetles the carrying value, an impairment loss wieldneasured as the excess of the carrying valaédoofy-
lived asset over its fair value. We recognized @&.6 million pre-tax impairment charge in 2007 tethto certain of our CLEC assets that were sulesgtyusold
in 2008.

Business combination¥he new accounting guidance for business combimsiticas effective for us for all business combimatioonsummated on or af
January 1, 2009 and requires an acquiring entitgd¢ognize all of the assets acquired and liabdliissumed at the acquisition date fair value.wéfe the
accounting acquirer in our acquisition of Embafde allocation of the purchase price to the assmsired and liabilities assumed of Embarq (andéleted
estimated lives of depreciable tangible and idexitié intangible assets) required a significant amof judgment and was considered a critical estm Such
allocation of certain aspects of the purchase pddtems that are more complex to value was peréar by an independent valuation firm based on in&tion
provided by management. See Note 2 for additisriafmation concerning the assignment of fair valtethe assets acquired and liabilities assumé&dhrdifarg.
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Income taxes.We estimate our current and deferred income thassd on our assessment of the future tax conseggief transactions that have been
reflected in our financial statements or applicabbereturns. Actual income taxes paid could ewyn these estimates due to future changes in iedamlaw o
the resolution of audits by federal and state g&nthorities. We maintain liabilities for unreoied tax benefits for various uncertain tax posiitaken in our
tax returns. These liabilities are estimated basedur judgment of the probable outcome of theettain tax positions and are adjusted periodidadlyed on
changing facts and circumstances. Changes taathiities for unrecognized tax benefits could gty affect operating results in the period ofalge. During
2009, 2008 and 2007, we recognized approximateby@iillion, $12.8 million, and $32.7 million, resgtively, of previously unrecognized tax benefits
(including related interest and net of federalliarefit) and other adjustments upon finalizatioteafreturns. Such benefits were recorded primasila result ¢
the favorable resolution of audits, administrafivactices and the lapse of statute of limitationedrtain jurisdictions. See Note 12 for additidnéormation
regarding our unrecognized tax benefits.

For additional information on our critical accoungipolicies, see “Accounting Pronouncements” anediitation and Competition — Other Matteb&low,
and the Notes to our consolidated financial statesiecluded elsewhere herein.

INFLATION

The vast majority of our telephone operations an regulated under price-cap regulation for inespurposes, for which price changes for certain
revenue components are limited to the rate oftiofta As operating expenses in our nonregulatessliof business increase as a result of inflatien to the
extent permitted by competition, attempt to recdhercosts by increasing prices for our servicebeuipment.

MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from changes inéstaates on our long-term debt obligations. Weshestimated our market risk using sensitivity
analysis. Market risk is defined as the poterdignge in the fair value of a fixed-rate debt adtiign due to a hypothetical adverse change ingsteates. We
determine fair value of long-term debt obligatidrased on a discounted cash flow analysis, usingaties and maturities of these obligations comptréerms
and rates currently available in the long-termiiiciag markets. The results of the sensitivity gsialused to estimate market risk are presenteshvhelthough
the actual results may differ from these estimates.
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In connection with our Embarq acquisition, Embampssting longterm debt as of the acquisition date was valuéid astimated fair value. At Decemt
2009, we estimated the fair value of our long-teiebt to be $8.4 billion based on the overall weidhdverage interest rate of our debt of 7.1% aruvarall
weighted maturity of 11 years compared to termsrates currently available in lortgrm financing markets. As of December 31, 20@@raeximately 96.2% o
long-term debt obligations were fixed rate. Market liskestimated as the potential decrease in fairevaf our lon-term debt resulting from a hypothetical in



of 71 basis points in interest rates (ten percéntiooverall weighted average borrowing rate).clsan increase in interest rates would result prapma
a $362.1 million decrease in fair value of our fixmte long-term debt at December 31, 2009, butldvbave no impact on our results of operationsashc
flows. A 100 basis point increase in variabliast rates would have had a negativetaxaémpact of approximately $2.6 million on ourukts of operations ¢
cash flows for the twelve months ended DecembeBQ9, but would have no impact on the fair valiew long-term variable-rate debt.

We seek to maintain a favorable mix of fixed andalale rate debt in an effort to limit interest tand cash flow volatility resulting from changes
rates. From time to time over the past severalsyege have used derivative instruments to (i) {ockr swap our exposure to changing or variablerest rates
for fixed interest rates or (ii) to swap obligatioio pay fixed interest rates for variable interag¢s. We have established policies and procedareisk
assessment and the approval, reporting and margtofiderivative instrument activities. We do hotd or issue derivative financial instrumentstfading or
speculative purposes. Management periodicallyeresiour exposure to interest rate fluctuationsiampdements strategies to manage the exposure.

In January 2008, we terminated all of our existiiixed to variable” interest rate swaps associatétti the $500 million principal amount of our Sexie
senior notes, due 2012. In connection with thenitestion of these derivatives, we received aggeegash payments of approximately $25.6 million,chthas
been reflected as a premium of the associatedtiermg-debt and is being amortized as a reductiontefest expense through 2012 using the effectiterést
method. In addition, in January 2008, we also teated certain other derivatives that were not debio be effective hedges. Upon the terminatiohe$e
derivatives, we paid an aggregate of approxim&él9 million (and recorded a $3.4 million pre-tdange in the first quarter of 2008 related to thlesment of
these derivatives). As of December 31, 2009, werttaderivative instruments outstanding.

We are also exposed to market risk fotvanges in the fair value of our pension plantassé&hile our pension plan asset returns wereigedor 2009,
the loss on our incumbent pension plan assets p@asxdmately 28% for 2008. If our actual returnpan assets is significantly lower than our expéatturn
assumption, our net periodic pension expense mdligase in the future and we may be required ttribote additional funds to our pension plans ia th
future. The pension plan we assumed in our adgnsof Embarg was substantially underfunded abefacquisition date. During the last half of 2088
contributed $115 million to the Embarq pension pl&uch plan may require a significant amount afitehal funding in the near future. Based on entr
actuarial estimates as of December 31, 2009 tlsan@s a $300 million contribution in 2010, the a8lion of our existing remaining credit balanceastially
satisfy future required cash contributions and @msg no further discretionary contributions are maae would not be required to make a minimum ¢bution
to the legacy Embarq pension plan until 2012. @inimum required contributions to our other pengians are immaterial. The actual level of conttitns
required in future years can change significandgehding on discount rates and actual returnsamassets.
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Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methoahalysis presented in the computation of fair valuinancial instruments. Actual values may diffi
those presented if market conditions vary from ag#ions used in the fair value calculations. Thalgsis above incorporates only those risk expestirat exis
as of December 31, 2009.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Excluding cash used for acquisitions, we rely oshgarovided by operations to fund our dividend pagta and our operating and capital
expenditures. During the last few months of 20@8 borrowed against our long-term revolving créaidility and held excess cash to provide us fldiibin the
challenging economic environment. As a result,warking capital position was positive as of Decem®1, 2008. During 2009, we repaid a portiorheke
borrowings which resulted in a negative workingitaposition as of December 31, 2009, which is en@presentative of our typical working capital
position. Our operations have historically proddestable source of cash flow which has helpexbatinue our long-term program of capital improvetse

Operating activities. Net cash provided by operating activities wa$%4.billion, $853.3 million and $1.030 billion i©@9, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Payments for income taxes aggredi288.9 million, $208.8 million and $185.3 milliam 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. In 2009 paiel
approximately $54 million to fund lump sum distritmns under our frozen supplemental executiveartént plan upon the discontinuance of such plan and
under change of control provisions triggered ugmnacquisition of Embarg. We also contributed $iillfon to the legacy Embarq pension plan during last
half of 2009. Our accompanying consolidated stat@mof cash flows identify major differences beswaet income and net cash provided by operating
activities for each of these periods. For add#dlanformation relating to our operations, see “@tssof Operations” above.

Investing activities. Net cash used in investing activities was $67&lBon, $389.0 million and $619.2 million in 2002008 and 2007,
respectively. Payments for property, plant andmgent were $754.5 million in 2009 (which includkg296.1 million of capital expenditures attributatdeour
Embarq operations subsequent to our July 1, 20§Sisition of Embarq), $286.8 million in 2008 and2630 million in 2007. Capital expenditures for 200
include approximately $75.1 million of one-time g¢apexpenditures related to the integration of Engb We used $306.8 million of cash (net of appmaely
$20.0 million of acquired cash) to purchase MadiRorer Communications Corp. and pay related closiogts on April 30, 2007.
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During 2008, we paid an aggregate of approximzk&49 million for 69 licenses in the Federal Comneatibns Commission’s (“FCC") auction of 700
megahertz (“MHz") wireless spectrum. We expeatdmplete our planning regarding the use of thigspm in the first half of 2010 and to begin oualtphase
in late 2010 or early 2011. Based on our plannivgare considering developing wireless voice aatd dervice capabilities based on equipment usirig L
(Long-Term Evolution) technology. Given that simplata devices are not expected to be commereiadijable until later this year and more complex,
integrated voice and data devices such as smargtame not expected to be available until 2012deveot expect to deploy network equipment, othanttmial
equipment, in 2010. Therefore, our deployment phaitl not likely result in any material impact ¢arr capital and operating budgets for 2010.

On July 1, 2009, we consummated the acquisitidBrobarg Corporation by issuing approximately $610oi of CenturyTel common stock (valued as of
June 30, 2009). We financed our merger transaetipenses with (i) available cash of the combinedpgany and (ii) proceeds from CenturyTel's and Emtsar
existing revolving credit facilities. We acquirg@6.9 million of cash in connection with our acdtiis of Embarg.

In anticipation of making lump sum distributionsdertain participants of our SERP in early 2009 liggeidated our investments in marketable seciiti
the SERP trust during the second quarter of 20@8Heareby increased our cash and cash equivalgri&349 million. As noted above, the lump sum
distributions were paid in 2009 and aggregated@pprately $54 million.

Financing activities. Net cash used in financing activities was $976ilion during 2009, $255.4 million in 2008, and@1 million in 2007. In Septe
2009, we received net proceeds of $644.4 milliomfthe issuance of $250 million of 10-year, 6.1%%isr notes and $400 million of 30-year, 7.6% senio
notes. In October 2009, the proceeds from theseafterings, along with additional borrowings under existing credit facility, were used to buyckan



aggregate of $746.1 million of CenturyTel, Inc. &mbarqg indebtedness (see Note 5 for additionatimétion). During 2008, we paid our $240 million
Series F Senior Notes at maturity primarily usigrowings from our credit facility.

In accordance with previously announced stock repase programs, we repurchased 9.7 million shéoe$347.3 million) and 10.2 million shares (for
$460.7 million) in 2008 and 2007, respectively.

In late March 2007, we publicly issued an aggregatk750 million of Senior Notes. The net procefrdm the issuance of such Senior Notes aggregated
approximately $741.8 million and were used (aloritnwash on hand and approximately $50 million @frbwings under our commercial paper program))to (i
finance the initial purchase price for the April, 2007 acquisition of Madison River ($322 millicam)d (ii) pay off Madison River’s existing indebteis
(including accrued interest) at closing ($522 ruiili.
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In June 2008, our Board of Directors (i) increasadannual cash dividend to $2.80 from $.27 pereshad (ii) declared a one-time dividend of $.6825
share, which was paid in July 2008, effectivelyuatipg the total second quarter dividend to the $e&i@ quarterly dividend rate. In February 2010, Board of
Directors further increased our quarterly dividén®.725 per share. Based on current circumstam@eitend to continue our current dividend pregtsubject
our intention to maintain investment grade crealiilngs on our senior debt and any other factotsahaBoard in its discretion deems relevant.

In the first quarter of 2008, we received a nehcsttlement of approximately $20.7 million frone tiermination of all of our existing derivative
instruments. See “Market Risk” above for additiainéormation concerning the termination of theseidatives.

During 2008, CenturyTel suffered a substantial mssts pension plan assets. The pension plarssnaed in our acquisition of Embarg was substdyn
underfunded as of the acquisition date. If thidarfunded status continues, we may be requiredritribute additional funds to our pension planhe hear
future. To reduce the underfunded position, in&a2010 we expect to contribute $300 million to ldgacy Embarqg pension plan using cash on hand and
borrowings from our credit facility. For furtherformation, see Item 1A - Risk Factors, of this@airreport.

As previously announced, Embarq amended its cfaciiity to enable the facility to remain in plaas an $800 million revolving credit facility aftdre
completion of the merger through May 2011. SeesNfor additional information.

Subsequent to the Embarq acquisition, we haveahlaitwo unsecured revolving credit facilities,gijive-year, $728 million facility of CenturyTelhich
expires in December 2011 and (ii) an $800 milliaaility of Embarqg which expires in May 2011. Thesedit facilities contain financial covenants thequire
us to meet certain leverage ratios and minimunreéstecoverage ratios. Up to $250 million of thedit facilities can be used for letters of creditich reduces
the amount available for other extensions of credl& of December 31, 2009, approximately $46 onillof letters of credit were outstanding. Avaitabl
borrowings under these credit facilities are aleatively reduced by any outstanding borrowingslemour commercial paper program. Our commer@pkep
program borrowings are effectively limited to tiségel amount available under the two credit fa@#iti As of December 31, 2009, we had approxim&2a.2
million outstanding under our credit facilitiesl(af which relates to CenturyTel's facility) and amounts outstanding under our commercial papegraro.

As described in Note 5, we called for redemptiorAoigust 14, 2007, all of our $165 million aggregatmcipal amount of Series K convertible senior
debentures, subject to the right of holders to edntheir debentures into shares of our commorksiba conversion price of $40.455. In lieu oftcas
redemption, holders of approximately $149.6 millaggregate principal amount of the debenturesedlect convert their holdings into approximately Siflion
shares of CenturyTel common stock. The remainitg4smillion of outstanding debentures were retfi@dcash (including premium and accrued and unpaid
interest).
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Other. For 2010, we have budgeted between $825-875miftr capital expenditures. Previously, we codellithat our prior extensive capital
investment in our wireline network permitted ugseduce wireline network capital spending to maiatere levels. Our 2010 capital expenditure budiget a
includes amounts for expanding our new serviceriois and our data networks.

The following table contains certain informatiomcerning our material contractual obligations aBe€ember 31, 2009.

Payments due by peric

2014 and
Contractual obligation Total 2010 2011-201Z 201:-201¢ Other
(Dollars in thousands

Long-term debt, including current
maturities and

capital lease obligations ( $ 7,753,711 500,06! 630,32¢ 849,92t 5,773,39!
Interest on lon-term debt obligation $ 6,714,61 539,50« 1,003,06! 874,94t 4,297,10:
Unrecognized tax benefits (2) $ 81,66 - - - 81,66!

(1) For additional information on the terms of eutstanding debt instruments, see Note 5 to thealwated financial statements included in Iteof ghis
annual report.

(2) Represents the amount of tax and interest addypay assuming we are required to pay the eatireunt that we have reserved for our unrecogrteed
benefits (see Note 12 for additional informatiofihe timing of any payments for our unrecognizedienefits cannot be predicted with certainty; éfere, sucl
amount is reflected in the “After 2014 and Otheslfumn in the above table.

We continually evaluate the possibility of acquiriadditional communications operations and expgecbhtinue our long-term strategy of pursuing the
acquisition of attractively-priced communicatiomsperties in exchange for cash, securities or bétthany given time, we may be engaged in discumssar
negotiations regarding additional acquisitions. §&eerally do not announce our acquisitions oratigns until we have entered into a preliminargefinitive
agreement. We may require additional financingdnnection with any such acquisitions, the consutiomaf which could have a material impact on our
financial condition or operations. Approximatelyl 4nillion shares of our common stock and 200,0@#es of our preferred stock remain available doure
issuance in connection with acquisitions underamguisition shelf registration statement. We &laee access to debt and equity capital markets.



Moody'’s Investors Service (“Moody’s"Yicently rates CenturyTel, Inc.’s and Embarq Coagion’s long-term debt Baa3 (with a stable
outlook). Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”) rates the saomy-term debt BBB- (with a stable outlook). Gammercial paper program is rated P-3 by Moodyt an
A-3 by S&P. Any downgrade in our credit ratingdhiricrease our borrowing costs and commitment feeter our revolving credit facility. Downgradesutd
also restrict our access to the capital marketsease our borrowing costs under new or replacedehitfinancings, or otherwise adversely affectténens of
future borrowings by, among other things, incregsire scope of our debt covenants and decreasinignancial or operating flexibility.
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The following table reflects our debtdtal capitalization percentage and ratio of eagsito fixed charges and preferred stock dividersdsfand for the
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 ddliiteo total capitalization ratio for 2009 refiectur Embarq acquisition. The ratio of earningBxed
charges and preferred stock dividends calculator2®09 reflects the operations of Embarq onlyesihaly 1, 2009.

2009 2008 2007

Debt to total capitalizatio 45.0 % 51.2 46.9
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg

and preferred stock dividend 3.17 3.74 3.85

*  For purposes of the chart above, “earnimgsisist of income before income taxes (before extiiaary item) and fixed charges, and “fixed chafgaclude
our interest expense, including amortized debtaisse costs, and our preferred stock dividend costs.
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Regulation and Competition

The communications industry continues to undergmua fundamental regulatory, legislative, competiind technological changes. These changes may
have a significant impact on the future financiatfprmance of all communications companies.

Events affecting the communications industiireless telephone services increasingly cortstéusignificant source of competition with LEC\Sees,
especially since wireless carriers have begun napete effectively on the basis of price with maealitional telephone services. Similarly, elecicamail and
other digital communications continue to reducedémand for traditional landline voice servicese #hticipate these trends will continue.

Federal USF programs have undergonstantial changes since 1997, and are expectectrience more changes in the coming years as gralov
program is modernized. As mandated by the 1996iAdflay 2001 the FCC modified its existing univarservice support mechanism for rural telephone
companies by adopting an interim mechanism fovefiear period based on embedded, or historicatsdbat provide relatively predictable levels @fgort to
many LECs, including substantially all of our LEC$n May 2006, the FCC extended this interim meédra until such time that new high-cost supporésudre
adopted for rural telephone companies. Increasgdests for payments, coupled with changes in usgéecommunications services, have placed streske
funding mechanism of the USF, which is subjectrtoual caps on disbursements. These developmergsglteced additional financial pressure on the arhoti
money that is necessary and available to providea to all eligible service providers, includipgyments we receive from the USF High Cost Loop
program. Increases in the nationwide averagepmrdibop factor used to allocate funds among alF Uipients caused our revenues from the USF Biggt
Loop program (exclusive of USF revenues recogniigthg the last half of 2009 in connection with &mbarq acquisition) to decrease approximately $13
million in 2009 when compared to 2008. We estintagt our 2010 revenues from the USF High Cost Lpamgram will be approximately $45 million lower as
compared to the annual run rate for the last H2009.

Technological developments have led to the devetoprof new services that compete with traditionaCLservices. Technological improvements have
enabled cable television companies to provide ticadhl circuit-switched telephone service over ithwaible networks, and several national cable coiepdrave
aggressively pursued this opportunity. Improversémthe quality of "Voice-over-Internet Protoc@IVolP") service have led several cable, Interdata and
other communications companies, as well as stadeapanies, to substantially increase their offgsiaf VolP service to business and residential
customers. VolIP providers frequently use existirsadband networks to deliver flat-rate, all disewalling plans that may offer features that caneadily be
provided by traditional LECs and may be priced belbose currently charged for traditional local dmalg distance telephone services. In late 20488FHCC
initiated a rulemaking intended to address thelegigun of VVoIP, and has adopted orders establiskorge initial broad regulatory guidelines. The H&S not
completed the rulemaking, but could address tragrtrent of VolP traffic and services by concludihg tproceeding or in combination with intercarrier
compensation reform proceedings already underWéere can be no assurance that future rulemakitidp@von terms favorable to ILECs, or that VolP
providers will not successfully compete for ourtousers.
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Beginning in 2003, the FCC opened broad intercacoenpensation proceedings designed to createfarommechanism to be used by the entire
telecommunications industry for payments betweerieza originating, terminating, transiting or dedring telecommunications traffic. In connecttberewith,
the FCC has received intercarrier compensationgzalp from several industry groups, and solicitgllip comments on a variety of topics related toeas
charges and intercarrier compensation. Broad ingluggotiations have taken place with the goalefeloping a consensus plan that addresses therosnaf
carriers from all industry segments. The ultimaécome of the FCC's intercarrier compensation @eadkings could change the way we receive compensatio
from, and remit compensation to, other carriers,emd user customers and the federal USF. UtiFBC’s proceedings conclude and the changesy iftarthe
existing rules are established, we cannot estithaténpact these proceedings will have on our djmers.

Many cable, technology or other communication comgthat previously offered a limited range ofvgzgs are now, like us, offering diversified burglle
of services. As such, a growing number of comaaie competing to serve the communications nefetie same customer base. Several of these coegani
started offering full service bundles before usiohittould give them an advantage in building cusioloyalty. Such activities will continue to pladewnward
pressure on the demand for our access lines.

Recent events affecting u®uring the last few years, most of the stateshich we provide telephone services have takersl&gie or regulatory steps
further introduce competition into the LEC busine3sie number of companies which have requestdtbdméation to provide local exchange service in our
service areas has increased in recent years, yarticin Embarq’s legacy markets, and we anti@phtt similar action may be taken by others inftitere.

Certain long distance carriers continue to reqthegtcertain of our ILECs reduce intrastate actased rates. Long distance carriers have also
aggressively pursued regulatory or legislative ¢esrthat would reduce access rates. In ligheofljng intercarrier compensation reform that iseexgd to
address intrastate access charges, most statésfareng action until they receive direction frehe FCC. However, some carriers are continuinguisue
lower intrastate access rates in some statesrei@ly, we are responding to carrier complaintgisiation or investigations regarding our intrastatvitched
access rate levels in Minnesota, Missouri, OhimnBglvania, North Carolina, Wisconsin, and Virginddthough the outcome cannot be determined attitnis,
we believe our intrastate switched access ratddere appropriate and we plan to vigorously deféedn.

Over the past few years, each of the FCC, Univ&salice Administrative Company and certain Congjoggl committees has initiated wide-ranging
reviews of the administration of the federal USs part of this process, we, along with a numbestbér USF recipients, have undergone a numbeiSéf U
audits and have also received requests for infoom&tom the FCC's Office of Inspector General (&) and Congressional committees. In addition]uty
2008 we received a subpoena from the OIG requeathmgad range of information regarding our dejatéam rates and methodologies since 2000, andiyn Ju
2009 we received a second subpoena requestingriafmm about our participation in the E-rate progfar Wisconsin schools and libraries since 2004e
OIG has not identified to us any specific issuethwéspect to our participation in the USF progeamd none of the audits completed to date has fishtiny
material issues regarding our participation int8F program. While we believe our participatiomigompliance with FCC rules and in accordancé wit
accepted industry practices, we cannot predict eéttainty the timing or outcome of these variomdgews. We have complied with and are continuing t



respond to all requests for information.
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We expect our 2010 operating revenues to be hitjagr 2009 since 2010 will include a full year ofegiting results from our Embarq properties acquired
July 1, 2009. Excluding this impact, we expect operating revenues in 2010 to decline as we coatio experience downward pressure primarily due to
continued access line losses, reduced universatsdunding and lower network access revenugsadtition, our revenues will be negatively impddte2010
compared to 2009 due to a full year impact of tirieation of all intercompany transactions witlguated affiliates resulting from the discontinuart
regulatory accounting that was effective July 102Qwhich will not impact operating income leveisce there will be an equivalent amount of expenses
eliminated). We expect such revenue declines fodbtally offset primarily due to increased demdmdour high-speed Internet service offering.

For a more complete description of regulation amuhgetition impacting our operations and variousratant risks, please see Items 1 and 1A of this
annual report.

Other matters. Through June 30, 2009, CenturyTel accounteitsoegulated telephone operations (except foptbperties acquired from Verizon in
2002) in accordance with the provisions of codifima ASC 98010 (formerly SFAS 71) which addresses regulatoppanting under which actions by regulat
can provide reasonable assurance of the recogmifian asset, reduce or eliminate the value ofsartaand impose a liability on a regulated entsepriSuch
regulatory assets and liabilities were requiredg¢gecorded and, accordingly, reflected in therimdaheet of an entity subject to regulatory actiogn

As we previously disclosed, on July 1, 2009, wedaliinued the accounting requirements of regulad@gounting upon the conversion of substantially al
of our rate-of-return study areas to federal pciap regulation (based on the FCC's approval ofpetition to convert our study areas to price cauiagtion).

In the third quarter of 2009, we recorded a netcash extraordinary after-tax gain of approxima&lg6.0 million upon the discontinuance of regutato
accounting. See Note 15 for additional information
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We have certain obligations based on federal, staddocal laws relating to the protection of theieonment. Costs of compliance through 2009 hete
been material, and we currently do not believe shiah costs will become material.

Item 7A. Quantitative and QualiatiDisclosure About Market Risk

For information pertaining to the our market riskalbsure, see “ltem 7 - Management’s DiscussiahAmalysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Market Risk”.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Management

The Shareholders

CenturyTel, Inc.:

Management has prepared and is responsible fanténgrity and objectivity of our consolidated fir@al statements. The consolidated financial stat@m
have been prepared in accordance with accountingiples generally accepted in the United State&roérica and necessarily include amounts determirsatt
our best judgments and estimates.

Our consolidated financial statements have beeitealdy KPMG LLP, an independent registered puaticounting firm, who have expressed their opii
with respect to the fairness of the consolidatedrtial statements. Their audit was conducteddor@ance with standards of the Public Company Acting
Oversight Board (United States).

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financiglaging, a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financigdoging and the preparation of financial statemémt&xternal purposes in accordance with geneealbepted
accounting principles. Under the supervision antth Wie participation of management, including otmgipal executive officer and principal financificer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofiternal control over financial reporting basedtioe framework irinternal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike Treadway Commission (“COSQO”). Based onexaluation under the framework of COSO
management concluded that our internal control émencial reporting was effective as of Decembkr209. The effectiveness of our internal conbrar
financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 has lzeelited by KPMG LLP, as stated in their reportalihis included herein.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Also, projections of any evabmadt
effectiveness to future periods are subject taiglethat controls may become inadequate becaushasfges in conditions, or that the degree of canpé witt
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors isrqgmsed of independent directors who are not oficeremployees. The Committee meets periodically
with the external auditors, internal auditors arehagement. The Committee considers the indepead#rhbe external auditors and the audit scope and
discusses internal control, financial and reportimggters. Both the external and internal audita@nge free access to the Committee.

/s/ R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.

R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

March 1, 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiimm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CenturyTel, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statésn@nCenturyTel, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Comypas listed in Item 15a(1). In connection with our
audits of the consolidated financial statementsalse have audited the financial statement schesulsted in Item 15a(2). These consolidated firen
statements and financial statement schedule arespensibility of the Company’s management. Ospoasibility is to express an opinion on these obdated
financial statements and financial statement sdedssed on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamlaUnited States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasoradsarance about whether the financial statemeatteee of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportinguh@unts and disclosures in the financial statesnét audit also includes assessing the accouptingiples
used and significant estimates made by manage®entell as evaluating the overall financial statenpeesentation. We believe that our audits proeide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of the Compasypf
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results afdperations and their cash flows for each of thery in the three-year period ended December 3B, 20
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounfmnigciples. Also in our opinion, the related finaalstatement schedule, when considered in relatighe
basic consolidated financial statements takenvalsode, presents fairly, in all material respedtg, information set forth therein.

As discussed in Notes 2, 9 and 13 to the conselitifihancial statements, effective January 1, 2689Company changed its method of accounting for
business combinations, non-controlling interests @arnings per share. In addition, as discussalbia 12 to the consolidated financial statemesftective
January 1, 2007, the Company changed its methadaafunting for uncertain tax positions.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@#nited States), the Company'’s internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 20@&ed on criteria establishedlimternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsol
Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and eport dated March 1, 2010 expressed an unquabfiétion on the effectiveness of the Company’s imaér
control over financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Shreveport, Louisiana
March 1, 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiimm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CenturyTel, Inc.:

We have audited CenturyTel, Inc. and subsidiaii& Company) internal control over financial rejpay as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria
established imnternal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission (COSOjhe
Company’s management is responsible for maintaieffegtive internal control over financial repogiand for its assessment of the effectivenesstefnal
control over financial reporting, included in thecampanyindreport of ManagemenOur responsibility is to express an opinion o @ompany’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statelof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&nited States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonaseirance about whether effective internal cootvel financial reporting was maintained in all nitie
respects. Our audit included obtaining an undedstgnof internal control over financial reportirggsessing the risk that a material weakness earstistesting
and evaluating the design and operating effectisgioé internal control based on the assessedQiskaudit also included performing such other pdoces as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevd¢hat our audit provides a reasonable basisdo opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableasssuregarding the reliability of financial repogt
and the preparation of financial statements foem! purposes in accordance with generally acdegteounting principles. A company’s internal cohtver
financial reporting includes those policies andcgidures that (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrdsciinat, in reasonable detail, accurately andyfegflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets ofdhgany; (2) provide reasonable assurance thatactions are recorded as necessary to permit pitepanf
financial statements in accordance with generalepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexipenditures of the company are being made only i
accordance with authorizations of management ardtdirs of the company; and (3) provide reasonasderance regarding prevention or timely deteaifon
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ef¢dbmpany’s assets that could have a materialteffethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohover financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of any evatuatf
effectiveness to future periods are subject taigiethat controls may become inadequate becauskansfges in conditions, or that the degree of ciampé with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fioal reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on
criteria established imternal Control—Integrated Framewortsued by the COSO.
80
We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@snited States), the consolidated financial
statements of CenturyTel, Inc. and subsidiaridsstel in Item 15(a)(1), and our report dated Mat¢cR010 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP
Shreveport, Louisiana
March 1, 2010
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CENTURYTEL, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Year ended December &

2009 2008 2007
(Dollars, except per share amounts, and shares in
thousands

OPERATING REVENUES $ 4,974,23! 2,599,74 2,656,24.
OPERATING EXPENSE!

Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptieei and amortizatior 1,752,08 955,47 937,37!

Selling, general and administrati 1,014,34. 399,13¢ 389,53(

Depreciation and amortization 974,71( 523,78t 536,25!

Total operating expenses 3,741,13i 1,878,39! 1,863,16.

OPERATING INCOME 1,233,10. 721,35:. 793,07¢
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE

Interest expens (370,41 (202,21) (212,90¢)

Other income (expense) (48,175 42.25: 40,02¢

Total other income (expense) (418,589 (159,96%) (172,87°)

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSI 814,51: 561,38" 620,20:
Income tax expense 301,88: 194,35° 200,57:
INCOME BEFORE NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS AND EXTRAORNARY ITEM 512,63: 367,03( 419,62¢
Noncontrolling interest (1,377) (1,29¢) (1,259
NET INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEN 511,25: 365,73: 418,37(
Extraordinary item, net of income tax expense amtaontrolling interests (see Note 15) 135,95 - -
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO

CENTURYTEL, INC. $ 647,21 365,73. 418,37(
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARI

Income before extraordinary ite $ 2.5t 3.5¢ 3.7¢

Extraordinary iternr $ .6€ - -

Basic earnings per she $ B2 BE5E 3.7¢
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Income before extraordinary ite $ 2.5t 3.52 3.71

Extraordinary iternr $ .6€ - -

Diluted earnings per sha $ 3.2¢ 3.5Z 3.71
DIVIDENDS PER COMMON SHARE $ 2.8C 2.167¢ .2€
AVERAGE BASIC SHARES OUTSTANDING 198,81: 102,26¢ 109,36(
AVERAGE DILUTED SHARES OUTSTANDING 199,05 102,56( 112,78

See accompanying notes to consolidated finana@istents.
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CENTURYTEL, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December &

2009 2008 2007

(Dollars in thousands

NET INCOME BEFORENONCONTROLLING INTERESTS $ 650,13( 367,03( 419,62¢

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAXE
Marketable securitie:

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments, net of($28®2) $547 ta: - (539 877
Reclassification adjustment for gain included ihineome, net of ($1,730) te - (2,776 -
Derivative instruments
Net gains on derivatives hedging variability ofltéiews, net of $294 ta - - 471
Reclassification adjustment for gains includedéhincome, net of $267, $267 and $254 42¢ 42¢ 407
Items related to employee benefit pla
Change in net actuarial loss, net of $30,100, @&, and $28,583 te 39,20¢ (82,50%) 52,48¢
Change in net prior service credit, net of ($5,798389) and $1,724 te (9,30 (94%) 2,76¢€
Reclassification adjustment for gains (losses)udet in net income
Amortization of net actuarial loss, net of $6,1$1,198 and $4,409 te 9,88: 1,921 6,55¢
Amortization of net prior service credit, net ofl($70), $2,261 and ($771) t (2,037) 3,62 (1,236
Amortization of unrecognized transition asset,afgs55) tax - - (89)
Net change in other comprehensive income (los$)dfneclassification adjustment), net of
taxes 38,18: (80,787) 62,23¢
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 688,31¢ 286,24¢ 481,86«
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontroliimgrests (2,927) (1,29¢) (1,259)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO CENTURYTEL, IE. $ 685,39: 284,95( 480,60!

See accompanying notes to consolidated finana@stents.
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CENTURYTEL, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivabl
Customers, less allowance of $38,275 and $1C
Interexchange carriers and other, less allowan&9df75 and $5,31
Income tax receivab
Materials and supplies, at average ¢
Deferred income tax ass
Other
Total current assets

NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN"

GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSET<
Goodwill
Other intangible asse
Customer lis
Other
Other assets
Total goodwill and other assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of lor-term debt

Accounts payabl

Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Salaries and benefi
Other taxe:
Interest
Other

Advance billings and customer deposits
Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Deferred income taxe
Benefit plan obligation
Other deferred credits

Total deferred credits and other liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 800,@@shares, issued and outstanding

299,189,279 and 100,277,216 she
Paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net o
Retained earning
Preferred stoc- nor-redeemabls
Noncontrolling interests

Total stockholders' equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

See accompanying notes to consolidated finana@stents.
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December 31

2009

2008

(Dollars in thousands

$ 161,80° 243,32
487,95t 153,83t
197,63 62,17¢
115,68 14,27¢

35,75t 8,862
83,31¢ 29,42:
41,43 43 50
1,123,59. 555,40
9,097,13 2,895,89.
10,251,75 4,015,67.
1,130,817 146,28:
315,60: 42,75(
643,82 598,18
12,341,99 4,802,891

$ 22562,72 8,254,19

$ 500,06t 20,40°
394,68 135,08
255,10 99,64¢

98,74: 44,13
108,02 75,76¢
168,20: 26,77:
182,37 56,57(
1,707,19. 458,39
7,253,65: 3,294,11'
2,256,57' 854,10;
1,485,56. 348,14(
392,93 131,63
4,135,08. 1,333,87:
299,18t 100,27
6,014,05. 39,96:
(85,306) (123,48)
3,232,76! 3,146,25!
23€ 23€
5,86( 4,56¢
9,466,79' 3,167,80:
$ 22562,72 8,254,19




OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income

CENTURYTEL, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:

Depreciation and amortizatic
Extraordinary iten

Gains on asset dispositions and liquidation of retatile securitie

Deferred income taxe
Shar-based compensatic
Income from unconsolidated cellular ent
Distributions from unconsolidated cellular ent
Changes in current assets and current liabili
Accounts receivabl
Accounts payabl
Accrued taxe:
Other current assets and other current liabilities
Retirement benefit
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic
(Increase) decrease in noncurrent as
Increase (decrease) in other noncurrent liabil
Other, net
Net cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipmr
Cash acquired from Embarq acquisit
Purchase of wireless spectri
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir
Proceeds from liquidation of marketable securi
Proceeds from redemption of Rural Telephone Bamék:
Proceeds from sale of ass
Other, net
Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of det
Net proceeds from issuance of d
Repurchase of common sto
Net proceeds from settlement of hed
Proceeds from issuance of common st
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic
Cash dividend
Other, net

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

Year ended December &

2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands

648,58¢ 367,03( 419,62
974,71( 523,78t 536,25!
(135,95) - -
- (12,457) (15,647
153,95( 67,51¢ 1,01¢
55,15: 16,39( 19,96:
(19,08 (12,04%) (14,579
20,10( 15,96( 10,22¢
(23,779 (7,97%) 15,92(
(32,209 14,04 (13,699
(150,07Y) (64,779 11,60
121,38 (15,61%) 23,78:
(82,119 (26,06¢€) 27,35(
(4,199 (1,129 (6,427)
(2,349) 9,74¢ 12,71¢
41,64¢ (27,567) (20,787)
7,944 6,444 22,64¢
1,573,71! 853,30( 1,029,98
(754,54,) (286,81) (326,049
76,90¢ - -
(2,000 (148,969) -

- - (306,809

- 34,94t -

- - 5,20¢

1,59t 15,80¢ 8,231
(807) (3,96¢) 22F
(678,849 (388,99) (619,189
(1,097,06) (285,40)) (712,98()
644,42; 563,11! 741,84(
(15,56%) (347,26 (460,671
- 20,74 -

56,82: 14,59¢ 49,40
4,19¢ 1,12: 6,42
(560,69) (220,26¢) (29,057)
(8,507) (2,03)) 2,97%
(976,39) (255,380) (402,069
(81,520) 208,92! 8,73¢
243,32 34,40 25,66¢
161,80° 243,32 34,40:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@stents.
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CENTURYTEL, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Year ended December &

2009 2008 2007
(Dollars, except per share amounts, and shares in
thousands
COMMON STOCK (represents dollars and sha
Balance at beginning of ye $ 100,27 108,49: 113,25
Issuance of common stock to acquire Embarg Corioor 196,08: - -
Repurchase of common sta - (9,62¢) (20,179)
Conversion of debt into common stc - - 3,69¢
Conversion of preferred stock into common st - 367 26
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdir (503) (50 (42)
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestnincentive and benefit plans 3,33 1,09« 1,72¢
Balance at end of year 299,18¢ 100,27 108,49:
PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of ye 39,96: 91,147 24,25¢
Issuance of common stock to acquire Embarg Conporancluding portion of share-based
compensation awards assumed by Centur 5,873,90. - -
Repurchase of common sto - (91,409 (154,970
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdir (15,06() (1,669 (6€)
Conversion of debt into common stc - - 142,73.
Conversion of preferred stock into common st - 6,36¢ 458
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinveatnincentive and benefit pla 53,49: 13,50¢ 47,67¢
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic 4,19¢ 1,12 6,427
Shar-based compensatic 55,15¢ 16,39( 19,96:
Other 2,40¢ 4,507 4,67¢
Balance at end of year 6,014,05. 39,96 91,14"
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, NET OF TA
Balance at beginning of ye (123,489 (42,707 (104,942
Net change in other comprehensive loss (net oéssdication adjustment), net of tax 38,18 (80,782) 62,23¢
Balance at end of year (85,306 (123,489 (42,707
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of ye 3,146,25! 3,245,30: 3,150,93:
Net income attributable to CenturyTel, li 647,21 365,73. 418,37(
Repurchase of common sto - (244,51)) (293,729
Shares withheld to satisfy tax withholdir - - (1,699
Cumulative effect of adoption of FIN 48 (see No® - - 47¢
Cash dividends declare
Common stocl- $2.80, $2.1675 and $.26 per sh (560,68") (220,08) (28,689
Preferred stock (12 (180 (36€)
Balance at end of year 3,232,76! 3,146,25! 3,245,30:
PREFERRED STOCH NON-REDEEMABLE
Balance at beginning of ye 23¢€ 6,971 7,45(
Conversion of preferred stock into common stock - (6,735 (479)
Balance at end of year 23€ 23€ 6,971
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS
Balance at beginning of peric 4,56¢ 6,60¢ 8,01:
Net income attributable to noncontrolling intere 1,37 1,29¢ 1,25¢
Extraordinary gain attributable to noncontrollimgerests 1,54t - -
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (1,630 (3,335 (2,667)
Balance at end of period 5,86( 4,56¢ 6,60¢
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 9,466,79 3,167,80: 3,415,811

See accompanying notes to consolidated finana@stents.
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CENTURYTEL, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PACIES

Embarq acquisitior- On July 1, 2009, pursuant to the terms and cmmditof the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dateaf &ctober 26, 2008 (the “Merger
Agreement”), we acquired Embarq Corporation (“Engiipthrough a merger transaction, with Embarq sting the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CenturyTel. The results of operations of Embaggiacluded in our consolidated results of operatibeginning July 1, 2009. See Note 2 for addifionfarmati
related to the Embarq acquisition.

Principles of consolidatio- Our consolidated financial statements includeatb@unts of CenturyTel, Inc. and its majority-odsebsidiaries.

Regulatory accountin— Through June 30, 2009, CenturyTel accounted$aegulated telephone operations (except for thpesties acquired from Verizon in
2002) in accordance with the provisions of regulatecounting under which actions by regulators mavide reasonable assurance of the recogniti@m of
asset, reduce or eliminate the value of an asseingpose a liability on a regulated enterprisectSregulatory assets and liabilities were requicebe recorded
and, accordingly, reflected in the balance sheanagntity subject to regulatory accounting. Oly du2009, we discontinued the accounting requéets of
regulatory accounting upon the conversion of suttistiy all of our rate-of-return study areas tdéeal price cap regulation (based on the FCC'sabof our
petition to convert our study areas to price caulation). In the third quarter of 2009, upon tfiecontinuance of regulatory accounting, we rect@e@on-cash
extraordinary gain in our consolidated statemehisame of $136.0 million after-tax. See Notef@badditional information.

Subsequent to the July 1, 2009 discontinuancegafia¢ory accounting, all intercompany transactiwits affiliates have been eliminated from the
consolidated financial statements. Prior to JUlI2AD9, intercompany transactions with regulatditiaes subject to regulatory accounting were @lohinated ir
connection with preparing the consolidated finarstiatements, as allowed by the provisions of r@guy accounting. The amount of intercompany nees
and costs that were not eliminated related toitiseHalf of 2009 approximated $114 million.

Estimates- The preparation of financial statements in comfity with generally accepted accounting principleguires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etsssd liabilities and disclosure of contingersess and liabilities at the date of the financiatements and tt
reported amounts of revenues and expenses dugngplorting period. Actual results may differ froimose estimates.
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Revenue recognitic- Revenues are generally recognized when servieggravided or when products are delivered to custs. Revenue that is billed in
advance includes monthly recurring network accesdces, special access services and monthly iiaguocal line charges. The unearned portion & th
revenue is initially deferred as a component ofsente billings and customer deposits on our balaheet and recognized as revenue over the peribthéha
services are provided. Revenue that is billediieaas includes switched access services, nonieguretwork access services, nonrecurring localices and
long distance services. The earned but unbilletigroof this revenue is recognized as revenubénperiod that the services are provided. Revefiaes
installation activities are deferred and recogniasdevenue over the estimated life of the custagiationship. The costs associated with suchaiagion
activities, up to the related amount of deferraceneie, are deferred and recognized as an opeeatpense over the same period.

Allowance for doubtful accoun. In evaluating the collectibility of our accoumezeivable, we assess a number of factors, intduaispecific customer’s or
carrier's ability to meet its financial obligatiots us, the length of time the receivable has lpeesh due and historical collection experience. eBam these
assessments, we record both specific and genseles for uncollectible accounts receivable taicedhe stated amount of applicable accounts rabksito the
amount we ultimately expect to collect.

Property, plant and equipme— As discussed in Note 2, the property acquirezbimection with the acquisition of Embarq was rdedrbased on its fair
value. Substantially all other telephone plarstéed at original cost. Normal retirements aépélone plant are charged against accumulated dajiwacalong
with the costs of removal, less salvage, with nio galoss recognized. Renewals and bettermenttaot and equipment are capitalized while repaissyell as
renewals of minor items, are charged to operatupgese. Depreciation of telephone plant is pravide the straight line method using class or oVeralup
rates; such average rates range from 2% to 25%.

Non-elephone property is stated at cost and, whenaadletired, a gain or loss is recognized. Deptémn of such property is provided on the stralgte
method over estimated service lives ranging from tw35 years.

Goodwill and other long-lived assetsGoodwill recorded in a business combination ¢gieed to be reviewed for impairment and to betemitdown only in
periods in which the recorded amount of goodwilteeds its fair value. Applicable accounting gumaalso stipulates certain factors to considerrcbag
whether or not a triggering event has occurredwmatld require performance of an interim goodwitigairment test. We test impairment of goodwillestdt
annually by comparing the fair value of the repagtunit to its carrying value (including goodwill)e base our estimates of the fair value of thentépg unit or
valuation models using criterion such as multigiesarnings. See Note 3 for additional informati@ther long-lived assets (exclusive of goodvéte
reviewed for impairment whenever events and ciréantes indicate that such carrying amount canno¢d@verable by assessing the recoverability of the
carrying value through undiscounted net cash flewgected to be generated by the assets. During, 2@9recognized a $16.6 million ptax impairment charg
in order to write-down the value of certain of ¢amg-lived assets in certain of our CLEC marketthtir estimated realizable value. Such assets wer
subsequently sold in two separate transaction808.2
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Income taxe- We file a consolidated federal income tax retwith our eligible subsidiaries. We use the asaetl@bility method of accounting for income
taxes under which deferred tax assets and liaslire established for the future tax consequatt@sutable to differences between the finandialesnent
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities andrthesipective tax bases.

Postretirement and pension pla— We recognize the overfunded or underfunded stetoar defined benefit and postretirement planaraasset or a liability on
our balance sheet, with an adjustment to stockhsléguity (reflected as an increase or decreasednmulated other comprehensive income or losghéo
accumulated actuarial gains or losses. See N6tesd 11 for additional information.

Stockbased compensati— We measure our cost of awarding employees withtgistruments based upon allocations of the falo® of the award on tt



grant date. See Note 14 for additional information

Derivative financial instrumeni— We account for derivative instruments and hedaitiyities in accordance with applicable accoumtimidance which requires
that all derivative instruments, such as interatd swaps, be recognized in the financial statesreard measured at fair value regardless of theoparpr intent
of holding them. On the date a derivative contisentered into, we designate the derivative geea fair value or cash flow hedge. A hedgeheffair value
of a recognized asset or liability or of an unredmgd firm commitment is a fair value hedge. A hedd a forecasted transaction or the variabilitgagh flows
to be received or paid related to a recognized asdmbility is a cash flow hedge. We also fotlpassess, both at the hedge's inception and amgaing basi:
whether the derivatives that are used in hedgegstctions are highly effective in offsetting chesin fair values or cash flows of hedged itemsdfdetermin:
that a derivative is not, or is no longer, highfieetive as a hedge, we would discontinue hedgewatting prospectively. We recognize all derivasiom the
balance sheet at their fair value. Changes itfidinvalue of derivative financial instruments &ither recognized in income or stockholders’ eq(dty a
component of accumulated other comprehensive indtyes)), depending on the use of the derivativiewahether it qualifies for hedge accounting. Wendb
hold or issue derivative financial instrumentstfading or speculative purposes. Management pegatid reviews our exposure to interest rate flattons and
implements strategies to manage the exposure N8tee6 for additional information.

Earnings per shar— We determine basic earnings per share amourttsedwasis of the weighted average number of conmshares outstanding during the
applicable accounting period. Diluted earningsgteare gives effect to all potential dilutive conmehares that were outstanding during the per@ee Note 13
for additional information.
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Cash equivalentsWe consider short-term investments with a matuitdate of purchase of three months or less wabk equivalents.
2) ACQUISITIONS

On July 1, 2009, pursuant to the terms and conditaf the Merger Agreement, we acquired Embarqutiiinca merger transaction, with Embarq survi
the merger as a whollgwned subsidiary of CenturyTel. Such acquisiticaswecorded pursuant to Financial Accounting StatsdBoard guidance on busin
combinations, which was effective for all busineembinations consummated on or after January 19,289more fully described below.

As a result of the acquisition, each outstandiregesiof Embarg common stock was converted intoite to receive 1.37 shares of CenturyTel common
stock (“CTL common stock”), with cash paid in lietifractional shares. Based on the number of Cgiielcommon shares issued to consummate the merger
(196.1 million), the closing stock price of CTL coran stock as of June 30, 2009 ($30.70) and the@mination portion of share-based compensationdsva
assumed by CenturyTel ($50.2 million), the aggregaérger consideration approximated $6.1 billidhe premium paid by us in this transaction is latiidble
to strategic benefits, including enhanced finanaral operational scale, market diversificationglaged combined networks and improved competitive
positioning. None of the goodwill associated viftfs transaction is deductible for income tax pggm

The results of operations of Embarq are includeaun consolidated results of operations beginninly 1, 2009. Approximately $2.563 billion
operating revenues of Embarq are included in omsalidated results of operations for 2009. Cerftalywas the accounting acquirer in this transactidre
have recognized Embamjassets and liabilities at their acquisition detgmated fair values pursuant to business comibmatccounting rules that were effec
for acquisitions consummated on or after JanuaB0@9. The assignment of a fair value to the assequired and liabilities assumed of Embarq (aed¢late
estimated lives of depreciable tangible and idi&itié intangible assets) require a significant ami@f judgment. The fair value of property, plantd equipmel
and identifiable intangible assets were determiveesbd upon analysis performed by an independenatah firm. The fair value of pension and posteshen
obligations was determined by independent actuafié fair value of longerm debt was determined by management based mea@udted cash flow analys
using the rates and maturities of these obligatioompared to terms and rates currently availabléhé longterm financing markets. All other fair va
determinations, which consisted primarily of cutressets, current liabilities and deferred incomees$, were made by management. The following
preliminary assignment of the fair value of theeasscquired and liabilities assumed based onmtlyravailable information.
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Fair value
as ofJuly 1, 200!

(Dollars in

thousands
Current assets $ 675,72
Net property, plant and equipme 6,077,67.

Identifiable intangible asse

Customer lis 1,098,001
Rights of way 268,47.
Other (trademarks, internally developed sofeyéicenses 26,81"
Other nol-current assel 24,13:
Current liabilities (828,38
Long-term debt, including current maturiti (4,886,70)
Other lon¢-term liabilities (2,621,35)
Goodwill 6,236,08
Total purchase price $ 6,070,44!

* Includes a fair value of $440 million assigned tzaunts receivable which had a gross contractuakevaf $492 million as of July 1, 2009. The !
million difference represents our best estimatthefcontractual cash flows that will not be coket

We recognized approximately $64 million of lidkes arising from contingencies as of the aciigs date on the basis that it was probable tHettality
had been incurred and the amount could be reaspaatimated. Such contingencies primarily relatgansaction and property tax contingencies and
contingencies arising from billing disputes withrieas parties in the communications industry. &ksignment of fair values to Embarq’s assets ailities
has not been finalized as of December 31, 2009th&uadjustments may be necessary prior to Jun2®M, particularly as it relates to contingeabilities and
other long-term liabilities (including deferred oroe taxes).

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortita presents the combined results of CenturyTel Bmbarg as though the acquisition had |



consummated as of January 1, 2009 and 2008, résggcfor the two periods presented below.

Twelve months
ended December 3

200¢ 200¢
(Dollars in
thousands
Operating revenue $ 7,64 8,28¢
Income before extraordinary ite 89t 1,087
Basic earnings per share before extraordinary 3.0C 3.5
Diluted earnings per share before extraordinam 2.9¢ 3.5

These results include certain adjustments, primaitle to increased depreciation and amortizatisoaated with the property, plant and equipment
identifiable intangible assets, increased retirerefit costs due to the remeasurement of the Hestdfgations, and the related income tax effedtse pro form
information does not necessarily reflect the actaallts of operations had the acquisition beerswomated at the beginning of the periods indicatadis it
necessarily indicative of future operating resul@ther than those actually realized subsequethtetduly 1, 2009 acquisition date, the pro fornfarmation doe
not give effect to any potential revenue enhancesn@ncost synergies or other operating efficienthat could result from the acquisition.

During 2009, we recognized an aggregate of apprabaly $253.7 million of integration, transactiordasther costs related to the Embarq acquisitiof
the $253.7 million, approximately $47.2 million a&dd to closing costs, including investment bardwd legal fees, in connection with consummatiorthe
merger and is reflected as an operating expemsaddition, we incurred approximately $206.5 milliof integrationrelated operating expenses related to sy
and customer conversions, employee-related sevemrt benefit costs and branding costs associatedlanging our trade name to CenturyLink.
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On July 1, 2009, in connection with the Merger Agrnent, and as approved by our shareholders on 13a21,a2009, we filed Amended and Resti
Articles of Incorporation to (i) eliminate our tirghase voting structure, which previously entitlesisons who beneficially owned shares of our comstionk
continuously since May 30, 1987 to ten votes pareshand (ii) increase the authorized number ofeshaf our common stock from 350 million to ¢
million. As so amended and restated, our Artidecorporation provide that each share of our w@n stock is entitled to one vote per share witipeet t
each matter properly submitted to shareholderstteir vote, consent, waiver, release or other actibhese amendments reflect changes contempla
necessitated by the Merger Agreement and are Bescim detail in our joint proxy statememespectus filed with the Securities and Exchangmission an
first mailed to shareholders of CenturyTel and Emlan or about December 22, 2008._In Robert MsG&r. et al. v. CenturyTel, Inc. et afiled March 13
2009 in the 1424 Judicial District Court of Texas, Midland Countyg$2 No. CV-46861), certain of our former teste shareholders challenged the effective
of the vote to eliminate our timghase voting structure. We believe we followednaltessary steps to properly effect the amendnuesizibed above and :
defending the case accordingly.

On January 23, 2009, Embarq amended its Creditehgeat to effect, upon completion of the mergeraéaver of the event of default that would have &
under the Credit Agreement solely as a resulteftierger and enabled the Credit Agreement, as adetalremain in place after the merger. Previgusl
connection with the Merger Agreement, we had edtér® a commitment letter with various lenders ethprovided for an $800 million bridge facility thaoulc
be available to, among other things, refinancedwirrigs under the Credit Agreement in the event @evaf the event of default arising from the comsoation
the merger could not have been obtained and oitending was unavailable. On January 23, 200%ewainated the commitment letter and paid an agdeeg
$8.0 million to the lenders. Such amount has ieected as an expense (in Other income (expeirs2)09.

On April 30, 2007, we acquired all oétbutstanding stock of Madison River Communicati®nsp. (“Madison River”) from Madison River Telepi®
Company, LLC for an initial aggregate purchasegatapproximately $322 million cash. In connectioith the acquisition, we also paid all of MadidRiver's
existing indebtedness (including accrued interegt)ch approximated $522 million.
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(3) GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSETS

Goodwill and other assets at December 31, 2002608 were composed of the following:

December 31 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands
Goodwill $10,251,75 4,015,67.
Intangible assets subject to amortizal
Customer list, less accumulated amortizadio$148,491 and $35,0; 1,130,81 146,28:
Other, less accumulated amortization of $2@ 47,10 42,75(
Intangible assets not subject to amortiza 268,50( -
Billing system development costs, less accumulatedrtization
of $61,672 and $49,97 174,87: 181,21(
Investment in 700 MHz wireless spectrum licer 149,42! 148,96
Cash surrender value of life insurance contr 100,94! 96,60¢
Deferred costs associated with installation acts 91,86¢ 77,20:
Investment in unconsolidated cellular partner: 32,67¢ 33,66:
Other 94,03" 60,54¢

$12,341,99 4,802,891

Our goodwill was derived from numerous previouslasitions whereby the purchase price exceededain@dlue of the net assets acquired. The incri
goodwill and intangible assets from December 30828 due to our acquisition of Embarg. See Ndier 2dditional information concerning the fair walassig



to these assets.

The vast majority of our goodwill is attributabke dur telephone operations, which we internallyrafgeand manage based on five geographic regioit
were established in connection with our acquisibbEmbarg. Prior to this, our operations were aggd based on three geographic regions. We tegb&awil
impairment for our telephone operations at theaedgvel due to the similar economic charactesstitthe individual reporting units that comprisele
region. Impairment of goodwill is tested by comipgrthe fair value of the reporting unit to its gang value (including goodwill). Estimates of tfar value of
reporting unit of our telephone operations are hasevaluation models using techniques such asptegtof earnings (before interest, taxes and aégien anc
amortization). We also evaluate goodwill impairmehour other operations primarily based on midspof earnings and revenues. If the fair valuthefreport
unit is less than the carrying value, a secondutation is required in which the implied fair valoEgoodwill is compared to its carrying value.the implied fail
value of goodwill is less than its carrying valgepdwill must be written down to its implied faialue.

As of September 30, 2009, we completed our anmoaédirment test of goodwill based on our historibate geographic regions. Such impairment test
excluded the goodwill associated with our acquisinf Embarq pending finalization of the determimaiof the fair values of assets acquired and lités assun
in connection therewith. We determined that owdyuill (excluding the goodwill associated with tBenbarq acquisition) was not impaired as of Septer@be
2009. During the fourth quarter of 2009, we parfed an additional goodwill impairment test whichlided the goodwill associated with our Embarq &itior
(based on preliminary fair value determinatiorBased on the analysis performed, we determinedythadwill was not impaired as of December 31, 2009.
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We are amortizing our customer list intangible aassociated with our Embarg acquisition over aragye of 10 years using an accelerated method of
amortization (sum-of-thgears digits) to more closely match the estimatehdlow generated by such asset. Our remainisgpmer list intangible assets are
amortized over a range of 5-15 years using thég$itine amortization method. Effective July 1, 2008 ehanged the assessment of useful life for onchize
rights from indefinite to 20 years (straight-line).

Total amortization expense related to the intamgéssets subject to amortization for 2009 was $1i38lion (which includes $118.4 million of amordic
related to intangible assets from our Embarq adipn3 and is expected to be $206.4 million for 20%$185.6 million for 2011, $164.5 million for 201#145.2
million in 2013 and $126.0 million in 2014 (basedintangible assets held at December 31, 2009 aseldoon the determination of fair values relatentarg?
assets acquired and liabilities assumed as distdisgber in Note 2).

We accounted for the costs to develop an integtatidg and customer care system in accordanck &fatement of Position 98-1, “Accounting for the
Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtainednfiernal Use.” Aggregate capitalized costs (befaccumulated amortization) totaled $236.5 milkol
are being amortized over a twenty-year period.

During 2008, we paid an aggregate of approximz&49 million for 69 licenses in the FCC'’s auctidiv00 megahertz (“MHz”") wireless spectrum.

The costs associated with installation activitiesdeferred and recognized as an operating expeesdhe estimated life of the customer relatiopgtiD
years). Such costs are only deferred to the exfatie related deferred revenue.
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4) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Net property, plant and equipment at December 829 2nd 2008 was composed of the following:

December 31

2009

2008

(Dollars in thousands

Cable and wir¢ $ 8,133,83 4,659,00.
Central office 4,611,40 2,861,92
General suppol 1,778,02; 815,63t
Fiber transpor 343,20¢ 327,01(
Information
origination/terminatior 85,02¢ 81,29¢
Construction in progres 430,11¢ 72,12¢
Other 175,14t 51,44¢
15,556,76 8,868,45.
Accumulated depreciation (6,459,62) (5,972,55)
Net property, plant an
equipment $ 9,097,113 2,895,809;
Depreciation expense was $838.8 million, $506.9%ianiland $524.1 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007 peagively.
5) LONG-TERM DEBT
Our long-term debt as of December 31, 2009 and 2@G8as follows:
December 31 2009 2008

(Dollars in thousands

CenturyTel
.79%* Senior credit facilit $ 291,20( 563,11
Senior notes and debentur
7.20% Series D, due 20 100,00( 100,00(



6.875% Series G, due 2( 425,00( 425,00(

8.375% Series H, due 2C 482,47( 500,00(
7.875% Series L, due 20 317,53( 500,00(
5.0% Series M, due 20 350,00( 350,00(
6.0% Series N, due 20 500,00( 500,00(
5.5% Series O, due 20 175,66! 250,00(
7.6% Series P, due 2C 400,00( -
6.15% Series Q, due 2C 250,00( -
Unamortized net discou (5,33)) (6,539
Unamortized premium associated with derivaigtruments
Series H senior not 2,24( 5,12¢
Series L senior notes 9,18 20,01¢
Total CenturyTel 3,297,95! 3,206,72;
Subsidiaries
Embarq Corporatio
Senior note
6.738% due 20: 528,25¢ -
7.1%, due 201 2,000,001 -
8.0%, due 20z 1,485,001 -
8.1%* Other, due through 20 524,27 -
Unamortized net discou (178,15Y -

First mortgage del
538%* notes, payable to agencies of th&.l4government and

cooperative lending associations, duestallments through 20: 94,60: 107,70

Other deb
10.0% note 10C 10C
Capital lease obligations 1,68¢ -
Total subsidiaries 4,455,76. 107,80
Total lon¢-term debt 7,753,71 3,314,52
Less current maturities 500,06! 20,40"
Long-term debt, excluding current maturities $ 7,253,65: 3,294,11!

* Weighted average interest rate at December 319 20

The approximate annual debt maturities for the jigars subsequent to December 31, 2009 are aw$I&D10 - $500.1 million; 2011 - $302.8 million;
2012 - $327.6 million; 2013 - $818.4 million and120$31.5 million.

Certain of our loan agreements contain variousicéisins, among which are limitations regardinguesce of additional debt, payment of cash dividends
reacquisition of capital stock and other mattérsaddition, the transfer of funds from certain solidated subsidiaries to CenturyTel is restridigd/arious loan
agreements. Subsidiaries which have loans fronemuorent agencies and cooperative lending assatsatio have issued first mortgage bonds, genensdly
not loan or advance any funds to CenturyTel, but pay dividends if certain financial ratios are mét December 31, 2009, all of our consolidatedired
earnings reflected on the balance sheet was alailaoler our loan agreements for the declaratiativalends.
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The senior notes and debentures of CenturyTelrezf¢o above were issued under an indenture dasedH\VB1, 1994. This indenture does not contair
financial covenants, but does include restrictitrag limit our ability to (i) incur, issue or crealiens upon our property and (ii) consolidate vattmerge into, or
transfer or lease all or substantially all of issets to, any other party. The indenture doesardhin any provisions that are impacted by ouditratings, or
that restrict the issuance of new securities inetient of a material adverse change to us.

Various of our subsidiaries have outstanding finsttgage bonds or unsecured debentures. Eachassiuese first mortgage bonds are secured by
substantially all of the property, plant and equéminof the issuing subsidiary. Approximately 508®uor property, plant and equipment is pledgedeituse the
long-term debt of subsidiaries.

In September 2009, CenturyTel and its wholly-owselsidiary, Embarqg Corporation, commenced joint tlstder offers under which they offered to
purchase up to $800 million of their outstandingeso In October 2009, (i) Embarq purchased feh@471.7 million principal amount of its 6.738%tBwdue
2013 and (ii) CenturyTel purchased for cash $74l8om principal amount of its 5.5% Series O Ser\wtes, due 2013, $182.5 million principal amouint®
7.875% Series L Senior Notes, due 2012, and $1#llidmprincipal amount of its 8.375% Series H SeriNotes, due 2010. Due primarily to the premiyaisl
in connection with these debt extinguishments, es@rded a one-time pre-tax charge of approxima&élymillion in the fourth quarter of 2009 relatedthe
completion of the tender offers.

We funded these debt tender offers with net prezeé$644.4 million from the September 2009 isseaofc(i) $250 million of 10-year, 6.15% senior
notes and $400 million of 30-year, 7.6% senior s@ed (ii) additional borrowings under our existmegolving credit facility.

As of December 31, 2009, we have available two curgegl revolving credit facilities, (i) a $728 mili five-year facility of CenturyTel which expires i
December 2011 and (ii) an $800 million facilityEdinbarg which expires in May 2011. The interest @t revolving loans under the facility is basecdan
choice of several prevailing commercial lendingsgplus an additional margin that varies dependmgur credit ratings and aggregate borrowings utide
facilities. Up to $250 million of the credit faities can be used for letters of credit, which i@uthe amount available for other extensionseditr As of
December 31, 2009, approximately $46 million ofdet of credit were outstanding. Available bormogs under these credit facilities are also effetyiveducec
by any outstanding borrowings under our commegagler program. Our commercial paper program bongsvare effectively limited to the total amount
available under the two credit facilities. As aé&mber 31, 2009, we had approximately $291.2anilliutstanding under our credit facility (all of ieh relates
to CenturyTel's facility) and no amounts outstarmgdimder our commercial paper program.

97
In August 2007, we called for redemption all of &u65 million aggregate principal amount 4.75% eatible senior debentures due 2032 at a redemption
price of $1,023.80 per $1,000 principal amounteliehtures, plus accrued and unpaid interest thréughist 13, 2007. In accordance with the indeni



holders could elect to convert their debentures sitares of CenturyTel common stock at a convermime of $40.455 per share prior to August 10,
2007. In lieu of cash redemption, holders of apjmately $149.6 million aggregate principal amoahthe debentures elected to convert their holdings
approximately 3.7 million shares of CenturyTel coomstock. The remaining $15.4 million of outstamgddebentures were retired for cash.

(6) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

In 2003, we entered into four separate fair vahierest rate hedges associated with the full $5d®mprincipal amount of our Series L senior ratdue
2012, that pay interest at a fixed rate of 7.875hese hedges were “fixed to variabieferest rate swaps that effectively convertedfixed rate interest paym
obligations under these notes into obligationsayp yariable rates. In January 2008, we terminaliedf our existing “fixed to variable” interestteaswaps
associated with the full $500 million principal anmb of our Series L senior notes. In connectiothhe termination of these derivatives, we reagiaggregate
cash payments of approximately $25.6 million, whiels been reflected as a premium of the assodimtgeterm debt and is being amortized as a reduatio
interest expense through 2012 using the effectiterést method. In addition, in January 2008, e germinated certain other derivatives that weredeemed
be effective hedges. Upon the termination of thesévatives, we paid an aggregate of approxima&él9 million (and recorded a $3.4 million pee charge in
first quarter of 2008 related to the settlemertheke derivatives). As of December 31, 2009, wertaderivative instruments outstanding.

) DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITI&E

Deferred credits and other liabilities at Decenier2009 and 2008 were composed of the following:

December 31 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands
Deferred federal and state income ta $ 2,256,57! 854,10:
Accrued pension cos 960,61( 72,05¢
Accrued postretirement benefit co 525,03 276,08:
Deferred revenu 136,96¢ 99,54¢
Unrecognized tax benefits for uncerte
tax positions 83,93: 3,13¢
Casualty insurance resen 60,66¢ 2,65¢
Other 111,29« 26,29¢

$ 4,135,08 1,333,87
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For additional information on deferred federal atate income taxes, accrued pension costs andeacpostretirement benefit costs, see Notes 12nd1 a
10, respectively.

(8) REDUCTIONS IN WORKFORCE

During each of the last three years, we have aromezlworkforce reductions primarily due to (i) irased competitive pressures and the loss of adoes
over the last several years; (ii) progression engletion of our Embarqg and Madison River integnagadans; and (iii) the elimination of certain cusier service
personnel due to reduced call volumes. In conoedhierewith, we incurred pre-tax operating expaseges of approximately $80.6 million in 2009,0362
million in 2008 and $2.7 million in 2007 for sevace and related costs.

The following table reflects additional informatioegarding the severance-related liability for 200808 and 2007 (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 20 $ 457
Amount accrued to expen 2,741
Amount paid (1,369
Balance at December 31, 20 1,83t
Amount accrued to expen 2,04¢
Amount paid (2,089
Balance at December 31, 20 1,79¢
Severanc-related liability assumed in Embarqg acquisit 31,08t
Amount accrued to expen 80,58(
Amount paid (44,899
Balance at December 31, 2009 $ 68,56¢
9) STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock Unissued shares of CenturyTel common stock weserved as follows:

December 31 2009
(In

thousands
Incentive compensation progral 30,91¢
Acquisitions 4,06¢
Employee stock purchase pl 4,11¢
Dividend reinvestment pla 31
Conversion of convertible preferred stc 13

39,14:

On July 1, 2009, we issued 196.1 million shareGerfturyTel common stock in connection with the asitjon of Embarg. See Note 2 for additiol



information.
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In accordance with previously-announced stock repase programs, we repurchased 9.7 million shéoe$347.3 million) in 2008 and 10.2 million
shares (for $460.7 million) in 2007.

In January 2009, in connection with the specialtimgeof shareholders to approve share issuancesnnection with our acquisition of Embarq, our
shareholders approved a charter amendment to eliengertain special voting rights of long-term sf@iders upon the consummation of the Embarq
acquisition. See Note 2 for additional informatio

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Stansl&uolard issued guidance regarding noncontrollitgré@sts in consolidated financial statements,
which requires noncontrolling interests to be retpgd as equity in the consolidated financial steets. In addition, net income attributable tohsuc
noncontrolling interests is required to be incluéedonsolidated net income. This guidance isatiffe for our 2009 fiscal year. Our financial staents as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2009 reflachonicontrolling interests as equity in our corgated balance sheet. Prior periods have beentedjtes
reflect this presentation.

Preferred stocl- As of December 31, 2009, we had 2.0 million sharfeauthorized preferred stock, $25 par valuespare. At December 31, 2009 and 2008,
there were approximately 9,400 shares of outstanclimvertible preferred stock. Holders of outstagdCenturyTel preferred stock are entitled to heze
cumulative dividends, receive preferential disttibos equal to $25 per share plus unpaid dividemds CenturyTel's liquidation and vote as a sirg#ess with
the holders of common stock.

(10) POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

Our incumbent postretirement health care plan pes/postretirement benefits to qualified legacyt@eel retirees. The postretirement health céae |
acquired as part of our acquisition of Embarqg piesipostretirement benefits to qualified legacy Bmbietirees. The legacy Embarq plan allows digib
employees retiring before certain dates to rechérefits at no or reduced cost. Employees retaifitgy certain dates are eligible for benefits ahared cost
basis. These plans are generally funded by usvargkpect to continue funding these postretirerobhgations as benefits are paid. Until such tameve can
integrate Embarq’s postretirement benefit plan withs, we plan to continue to operate those plagsgendently. Our plans use a December 31 measotem
date. The benefit plan obligations and plan assstsciated with the legacy Embarq plan were reanedss of the July 1, 2009 acquisition date.
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The following is a reconciliation of the beginniagd ending balances for the benefit obligation thedblan assets.

December 31 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands

Change in benefit obligatic

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $ 292,88 306,63 357,41
Service cos 8,76¢ 4,92¢ 6,92°
Interest cos 26,69:¢ 19,39¢ 20,13:
Participant contributior 3,01: 2,78¢ 2,01¢€
Plan amendmen - (9,099 (4,557)
Acquisitions 228,20( - 2,271
Direct subsidy receip 62¢€ 1,092 1,29¢
Actuarial (gain) los 58,45t (11,99 (60,31%)
Benefits paid (36,299 (20,869) (18,56%)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 582,34 292,88 306,63:
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning
year $ 16,80¢ 28,32 30,08(
Return (loss) on plan ass 6,40¢ (6,16€) 1,91¢
Acquisitions 33,20( - -
Employer contribution 34,18: 12,72: 12,88(
Participant contributior 3,01¢ 2,78¢ 2,01¢
Benefits paid (36,299 (20,869) (18,56%)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 57,31 16,80¢ 28,32«

The following table sets forth the amounts recogdias liabilities on the balance sheet for poséetent benefits at December 31, 2009, 2008 and.2007

December 3., 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands

Benefit obligatior $ (582,34) (292,88) (306,63

Fair value of plan asset: 57,31 16,80¢ 28,32¢

Accrued benefit cost $ (525,03 (276,08) (278,309

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 2088i¢h includes the effects of our July 1, 2009 asitjon of Embarq), 2008 and 2007 included the
following components:

Year ended December ., 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands




Service cos $ 8,76¢ 4,92¢ 6,922

Interest cos 26,69:¢ 19,39¢ 20,13:
Expected return on plan ass (2,38¢6) (2,337) (2,487)
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial Ic - - 3,59¢
Amortization of unrecognized prior service

credit (3,546 (2,60€) (2,020)
Net periodic postretirement benefit ¢ $ 29,52t 19,37¢ 26,14¢

The unamortized prior service credit ($14.3 millamof December 31, 2009) and unrecognized neamatloss ($66.0 million as of December 31, 2009)
components have been reflected as a $32.0 milfiten-tax decrease to accumulated other comprehesss within stockholders’ equity. The estimagetbunt
of net amortization income of the above unrecoghiems that will be amortized from accumulatedeottomprehensive loss and reflected as a componheet
periodic postretirement cost during 2010 is (i¥$3uillion income for the prior service credit ang $2.0 million loss for the net actuarial loss.
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Assumptions used in accounting for psement benefits as of December 31, 2009 an8 2@0e:

2009 2008
Determination of benefit obligatic
Discount rat 5.7-5.8% 6.90
Healthcare cost increase trend rates (M&Biesscription Drug
Following year 8.0%/8.0% 7.0/10.0
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed tlingeche
ultimate cost trend rat 5.0%/5.0% 5.0/5.0
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate cost trata 2014/201- 2011/2014
Determination of benefit co
Discount ratt 6.4-6.90% 6.50
Expected return on plan assets 8.2E5-8.50% 8.25

Our discount rate is based on a hypothetical piaotfif bonds rated AA- or better that produces shcow matching the projected benefit paymentthef
plans. In determining the expected return on plsets, we study historical markets and apply itely+accepted capital market principle that assets igher
volatility and risk generate a greater return dherlong term. We evaluate current market factah as inflation and interest rates before deténgilongterm
capital market assumptions. We also review petr alad historical returns to check for reasonatsigne

Assumed health care cost trends have a signifeffett on the amounts reported for postretirementelfit plans. A one-percentage-point change in
assumed health care cost rates would have theviolipeffects:

1-Percentag  1-Percentag

Point Point
Increase Decreast
(Dollars in thousands
Effect on annual total of service and interest cosbhponent: $ 374 (417)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $ 3,957 (4,380)

We employ a total return investment approach wheeeimix of equities and fixed income investments @sed to maximize the long-term return of plan
assets for a prudent level of risk. Risk toleraisoestablished through careful consideration ahpiabilities, plan funded status and corporataricial
condition. We measure and monitor investmenteisian ongoing basis through annual liability measwents, periodic asset studies and periodic partfol
reviews.
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Our postretirement benefit plan weighted-averagetaallocations at December 31, 2009 and 2008 $Bt aategory are as follows:
2009 2008
Equity securitie: 18.€% 46.7
Debt securitie! 64.5 26.4
Cash and cash equivalents 16.¢ 26.€
Total 100.(% 100.(

As of December 31, 2009, we used the following atan techniques to measure fair value for assBit®re were no changes to these methodologies
during 2009:
Level 1 - Assets were valued using the closingepréported in the active market in which the indiial security was traded.

Level 2 - Assets were valued using quoted pricenarkets that are not active, broker dealer quaatinet asset value of shares held by the plahs an
other methods by which all significant input weleservable at the measurement date.

Level 3 - Assets were valued using valuation repfsdm the respective institutions at the measurerdate.

The following table presents the hierarchy levetsdur postretirement benefit plans’ investmentsfa3ecember 31, 2009:



Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equity securitie:
Common stocks, preferred stoc

equity funds and related securi $ 4,967 5,68¢ - 10,65¢
Debt securitie: 32,90( 4,07t - 36,97t
Cash 9,68: - - 9,68:
Total $ 47,54¢ 9,76: - 57,31:

Our plans invest in various securities, some ofcitdare exposed to various risks such as interesstmrearket and credit risks. Due to the levelisif r
associated with certain investment securitiess #tileast reasonably possible that changes inahes of investment securities will occur in thEanterm
and that those changes could materially affecatheunts reported in the statement of net assetislleafor benefits.

We expect to contribute approximately $49.5 milltorour postretirement benefit plans in 2010.
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Our estimated future projected benefit paymentsundr postretirement benefit plans are as follows:

Before
Medicare Medicare Net of
Medicare
Year Subsidy Subsidy Subsidy
(Dollars in thousands
2010 $ 50,79: (1,317 49,47
2011 $ 52,99: (691) 52,30z
2012 $ 49,60: (48€) 49,117
2013 $ 48,77: (174 48,59¢
2014 $ 47,77: ©) 47,76¢
20152019 $ 225,99: - 225,99:
(11) DEFINED BENEFIT AND OTHER RETIREMENALANS

Our incumbent noncontributory defined benefit penglans provide pension benefits for substantalllyegacy CenturyTel employees. The
noncontributory defined benefit pension plan weusregl as part of our acquisition of Embarg provigeasion benefits for substantially all legacy Emba
employees. Pension benefits for participants e$¢tplans represented by a collective bargaininegagent are based on negotiated schedules. Al oth
participants’ pension benefits are based on eatikidual participants’ years of service and compeios. Both CenturyTel and Embarq have previously
sponsored, or continue to sponsor, supplementabéixe retirement plans providing certain officerish supplemental retirement, death and disability
benefits. Until such time as we can integrate Engisebenefit plans with ours, we plan to contina@perate these plans independently. We use aniere31
measurement date for all our plans. The benefit pbligations and plan assets associated witletfaey Embarqg pension plan were remeasured ag didlg 1,
2009 acquisition date.

In late February 2008, our Board of Directors apprbcertain actions related to Century$Se3upplemental Executive Retirement Plan, includinfyeezil
benefit accruals effective February 29, 2008 andinending the plan in the second quarter of 2008 rmit participants to receive in 2009 a lummdlistributi
of the present value of their accrued plan benbéited on their election. We also enhanced ptaminiation benefits by (i) crediting each activetgipant with
three additional years of service and (ii) credjtgach participant who was not in pay status utideplan with three additional years of age in @mtion with
calculating the present value of any lump sum ithistion. We recorded an aggregate curtailment désgpproximately $8.2 million in 2008 related betabove-
described items. In addition, principally duehie payment of the lump sum distributions in eafl§2, we also recognized a settlement loss (whiatciaded ir
selling, general and administrative expense) of@pmately $7.7 million in 2009.

Due to change of control provisions that were &iggl upon the consummation of the Embarq acquisitioJuly 1, 2009, certain retirees who were
receiving monthly annuity payments under a Centahglipplemental executive retirement plan were pdidnp sum distribution calculated in accordangé w
the provisions of the plan. A settlement experfsgpproximately $8.9 million was recognized in thgd quarter of 2009 as a result of these actions.
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The legacy Embarg pension plan contains a provisiangrants early retirement benefits for certarticipants affected by workforce reductions. ibgr
2009, we recognized approximately $14.7 millioradélitional pension expense related to these cdnahblsenefits.

The following is a reconciliation of the beginniagd ending balances for the aggregate benefitatibig and the plan assets for our above-referenced
defined benefit plans.

December 31 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands

Change in benefit obligatic

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $ 462,70: 469,43 474,30
Service co 36,22: 13,76: 16,43:
Interest co 134,89 29,37: 28,18(
Plan amendmer 16,01¢ 2,39 61
Acquisitions 3,467,26! - 15,26¢

Actuarial (gain) los 231,66: (24,819 (16,159



Contractual retirement bene 14,67¢ -
Curtailmen - 8,23¢

Settlement 8,29¢ (1,945 (410
Benefits paid (190,149 (33,739 (48,24()
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 4,181,58 462,70: 469,43
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginningeair $ 352,83( 459,19¢ 452,29:
Return (loss) on plan ass 473,87¢ (123,211 41,53;
Acquisitions 2,407,201 - 12,50:
Employer contributior 175,94t 52,52: 1,51¢
Settlement - (1,945 (410)
Benefits paid (190,149 (33,739 (48,240
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 3,219,701 352,83( 459,19¢

The following table sets forth the combined pldiusided status and amounts recognized in our cataelil balance sheet at December 31, 2009, 2008 an
2007.

December 31 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
Benefit obligatior $ (4,181,58) (462,70) (469,43)
Fair value of plan assets 3,219,701 352,83( 459,19¢
Net amount recognize $ (961,879) (109,87)) (10,239
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Net periodic pension expense for 2009 includesffexts of our July 1, 2009 acquisition of EmbaNgt periodic pension expense for 2009, 2008 and
2007 included the following components:

Year ended December ., 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands

Service cos $ 36,22: 13,76: 16,43:
Interest cos 134,89t 29,37: 28,18(
Expected return on plan ass (127,617 (36,66) (36,78()
Curtailment los: - 8,23t -
Settlement: 17,83« 41C 41C
Contractual retirement benef 14,67¢ - -
Recognized net loss: 15,80: 3,11¢ 7,361
Net amortization and deferr 47C 25¢€ (137)
Net periodic pension expen $ 92,28¢ 18,48¢ 15,47

The unamortized prior service cost ($16.1 millisnod December 31, 2009) and unrecognized net aatlass ($67.1 million as of December 31, 2009)
components have been reflected as a $83.2 milkbneduction ($51.2 million after-tax) to accumathbther comprehensive loss within stockholders’
equity. The estimated amount of amortization egpenf the above unrecognized amounts that willhberazed from accumulated other comprehensive dosk
reflected as a component of net periodic pensisifoco 2010 are (i) $238,000 for the prior serdest and (ii) $14.4 million for the net actuaria$s.

Amounts recognized on the balance staegist of:

December 31 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands

Accrued expenses and other current

liabilities $ (1,266€) (37,81
Other deferred credits (960,610 (72,059
Net amount recognize $ (961,87 (109,87))

Our aggregate accumulated benefit obligation d3eaember 31, 2009 and 2008 was $4.042 billion &id@$B million, respectively.
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Assumptions used in accounting for pension plaresf &ecember 31, 2009 and 2008 were:

2009 2008

Determination of benefit obligatic
Discount ratt 5.5-6.(% 6.6(-6.9C
Weighted average rate of compensation incr 3.5-4.C% 4.C



Determination of benefit co

Discount ratt 6.6(-6.9(% 6.3C-6.5C
Weighted average rate of compensation incr 4.C% 4.C
Expected return on plan assets 8.2E-8.5(% 8.2

Our discount rate is based on a hypothetical piastfidf bonds rated AA- or better that produces shcow matching the projected benefit paymentthef
plans. In determining the expected return on plssets, we study historical markets and apply ibelyraccepted capital market principle that assets igher
volatility and risk generate a greater return dherlong term. We evaluate current market factach as inflation and interest rates before deteéngilongterm
capital market assumptions. We also review petr alad historical returns to check for reasonatsigne

We employ a total return investment approach wheeeimix of equities and fixed income investments @sed to maximize the long-term return of plan
assets for a prudent level of risk. Risk toleraiscestablished through careful consideration afpiabilities, plan funded status and corporataricial
condition. We measure and monitor investmenteisian ongoing basis through annual liability measwents, periodic asset studies and periodic partfol
reviews. The fair value of most of our pensiompdasets is determined by reference to observadlkeindata consisting of published market quotes.

Our pension plans weighted-average asset allosibPecember 31, 2009 and 2008 by asset categoasdollows:

2009 2008
Equity securitie: 49.52% 64.2
Debt securitie! 28.¢ 32.7
Hedge fund: 8.t -
Real estat 5.C -
Cash equivalents and other 8.4 3.C
Total 100.(% 100.(

As of December 31, 2009, we used thieviang valuation techniques to measure fair vdlueassets. There
Level 1 - Assets were valued using the closingepréported in the active market in which the indiil security was traded.

Level 2 - Assets were valued using quoted pricamarkets that are not active, broker dealer quaiatinet asset value of shares held by the plahs an
other methods by which all significant input weleservable at the measurement date.
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Level 3 - Assets were valued using valuation repfsdm the respective institutions at the measurgmate.
The following table presents the hierarchy levelsdur defined benefit pension plans’ investmestsfeDecember 31, 2009:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Dollars in thousands

Equity securitie:

Common stocks, preferred stocks, equity flaribrelated securitie $ 1,345,66' 242 ,85. - 1,588,52.
Debt securitie:

U.S. corporate bonds and related secul - 798,14: 1,00t 799,14¢

U.S. government bonds, municipal bonds arated|securitie - 129,12¢ - 129,12¢
Hedge fund: - 113,34( 159,88t 273,22t
Real estat: - - 161,33t 161,33t
Cash and cash equivalel 21,21( - - 21,21(
Other 67,15¢ 181,11¢ (1,136) 247,13t
Total $ 1,434,03! 1,464,58 321,09: 3,219,701

The following sets forth a summary of changes m féir value of our defined benefit pension plabsvel 3 assets for the year ended December 31,
2009:

Hedge All
Real
estate funds other Total
(Dollars in thousanc
Balance, beginning of ye. $ = = = =
Level 3 assets acquired in the Embarg acquis 182,81¢ 146,33! (4,875 324,27¢
Transfers to (from) Level - - (3,459 (3,459
Realized gain (loss) in investments, 21 - 70 91
Unrealized gain (loss) in investments, (24,229 13,55 31 (10,64
Purchases and sales, net 2,71¢ - 8,101 10,82(
Balance, end of year $ 161,33t 159,88t (137) 321,09:

Our plans invest in various securities, some oftWlare exposed to various risks such as intertsstmeaarket and credit risks. Due to the levelisi r
associated with certain investment securities, dtileast reasonably possible that changes ivatlies of investment securities will occur in tleanterm
and that those changes could materially affectéthee of our pension plan assets.



Some of our plans' investment securities have aontal cash flows, such as asset backed secudtiisteralized mortgage obligations, and
commercial and government mortgage backed seayritieluding securities backed by sub-prime montgagns. The value, liquidity, and related income
of these securities are sensitive to changes inamnir conditions, including real estate valuesindgiencies or defaults, or both, and may be adlyerse
affected by shifts in the market’s perception & ibsuers and changes in interest rates.
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During the last half of 2009, we contributed $11#liom to the legacy Embarq pension plan. We expecontribute approximately $300 million to the
legacy Embarq pension plan in March 2010.

Our estimated future projected benefit paymentsuodr defined benefit pension plans are as fol@940 - $256.2 million; 2011 - $258.7 million; 201
- $264.0 million; 2013 - $272.1 million; 2014 - $23 million; and 2015-2019 - $1.5 billion.

We also sponsor qualified profit shanoians pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Interraléhue Code (the “401(k) Plans”) which are avadabl
substantially all employees. Our matching contiins to the 401(k) Plans were $13.8 million in 20910.5 million in 2008 and $10.6 million in 2007.

(12) INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense included in the Consolidateté®i@nts of Income was as follows:

Year ended December & 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
Federal
Current $ 158,24¢ 141,60: 192,42:
Deferrec 210,20: 59,66¢ 2,22(
State
Current 2,28 (14,765 7,13(C
Deferred 12,20¢ 7,84¢ (1,207)
$ 382,94: 194,35 200,57.
Income tax expense was allocated as follows:
Year ended December & 2009 2008 2007

(Dollars in thousands

Income tax expense in the consolidated stateménts o

income:
Attributable to income before extraordinannit $ 301,88 194,357 200,572
Attributable to extraordinary iter 81,060 - -

Stockholder’ equity:
Compensation expense for tax purposes in e
of amounts recognized for financial repagtin

purpose: (4,199 (1,129 (6,427)
Tax effect of the change in accumulated o
comprehensive loss 29,46( (47,58’) (34,985
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The following is a reconciliation from the statutdederal income tax rate to our effective income rate:

Year ended December & 2009 2008 2007
(Percentage of p-tax income)

Statutory federal income tax re 35.(% 35.C 35.C
State income taxes, net of federal income t
benefit 2.C 2.C 2.8
Nondeductible acquisition related co 0.7 0.2 -
Nondeductible compensation pursuan
executive

compensation limitatior 0.¢ 0.2 0.1
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax
benefits (1.5) (2.9 (5.9
Other, net 0.1 (0.5) (0.2)
Effective income tax rate 37.2% 34.7 32.4

Certain executive compensation amounts, includiedump sum distributions paid to certain executiffeeers upon discontinuing the Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan (see Note 11), are refieas nondeductible for income tax purposes potgoaexecutive compensation limitations of thesingl
Revenue Code. The treatment of these amountsradethuctible resulted in the recognition of appnaaiely $9.2 million of income tax expense in 2008\&
amounts that would have been recognized had sychegras been deductible for income tax purposes. 2009 effective tax rate is also higher becaugertion
of our merger-related transaction costs incurrethdl2009 are nondeductible for income tax purpdgéth such treatment resulting in a $6.9 milliociease to
income tax expense). Such increases in incomexpense were partially offset by a $7.0 millionuetibn in income tax expense primarily caused by a
reduction to our deferred tax asset valuation alowve associated with state net operating lossfoangrds due to a law change in one of our opegattates th:
we believe will allow us to utilize our net operggiloss carryforwards in the future. Prior to ia& change, such net operating loss carryforwareteiully
reserved as it was more likely than not that theeseyforwards would not be utilized prior to expioa.



During 2009, 2008 and 2007, we recognized net-tdtebenefits of approximately $15.7 million, $12nlion and $32.7 million, respectively, which
includes (i) related interest and is net of federiefit, related to the recognition of previoushrecognized tax benefits primarily due to certasues being
effectively settled through examinations or theskapf statute of limitations and (ii) other adjustrts needed upon finalization of tax returns.

110

The tax effects of temporary differences that géseto significant portions of the deferred tazets and deferred tax liabilities at December 8092and
2008 were as follows:

December 31 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands

Deferred tax asse

Postretirement and pension benefit ¢ $ 479,16 155,77:
Net state operating loss carryforwa 64,78: 35,54¢
Other employee benefi 67,04¢ 24,47
Other 127,30t 37,94¢
Gross deferred tax ass 738,29¢ 253,74(
Less valuation allowance (41,537) (33,85¢)
Net deferred tax assets 696,76t 219,88:

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, primarily

due to
depreciation difference (1,573,98) (343,81)
Goodwill and other intangible ass (1,189,14) (688,76
Other (106,901 (11,98¢)
Gross deferred tax liabilities (2,870,02) (1,044,56)
Net deferred tax liability $ (2,173,26) (824,68))

Of the $2.173 billion net deferred tax liability @sDecember 31, 2009, approximately $2.257 bilimreflected as a long-term liability and approately
$83.3 million is reflected as a net current defégx asset.

We establish valuation allowances when necessamgdiace the deferred tax assets to amounts we expexalize. As of December 31, 2009, we had
available tax benefits associated with net stagraimg loss carryforwards, which expire througR200f $64.8 million. The ultimate realizationtbe benefits
of the carryforwards is dependent upon the gereraif future taxable income during the periods hich those temporary differences become deductitle.
consider our scheduled reversal of deferred tdoiliti@s, projected future taxable income, and péanning strategies in making this assessmenta #&sult of
such assessment, we reserved $41.5 million thrtdhwghaluation allowance as of December 31, 2008issnore likely than not that this amount of gerating
loss carryforwards will not be utilized prior topgsation.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@dssued guidance which clarifies the accourfimgincertainty in income taxes recognized in fic
statements and required us, effective Januaryd7,20 recognize and measure tax benefits takewmected to be taken in a tax return and disclosentainties
income tax positions. We recorded a cumulativeatfadjustment to retained earnings as of Janu&9Q7 (which increased retained earnings by apmabely
$478,000 as of such date) related to certain pusiyaunrecognized tax benefits that did not meetttiteria for liability recognition upon the adapt of this
guidance.
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The following table reflects the adiyvof our gross unrecognized tax benefits (exclgdinth interest and any related federal benefithdu2009
(amounts expressed in thousands).

Unrecognized tax benefits at January 1, 2 $ 19,99/
Unrecognized tax benefits assumed in the Embangisitiqn 322,07:
Increase in tax positions taken in the current 12,47
Decrease due to the reversal of tax positions takarprior yea (13,529
Decrease from the lapse of statute of limitations (13,787
Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2009 $ 327,22

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits wamarily related to the treatment of universal seevfund receipts of certain subsidiaries acquage
of the Embarq acquisition. While the ultimate rgeition of universal service receipts in taxableome is highly certain, there is uncertainty akibattiming an
nature of such recognition. As of December 31 92@pproximately $17 million represented uncertaipositions that could result in a potential fetu
obligation. Additionally, approximately $246 mdh represents refund claims. Due to the unceytaifithese refund claims, we have not recognizedrtipact (
these claims to current or deferred taxes in onsclidated financial statements.

Of the above remaining gross balance of $81.7 anillapproximately $79.0 million is included as aponent of “Deferred credits and other liabilities?
the remainder is included in “Accrued income taxesf we were to prevail on all unrecognized tanbfits recorded on our balance sheet, we woulihreze
approximately $36.2 million (including interest amet of federal benefit), which would lower oureffive tax rate.

Our policy is to reflect interest expense assodiatigh unrecognized tax benefits in income tax exgge We had accrued interest (presented befatde
benefits) of approximately $9.9 million and $5.3lioh as of December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008

We file income tax returns, including returns fair subsidiaries, with federal, state and locakgidtions. Our uncertain income tax positionsratated



to tax years that are currently under or remaiesiho examination by the relevant taxing auttesit Our open income tax years by major jurisdictre
as follows.

Jurisdiction Open tax year

Federal 200&-current

State
Florida 200z-current
Georgic 200z-current
Louisiane 200%-current
North Carolinz 199(-current
Oregor 200z-current
Texas 200C-current
Wisconsir 200z-current
Other states 2002-current
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Additionally, Embarq Corporation and its subsidéarand the IRS have agreed that Embarg may filedadereturns on a specific tax issue relating &r
as early as 1990. These amended returns wouldidjecs to IRS examination.

Since the period for assessing additional liabtlyically begins upon the filing of a return, stpossible that certain jurisdictions could assas$or years
prior to the open tax years disclosed above. Aafdilly, it is possible that certain jurisdictiomswhich we do not believe we have an income thixdi
responsibility, and accordingly did not file a netumay attempt to assess a liability, or that ojhesdictions to which we pay taxes may attenopassert that we
owe additional taxes.

Based on (i) the potential outcomethefe ongoing examinations, (ii) the expiratiostatute of limitations for specific jurisdiction@j) the negotiated
settlement of certain disputed issues, or (iv)resgliction’s administrative practices, it is reaably possible that the related unrecognized taefitsrfor tax
positions previously taken may decrease by up foSrillion within the next 12 months. The actaalount of such decrease, if any, will depend oersdv
future developments and events, many of which atside our control.
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(13) EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following is a reconciliation of the numeratarsed denominators of the basic and diluted earrpegshare computations:

Year ended December & 2009 2008 2007

(Dollars, except per share amounts,
and shares in thousanc

Income (Numerator,

Net income before extraordinary ite $ 511,25 365,73. 418,37(
Extraordinary item, net of income tax expense
noncontrolling interests 135,95 - -
Net income attributable to CenturyTel, Ii 647,21 365,73: 418,37(
Dividends applicable to preferred stc (12) (155) (36€)
Earnings applicable to unvested restricted stock
awards:
Income before extraordinary ite (3,559 (4,240 (3,125
Extraordinary item (94¢€) - -
Net income as adjusted for purpose:
computing basic earnings per sh 642,69« 361,33 414,87
Interest on convertible debentures, net of - - 2,832
Dividends applicable to preferred stock 12 15E 36¢
Net income as adjusted for purposes of compt
diluted earnings per share $ 642,70t 361,49. 418,07

Shares (Denominator
Weighted average number of shai

Outstanding during peric 199,17 103,46 110,18
Unvested restricted sto (1,387) (1,199 (823%)
Unvested restricted stock units 1,027 - -
Weighted average number of shares outstandin
during
period for computing basic earnings per sl 198,81: 102,26¢ 109,36(

Incremental common shares attributabl
dilutive securities

Shares issuable under convertible secu 13 16¢ 2,951
Shares issuable under incentive compensa
plans 231 12: A47€
Number of shares as adjusted for purpose
computing diluted earnings per share 199,05° 102,56( 112,78

Basic earnings per she



Income before extraordinary ite $ 2.5t 3.5¢ 3.7¢

Extraordinary iter $ .6E - -

Basic earnings per sh: $ 3.2¢ 3.5¢ 3.7¢
Diluted earnings per sha

Income before extraordinary ite $ 2.5 3.52 3.71

Extraordinary iter $ .6E - -

Diluted earnings per she $ 2% 3.52 3.71

In July 2007, we called for redemption on August2@07 all of our $165 million aggregate principatount 4.75% convertible senior debentures, SK
due 2032. In accordance with the indenture, heldeuld elect to convert their debentures intoeshaf CenturyTel common stock at a conversion mfc40.4
per share prior to August 10, 2007. In lieu ofrceedemption, holders of approximately $149.6 willaggregate principal amount of the debenturetegldo
convert their holdings into approximately 3.7 nailishares of CenturyTel common stock.
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The weighted average number of shares of commahk stabject to issuance under outstanding opticaiswiiere excluded from the computation of diluted
earnings per share (because the exercise prite afition was greater than the average market pfite common stock) was 4.1 million for 2009, gillion
for 2008 and 792,000 for 2007.

In June 2008, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8dssued guidance in determining whether instnimgranted in shadgased payment transaction
participating securities. Based on this guidameehave concluded that our outstanding mested restricted stock is a participating secuaitgt therefore shou
included in the earnings allocation in computingn@ags per share using the twtass method. The guidance was effective for giipéng in first quarter 2009
required us to recast our previously reported egsiper share.

(14) STOCK COMPENSATION PROGRAMS

We recognize as compensation expense our costarflawg employees with equity instruments by allomathe fair value of the award on the grant da
the period during which the employee is requiredrtvide service in exchange for the award.

We currently maintain programs which allow the Bbaf Directors, through its Compensation Committeggrant incentives to certain employees anc
outside directors in any one or a combination etsal forms, including incentive and non-qualif&dck options; stock appreciation rights; restdctock;
restricted stock units and performance sharesof A&cember 31, 2009, we had reserved approxim&®&§ million shares of common stock which maydseié
in connection with awards under our current inagnprograms. We also offer an Employee Stock RagelPlan whereby employees can purchase our commor
stock at a 15% discount based on the lower of dygniming or ending stock price during recurringsignth periods stipulated in such program.

Upon the consummation of the Embarg acquisitiodulyn 1, 2009 (see Note 2), outstanding Embarqg stptlons and restricted stock units were conve
7.2 million CenturyTel stock options and 2.4 miflicestricted stock units based on the exchange stfiulated in the Merger Agreement. The faiueabf the
former Embarq stock option awards that were coedetd CenturyTel stock options was estimated aseofuly 1, 2009 conversion date using a Black-Bsho
option pricing model using the following assumpgodividend yield — 9.12%; expected volatility —20%; weighted average risk free interest rate5-206% at
expected term -.3 - 6 years. Other than in commreetith converting the former Embarq stock optiam® CenturyTel stock options, we did not grany atock
options to employees in 2009.

In late February 2008, the Compensation Committtlecsized all longterm incentive grants for 2008 to be in the formesftricted stock instead of a m
stock options and restricted stock as had beeregtam recent years. During 2008, prior to thithatzation, 25,700 options were granted with aghted avere
grant date fair value of $8.85 per share usingaglBScholes option pricing model using the follogvassumptions: dividend yield - .6%; expected tldla- 25¢
weighted average risk free interest rate - 2.9%;expected term - 4.5 years.
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During 2007 we granted 983,920 stock options wittreise prices at market value. The weightedamefair value of each option was estimated as of
the date of grant to be $14.57 using a Black-Sshof¢ion pricing model using the following assurops: dividend yield - .6%; expected volatility8% (for
executive officers) and 25% (for all other emplcg)esveighted average risk free interest rate - 4(&%h rates ranging from 3.5% to 5.1%); and expdderm -
6.5 years (for executive officers) and 4.5 yeaos &l other employees).

The expected volatility was based on the historcédtility of our common stock over the 6.5- an8-4year terms mentioned above. The expected term
was determined based on the historical exerciséafeaiture rates for similar grants.

Our outstanding stock options have been grantdu avitexercise price equal to the market price oft@gTel's shares at the date of grant. The exerci
of former Embarq stock options were converted lphyapg the exchange ratio stipulated in the Merygreement. Our outstanding options generally teathere
year vesting period and all of them expire ten yediter the date of grant. The fair value of estdgk option award is estimated as of the datearitgising a Bl
Scholes option pricing model.
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Stock option transactions during 20@9enas follows:
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number exercise contractua intrinsic
of options price term (in years value

Outstanding December 31, 20 3,527,14 $ 36.71
Conversion of former Emba

stock options into CenturyT

stock option: 7,240,14. 37.1¢
Exercisec (1,293,57) 30.8¢

Forfeited/Cancelled (155,15) 39.3¢



Outstanding December 31, 2009 9,318,55. $ 37.8¢ 4.82 $32,142,000
Exercisable December 31, 2009 8,154,52! $ 38.2¢ 4.38 $27,645,000

Our outstanding restricted stock awards generast vver a three- or five-year period (for emplayew a thregrear period (for outside directors). Ce
restricted stock units issued to certain legacy &lemployees vest over a period of less than eae yUpon the consummation of the Embarq acquoiisiin Ju
1, 2009 (see Note 2), outstanding Embarq restrigtieek units were converted to 2.4 million res&itstock units based on the exchange ratio stgmliiatthe
Merger Agreement.

During 2009, we issued 820,234 shares of restrigtigek to certain employees and our outside direcba weighted-average price of $27.34 per
share. During 2008, we issued 643,397 sharestifaed stock to certain employees and our oudidztors at a weighted-average price of $34.86 pe
share. During 2007, we issued 288,896 sharesstifai®d stock to certain employees and our outdidestors at a weighteaverage price of $45.89 per share
restricted stock vests over a five-year period €imployees) and a three-year period (for outsidectirs). Nonvested restricted stock and resttistock unit
transactions during 2009 were as follows:

Number  Average gr
of share:  date fair va
Nonvested at January 1, 20 1,289,61 $ 35.61
Conversion of former Embarq restrict
stock units into CenturyTel restrict

stock units 2,414,35 30.7(
Granted 820,23« 27.3¢
Vested (1,446,25) 32.5C
Forfeited (155,099 31.07
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 2,922,85 $ 31.0¢

The total compensation cost for all share-basedipay arrangements in 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $ii@n, $16.4 million and $20.0 million,
respectively. Upon the consummation of the actjaisof Embarqg on July 1, 2009, the vesting schesloff certain of our equitiyased grants issued prior to 2
were accelerated due to change of control prowsioihe respective share-based compensation @atisthe exception of grants to certain officersonwaived
such acceleration right). In addition, the vestifigertain other awards was accelerated uporetingination of employment of certain employees. aAssult of
accelerating the vesting schedules of these awarisecorded shareased compensation expense of approximately $2illi@min 2009 above amounts that \
have been recognized absent the triggering of tblesege of control and termination of employmewtjgions.

We recognized a tax benefit related to such arraegés of approximately $20.5 million in 2009, $&8lion in 2008 and $7.5 million in 2007. As of
December 31, 2009, there was $47.6 million of totakcognized compensation cost related to theediesed payment arrangements, which is expectes to
recognized over a weighted-average period of 2a0sye

We received net cash proceeds of $39.9 millionndui009 in connection with option exercises. Tdtaltintrinsic value of options exercised (the amtd
which the market price of the stock on the datexarcise exceeded the market price of the stodkedate of grant) was $6.0 million during 20090%200 dul
2008 and $17.2 million during 2007. The excessenefit realized from shafgased compensation transactions during 2009 wasiflion. The total fair valt
of restricted stock that vested during 2009, 2@®8l 2007 was $45.2 million, $6.2 million, and $lion, respectively.
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(15) DISCONTINUANCE OF REGULATORY ACCOUNNG

Through June 30, 2009, CenturyTel accounted faeslated telephone operations (except for itpgriies acquired from Verizon in 2002) in accordge
with the provisions of regulatory accounting undgich actions by regulators can provide reasonasdeirance of the recognition of an asset, reduebninate
the value of an asset and impose a liability oegulated enterprise. Such regulatory assets abilities were required to be recorded and, acogtyj reflected
in the balance sheet of an entity subject to régnlaccounting.

As we previously disclosed, on July 1, 2009, wedliinued the accounting requirements of regulad@gounting upon the conversion of substantially al
of our rate-of-return study areas to federal pciap regulation (based on the FCC's approval ofpetition to convert our study areas to price cauiagtion).

Upon the discontinuance of regulatory accountingwere required to reverse previously establiskgdlatory assets and liabilities. Depreciatioesaif
certain assets established by regulatory authsfitieour telephone operations subject to regwaocounting have historically included a comporfent
removal costs in excess of the related salvageevaliotwithstanding the adoption of accounting guitk related to the accounting for asset retirement
obligations, regulatory accounting required usdntimue to reflect this accumulated liability f@mnoval costs in excess of salvage value even ththegh was
no legal obligation to remove the assets. Theegfoe did not adopt the asset retirement obligatiovisions for our telephone operations that veetfigiect to
regulatory accounting. Upon the discontinuanceegfilatory accounting, we eliminated such accuredléibility for removal costs included in accunteth
depreciation and established an asset retireméigatibn in a much smaller amount. Upon the disitmrance of regulatory accounting, we were requiced
adjust the carrying amounts of property, plant egdipment only to the extent the assets are impaé®judged in the same manner applicable to gatated
enterprises. We did not record an impairment cheglgged to the carrying value of the propertynpknd equipment of our regulated telephone opersias a
result of the discontinuance of regulatory accogti
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In the third quarter of 2009, upon the discontiraeaaf regulatory accounting, we recorded a non-eagfaordinary gain in our consolidated statemefits
income comprised of the following components (dsll@xcept per share amounts, in thousands):

Gain (loss;
Elimination of removal costs embeddec
accumulated depreciatit $ 222,70
Establishment of asset retirement obliga (1,556

Elimination of other regulatory assets and lialait (2,589



Net extraordinary gain before income tax expensk

noncontrolling interest 218,56
Income tax expense associated with extraordinary ga (81,060
Net extraordinary gain before noncontrolling ints 137,50:.
Less: extraordinary gain attributable to noncofitrglinterests (1,549
Extraordinary gain attributable to CenturyTel, Inc. $ 135,95
Basic earnings per share of extraordinary | $ .6¢
Diluted earnings per share of extraordinary ¢ $ .6€

Historically, the depreciation rates we utilized éur telephone operations were based on ratelsliesied by regulatory authorities. Upon the
discontinuance of regulatory accounting, we revisexspectively the lives of our property, plant aggiipment to reflect the economic estimated reimgin
useful lives of the assets in accordance with galyesiccepted accounting principles. In genetad,éstimated remaining useful lives of our teleghproperty
were lengthened as compared to the rates usedi¢hatestablished by regulatory authorities. Sungtlening of remaining useful lives reflects oupestations
of future network utilization and capital expendéudevels required to provide service to our cugam Such revisions in remaining useful lives af assets
reduced depreciation expense by approximately $8®min the last half of 2009 compared to whawvibuld have been absent the change in remainirfgluse
lives.

Upon the discontinuance of regulatory accounting algo are eliminating certain intercompany tratisas with regulated affiliates that previously wer
not eliminated under the application of regulatacgounting. This has caused our operating revesme®perating expenses to be lower by equivaleouats
(approximately $108 million) in the last half of@®as compared to the first half of 2009. Foutemry purposes, the accounting and reportinguoftelephone
subsidiaries will not be affected by the discontid@pplication of regulatory accounting.

(16) GAIN ON ASSET DISPOSITIONS

In third quarter 2008, we sold our interest in a+operating investment for approximately $7.2 miiliand recorded a pre-tax gain of approximatel? $3.
million. In anticipation of making lump sum plarsttibutions in early 2009, we liquidated our intreents in marketable securities in the SERP tnodt a
recognized a $4.5 million pre-tax gain in the secquarter of 2008. In first quarter 2008, we soldon-operating investment for approximately $4ilion and
recorded a pre-tax gain of approximately $4.1 onilli
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In the third quarter of 2007, we recorded a pregaix of approximately $10.4 million related to #ae of our interest in a real estate partnership.
November 2007, upon final distribution of all fundated to the dissolution of the Rural TelephBaek in 2006, we received a supplemental cash patyof
$5.2 million and recorded a pre-tax gain of suclvant.

Such gains are included in “Other income (expense)bur Consolidated Statements of Income.

a7) SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW AND OTHER DC3OSURES

The amount of interest actually paid, net of amswatpitalized of $3.5 million, $2.4 million, and.8Imillion during 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectiyely
was $391.8 million, $204.1 million, and $205.2 ioifi during 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. nedaxes paid were $258.9 million in 2009, $208ilian
in 2008, and $185.3 million in 2007. Income tafunels totaled $2.1 million in 2009, $4.6 million2008, and $1.1 million in 2007.

We have consummated the acquisitions of variousabipas, along with certain other assets, durirggthinee years ended December 31, 2009. In
connection with these acquisitions, the followirsgets were acquired and liabilities assumed:

Year ended December & 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands

Property, plant and equipment, | $ 6,077,67. - 208,31
Goodwill 6,236,08 - 579,78(
Long-term debt, deferred credits and other
liabilities (7,508,061 - (654,69
Other assets and liabilities, excludi

cash and cash equivale 1,187,84 - 173,40:
Common equity issued for acquisition (6,070,44) - -
(Increase) decrease in cash due to acquisit $ (76,906 - 306,80!

See Note 2 for additional information related to acquisition of Embarq in 2009 and Madison Rive2007.

We collect various taxes from our customers andagbently remit such funds to governmental autiesritSubstantially all of these taxes are recorded
through the balance sheet. We are required taibate to several universal service fund programs generally include a surcharge amount on ouoousts’
bills which is designed to recover our contribut@wsts. Such amounts are reflected on a gross isasur statement of income (included in both apeg
revenues and expenses) and aggregated approxirigtelyillion for 2009, $42 million for 2008 and $#illion for 2007.
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(18) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT



The following table presents the carrying amounts estimated fair values of certain of our finahgiatruments at December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Carrying Fair
Amount value
(Dollars in thousands

December 31, 200

Financial assetl

Other $ 111,80 111,80¢ (2)
Financial liabilities

Long¢-term debt (including current maturitie $ 7,753,71 8,408,94. (1)

Other $ 182,37: 182,37« (2)

December 31, 200

Financial assetl

Other $ 129,98: 129,98. (2)
Financial liabilities

Lonc-term debt (including current maturitie $ 3,314,52 2,720,222 (1)

Other $ 56,57 56,57( (2)

(1) Fair value was estimated by discounting the scleetphyment streams to present value based
rates currently available to us for similar de
(2) Fair value was estimated by us to appnaxé carrying value or is based on current marketination.

We believe the carrying amount of cash and caslvalgmts, accounts receivable, short-term debpatis payable and accrued expenses approximates
the fair value due to the short maturity of thesstruments, which have not been reflected in thwealbable.

We are subject to certain accounting standarddifate fair value, establish a framework for meagufair value and expand the disclosures abaut fa
value measurements required or permitted under attemunting pronouncements. The fair value aciogiguidance establishes a three-tier fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used to mea fair value. These tiers include: Level 1 ifted as observable inputs such as quoted marletin active
markets); Level 2 (defined as inputs other thartegiprices in active markets that are either diyemtindirectly observable); and Level 3 (definesl
unobservable inputs in which little or no marketadexists).

As of December 31, 2009, we held life insuranceremts with cash surrender value that are requods measured at fair value on a recurring baEie
following table depicts those assets held andéleed tier designation pursuant to the accourgindance related to fair value disclosure.
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Balance
Description Dec. 31, 2( Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(Dollars in thousands
Cash surrender value of life insurance
contracts $ 100,94! 100,94! - -

See Notes 10 and 11 for the tier designation ml@t@ur postretirement and pension plan assets.

(19) BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We are an integrated communications company engag@arily in providing an array of communicatioservices to our customers, including local
exchange, long distance, Internet access and baoddiervices. We strive to maintain our custorakationships by, among other things, bundling @uvise
offerings to provide our customers with a compteffering of integrated communications services.cdese of the similar economic characteristics of ou
operations, we have utilized the aggregation caitgpecified in the segment accounting guidancecandluded that we operate as one reportable ségmen

Our operating revenues for our products and sesvitgude the following components:

Year ended December & 2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands

Voice $ 1,827,06: 874,04 889,96(
Network acces 1,269,32. 820,38t 941,50t
Data 1,202,28. 524,19« 460,75!
Fiber transport and CLE 172,54: 162,05( 159,31
Other 503,02¢ 219,07¢ 204,70:
Total operating revenues $ 4,974,23 2,599,74 2,656,24.

Interexchange carriers and other accounts recev@abthe balance sheets are primarily amountsrduoe ¥arious long distance carriers, principally AT
and several large local exchange operating companie

(20) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIE:!



In Barbrasue Beattie and James Sovis, on behéieofiselves and all others similarly situated, vatGgyTel, Inc., filed on October 28, 2002, in the Uni
States District Court for the Eastern District oichlgan (Case No. 020277), the plaintiffs alleged that we unjustly amadeasonably billed customers for insi
maintenance services, and sought unspecified mgr@ggmages and injunctive relief under various lli¢geories on behalf of a purported class of ower millior
customers in our telephone markets. On March @06 2the Court certified a class of plaintiffs asslied a ruling that the billing descriptions wedifor these
services during an approximately &&nth period between October 2000 and May 2002 Vegadly insufficient. In February 2010, subjeatcourt approval ar
agreement on other terms and conditions, we satilectase in principle in an amount that exceeslggreviously established reserves by $8 millind sauch a
was reflected as an expense in the fourth quaft20@0.
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Over 60 years ago, one of our indirect subsidiai@tel Corporation, acquired entities that mayehawned or operated seven former plant s
produced “manufactured gas” under a process widetyl through the mid-1900s. Centel has been adsatysof Embarq since being spuiffin 2006 from Sj
Nextel, which acquired Centel in 1993. None ofthplant sites are currently owned or operatedthgreSprint Nextel, Embarq or their subsidiari€3n three <
Embarq and the current landowners are working Wi Environmental Protection Agency (“EPApursuant to administrative consent orders. Rert
expenditures pursuant to the orders are not exghdotdre material. On five sites, including the th8tes where the EPA is involved, Centel has edté
agreements with other potentially responsible partdo share remediation costs. Further, Sprint &ldws agreed to indemnify Embarqg for most of avsmi
liability arising from all seven of these sitesadgd upon current circumstances, we do not expecissue to have a material adverse impact orresult:
operations or financial condition.

In William Douglas Fulghum, et al. v. Embarg Corgiion, et al, filed on December 28, 2007 in the United Statistri@t Court for the District of Kansas
(Civil Action No. 07-CV2602), a group of retirees filed a putative clag®a lawsuit in the United States District Cowot the District of Kansas, challenging
decision to make certain modifications to Embanggtiree benefits programs generally effectivaidan1, 2008. Defendants include Embarg, certaitsdfenefi
plans, its Employee Benefits Committee and theviddal plan administrator of certain of its benefilans. Additional defendants include Sprint Neatel cert:
of its benefit plans. In addition, a complaint ibitration has been filed by 15 former Centel exes, similarly challenging the benefits chang@stuling in
Embargs favor was recently entered in the arbitratiorcpealing. Embarg and other defendants continugtyously contest these claims and charges. Gi
this litigation is still in the initial stages ofstovery, it is premature to estimate the impaist ldwsuit could have to our results of operatiofirancial condition

In Robert M. Garst, Sr. et al. v. CenturyTel, Ietal., filed March 13, 2009 in the 14% Judicial District Court of Texas, Midland Countya& No.
46861), certain of our former ten-vote shareholdtalenged the effectiveness of the vote to elat@rour timephase voting structure. We believe we follo
necessary steps to properly effect the amendmestgibed above and are defending the case acclyding

In December 2009, subsidiaries of CenturyTel ftled lawsuits against subsidiaries of Sprint Nekt8print”) to recover approximately $26 million in &
charges for VolP traffic owed under various intencection agreements and tariffs. One lawsuitdfda behalf of all legacy Embarq operating entitiependin
federal court in Virginia, and the other, filed behalf of all legacy CenturyTel operating entitisspending in federal court in Louisiana. Thedaits allege th¢
Sprint has breached contracts, violated tariffd, dolated the Federal Communications Act by fgjlto pay these charges.

123

From time to time, we are involved in other prodegd or investigations incidental to our businé@ssluding administrative hearings of state publidity
commissions relating primarily to rate making, ditgs with other communications companies and sepioviders, actions relating to employee claingsasiol
grievance hearings before labor regulatory ageraiesamiscellaneous third party tort actions. ®@btome of these other proceedings is not pred&tadowev
we do not expect that the ultimate resolution esthother proceedings, after considering availaklerance coverage, will have a material adveriseiedn our
financial position, results of operations or cashs.

(21) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In February 2010, our board of directors approveiharease to our quarterly dividend rate from $@0share to $.725 per share.

Our board of directors also approved a $300 miltiontribution to the legacy Embarg pension plah wewill make in early March 2010 using cash o
and borrowings under our credit facility.



CENTURYTEL, INC.
Consolidated Quarterly Income Statement Information

(Unaudited)
First Seconc Third Fourth
quarter quarter quarter quarter
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amol

2009 (unaudited)

Operating revenue $ 636,38 634,46¢ 1,874,32! 1,829,06!
Operating incom $ 164,33 149,44: 378,98 540,33t
Net income before extraordinary ite $ 67,15¢ 69,03( 147,63! 227,43t
Basic earnings per share before extraordinary $ .67 .6€ A4C 7€
Diluted earnings per share before extraordinam $ .67 .6€ AC 7€
2008

Operating revenue $ 648,61 658,10t 650,07: 642,95¢
Operating incom $ 183,49 180,69( 180,72 176,44:
Net income attributable to Century1 $ 88,76( 92,16° 84,73 100,07:
Basic earnings per she $ .82 .8€ .8¢ 1.0C
Diluted earnings per sha $ .82 .8¢ 8% 1.0C
2007

Operating revenue $ 600,85! 689,99: 708,83: 656,56:
Operating incom: $ 168,08 231,83t 224,18! 168,97:
Net income attributable to Century1 $ 77,87( 112,26! 113,20: 115,03
Basic earnings per she $ .7C 1.0z 1.0z 1.0t
Diluted earnings per sha $ .6€ .9¢ 1.01 1.04
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The results of operations of Embarq are reflectdsssquent to its July 1, 2009 acquisition date.

During the third and fourth quarters of 2009, wevimed a significant amount of one-time expenskdeae to our acquisition of Embarg. Such expenses
included (i) severance, retention and early reteenpension benefit costs due to workforce redusti¢ii) transaction related costs, including legyad
investment banker costs, (iii) integration relatedts associated with our acquisition of Embarg,dccelerated recognition of sharased compensation expe
due to change of control provisions and terminatiohemployment and (v) settlement expenses retatedrtain executive retirement plans. Such esegn
aggregated approximately $195.5 million (pre-tadhe third quarter of 2009 and approximately $3filion (pre-tax) in the fourth quarter of 2009.

During the fourth quarter of 2009, we recognizesextax charge of approximately $60.8 million duierrily to the premiums paid in connection with
certain debt extinguishments consummated in Oct?6e®.

In the first quarter of 2008, we recognized a $4illion pre-tax gain upon the sale of a non-opegitnvestment. In the second quarter of 2008, we
recognized an $8.2 million curtailment loss in cection with amending our SERP. We also recogniz&d.5 million pre-tax gain upon liquidation of our
investments in marketable securities in the SER$t tn the second quarter of 2008. In the thirdrtgr of 2008, we recorded a one-time pre-tax ghin
approximately $3.2 million related to the sale afom-operating investment. In the fourth quarfe2@D8, we recognized (i) a net benefit of appraadety $12.8
million after-tax related to the recognition of pi@usly unrecognized tax benefits, (ii) a pre-t@néfit of approximately $10.0 million related tetfecognition
of previously accrued transaction and other coetirnges and (i) a $5.0 million charge associatétth wosts associated with our then pending acqoiisif
Embarq.

In the third quarter of 2007, we recorded a onestpre-tax gain of approximately $10.4 million tetato the sale of our interest in a real estate
partnership. The results of operations of the awliRiver properties are reflected in the abovietabbsequent to the April 30, 2007 acquisitioreddh second
quarter 2007, we recorded $49 million of revenyssnuthe settlement of a dispute with a carrierthird quarter 2007, we recognized $42.2 million®fenues
upon the expiration of a regulatory monitoring pdri In fourth quarter 2007, we recognized a neelieof approximately $32.7 million after-tax redd to the
release of previously unrecognized tax benefitsfourth quarter 2007, we recorded a pre-tax chafg@proximately $16.6 million related to the inmpaent of
certain of our CLEC assets.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Aounting
and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedes

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur We maintain disclosure controls and procedursfgded to provide reasonable assurances that iafam
required to be disclosed by us in the reports \eeuinder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 iglymecorded, processed, summarized and reported as
required. Our Chief Executive Officer, Glen F. &4, and our Chief Financial Officer, R. Stew&ving, Jr., have evaluated our disclosure contints
procedures as of December 31, 2009. Based orvéieation, Messrs. Post and Ewing concluded that@elosure controls and procedures have beentiféel
providing reasonable assurance that they havetiaety alerted of material information requiredde filed in this annual report. On July 1, 2008, esompletet



the acquisition of Embarg. We have extended dertal control oversight and monitoring processeistlude Embarcg operations. Except for the extensiol
such processes to the Embarg operations, we dichalké¢ any change to our internal control over fai@reporting that materially affected, or that balieve is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our intekoantrol over financial reporting. The designasfy system of controls is based in part upon cegasumptions
about the likelihood of future events and contirges, and there can be no assurance that any desigoicceed in achieving its stated goals. Beeaof inhere
limitations in any control system, misstatements tluerror or fraud could occur and not be detected

Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Repodii We incorporate by reference into this Item 9A tygorts appearing at the forefront of Item 8, dinial
Statements and Supplementary Data”.

Item 9B. Other Information
Not applicable.
PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executiv®fficers and Corporate Governance

The name, age and office(s) held by each of oucigkes officers are shown below. Each of the exgeuwfficers listed below serves at the pleasire
Board of Directors.

Name Age Office(s) held with CenturyTe
Glen F. Post, Il 57 Chief Executive Officer and Preside
Thomas A. Gerke 53 Executive Vice Chairman ofBoard,

Regulatory and Governmental Affairs and Human Reszs
Karen A. Pucket 49 Executive Vice President aiChief Operating Office
R. Stewart Ewing, J 58 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Stacey W. Gof 44 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and &agt
William E. Cheek 54 Presiden— Wholesale Operatior
David D. Cole 52 Senior Vice Presider Operations Suppo
Dennis G. Hube 49 Executive Vice President, Network alnformation Technolog'
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With the exception of Mr. Gerke, Mr. Cheek and Muber, each of our executive officers has servemhasfficer of CenturyTel and one or more of its
subsidiaries in varying capacities for more thamghst five years.

Prior to CenturyTel’s acquisition of Embarg, Mre®e previously served as President and Chief ExexOfficer of Embarq since March 2008, after
serving the same role in an interim capacity sibeeember 2007. He held the position of GenerainGebk—Law and External Affairs from May 2006 until
December 2007 and from January 2007 to Decembét, 2@@ additional responsibility for Embarqg’s Wiealke Markets business unit. Mr. Gerke served as
General Counsel—Law and External Affairs at SpNektel's local telecommunications division from Awgg 2005 until May 2006. He served as ExecutiveeVic
President—General Counsel and External Affairspfr Corporation (“Sprint”) from May 2003 until Ayust 2005.

Prior to CenturyTel's acquisition of Embarq, Mr. &k previously served as Embarq’s President - VéatdeMarkets since May 2006. He served in this
role at Sprint Nextel’s local telecommunicationsision from August 2005 until May 2006. He servedAssistant Vice President—Strategic Sales and émico
Management in Sprint Business Solutions from JanR@04 until July 2005.

Prior to CenturyTel's acquisition of Embarg, Mr. bér previously served as Emba@hief Technology Officer and Senior Vice Prestdgnce July 200
He served as Senior Vice President - Corporateéeftyaand Development from December 2007 througle 2008. Mr. Huber served as Senior Vice President o
Product Development from October 2006 until Decen2®®7. Before that, he served as Senior Vice Beesiof Wireless Solutions from August 2006 until
October 2006. From January 2003 to August 200%heed as President of Sprint North Supply Comparfyprint subsidiary that procured and distributed
materials to the communications industry.

The balance of the information required by ltemislihcorporated by reference to our definitive grexatement relating to our 2010 annual meeting of
stockholders (the "Proxy Statement"), which Proiagt@nent will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14#hin the first 120 days of 2010.
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Item 11. Executive Compensatio
The information required by Item 11 is incorporakbgdreference to the Proxy Statement.
Item 12. Security Ownership d@@ertain Beneficial Owners and Management
The information required by Item 12 is incorporabgdreference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationshipsnd Related Transactions



The information required by Item 13 is incorporakbgdreference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal AccountarfEees and Services
The information required by Item 14 is incorporakbgdreference to the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financialt8tement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

@)
2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3*

3.4*

4.1

4.2

4.3

(a). Documents filed as a part of thigome
(1) The following Consolidated Financial Statementsiactuded in Part II, Item ¢
Report of Management, including its assessmerttegffectiveness of its internal control over fio@hreporting

Reports of Independent Registered Public AcdogriEirm on Consolidated Financial Statements, féie Statement Schedule and
Effectiveness of the Compe’s Internal Control over Financial Reporti

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@iecember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomhéoyears ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and
Consolidated Balance She- December 31, 2009 and 20

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yaadled December 31, 2009, 2008 and Z
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equitytferyears ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

Consolidated Quarterly Income Statement Informafioraudited

(2) The attached Schedule I, Valuation and Qualifygounts, is the only applicable schedule that reerequired to file

Exhibits:
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as oflt&ct@6, 2008, among CenturyTel, Inc., Embarq Catimn and Cajun Acquisition Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of ther@nt Report on Form 8-K filed by CenturyTel, IiEile No. 001-07784) with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 30, 20
Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatib@enturyTel, Inc., dated as of July 1, 2009 dipporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Amendment
No. 3 to the Registration Statement on Fo-A filed by CenturyTel, Inc. (File No. 001-07784jtivthe Securities and Exchange Commission on July
2009).

Bylaws of CenturyTel, Inc., as amended anthted through July 1, 2009 (incorporated by refeeeio Exhibit 3.2 of Amendment No. 3 to the
Registration Statement on Forr-A filed by CenturyTel, Inc. (File No. 0(-07784) with the Securities and Exchange Commissioduly 1, 2009)

Corporate Governance Guidelines of CenturyTel, lae amended through February 23, 2(

Charters of Committees of Board of Direct

(a) Charter of the Audit Committee of the Board of Biars of CenturyTel, Inc., as amended through Ndyemi 7, 2009

(b) Charter of the Compensation Committee of the Ba&uirectors of CenturyTel, Inc., as amended thiokgbruary 23, 201(

(c) Charter of the Nominating and Corporate &oance Committee of the Board of Directors of Geiel, Inc., as amended through November 17,
2009.

(d) Charter of the Risk Evaluation Committee of the Bloaf Directors of CenturyTel, Inc., as amendedtigh February 23, 201
Form of common stock certificate (incorporated bference to Exhibit 4.3 of our Annual Report onridi(-K for the year ended December 31, 20(

$750 Million Five-Year Revolving Credit Fatjli dated December 14, 2006, between CenturyTel,dnd the lenders named therein (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Quarterly Reporfanm 1(-Q filed by CenturyTel, Inc. for the period endedd30, 2009)

Indebtedness of Embarqg Corporation.
a. Indenture, dated as of May 17, 2006, bylmetdieen Embarg Corporation and J.P. Morgan Trustfamy, National Association, a national
banking association, as trustee (incorporated teyeace to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report onnr8K filed by Embarq Corporation (File No.
001-32732) with the Securities and Exchange Commissioklay 18, 2006)

b. 6.738% Global Note due 2013 of Embarq Cafon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2hte Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2006 filed by Embarqg Corpordfida No. 00-32372) with the Securities and Exchange Commissioiarch 9, 2007,

C. 7.082% Global Note due 2016 of Embarqg Cafon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3hte Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2006 filed by Embarqg Corpordfida No. 00-32372) with the Securities and Exchange Commissioiarch 9, 2007,
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10.1%

d.

7.995% Global Note due 2036 of Embarq Cafon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4he Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2006 filed by Embarqg Corpordfida No. 00-32372) with the Securities and Exchange Commissioiarch 9, 2007,

Credit Agreement, dated May 10, 2006, byamdng Embarq Corporation (as borrower), Citiba&hly. (as administrative agent), and the other
parties named therein (incorporated by referendextabit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-Kdiley Embarg Corporation (File No. 001-
32372) with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMay 11, 2006)

Amendment No. 1, dated January 23, 200G rtlit Agreement, dated May 10, 2006, by and anttmbarqg Corporation, Citibank, N.A. (as
administrative agent), and the other parties natinectin (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1t@.the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by
Embarq Corporation (File No. 0-32372) with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodanuary 23, 200¢

Instruments relating to Century™s public senior deb

a.

Indenture dated as of March 31, 1994 betvgsarturyTel and Regions Bank (formerly First Amarnidank & Trust of Louisiana), as Trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of ougR#&ation Statement on Forn-3, Registration No. -52915).

Form of CenturyTel's 7.2% Senior Notes, &, due 2025 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi7 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 19¢

Form of CenturyTel's 6.875% Debentures, &e6, due 2028, (incorporated by reference to Exhid to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 19!

Form of 8.375% Senior Notes, Series H, DdE02issued October 19, 2000 (incorporated by eafsx to Exhibit 4.2 of our Quarterly Report on
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2C

Form of CenturyTel's 7.875% Senior Notesje3el, due 2012 (incorporated by reference to BixHi.2 of our Registration Statement on Form S-
4, File No. 33-100480).

Third Supplemental Indenture dated as ofrkraty 14, 2005 between CenturyTel and Regions BasiRrustee, designating and outlining the
terms and conditions of CenturyTel's 5% Senior Npg&eries M, due 2015 (incorporated by referen&extabit 4.1 of our Current Report on
Form ¢-K dated February 15, 200¢

Form of 5% Senior Notes, Series M, due 2015 (iretLith Exhibit 4.4(f)).

Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as atMa6, 2007 between CenturyTel and Regions BanKrastee, designating and outlining the terms
and conditions of CenturyTel's 6.0% Senior Note=je& N, due 2017 and 5.5% Senior Notes, Serieki©2013 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 of our Current Report on Forr-K dated March 29, 2007

Form of 6.0% Senior Notes, Series N, due 2017 &5 Senior Notes, Series O, due 2013 (includedhili 4.4(h)).

Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of Septerabe?009 between CenturyTel and Regions Bankrastd@e, designating and outlining the
terms and conditions of CenturyTel's 7.60% Seniotds, Series P, due 2039 and 6.15% Senior NoteéesSg, due 2019 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 of our Current Report anrf €-K dated September 21, 200

Form of 7.60% Senior Notes, Series P, due 201%atkdo Senior Notes, Series Q, due 2019 (includégkhibit 4.4())).
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Qualified Employee Benefit Plans of Cenfley, Inc. (excluding several narroased qualified plans that cover union employeesttar limited group
of employees)

a.

CenturyTel Dollars & Sense 401(k) Plan angst, as amended and restated through Decemb2038,(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
(a) of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31, 2006 filed by CenturyTel, IRde(No. 001-07784) with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on March 1, 2007), as aeaelog the First Amendment and the Second Amendthergto, each dated December
2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.bfathe Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ehBecember 31, 2007 filed by CenturyTel,
Inc. (File No. 001-07784) with the Securities andtiEange Commission on February 29, 2008), as anddnygée Third Amendment thereto
dated November 20, 2008 (incorporated by referémé&xhibit 10.1(a) to the Annual Report on FormK.@sr the year ended December 31, 2008
filed by CenturyTel, Inc. (File No. 001-07784) wite Securities and Exchange Commission on Feb2iar2009), as amended by the Fourth
Amendment thereto dated June 30, 2009 (incorpoiatedference to Exhibit 10.1(a) to the QuarterpBrt on Form 10-Q filed by CenturyTel,
Inc. for the period ended June 30, 2009), as antebgé¢he Fifth Amendment thereto dated Septembe20®9 (included herein), as amended by
the Sixth Amendment thereto, dated December 30 ZB@luded herein’

CenturyTel Union 401(k) Plan and Trust, meaded and restated through December 31, 2006rfioaded by reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) of the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmam31, 2006 filed by CenturyTel, Inc. (File No1007784) with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 1, 2007), as amengduebFirst Amendment thereto dated May 29, 200@cfiporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1(b) of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fidCenturyTel, Inc. (File No. 001-07784) with thec8rities and Exchange Commission on
May 7, 2008), as amended by the Second Amendmerdtthdated December 31, 2007 (incorporated byene¢e to Exhibit 10.1(b) of the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmam31, 2007 filed by CenturyTel, Inc. (File No1007784) with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008), as amddnylthe Third Amendment thereto dated NovembgeRQ08 (incorporated by reference
to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ehBecember 31, 2008 filed by CenturyTel, Inc. (Nie. 001-07784) with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009), as amdeloyglthe Fourth Amendment thereto dated June@® @ncorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1(b) to the Quarterly Report on FormQG@Hed by CenturyTel, Inc. for the period endedd80, 2009), as amended by the Fifth
Amendment thereto dated September 15, 2009 (indlbdeein), as amended by the Sixth Amendment thedeted December 30, 2009 (inclu
herein).

CenturyTel Retirement Plan, as amended estdted through December 31, 2006 (incorporataéfeyence to Exhibit 10.1(c) of the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBa6 filed by CenturyTel, Inc. (File No. 001-07F&4th the Securities and Exchange



Commission on March 1, 2007), as amended by Amentide. 1 thereto dated April 2, 2007 (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 10.1(c) of the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by CenturyTet. (File No. 001-07784) with the Securities anatitange Commission on May 7, 2008), as
amended by Amendment No. 2 thereto dated as ofrBleee31, 2007 (incorporated by reference to ExHiifl(c) of the Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 filecCbpturyTel, Inc. (File No. 001-07784) with the Settes and Exchange Commission on
February 29, 2008), as amended by Amendment Nwergto dated October 24, 2008 (incorporated byeaée to the Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 filecCbpturyTel, Inc. (File No. 001-07784) with the Settes and Exchange Commission on
February 27, 2009), as amended by Amendment Natetidlune 30, 2009 (incorporated by reference hibiEx.0.1(c) to the Quarterly Report
Form 10-Q filed by CenturyTel, Inc. for the periedded June 30, 2009), as amended by Amendment tReréio dated September 15, 2009
(included herein), as amended by Amendment Noefeth, dated December 30, 2009 (included her
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10.2** Stoclk-based Incentive Plans and Agreements of Centuryiel

a.

b.

e.

Amended and Restated 1983 Restricted Stock Plaamaaded and restated through February 23, 20dl0died herein

1995 Incentive Compensation Plan approve@dayturyTels shareholders on May 11, 1995 (incorporated Breefe to Exhibit 4.4 to Registrati
No. 3:-60061) and amendment thereto dated November 28, (i8corporated by Reference to Exhibit 10.1 {lpar Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1996), and amendimemeto dated February 25, 1997 (incorporatecefrence to Exhibit 10.1 of our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended MarchLl897) and amendment thereto dated May 29, 20@8rfiorated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of our Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20!

(i) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant®5 Incentive Compensation Plan and dated aslwfury 21, 2000, entered into by
CenturyTel and its officers (incorporated by refexeto Exhibit 10.1 (t) of our Annual Report on fot0K for the year ended December
1999).

Amended and Restated 2000 Incentive Comfiend@lan, as amended through May 23, 2000 (ingatpd by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlatke 30, 2000) and amendment thereto dated Ma30P3, (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of our Quarterly Report on Form-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20!

(i) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanttte 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan and dated sy 21, 2001, entered into by
CenturyTel and its officers (incorporated by refexe to Exhibit 10.2(e) of our Annual Report on Fdr@aK for the year ended December 31,
2001).

(i) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanthe 2000 Incentive Compensation Plan and dated asbruary 25, 2002, entered into by
CenturyTel and its officers (incorporated by refmeto Exhibit 10.2(d)(ii) of our Annual Report Borm 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2002)

Amended and Restated 2002 Directors Stodlo@plan, dated as of February 25, 2004 (incotedray reference to Exhibit 10.2(e) of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQ3) and amendment thereto dated October 24, @0@&porated by reference to Exhibit
10.2(d) of our Annual Report on Form-K for the year ended December 31, 20!

(i) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanthie foregoing plan, entered into by CenturyTetdnnection with options granted to the outside
directors as of May 10, 2002 (incorporated by mfee to Exhibit 10.2 of Registrant’'s Quarterly Repm Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 200z

(i) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanthe foregoing plan, entered into by CenturyTedonnection with options granted to the outside
directors as of May 9, 2003 (incorporated by refeesto Exhibit 10.2(e)(ii) of our Annual Report Borm 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2003)

(iii) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to thedoing plan, entered into by CenturyTel in conmectiith options granted to the outside
directors as of May 7, 2004 (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 10.2(d)(iii) of our Annual Report &iorm 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005

Amended and Restated 2002 Management ImeeBtimpensation Plan, dated as of February 25, @00drporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f)
of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year eh@®:cember 31, 2003) and amendment thereto dateib€4, 2008 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2(e) of our Annual Repartrmrm 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20!
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(i) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanthte foregoing plan, entered into between Centurgid certain of its officers and key
employees at various dates since May 9, 2002 (cated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of our QuéytBeport on Form 10-Q for the period
ended September 30, 200

(ii) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanfdregoing plan and dated as of February 24, 266t&red into be CenturyTel and its officers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f)(if)aur Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20!

(iif) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to foragglan and dated as of February 25, 2004, enietedbe CenturyTel and its officers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2(f)(df) our Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20(

(iv) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tddhegoing plan and dated as of February 24, 2606&red into by CenturyTel and its
executive officers (incorporated by reference tbiBit 10.1 of our Quarterly Report on Form-Q for the period ended March 31, 20C

(v) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, purstarnhe foregoing plan and dated as of Februan2@84, entered into by CenturyTel and its
executive officers (incorporated by reference tbigit 10.2(f)(v) of our Quarterly Report on Form-g0for the period ended March 31,
2004).

(vi) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to foraggilan and dated as of February 17, 2005, enietedbe CenturyTel and its executive
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officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 18)2v) of our Annual Report on Form-K for the year ended December 31, 20(

(vii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tdahegoing plan and dated as of February 17, 286tered into by CenturyTel and its
executive officers (incorporated by reference tbiBi 10.2(e)(vi) of our Annual Report on Form 10ftt the period ended December 31,
2004).

Amended and Restated 2005 Directors Stock Plaamasnded and restated through February 23, 2010dext herein

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, purguarthe foregoing plan, entered into between Qwitiel and each of its outside directors as of
May 13, 2005 (incorporated by reference to ExHibi4 of our Current Report on Forr-K dated May 13, 2005

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, purdita the foregoing plan, entered into between @giiel and each of its outside directors as of
May 12, 2006 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBitl of our Quarterly Report on Form-Q for the period ended June 30, 20(

(iii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tdahegoing plan, entered into between CenturyTdl@ach of its outside directors as of
May 11, 2007 (incorporated by reference to ExHibi2(f)(iii) of our Annual Report on Form -K for the period ended December 31, 20t

(iv) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tdahegoing plan, entered into between CenturyTdleach of its outside directors as of
May 9, 2008 (incorporated by reference to ExhiBi2{f)(iv) of our Annual Report on Form -K for the period ended December 31, 20(
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(v) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursdarhe 2005 Directors Stock Plan and dated &dayf 8, 2009, entered into between
CenturyTel, Inc. and each of its outside directorsuch date who remain on the Board as of theldatof (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2(b) to the Quarterly Report on Forn-Q filed by CenturyTel, Inc. for the period endedid30, 2009)

(vi) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant td20@5 Directors Stock Plan and dated as of May)892entered into between
CenturyTel, Inc. and each of its outside directeh® retired on July 1, 2009 (incorporated by refieeeto Exhibit 10.2(c) to the Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q filed by CenturyTel, Inc. for the period endedd30, 2009)

(vii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant t®@5 Directors Stock Plan and dated as of JuR0Q9, entered into between Century
Inc. and each of its outside directors named tdBierd on July 1, 2009 (incorporated by referencExhibit 10.1(d) to the Quarterly Report
on Form 1-Q filed by CenturyTel, Inc. for the period endead80, 2009)

(viii) Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant to the 2008drs Stock Plan and dated as of July 2, 200@reshinto between CenturyTel, Inc.
and William A. Owens in payment of Mr. Owens’ 2080%plemental chairman’s fees (incorporated by esies to Exhibit 10.2(e) to the
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed by CenturyTel, Inc. for the period endeadB0, 2009)

Amended and Restated 2005 Management Incentive @uwafion Plan, as amended and restated throughdfel23, 2010, included here

(i) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuanthte foregoing plan, entered into between Centurgid certain officers and key employees at
various dates since May 12, 2005 (incorporatecefgrence to Exhibit 10.2 of our Quarterly Reportramm 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 200t

(i) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, purdita the foregoing plan, entered into between @giiel and certain officers and key employees
at various dates since May 12, 2005 (incorporatedeference to Exhibit 10.3 of our Quarterly RepmrtForm 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 200%

(iii) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuant to thedoing plan and dated as of February 21, 2006rezhteto between CenturyTel and its
executive officers (incorporated by reference tbiBi 10.2(g)(iii) of our Annual Report on Form 1Ofor the year ended December 31,
2005).

(iv) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tddhegoing plan and dated as of February 21, 260&red into between CenturyTel and
its executive officers (incorporated by refererm&xhibit 10.2(g)(iv) of our Annual Report on Fodf-K for the year ended December 31,
2005).

(v) Form of Stock Option Agreement, pursuartti® foregoing plan and dated as of February 267 2éntered into between CenturyTel and its
executive officers (incorporated by reference tbigi 10.10f our Quarterly Report on Form-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20(

(vi) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tdahegoing plan and dated as of February 26, 2606t&red into between CenturyTel and
its executive officers (incorporated by refererm&xhibit 10.2 of our Quarterly Report on Forrr-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20(

(vii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tddhegoing plan and dated as of February 21, 286&red into between CenturyTel and
its executive officers ((incorporated by referetmw&xhibit 10.2 of our Quarterly Report on Forn-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20(
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(viii) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement, pursuant tddhegoing plan and dated as of February 26, 20@®(porated by reference to Exhibit
10.2(g) of our Quartely Report on Form-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20(

Amended and Restated CenturyLink Legacy EqB&08 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended andtezstarough February 23, 2010, included
herein.

Key Employee Incentive Compensation Plaredidanuary 1, 1984, as amended and restated awefrider 16, 1995 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1(f) of our Annual Report on Form 10-& the year ended December 31, 1995) and amendhesto dated November 21, 1996
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1(f) of dunnual Report on Form 10-K for the year endedédeloer 31, 1996), amendment thereto dated
February 25, 1997 (incorporated by reference talixh0.2 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q floe quarter ended March 31, 1997), amendment
thereto dated April 25, 2001 (incorporated by merfiee to Exhibit 10.2 of our Quarterly Report onrRd.0-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2001),
amendment thereto dated April 17, 2000 (incorparatereference to Exhibit 10.3(a) of our Annual Bemn Form 10-K for the year ended December
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10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

31, 2001) and amendment thereto dated Februar3®7, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.bwf Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 20C

Supplemental Dollars & Sense Plan, 2008 Reatnt, effective January 1, 2008, (incorporatedefigrence to Exhibit 10.3(c) of our Annual Repamt
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007)asanendment thereto dated October 24, 2008 (incatpadby reference to Exhibit 10.3(c) of our
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20(

Supplemental Defined Benefit Plan, 2008 Restant, effective as of January 1, 2008, (incorgaray reference to Exhibit 10.3(d) of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQ7) and amendment thereto dated October 24, @0@@&porated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
(d) of our Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20l

Amended and Restated Salary Continuatiorafility) Plan for Officers, dated November 26, 19Bicorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of our
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 19!

2005 Executive Officer Sh-Term Incentive Program (incorporated by refereceur 2005 Proxy Statement filed April 5, 20C

Amended and Restated CenturyTel 2001 EmplSyeek Purchase Plan, dated as of June 30, 206&orated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed by CenturyTel, Inc. for the period endedid30, 2009)

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered ioy CenturyTel, Inc. and each of its director@Bduly 1, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Eithib
99.3 of the Current Report on Forr-K filed by CenturyTel, Inc. (File No. 0-07784) with the Securities and Exchange Commissioduly 1, 2009)

Form of Indemnification Agreement enterdd ioy CenturyTel, Inc. and each of its officero&duly 1, 2009 (incorporated by reference to EiHib.5
to the Quarterly Report on Form-Q filed by CenturyTel, Inc. for the period endetd80, 2009)

Amended and Restated Change of Control Aggag effective January 1, 2008, by and between EldPost, 11l and CenturyTel (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4(a) of our Annual Repartrmrm 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20!

Form of Amended and Restated Change of Glohgreement, effective January 1, 2008 by and betwCenturyTel and each of its other executive
officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1B)4of our Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20!
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Amended and Restated CenturyTel, Inc. Bonus Liseiance Plan for Executive Officers, dated as afl 8p 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exh
10.4 of our Quarterly Report on Form-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20(

Certain Material Agreements and Plans of Embarg@uaition.

a. Employment Agreement, dated as of Marcld882between Thomas A. Gerke and Embarq Corporéticorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by EmbCorporation (File No. 001-32372) with the Sé&@s and Exchange Commission on
March 4, 2008)

b. Amendment to the Employment Agreement anidmgmas A. Gerke, Embarq Corporation and Centuryifiel,dated October 26, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-K filed by Embarg Corparat{File No. 001-32372) with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on October Q#3)2

C. Amendment 2008-2 to the Employment Agreerbetiveen Embarg Corporation and Thomas A. Gerkeddaecember 20, 2008 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Annual Repartrorm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2068 iy Embarq Corporation (File No.
001-32372) on February 13, 200

d. Agreement Regarding Special CompensatiorParstl Employment Restrictive Covenants, dated Deeert2, 1995, by and between Sprint
Corporation and Dennis G. Huber (incorporated ligremce to Exhibit 10.4 to the Quarterly Reportramm 10-Q filed by Embarq Corporation
(File No. 00:-32372) with the Securities and Exchange Commissio®ctober 30, 2008

e. Amendment 20080 the Employment Agreement between Embarq Catjmor and Dennis G. Huber, dated December 22, #@08rporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Annual Report omnfr 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 fie@mbarq Corporation (File No. 001-
32372) on February 13, 200

f. Embarqg Corporation 2006 Equity IncentiverRlas amended and restated (incorporated by refeterExhibit 99.1 to the Registration Statement
on Form &8 filed by CenturyTel, Inc. (File No. 0-07784) with the Securities and Exchange Commissioduly 1, 2009)

g. Form of 2007 Award Agreement for executitficers of Embarg Corporation (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on
Form &K filed by Embarq Corporation (File No. 0-32372) with the Securities and Exchange CommissioRebruary 27, 2007

h. Form of 2008 Restricted Stock Unit Award égiment (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.thé Current Report on Form 8-K filed by
Embarq Corporation (File No. 0-32372) with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMarch 4, 2008

i Form of 2009 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agment (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.thé Current Report on Form 8-K filed by
Embarq Corporation (File No. 0-32732) with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMarch 5, 2009,

- Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Reporf-orm 8-K filed by Embarq
Corporation (File No. 0(-32372) with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMarch 4, 2008’

k. Amendment to Outstanding RSUs granted irn7298d 2008 under the Embarq Corporation 2006 Edpdgntive Plan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.16 to the Annual Report on Form 1@eKthe year ended December 31, 2008 filed by Emkarporation (File No. 001-32372) on
February 13, 2009

I Form of 2006 Award Agreement between Emi2ogooration and Richard A. Gephardt (incorporatgddierence to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current
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Report on Form 8-K filed by Embarg Corporation ¢Ao. 001-32372) with the Securities and Exchangm@ission on August 1, 2006), as
amended by the amendment thereto dated June 28 (2@0rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 (mjite Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
by CenturyTel, Inc. for the period ended June 309.

137
m.  Amended and Restated Executive Severance iRtduding Form of Participation Agreement enteirgto between Embarqg Corporation and
William E. Cheek (incorporated by reference to Bxh10.4 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fimdEmbarg Corporation (File No. 001-
32372) with the Securities and Exchange Commissio®ctober 30, 2008

n. Embarg Supplemental Executive Retirement Planpended and restated as of January 1, 2009 (in@igubby reference to Exhibit 10.27 to
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2008 filed by &mlCorporation (File No. 0-32372) on February 13, 200

0. Summary of Embarq Corporation 2009 ShornaTbrcentive Program (incorporated by referencexilfit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form
1C-Q filed by Embarq Corporation (File No. (-32732) with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMay 7, 2009)

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and PreferredkSbividends

Subsidiaries of CenturyTel, Inc. (incorporagdeference to Exhibit 21 to the Quarterly RemortForm 10-Q filed by CenturyTel, Inc. for the meti
ended June 30, 200¢

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Con:
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of GeryTel, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Saes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of CimyTel, Inc. pursuant to Section 302 of the Saes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and i€hFinancial Officer of CenturyTel, Inc. pursudatSection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit filed herewith.

Portions of Exhibits 10.1 and 10.2 filed herdwi
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(tf)e Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this report to be signedson it
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

CenturyTel, Inc.

Date: March 1, 2010 By: /s/ Glen F. Post, Il

Glen F. Post, Il
Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed belptihe following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the ddiedted.

Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Glen F. Post, Il President and Director

Glen F. Post, Il

/s/ William A. Owens

William A. Owens

/s/ R. Stewart Ewing, J

R. Stewart Ewing, J

/s/ Neil A. Sweas

Neil A. Sweas)

Chairman of the Board

Executive Vice President ai
Chief Financial Officer

Vice President and Controller

March 1, 201(

March 1, 201(

March 1, 201(

March 1, 201(

/s/ Virginia Boulet Director
Virginia Boulet March 1, 201(
/sl Peter C. Brow Director
Peter C. Browr March 1, 201(
/s/ Richard A. Gephart Director
Richard A. Gepharc March 1, 201(
/sl Thomas A. Gerk Director
Thomas A. Gerk March 1, 201(
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/s/ W. Bruce Hank Director
W. Bruce Hank: March 1, 201(
/s/ Gregory J. McCra Director
Gregory J. McCra March 1, 201(
/s/ C. G. Melville, Jr Director

C. G. Melville, Jr.

March 1, 201(



/s/ Fred R. Nichol:

Fred R. Nichols

/s/ Harvey P. Perr

Harvey P. Perr

/s/ Stephanie M. She

Stephanie M. Sher

/s/ Laurie A. Siege

Laurie A. Siege

/s/ Joseph R. Zimm

Joseph R. Zimme

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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March 1, 201(

March 1, 201(

March 1, 201(

March 1, 201(

March 1, 201(



SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
CENTURYTEL, INC.

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 ard 200

Additions
Balance a charged tc Deductions Balance
beginning costs anc from Other at end
Description of period expense: allowance changes of period
(Dollars in thousands
Year ended December 31, 2C
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 16,29( 56,60¢ (25,449 (1) - 47,45(
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass $ 33,85¢ 3,886 (6,329 10,118 (2) 41,53:
Year ended December 31, 2C
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 20,36: 9,86¢ (23,529 (1) (419) (2) 16,29(
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass $ 30,90 1,602 - 1,34¢ 33,85¢
Year ended December 31, 2C
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 20,90¢ 14,46¢ (16,617 (1) 1,607 (2) 20,36:
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass $ 61,04¢ 3,744 (33,88¢) - 30,90°

(1) Customer’ accounts writte-off, net of recoveries
(2) Allowances at the date of acquisition of par®bd subsidiaries, net of allowances at the dadéspbsition of subsidiaries sold.

141






Exhibit 3.2

CENTURY TEL, INC.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES
(as amended through February 23, 2010)

1. Director Qualifications

The Board will have a majorityof independent directors. The Nominating and CafgoGovernance Committee is responsible for remigwrith the
Board, on an annual basis, the requisite skills@dradacteristics of new Board members as well @agdmposition of the Board as a whole. This assesswill
include members’ independence qualifications, dsageconsideration of diversity, character, judgmekills and experience in the context of thedseaf the
Board at that time. All directors must meet angitidnal qualifications established under the Comypsorganizational documents. It is the geneeakg of the
Board that no more than two management directarsldfserve on the Board.

Nominees for directorship will be selected in adeorce with the qualifications, criteria and proaedudescribed in these guidelines and the Company’s
bylaws, as well as the policies and principleshm €ommittee’s charter and any selection guidelimesiteria adopted thereunder. The invitatiojofa the
Board should be extended on behalf of the full Bidar the Chairman of the Nominating and Corporateegenance Committee and the Chairman of the Board.

The Board expects directors who change the jokegpansibility they held when they were electechioBoard to volunteer to resign from the Board. It
is not the sense of the Board that in every sustairte the director should necessarily leave tregdBoThere should, however, be an opportunityterBoard,
following a review by the Nominating and Corpor&evernance Committee, to determine the continugdogpiateness of Board membership under the
circumstances.

No director may serve on more than two other uliatiid public company boards, unless this protohiis waived by the Board. No director may serve
on the board of a company or organization that ategpwith the Company or is otherwise likely tseaa significant conflict of interest, unless seetvice is
approved by the Board. Directors should advisecthairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Mattig and Corporate Governance Committee in agk
of accepting an invitation to serve on another jputdmpany board. No director may be appointedarninated to a new term if he or she would be &ger7
older at the time of the election or appointment.

The Board does not believe it should establish femts. While term limits could help insure thhere are fresh ideas and viewpoints availabléeo t
Board, they hold the disadvantage of losing therdmution of directors who have been able to depetiver a period of time, increasing insight irtie Compan
and its operations and, therefore, provide an aging contribution to the Board as a whole. Aslérnative to term limits, the Nominating and Gangte
Governance Committee will review each director’stamiation on the Board at least once every thesgs, This will allow each director the opportyri
conveniently confirm his or her desire to contimsea member of the Board.

Annually, the Board will determine affirmatively veh of its directors are independent for purpodesmplying with these guidelines and the listing
standards of the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYJSR director will not be independent for thesarposes unless the Board affirmatively determihas t
the director does not, either directly or indirgatirough the director’s affiliates or associatemye a material commercial, banking, consultingaleaccounting,
charitable, familial or other relationship with t&®@mpany or its affiliates, other than as a directa making these determinations, the Board eahsider all
relevant facts and circumstances of both the direamid the director’s affiliates and associated,the extent to which any such relationship coekspnably be
expected to interfere with the exercise of indegegudgment by the director. In no event, howewdi a director be determined to be independéany of the
disqualifying events or conditions specified in R8D3A.02(b) of the NYSE Listed Company Manualdash rule may from time to time be amended, redtate
supplemented or rpromulgated) apply to the director. A member @& #udit Committee of the Board will not be deemedbé independent unless such mer
meets the standards set forth both in this paphgaad Rule 10A-3(b) promulgated under the Seesriixchange Act of 1934, as amended (as such aje m
from time to time be amended, restated, supplerdemtee-promulgated). For purposes of this pargtgréhe terms “affiliates” and “associates” willeasthe
meanings ascribed to them in Rule 405 promulgateltiuthe Securities Act of 1933, as amended (as sie may from time to time be amended, restated,
supplemented or re-promulgated).

2. Director Responsibilities

The basic responsibility of the directors is toreige their business judgment to act in what tle@sonably believe to be in the best interestseof th
Company and its shareholders. In dischargingdbbgation, directors should be entitled to relytbe honesty and integrity of the Company’s seai@cutives
and its outside advisors and auditors. The directball also be entitled to have the Company @msehleasonable directors’ and officers’ liabilitgurance on
their behalf, to the benefits of indemnificationtie extent permitted by law and the Company’sadwsland any indemnification agreements, and tolpatian
as provided by state law and the Company’s artimléscorporation.

Directors are expected to (i) attend the annualettedders meeting, (ii) attend Board meetings ardtings of committees on which they serve, any (ii
spend the time needed and meet as frequently assay to properly discharge their responsibilitigsBormation and data that are important to tloafl's
understanding of the business to be conducted®ated or committee meeting should generally beidisted in writing to the directors before the niegt and
directors should review these materials in advaritcke meeting.

Each Board member is free to suggest the inclusidems on the agenda. Each Board member igdresise at any Board meeting subjects that ar
on the agenda for that meeting. The Board willeenthe Company’s longerm strategic plans and the principal issuesttf@Company will face in the future
least once a year, preferably in an off-site plagrsession dedicated primarily to such issues.

2

The Board believes that management speaks forahg&ny. Individual Board members may, from timéirtte, meet or otherwise communicate with

various constituencies that are involved with tlenany. However, it is expected that Board membverdd do this with the knowledge of the management

and, absent unusual circumstances or as contemfigtdihe committee charters, only at the requestariagement.

If a director wishes to resign, retire or not targt for reelection at the end of his or her curtemh, the director will notify the Chair of the Minating



and Corporate Governance Committee in writing, \&itopy to the Secretary. Unless otherwise deterthby the Board, when a management director
retires or ceases to be an active employee foptrer reason, that director will be consideredaeehresigned concurrently from the Board.

3. Board Committees

The Board will have at all times an Audit Commifta€gCompensation Committee and a Nominating ang@ate Governance Committee. All of the
members of these committees will be independeettiirs, as defined in Section 1 above.

Committee members will be appointed by the Boamhugcommendation of the Nominating and Corporatee@Brance Committee with consideration
of the desires of individual directors. It is thense of the Board that consideration should bengie rotating committee members periodically, thetBoard
does not believe that rotation should be mandaedlicy. Any appointments or removals of coneeitmembers will be made by the Board in accordance
with the Company’s bylaws.

Each key committee will have its own charter. Tharters will set forth the purposes, goals andawrsibilities of the committees as well as
qualifications for committee membership, proceddioecommittee member appointment and removal, cteenstructure and operations and committee
reporting to the Board. The charters will alsovide that each key committee will annually evalugtegerformance.

The Chair of each committee, in consultation whtéh tommittee members, will determine the frequearay length of the committee meetings consistent
with any requirements set forth in the committesiarter. The Chair of each committee, in consoliatiith members of the committee and others sjgetih
the committee’s charter, will develop the commitesgenda.

The Board and each committee have the power taridependent legal, financial or other advisorthey may deem necessary, without consulting or
obtaining the approval of any officer of the Compamadvance.

Each committee may meet in executive session as af it deems appropriate, and shall have thepovabtain and review any information that the
committee deems necessary to perform the functieseribed in its charter.

The Board may, from time to time, establish or remadditional committees as necessary or appatepri

4, Chairman; Lead Outside Director

The Board shall elect from among its members ar@tei. The Chairman may be a director who alscelRasutive responsibilities, including the CEO
(an “Executive Chair”), or may be one of the Compaimdependent directors (a “Non-Executive ChairThe Board believes it is in the best intere$the
Company for the Board to remain flexible with res® whether to elect an Executive Chair or a Moecutive Chair so that the Board may provide for
succession planning and respond effectively to gbaiin circumstances.

The Chairman’s responsibilities include:

(@) presiding at meetings of the Boa

(b) overseeing the management, development and fuiragiah the Board

(c) in consultation with the CEO (if difent), planning and organizing the activitieshef Board and the schedule for Board meetings;
and

(d) in consultation with the CEO (if difent), establishing the agendas for Board meetings

The non-management directors will meet in execuge&sion at least quarterly in conjunction withutagy-scheduled Board meetings and will, subject
to the other terms of this paragraph, elect fronomgrthe independent directors a lead outside diredtleast annually. The lead outside directoy ol
additional meetings of the non-management direabesy time. At all times during which the Chaimmis a Non-Executive Chair, all of the functionsla
responsibilities of the lead outside director shallperformed by the Non-Executive Chair.

The lead outside director’s responsibilities ineud
(@) coordinating, developing an agendadnd presiding at each meeting of the non-managedirectors; and
(b) providing direction to the CEO on tigality, quantity, and timeliness of the flow aformation from management that is necessary
for the non-management directors to perform theired effectively and responsibly, with the undensling that the non-management directors will
receive any information requested on their behalfle lead outside director.
5. Director Access to Officers and Employee
Directors have full and free access to officers amgployees of the Company. Any meetings or costiztt a director wishes to initiate may be arra
through the CEO or the Secretary or directly bydhector. The directors will use their judgmemensure that any such contact is not disruptiteedusiness

operations of the Company and will, to the exteattinappropriate, copy the CEO on any written comizations between a director and an officer or ey
of the Company.

The Board welcomes regular attendance at each Boeeding of the executive officers of the Compang auch other Company personnel as the B



or the CEO may designate.
6. Director Compensation

The Compensation Committee shall review annualgatior compensation and benefits, and recommengm@ppsed changes to the Board for
approval, subject to the terms, conditions and jgtkaes set forth in the committee’s charter. TherPensation Committee will consider whether diregto
independence may be jeopardized if director comgt@rsand perquisites exceed customary leveld,tbeiCompany makes substantial charitable corttaha
to organizations with which a director (or onelw director's immediate family members) is affiidt

7. Director Orientation and Continuing Education

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitie# sraintain an Orientation Program for new dioest All new directors must participate in
Company'’s Orientation Program, which should be cotetl as soon as practicable after new directerslacted or appointed. This orientation may idelu
presentations by senior management to familiaréze directors with the Company’s strategic plarssignificant financial, accounting and risk marmagat
issues, its corporate compliance programs (whiclude its code of business conduct and ethicspriteipal officers, and its internal and indepemtde
auditors. All other directors are also invitecattend the Orientation Program.

The Company will also maintain a Continuing EdumatProgram for directors, pursuant to which it witideavor to periodically update directors on
industry, technological and regulatory developmeats! to provide adequate resources to supportdigein understanding the Company’s business attens
to be acted upon at board and committee meetings.

8. CEO Evaluation and Management Successic

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Commiti#e@anduct an annual review of the CEQ'’s performean The Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee will provide a report of itglings to the Board of Directors (with appropriegeusals of the CEO and other management direetsrs
necessary) to enable the Board to ensure thatHl@ i€ providing the best leadership for the Comparthe long- and short-term.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committeeld report periodically to the Board on succasgianning. The entire Board will consult
periodically with the Nominating and Corporate Gamance Committee regarding potential successdrset€EO. The CEO should at all times make avadlabl
his or her recommendations and evaluations of pialesuccessors, along with a review of any develept plans recommended for such individuals.

9. Annual Evaluation

The Board of Directors will conduct an annual sat&luation to determine whether it and its comragtare functioning effectively. The Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee will receivernents from all directors and report annually toBreard with an assessment of the Board’s perforeanc
which will be discussed with the full Board. Thesassment will focus on the Board’s contributiothes Company and specifically focus on areas irctviie
Board or management believes that the Board coytddve. The Nominating and Corporate Governanaar@ittee will also, no less than annually, review
these guidelines and recommend any proposed chémtfes Board for approval.
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10. Recoupment of Compensatiol

In addition to any other remedies available toGoenpany and subject to applicable law, if the Baardny committee of the Board determines that any
bonus, incentive payment, commission, equity avearother compensation awarded to or received bgxaoutive officer was based on any financial oratieg
result that was impacted by the executive offickriewing or intentional fraudulent or illegal corauthe Board or a Board committee may recover ftioen
executive officer the compensation it considersappate under the circumstances. The Board hlasdéscretion to make any and all determinationgeurihis
paragraph.

11. Stock Ownership Guidelines

The Company expects its executive officers to beradlfy own CenturyLink stock equal in market valigespecified multiples of their annual base
salary. For any year during which an executivesdugt meet his or her ownership target, the exeeisiexpected to hold a specified percentagfehe
CenturyLink stock that the executive acquires tigtothe Company’s equity compensation programsueliad shares sold to pay taxes associated with the
acquisition thereof. Each of these ownership mplg$ and holding percentages will be set from tionéme by the Compensation Committee and will be
disclosed in the Company’s annual proxy statement.

Unvested restricted stock and shares held thrcugiCompany’s benefit plans count towards the ovimertsrgets, which are calculated based on
trailing average stock prices and reviewed at leasty three years. Each executive officer hasetlyears from the date they first become subjeatparticular
ownership level to attain that target. The Compéos Committee administers these stock ownershigedines, and may modify their terms and grantiship
exceptions in its discretion.

12. Standards of Business Conduct and Ethic

All of the Company’s directors, officers and emmeyg are required to abide by the Company’s longdstg ethics and compliance policies and
programs, which include standards of business atindithe Company’s program and related proceduesrall areas of professional conduct, including
employment policy, conflicts of interests, proteatiof confidential information, as well as stridh&rence to all laws and regulations applicablaéoconduct of
the Company’s business.

Any waiver of the Compang’policies, principles or guidelines relating tasimess conduct or ethics for executive officerdioectors may be made or
by the Board or a duly authorized committee theranél will be promptly disclosed as required byl@aple law or stock exchange regulations.
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° Originally adopted by the Nominating and Corpor@vernance Committee and the Board of Director§eoruary 17, 2003 and February 25, 2



respectively

Sections 1, 3, 6 and 7 amended by the Nominatin Gorporate Governance Committee and the Boardi@fcidrs on November 18, 2003
November 20, 2003, respective

Sections 1, 3 and 9 amended by the Nominating amgdCate Governance Committee and the Board ofcRire on February 19, 2004 and Februan
2004, respectively

Section 1 amended by the Nominating and CorporateefBance Committee and the Board of Directors eordrary 18, 2005 and February 22, 2
respectively

Sections 1, 2, 4, 5, 8 and 9 amended by the Nom@qaind Corporate Governance Committee and thedBo&Directors on February 16, 2006 .
February 21, 2006, respective

Section 1 (last sentence of the fourth paragrapmraled by the Nominating and Corporate Governarmrandttee and the Board of Directors
August 17, 2007 and August 21, 2007, respectiy

Sections 1 and 2 amended, Sections 4 and 10 addedformer Sections 4 to 9 renumbered, in each bgskoth the Nominating and Corpor
Governance Committee and the Board of Directordume 30, 200¢

Section 1 (first, sixth and former seventh paragsymmended by the Nominating and Corporate Gomemn&ommittee and the Board of Director:
August 11, 2009 and August 24, 2009, respectiy

Sections 6 and 12 amended and Section 11 addedtebydminating and Corporate Governance Committeletize Board of Directors on February
2010 and February 23, 2010, respectiv



Exhibit 3.4(a

CENTURYTEL, INC.

CHARTER OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(as amended through November 17, 2009)

I SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILIT

A. General

Subject to the limitations noted in Section VI, grémary function of the Audit Committee is to atthe Board of Directors (the “Board”) in fulfitig
its oversight responsibilities by (1) overseeing @ompany’s system of financial reporting, auditiogntrols and legal compliance, (2) monitoring diperation
of such system and the integrity of the Companiyiarfcial statements and related disclosures, anah@8itoring the qualifications, independence and
performance of the outside and internal auditors.

B. Relationship to Other Grouy

The management of the Company is responsible pifinfar developing the Company’s accounting pragsicpreparing the Company’s financial
statements, maintaining internal controls, maimitey disclosure controls and procedures, and piregpénie Company'’s disclosure documents in compéamith
applicable law. The internal auditors are respgaagirimarily for objectively assessing the Comparigternal controls. The outside auditors ar@poesible
primarily for auditing and attesting to the Comparfjnancial statements and management’s assessgrtéernal controls. Subject to the limitatiomsted in
Section VI, the Audit Committee, as the delegatthefBoard, is responsible for overseeing this @gs@nd discharging such other functions as aignaskby
law, the Company’s organizational documents, oBbard. The functions of the Audit Committee ao¢ intended to duplicate, certify or guaranty totties
of management or the internal or outside auditors.

The Audit Committee will strive to maintain an opamd free avenue of communication with managentieetoutside auditors, the internal auditors and
the Board, including periodic executive sessionthefCommittee with management, the outside alwgl#dod the internal auditors. The outside andraler
auditors will report directly to the Audit Commigte The Audit Committee will report regularly teetBoard.

Il COMPOSITION

The Audit Committee will be comprised of three asmdirectors, each of whom will be appointed amlaced by the Board in accordance with the
Company’s bylaws. Each member of the Audit Conemitwill meet the standards of independence or afix@lifications required from time to time by thew
York Stock Exchange, Section 10A(m)(3) of the Seimsr Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) dhd rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”"), and at least oamber will in the judgment of the Board have actimgnor related financial management expertise in
accordance with New York Stock Exchange listingidtads. The Audit Committee’s chairperson shaliésignated by the Board. The Audit Committee may
form and delegate authority to subcommittees ctingief one or more members when appropriate, dintythe authority to grant pre-approvals of aadit
permitted non-audit services by the outside ausliteubject to any limitations or reporting requissats established by law or procedures that maylbptad
from time to time by the Committee or the Board.

IIl. MEETINGS

The Audit Committee will meet at least four timemaally, or more frequently if the Committee deteres it to be necessary. To foster open
communications, the Audit Committee may invitetomeetings other directors or representativesasfagement, the outside auditors, the internal angjit
counsel or other persons whose pertinent advicewamsel is sought by the Committee, and the ppétiiin of such guests shall be governed by anyefjnies or
procedures that may be adopted from time to timembagagement, the Committee or the Board. The agfemdneetings will be prepared in consultation agio
the Committee chairperson (with input from Comnatteembers), management, the outside auditorsnthenal auditors and counsel. The Audit Committée
maintain written minutes of all its meetings andyide a copy of all such minutes to every membehefBoard.

V. POWERS

The Audit Committee shall have the sole authodtgppoint or replace the outside auditors, provitled the Audit Committee may submit its
appointment to the Company’s shareholders foricatibn on terms and conditions acceptable t@ e Audit Committee shall be directly responsiliethe
compensation and oversight of the work of the detsiuditors (including resolution of disagreemémrtsveen management and the outside auditors regardi
financial reporting) for the purpose of preparingssuing an audit report or related work. The h@bmmittee shall also have the sole authoritiajoappoint o
replace the head of internal auditing and (b) aptpmi replace any firm engaged to provide intemaliting services.

The Audit Committee shall have the authority, te éxtent it deems necessary or appropriate, tmngidependent legal, accounting or other
advisors. The Company shall provide appropriateliftg, as determined by the Audit Committee, forpant of (a) compensation to the outside auditony
other advisors employed by the Audit Committee @ndrdinary administrative expenses of the Auditi@®nittee that are necessary or appropriate in iceyry
out its duties.

The Audit Committee shall have the power to (apoband review any information that the Audit Cortie® deems necessary to perform its oversight
functions and (b) conduct or authorize investigaionto any matters within the Audit Committee'sgse of responsibilities. Communications betweenAhdit
Committee and legal counsel in the course of oltgitegal advice will be considered privileged commitations of the Company. The Committee will haye
access to the Company’s officers, employees argidsiadvisors as necessary to perform its duties.

The Audit Committee shall have the power to issueraports or perform any other duties required&)ythe Company's articles of incorporatior



bylaws, (b) applicable law or (c) rules or regudas of the SEC, the New York Stock Exchange, orathgr self-regulatory organization having
jurisdiction over the affairs of the Audit Commaite The Audit Committee may adopt any policiesrmcpdures required under any such articles, bylawss,
rules or regulations, or that it, in its discretiomay determine to be advisable in connection wstloversight functions.

Consistent with applicable law and the Companygmaizational documents and corporate governanaeljes, the Audit Committee shall have the
power to consider and act upon any other matterseraing the financial affairs of the Company asAludit Committee, in its discretion, may determioéde
advisable in connection with its oversight functon

V. PERIODIC OVERSIGHT TASKS

The Audit Committee, to the extent it deems neagsmaappropriate or to the extent required by plle laws or regulations, will perform the
oversight tasks substantially as delineated infihait Committee Checklist. The checklist will beviewed annually and updated as necessary toteflec
necessary or appropriate changes, if any. The raoshtly updated checklist will be consideredéabh addendum to this charter.

VI LIMITATIONS

The Committee’s failure to investigate any mattés,resolve any dispute or to take any other acti@msexercise any of its powers in connection with
the good faith exercise of its oversight functiosbkall in no way be construed as a breach of itsidator responsibilities to the Company, its direager its
shareholders.

The Audit Committee is not responsible for prepagithe Company’s financial statements, planning asructing the audit of such financial
statements, determining that such financial statemeare complete and accurate or prepared in ac@nde with generally accepted accounting standarais,
assuring compliance with applicable laws or the Cpamy’s policies, procedures and controls, all of whicheahe responsibility of management or the outs
auditors. The Audit Committee’s oversight functisinvolve substantially lesser responsibilities thénose associated with the audit performed by thaside
auditors. In connection with the Audit Committeetssersight functions, the Committee may rely Ghmanagement’s representations that the financial
statements have been prepared with integrity angeotivity and in conformity with accounting princies generally accepted in the United States &iidthe
representations of the internal or outside auditors

In carrying out its oversight functions, the Audi€ommittee believes its policies and procedures stioemain flexible in order to best react to a
changing environment.

* * * % *¥ * % *x % * %

. Originally adopted and approved by the Audit @aittee and Board on November 18, 1999.
3
. Amended by the Board on February 28, 2001, Regr6, 2002, February 25, 2003, February 25, 2804ember 18, 2004, November 15, 2006 and

November 17, 2009, in each case following priorrapal thereof by the Audit Committe



ADDENDUM

AUDIT COMMITTEE CHECKLIST

First Second Third Fourth As
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Needed
Annual Audit Planning
1. appoint or replace the outside auditors aamiave the compensation and X
other terms of the outside auditors’ annual engaggm
2. pre-approve all auditing services and, toetktent possible, all other services X X
to be conducted by the outside auditors duringuf@ming year
3. review significant relationships between dhiside auditors and the X X
Company, including those described in written steets of the outside auditors
required under applicable regulations and employmaationships proscribed under
Rule 2-01(c)(2) of Regulation S-X
4. discuss the scope and comprehensiveness afithit plan, including chang X X
from prior years and the coordination of the eat the outside and internal auditors
Review of Financial Reporting
5. review and discuss with management and tt@dsuauditors the Company’s X X X X
quarterly financial statements and MD&A disclosupeisr to their public release
6. discuss with management the Company'’s firdmeiormation and earnings X X X X
guidance provided to analysts and rating agencies
7. review with management and the oetsidditors the Company'’s financial X X X X

information, including (a) any report, opinion eview rendered on the financial
statements by management or the outside audituriudiing under SAS No. 61 or 71)
and (b) any analysis prepared by management anitside auditors setting forth
significant financial reporting issues and judgnsemade in connection with the
preparation of the financial statements.

1The Audit Committee may request verification thatamployee of the Company in a financial reportngrsight role is a former partner, principal, shalde
or professional employee of the outside auditonsl, may review any additional records or certifior necessary to verify the outside auditardependenc
under Regulation S-X.

5
First Second Third Fourth As
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Needed

8. review and discuss reports from the outsidétars on: X X

a. the Company’s critical accounting policies

b. all alternative treatments of financial infation within GAAP that have
been discussed with management, ramificationseotiie of such alternative
treatments, and the treatment preferred by thedsutiditors

c. other material written communications betw#enoutside auditors and
management, such as any management letter or detefdinadjusted differenc
9. review and discuss reports from the outsidetarsdon: X X X X X

a. conditions or matters, if any, that must h@oreed under generally
accepted auditing standards (including SAS No. iBt)uding:

i. difficulties or disputes with managementloe internal auditors
encountered during the audit

ii. the outside auditors’ views regarding the Quamy’s financial
disclosures, the quality of the Company’s accognfirinciples as applied,
the underlying estimates and other significant jndgts made by



management in preparing the financial statementstlze compatibility
of the Company’s principles and judgments with pikwvg practices and
standard:

b. matters, if any, that must be reported utiderfederal securities laws
(including Section 10A of the Exchange Act)

c. communications, if any, with the nationaliodfof the outside auditors
pertaining to the Company’s financial affairs

10. review with management, the internal audisord the outside auditors:

a. the Company’s annual assessment of its @teomtrols and the related
written reports required under 8404 of the Sarbahdsy Act

b. the adequacy of the Company’s internal cdsitro

c. reports, no less than quarterly, regarditerival control assessment
processes under 8404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Adudimg reports on any
“material weakness” or “significant deficiency” atfte Company’s remediation
steps

11. review with management and the outside awlit@jor issues regarding
accounting principles and financial statement preg®ns, if any, including (a)
significant changes in the Compasygelection or application of accounting princig
(b) major issues as to the adequacy of the Compdimgdncial reporting and (c)
special audit steps adopted in light of materidiciEncies

12. discuss with management and the outside asdhe effect of regulatory al

accounting initiatives as well as off-balance ststetctures on the Company’s
financial statements

13. discuss the Company’s major financial riskasyses and the steps
management has taken to monitor and control sugbsexes

14. review the accounting implications of sigrafi¢ new transactions, if any

Conduct of Meetings

15. in connection with filing each periodic repoftthe Company, review:

a. managemerst'required disclosure, if any, to the Audit Comesgtand th
outside auditors under §302 of the Sarbanes-OxtgyiAcluding changes in
internal controls over financial reporting

b. the certifications of the CompasyCEO and CFO included in such rej

16. receive reports, if any, regarding (a) noniasetvices that the Chairman (or
any subcommittee) pre-cleared the outside auditpetform since the last meeting,
(b) letters received by the Chairman under the Gomwijs accounting complaint
procedures and (c) any other “whistle blower” répatleging material violations
within the purview of the Audit Committee’s funatie

17. review the extent to which the Company hadempgnted changes in
practices or controls that were previously reconmbeerto or approved by the Audit
Committee

18. receive reports regarding significant chariggSAAP or accounting
pronouncements impacting the Audit Committee

19. meet in executive session with the outsidétans] internal auditors and

First Second Third
Quarter Quarter Quarter
X
X X X
X X X
X X X
X X X
First Second Third
Quarter Quarter Quarter
X
X X X
X X X
X X X
X X X

Fourth As
Quarter Needed
X
X X
X
X
Fourth As
Quarter Needed
X
X X
X
X
X X
X
X
X X



management, as necess

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Annual Reports

20. recommend to the Board whether the auditexhiral statements should be X
included in the Company’s 10-K report

21. approve the annual proxy statement repoti@®udit Committee required by X
the rules of the SEC

22. review the disclosures in each 10-K reporaréimg management’s internal X
control report required under §404 of the Sarbabeley Act

23. review the audit reports of the outside audito be included in the Compasy’ X
10-K report

Oversight of the Compahy Outside Auditors

24. pre-clear the engagement of the outside asdiboconduct any permissible
non-audit services not pre-cleared by the Chair(oaa subcommittee)

25. obtain and review a report from the outsidditaus regarding (a) the outside
auditor’s internal quality-control procedures, #my material issues raised by the most
recent internal quality-control review, or peeriesy, of the firm, or by any inquiry or
investigation by governmental or professional arittes within the preceding five ye:
respecting any audit engagement, (c) any steps takaeal with any such issues, and
(d) assurances that the outside auditing firmgsstered in good standing with the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

26. review and evaluate the qualifications andgoerance of the outside auditors X
and the lead audit partner, and ensure the rotafitime lead audit partner as require«
law

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

27. monitor the effectiveness of the Company’mbipolicies for employees or
former employees of the outside auditors (mainthimeder Section 10A(l) of the
Exchange Act and NYSE Rule 303A(7))

Oversight of the Company Internal Auditors

28. review the performance of the head of themaeaudit department, and
replace if necessary

29. meet, if possible, with the entire internadliting staff X

30. monitor the functioning of the internal auditidepartment, including (i) X
receiving updates on changes in plans, objectivessources and (i) reviewing
significant reports to management prepared byrttegnal auditing department and
management’s responses

31. review any difficulties encountered in the igguof the work of the internal X
auditing department

32. discuss with the outside auditors and managethe internal audit
department’s plans, responsibilities, preliminangdet, independence and staffing for
the upcoming year (including the use of third pdirtns) and any recommended
changes thereto

Compliance Oversight Responsibilities

33. monitor the effectiveness of the Company'ocedures for receiving, retainil
and handling confidential, anonymous complaintaréig accounting, controls or
auditing matters (maintained under SEC Rule 10A-3)

Fourth As
Quarter Needed
X
X
Fourth As
Quarter Needed
X
X X
X X
X
X
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34. discuss any correspondence with regulatogeeernmental agencies and any
published reports which raise material issues mbggrthe Company'’s financial
statements or accounting policies

35. review the adequacy of the Company’s discsontrols and procedures

36. review reports on “related party” transactions

37. solicit, as necessary, germane reports orrirdtion from the Risk Evaluation
Committee or other board committees with relateersights functions

38. review annually the procedures establisheth®yCompany to monitor its
compliance with debt covenants

39. consult periodically with counsel concernihg Audit Committee’s
responsibilities or legal matters that may haveagenial impact on the Company’s
financial statements, controls, or corporate coamaé procedures

Self Assessment

40. review annually the Audit Committee’s selfiev process

41. conduct self-review; verify that all Committeembers remain eligible to

serve

Charter

42. review this checklist and the related Audit@uittee charter annually, and

consider, adopt and submit to the Board any prapokanges

43. include a copy of the Audit Committee chaagm@n appendix to the proxy

statement at least once every three y

11

44. periodically review the charter of the intdraadit department, and consider
and adopt necessary chan

Last Revised:

November 17, 2009.

* * * % * %k % *x % * %

12

First Second Third
Quarter Quarter Quarter
X
X
X
First Second Third
Quarter Quarter Quarter

Fourth As
Quarter Needed
X
X X
X
X
X
X
X
Fourth As
Quarter Needed
X



Exhibit 3.4(b

CENTURY TEL, INC.

CHARTER OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(as amended through February 23, 2010)

. PRIMARY PURPOSE

The Compensation Committee is appointed by the Bpencipally to discharge the Board’s respondileii relating to compensation of the Company’s
executive officers and to oversee the administnadibthe Company’s equity incentive and executiompensation programs.

Il COMPOSITION

The Committee will consist of at least three dioest each of whom will be appointed and replacethkyBoard in accordance with the Company’s
bylaws. Each member of the Committee will meetitidependence requirements of the New York StoahBrge and at least two members will also quasfy a
a “non-employee” and “outside” director under RLGb-3 promulgated under the Securities ExchangefAt934 and Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, respectively. The Committee’s claspn will be designated by the Board. The Conemithay form and delegate authority to subcommittees
composed of its own members when appropriate.

IIl. MEETINGS

The chairperson of the Committee (or his or heighe from the Committee) will preside at each mmgednd, in consultation with the other members
of the Committee and management, will set the feegy of, and the agenda for, each meeting. Taetas# discharging its functions, the Committeayninvite
to its meetings other directors or representatdfenanagement, counsel and other persons whosegrgradvice or counsel is sought by the Committee.

V. AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES
In furtherance of the purpose of the Committee idlesd above, the Committee will have the followengthority and responsibilities:

1. The Committee will periodically revieamd approve goals and objectives relating to corsgéon of the executive officers and evaluate the
performance of the executive officers in lightloé$e goals and objectives. Based on this evatuatid input from other independent directors, then@ittee
will approve the compensation level of the CEO heaicthe other executive officers and any otheiceffsubject to Section 16 of the Securities Exgleafsct of
1934. The Committee will also oversee the annualuation of all other members of senior management

2. The Committee will oversee the adntiatton of the Companyg’ equity incentive and executive compensation @nogrand practices, includi
periodically assessing whether such programs aatipes are reasonably designed to (i) attractimeind motivate highly qualified personnel any (ii
appropriately align the interests of managementtheghareholders.

3. The Committee will review and apprdyeany proposed plan or arrangement offering ovling any incentive, retirement, supplemental or
other compensation, benefits or perquisites toasmaore of the Company’s executive officers (ottean any plan or arrangement offering benefits doatot
discriminate in scope, terms or operation in faafoexecutive officers and that are generally avdddo all salaried employees) and (ii) any sigifit
amendment or change to any such plan or arrangement

4. The Committee will review and apprd@yeany proposed employment, severance, retirentemhination or change-in-control contract between
the Company and an executive officer or proposedative officer and (ii) any proposed extensiosignificant amendment thereto.

5. The Committee shall review annualledior compensation and benefits and recommeng@posed changes to the Board for approval.

6. The Committee will exercise all powerpressly allocated to it under any of the Comfmbgnefit plans, including the powers to (i) grant
stock options and other equity-based awards theexamd (i) establish performance goals thereuaddrdetermine whether such goals have been attaifige
Committee will also have the authority to delegatgponsibility in accordance with the terms anddétions of each such applicable plan.

7. The Committee will have the authotiycreate, amend and terminate employee pensiafibplans and employee welfare benefit plans with
prior approval of or subsequent ratification by Beard. In connection with administering any sptdns, the Committee may, to the fullest extentrpied by
law, form and delegate authority to committees caseg partly or wholly of non-Committee membersl(iding without limitation the CenturyLink Retirenmten
Committee and the CenturyLink Welfare Benefits Cattem), and create, amend and terminate charteergimg the authority and responsibilities of such
committees.

8. The Committee, in consultation withmagement, will oversee compliance with laws andil@gns governing executive compensation,
including Rule 16b-3, Sections 162(m) and 409Ahef Internal Revenue Code, and the Sarbanes-OxlegfR002.

9. The Committee will issue committeeap in the manner required under the rules andlaéigns of the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission, including reports regarding the Conmeeit review and recommendation of the Compensé&tiscussion and Analysis to be included or
incorporated in the Company’s proxy statement amial report on Form 10-K.

10. The Committee will periodically asseisks arising out of the Company’s employee camp#on policies and practices.

11. The Committee will make regular répdo the Board.

12. The Committee will have the sole aitly to retain and terminate any compensation chiast retained to assist the Committee in dischar



its functions, and may, to the extent it deems s&@ey or appropriate, retain independent legadniiral or other advisors. The Committee will apero
related fees and other retention terms. The Cotaenitill have full access to the Company’s recoofficers, employees and outside advisors as necets
perform its duties.

13. The Committee will review and reassée adequacy of this Charter annually and recamraey proposed changes to the Board for
approval. The Committee will annually review itsroperformance.

14. The Committee will perform any otlservices or conduct any other activities consistétit applicable law, this Charter, and the Compsiny
organizational documents and corporate governanicelnes that the Board may delegate from timénte to the Committee, including adopting and
administering any necessary or appropriate stoakeoship guidelines under the Board’s supervision.

* k k Kk K* Kk Kk %

° Originally adopted and approved by the Committes tae Board on February 11, 2003, and Februar@33, respectively

° Section Il amended by the Committee and the Boarblay 27, 2003, and May 29, 2003, respectiv

° Sections I, Il and IV amended by the Committee taedBoard on February 25, 20(

° Sections I, Il and IV amended by the Committee twedBoard on February 26, 2007 and February 277 ,2@3pectively

° Sections I, 11, Il and IV amended by the Comesition November 18, 2009 and February 22, 2016f athich were ratified by the Board on

February 23, 201(



Exhibit 3.4(c
CENTURYTEL, INC.

CHARTER OF THE NOMINATING AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(as amended through November 17, 2009)

I PURPOSE

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committeg@pointed by the Board principally to (1) astistBoard by identifying individuals qualified
serve as directors and officers of the Company tamdcommend to the Board nominees for such positi(2)monitor the composition of the Board asd it
committees, (3) recommend to the Board a set gfazate governance guidelines applicable to the Goyppnd (4) lead the Board in its annual reviewhef
Board’s performance.

Il COMPOSITION

The Committee shall consist of at least three thirsg each of whom will be appointed and replacethe Board in accordance with the Company’s
bylaws. Each member of the Committee shall meetritiependence requirements of the New York Stoah&nhge. The Committee’s chairperson shall be
designated by the Board. The Committee may forchdmlegate authority to subcommittees when appatspri

IIl. MEETINGS

The chairperson of the Committee (or his or heigie from the Committee) will preside at each iingeand, in consultation with the other members
of the Committee, will set the frequency of, ane #yenda for, each meeting. To assist it in digihg its functions, the Committee may invite ®rteetings
other directors or representatives of managementsel and other persons whose pertinent advicewrsel is sought by the Committee.

V. AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES
In furtherance of the purpose of the Committee idlesd above, the Committee shall have the followanthority and responsibilities:

1. The Committee shall lead the searclinfdividuals qualified to serve as directors, éamdecommend to the Board a slate of directorsto b
elected annually by the shareholders. In connedtierewith, the Committee (i) shall consider cdatés submitted by shareholders in accordancetiéth
Company'’s bylaws, (ii) shall monitor the performarand contributions of incumbent directors and fiiay, to the extent it deems necessary or ap@i@pri
develop and recommend to the Board specific caitfeni selecting director nominees consistent with€@ompany’s corporate governance guidelines. The
Committee shall also recommend to the Board a slatéficers to be elected annually by the Board endividuals to fill vacancies among the senidicafrs or
directors as the need arises.

1

2. The Committee shall monitor the operabf the Board’s committees. In connection thetieythe Committee (i) shall recommend to the Board
a slate of directors to be elected annually toesas/committee members and, unless otherwise big the Company’s bylaws, directors to fill corttee
vacancies as needed and (ii) may recommend todhedBhanges in committee structure and operatiodsiding the creation and elimination of comnése

3. The Committee shall, no less than afipureview and reassess the adequacy of the Coyigpeorporate governance guidelines and this
Charter, and recommend any proposed changes Botme for approval.

4. The Committee shall receive commemmifall directors and report annually to the Boaith an assessment of the Board’s performancegto b
discussed with the full Board. The Committee shatually review its own performance, and shallrege the annual self-review of each of the other8o
committees.

5. The Committee may make recommendatiotise Board concerning the size and compositidheBoard, the term of membership of
directors, and the frequency, content and struaifiBoard meetings.

6. The Committee shall review and oveesgedirector orientation or continuing directouedtion programs established by the Company.

7. The Committee shall conduct an annexdew of the CEQO'’s performance, and report itglifigs to the Board. The Committee shall also
periodically report to the Board on succession mitag for the senior executive officers. If the CH@s or becomes disabled and the Board of Directoes not
name an interim CEO within 72 hours of being ad¥igereof, then the Committee shall have the pdawappoint one of the Company’s executive offigars
directors (other than those serving on the Comajitas an interim CEO until the Board can electw 6&0O.

8. The Committee shall make regular reptar the Board.

9. The Committee shall have the solearitthto retain and terminate any search firm taibed to identify director or officer candidates amay,
to the extent it deems necessary or appropridnrandependent legal, financial or other advisofee Committee shall approve related fees anerggtention
terms. The Committee will have full access toG@mnpany'’s records, officers, employees and outhiésors as necessary to perform its duties.

10. The Committee shall also dischargeaatditional functions that may be assigned to thie Company’s corporate governance guidelines or
organizational documents, or any such additionattions consistent with such documents, this Chartepplicable law that the Board may delegatassign to
it from time to time, including (i) considering ggi®ns of conflict of interest of directors or exéee officers, (ii) reviewing the functions andsponsibilities of
the senior officers and (iii) considering signifitaorporate governance issues or shareholdermedassues that may arise from time to time.

* *x *x % * *x * * *x *



Originally adopted and approved by the Committe the Board on January 30, 2003 and February Z8,28spectively
Sections Il and IV amended by the Committee andBtherd on February 19, 2004 and February 25, 2@&pectively
Iltems 7, 8 and 11 of Section IV amended by each@fCommittee and the Board on June 30, 2

Section Il and various items of Section IV amentgdhe Committee and the Board on November 109 20@ November 17, 2009, respectiv(



Exhibit 3.4(d

CENTURY TEL, INC.

CHARTER FOR RISK EVALUATION COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(as amended through February 23, 2010)

. PURPOSE
The Risk Evaluation Committee is appointed by tlbaf8l to identify, monitor and manage risks to tleenpany’s business, properties and employees.
1. COMPOSITION

The Committee will consist of at least three dioest each of whom will be appointed and replacethbyBoard in accordance with the Company’s
bylaws. The Committee’s chairman will be desigddtg the Board. The Committee may form and detegathority to subcommittees when appropriate.

1. MEETINGS

The chairman of the Committee (or his or her desgginom the Committee) will preside at each meeding, in consultation with the other members of
the Committee and management, will set the frequefcand the agenda for, each meetipgyvided, howevethat any member of the Committee may call a
meeting in his or her discretion. To assist itlischarging its functions, the Committee may intitéts meetings other directors or representatbfes
management, counsel and other persons whose perdideice or counsel is sought by the Committee.
V. AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES

In furtherance of the purpose of the Committee idlesd above, the Committee will have the followenghority and responsibilities:

1. The Committee will review periodicatlye Company’s major risk exposures in the arestsdibelow:
(@) risks to the Company'’s propertiesl(iding its information systems) posed by casuatgnts, terrorism, sabotage or theft
(b) risks to the Company'’s business caulsepotential or actual regulatory developmenttherCompany'’s failure to comply with

applicable telecommunications regulations

1
(c) risks to the Company’s business cdimsethe failure to comply with environmental, sgfdealth or other similar laws
(d) risks of potential, threatened orgiag rate cases or lawsuits.
2. The Committee will review periodicathye steps that the Company has taken or couldttakstigate major risks identified above or ankiars

subsequently identified. In connection therewtitte, Committee will periodically review the scopelatdequacy of the Compasyinsurance programs, subjec
receiving the approval or ratification of the Bodod material changes to such programs.

3. The Committee will oversee the operatf the Company’s corporate compliance prograchm@ncedures. In connection therewith, the
Committee (i) will review periodically the effecéness and adequacy of the Company’s corporate @mplprogram and procedures and recommend to the
Board any necessary proposed changes theretmayi) to the extent it deems necessary or apprepiiatestigate or cause to be investigated anynabte
instance of noncompliance and (iii) may, to theeekit deems necessary or appropriate, grant wateedirectors or executive officers from the coflethics
and business conduct contained in the Companyfsocate compliance program and procedures.

4. The Committee will oversee the Compsnigk management, loss prevention and safetyrarag and activities, including (i) periodically
assessing whether such programs and activitiesoa®stent with the Company’s risk tolerance lewagid (ii) receiving periodic reports from the Compa
enterprise risk management personnel.

5. The Committee will monitor the funetmof the Board and its other committees to enthaemanagement (or the chairpersons of other
committees) are periodically making presentationthé Board regarding other major risk exposuresiimectly monitored by the Committee.

6. The Committee will make regular repdd the Board summarizing the Committee’s actsiti
7. The Committee will have full accesshte Company’s records, officers, employees ansidetadvisors as necessary to perform its duties.
8. The Committee will also discharge adgitional functions consistent with this Charted ghe Company’s organizational documents that may

be delegated or assigned to it by the Board frome tio time.

9. The Committee will review and reassbssadequacy of this Charter annually and reconanaay proposed changes to the Board for
approval. The Committee will annually review itgroperformance.

* * % * % * *x *

° Originally adopted and approved by the Committez the Board on February 18, 2003 and February @53 2espectively



2
Sections Il and IV amended by the Committee andBterd on February 19, 2004 and February 25, 2@3pectively
Section V(1) and 1V(6) amended by the Committee tre Board on December 5, 2007 and February Zi8,28spectively

Sections Il and IV amended by the Committee ardBbard on December 10, 2009 and February 23, 264f0ectively



Exhibit 10.1(a

FIFTH AMENDMENT TO THE
CENTURYTEL DOLLARS & SENSE 401(K) PLAN
AS AMENDED AND RESTATED
EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 31, 2006

WHEREAS, the CenturyTel Dollars & Sense 401(k) Plan (“Plawgs amended and restated by CenturyTel, Inc.“Gbenpany”) effective Decemb

31, 2006;

WHEREAS , the Company desires to amend the Plan to fullgpdg with the final Treasury Regulations under intd Revenue Code § 415;

WHEREAS , the Company reserved the right to amend the Rlé8ection 14.2 of the Plan and delegated to thrd®eent Committee the right
amend the Plan to comply with changes in govertang and regulations;

NOW, THEREFORE, effective January 1, 2008, the Plan is amended|ksf:

Paragraph (a) of Section 1.13, Compensationis amended and restated in its entirety to readsafollows:

@)

Compensation Effective January 1, 2007, Compensation shadiméor all Participating Employers, the total amitsupaid to a Participant by
an Employer reported on Form W-2 of the Particigdus Elective Deferrals, including Catcip-Contributions, made pursuant to Section 3
of the Plan, contributions to Code Section 125 @laontributions to pay for qualified transportatfainge benefits under Code Section 132(f)
(2), and effective January 1, 2008, payments méde severance from employment for services rertldtging the Participant’s regular
working hours, provided such payments are madeém@hz months after severance from employment yahb end of the Plan Year in which
the severance from employment occurred, if lated) such payments would have been paid to the Renticprior to severance from
employment if the Participant had continued in esyplent and would have been treated as Compenstgrch time. Compensation shall
exclude the following unless stated otherw

@) Overtime; however, if an Employee has fewem 80 hours of standard pay in his two weekghperiod, overtime pay is
converted to standard pay until the Employee haso8@s for Plan purpose

(i) Back-pay awards
(iii) Premium pay
(iv) Broad-based bonuses not included undeEtheloyer's normal compensation programs, sucloagtetion bonuses, referral

bonuses, relocation bonuses, and Christmas borpsiess & awards gross-up, prizes & awards, (teanfiopmance awards and
individual performance bonuses are includ:

(v) Reimbursements or other expense allowarsted as meal allowances, imputed income, spe@édits for waiver of benefits,
executive cash allowance, tax gross-up compensdtarsing allowance, moving expenses, and all athsh and non-cash fringe
benefits;

(vi) Deferred compensation, employee stock purchase slack appreciation rights, stock options, andavelbenefits

(vii) Restricted stock awards under the Com|'s Restricted Stock Plan or Key Employee Incentisen@ensation Plan; ar
(viii) Severance pay or termination pay in any fc

The first sentence of Paragraph (b), Section 415 @ypensation, of Section 1.13, Compensationis amended to read as follows:

Section 415 Compensation shallmeanpensation as that term is used in Sectioncy(B)(of the Code.

Paragraph (b), Correction of Excess Annual Additiors , of Section 5.1, Defined Contribution Limitation, is amended and restated in its entirety
to read as follows:

(b)

Correction of Excess Annual Additiondf, as a result of the allocation of forfeituresreasonable error in estimating the ParticigaBéction
415 Compensation, or a reasonable error in estigndtie amount of Elective Deferrals that may beenaith respect to any Participant under
the limits of Section 415 of the Code or under pfaets and circumstances permitted by the Comaonissiof the Internal Revenue Service,
Annual Additions exceed the limitation set forthSection 5.1(a), the excess will be disposed akizordance with the Employee Plans
Compliance Resolution System (EPCRS), Rev. Pra@8-BD, 2008-35 I.R.B. 464, or such other methodé®med acceptable by the Internal
Revenue Servict

V.

Paragraph (c), Annual Addition , of Section 5.1, Defined Contribution Limitation, is amended and restated in its entirety to readsafollows:

©

Annual Addition Annual Addition means annual addition as teamtis used in Section 415(c)(2) of the Code arh3ury Regulation
Section 1.415(-1(b).



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has executed this amendment on3ttisdhy of September, 2009.

CENTURYTEL, INC.

By: /s/ Stacey W. Gofi

Name: Stacey W. Go

Title: Executive Vice-President,
General Counsel and Secre




Exhibit 10.1(a

SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE
CENTURYTEL DOLLARS & SENSE 401(K) PLAN

WHEREAS , the CenturyTel Dollars & Sense 401(k) Plan (“Plamgs amended and restated by CenturyTel, Inc.‘@benpany”)effective Decembe
31, 2006;

WHEREAS , the Company must amend the Plan to bring itéotopliance with the Pension Protection Act of 2088 A”"), the Heroes Earnings
Assistance and Relief Tax Act of 2008 (the “HEAR®EtA, and the Worker, Retiree, and Employee Recpyat of 2008 (the “Recovery Act”);

WHEREAS , the Company wishes to revise the Plan’s provssiegarding administration of the Plan; and
WHEREAS , the Company reserved the right to amend the iRI&ection 14.2 of the Plan;
NOW, THEREFORE, the Plan is amended as follows:

I

Effective January 1, 2010, Section 1.10, Committeés amended to read in its entirety as follows:

Committee means the CenturyLink Retirement Committee, whictihé committee that administers the Plan purswoaéitticle XIII.
I.
Effective January 1, 2009, Section 1.13, Compensati, is amended to add a new paragraph at the end ofich section that reads as follows:

For Plan Years beginning after December 31, 20Da&nf individual receiving a differential wage magnt, as defined by Section 3401(h)(2) of
the Code, is treated as an Employee of the Emplogéing the payment, (ii) the differential wage peant is treated as Compensation, and (iii)
the Plan is not treated as failing to meet theirequents of any provision described in Section 4)@4((C) of the Code by reason of any
contribution or benefit that is based on the défdral wage payment. Clause (iii) of the previsaatence applies only if all Employees of the
Employer performing service in the uniformed sesgidescribed in Section 3401(h)(2)(A) of the Codeeatitled to receive differential wage
payments (as defined in Section 3401(h)(2) of tbde} on reasonably equivalent terms and, if elgiblparticipate in a qualified retirement
plan maintained by the Employer, to make contrimgibased on the payments on reasonably equitalems (taking into account Sections 410
(b)(3), (4), and (5) of the Code).

1
Il

Effective January 1, 2008, the first and third pargraphs of Subsection (c) of Section 3.1, Electiveefgrrals , are amended in their entirety tc
read as follows:

Limitation on Elective Deferral No Participant may make Elective Deferrals urttiex Plan, or any other qualified plan maintaibgdhe Employer
during any taxable year, in excess of the dolhaitéition in Section 402(g) of the Code in effeat$ach taxable year, except to the extent permitted
under Section 3.1(d) of this Plan and Section 41d{the Code, if applicable. Notwithstanding aker provisions of the Plan, the Employer may
distribute to the Participant, not later than Ad#sl following the calendar year to which the dedkis attributable, any deferral in excess of tfogesaid
limit together with any earnings allocable therégt@ugh the end of the calendar year to which #ferdal is attributable. A Participant is deemed to
notify the Committee of any Excess Deferrals thiseaunder this Plan and any other plans of thipleyer. The Employer may also distribute to the
Participant any deferrals, together with any incattecable thereto through the end of the calegdar to which the deferral is attributable, whibk t
Participant has advised the Employer in writingMigrch 1 represent excess deferrals because of amdeferred in the preceding year by the
Participant under any other plans or arrangemeggsribed in Section 401(k), 408(k) or 403(b) of Guxle.

Determination of Earnings Excess Deferrals shall be adjusted for any egmihrough the end of the calendar year to whiehdeferral is

attributable. The amount of earnings allocablExoess Deferrals is the income or loss allocabteedParticipant’s Elective Deferral Account foeth
Plan Year multiplied by a fraction, the numeratbwhich is such Participant's Excess Deferralstfar Plan Year and the denominator is the
Participant’s account balance attributable to BledDeferrals as of the beginning of the Plan Ya@as the Participant’s Elective Deferrals for tHarP
Year. Notwithstanding, the Committee may use aagonable method for computing the income allocablexcess Deferrals, provided the method is
used consistently for all Participants and forcalirective distributions under the Plan for thenPYaar, and is used by the Plan for allocating inedo
Participants’ accounts.

V.

Effective January 1, 2008, the first sentence of éhfirst paragraph of Subsection (e) of Section 3.8\verage Actual Deferral Percentage
Percentage Test under Section 401(k) of the Codés amended in its entirety to read as follows:

Distribution of Excess ContributionsNotwithstanding any other provisions of thisrRIBxcess Contributions (defined below), plus any
income and minus any loss allocable thereto thrabglend of the Plan Year in which the Excess @mutions were allocated, shall be
distributed no later than the last day of each Mear to Participants to whose accounts such Ex€estributions were allocated for the
preceding Plan Year except to the extent the ExCessributions are classified as Catch-Up Contidng.

2.

V.



Effective January 1, 2008, the first two sentencex the third paragraph of Section 3.9(e) are amendkin their entirety to read as follows:

Determination of Income or LossExcess Contributions shall be adjusted for aogine (gain or loss) through the end of the Plaar e

which the Excess Contributions were allocated. ifikeme or loss allocable to Excess Contributiofecated to each Participant is the income
or loss allocable to the Participant’s Elective &edl Account (and, if applicable, the QualifiedriNBlective Contribution Account or the
Qualified Matching Contribution Account or both) fine Plan Year multiplied by a fraction, the nuater of which is such Participant’s Excess
Contributions for the year and the denominator bicl is the Participant’s account balance attriblatao Elective Deferrals (and Qualified
Non-Elective Contributions or Qualified Matching @@dbutions, or both, if any of such contributicar® included in the ADP test) without
regard to any income or loss occurring during delizn Year.

VL.

Effective January 1, 2008, the first sentence of ¢hfirst paragraph of Subsection (e) of Section 3.1Qimitations on Employee Contributions and
Employer Matching Contributions , is amended in its entirety to read as follows:

Notwithstanding any other provision of this PlarcEss Aggregate Contributions, plus any incomenaimis any loss allocable thereto through
the end of the Plan Year in which the Excess Agage@ontributions were allocated, shall be fortkiieforfeitable, or if not forfeitable, shall

be distributed no later than the last day of edah Fear to Participants to whose accounts sucleg&xéggregate Contributions were allocated
for the preceding Plan Year.

VII.
Effective January 1, 2008, the first two sentencex the second paragraph of Section 3.10(e) are anded in their entirety to read as follows:

Excess Aggregate Contributions shall be adjustedrig income (gain or loss) through the end ofRtan Year in which the Excess Aggregate
Contributions were allocated. The income or Idkxable to Excess Aggregate Contributions allodateeach Participant is the income or loss
allocable to the Participant’s Employee Contribngi@nd Matching Contributions and other amountsrtakto account under this Section 3.10
(including the contributions for the year), by adtion, the numerator of which is such ParticipaBixcess Aggregate Contributions for the year
and the denominator of which is the Participantsoaunt balance attributable to Elective Employeat@loutions and Matching Contributions
and other amounts taken into account under thisde8.10 as of the beginning of the Plan Year amgl additional such contributions for the
year.

VIII.

Effective January 1, 2007, Section 6.3, Deaths amended to add a new paragraph at the end ofich section to read as follows:

In the case of a death occurring on or after Janlig2007, if a Participant dies while performingatified military service (as defined in
Section 414(u) of the Code), the survivors of thetiBipant are entitled to any additional benegfither than benefit accruals relating to the
period of qualified military service) provided umdbe Plan as if the Participant had resumed aen thrminated employment on account of
death.

IX.

Effective January 1, 2007, the second sentence bétsecond paragraph of Subsection (b)(1) of Secti@n8, Direct Rollover, is amended in its
entirety to read as follows:

However, such portion may be transferred only tindividual retirement account or annuity descrilie@€ode Section 408(a) or (b), or to a
qualified defined benefit plan or a qualified defihcontribution plan described in Code Section dpaf 403(a) that agrees to separately

account for amounts so transferred, including sephr accounting for the portion of such distribatwhich is includable in gross income and
the portion of such distribution which is not salirdable.

X.
Effective January 1, 2008, the first sentence of 8&on 7.8(b)(2) is amended in its entirety to reads follows:
An eligible retirement plan is an individual retiment account described in Section 408(a) of theeCad individual retirement annuity
described in Section 408(b) of the Code, an anrmliéy described in Section 403(a) of the Code,aifipd trust described in Section 401(a) of
the Code, or a Roth IRA as described in SectiorAddfdhe Code, that accepts the distributee’s elerollover distribution.

XI.

Effective April 6, 2007, Section 7.9, Qualified Domstic Relations Order, is amended to add a new paragraph at the end afich section to read
as follows:

A domestic relations order that otherwise satidfiesrequirements for a qualified domestic relaiorder will not fail to be a qualified domestic
relations order solely because of the time therdsdissued or because the order is issued afteevises, another domestic relations order or
qualified domestic relations order. Such ordesusject to the same requirements and protectionshvapply to qualified domestic relations
orders, including the procedures described in 8eetil4(p)(7) of the Code during the period the iheiteation is being made.



XIl.
Effective January 1, 2010, Article XlII, Administration of the Plan, is amended in its entirety to red as follows:
ARTICLE Xl
FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES AND PLAN ADMINISTRATION
13.1 Allocation of Fiduciary Responsibilities. Fiduciary responsibilities in connection with thiafPshall be allocated in
accordance with the provisions of this Article Xaimd shall be carried out in accordance with tlaaRhe Charter of the CenturyLink
Retirement Committee (the “Charter”) and applicdble. It is intended that, to the extent permitbgcapplicable law, each fiduciary shall be

obligated to discharge only the responsibilitiesigreed to such fiduciary and that such fiduciarglisiot be charged with the responsibilities
assigned to any other fiduciary.

13.2 Committee . The Committee shall serve as the Administratodedmed in ERISA Section 3(16)(A). The Committee i
also the Named Fiduciary, as defined in ERISA ®ecti02(a)(2). The Committee shall be charged vhighfull power and responsibility for
administering the Plan in accordance with the teants delegations stated in the Plan and the Charter

13.3 Membership of the Committee. The Committee shall consist of 5 members. Tkairpersons of the Committee shall
be the persons serving from time to time as thedB&fice-President Human Resources and as the S¥ite-President, Treasurer of the
Company (or equivalent positions if such positiaondonger exist). The Chairpersons shall joinfip@int the remaining members of the
Committee from among the officers and employedb@iCompany or an Affiliated Employer as at largenmbers. The Chairpersons may
jointly remove and replace any member of the Conemiat any time and shall replace any member wéigne in writing or who otherwise
becomes unable to serve. If the positions onedgimt positions of Senior Vice-President Humandreses or Senior Vice-President,
Treasurer or both cease to exist within Centurylanka Chairperson resigns his or her position a&rgarson of the Committee or otherwise
becomes unable to serve (unless and until an dguivposition is created and filled or another widiial is appointed to the officer position of
such Chairperson), the vacancy shall be temportiltég by the other most tenured officer in therian Resources Department or Treasury
Department of the Company, as the case may bejsaieither an executive officer of CenturyLink romember of the CenturyLink Pension
Benefit Administration Committee and who has navously resigned as a Chairperson of the Commititethe Committee is required to take
any action before a vacancy is filled, the remanimembers may act before the vacancy is filled.

13.4 Duties and Responsibilities of Fiduciaries A Plan fiduciary shall have only those specific gosy duties, responsibilities
and obligations as are explicitly given to suchuéidiry under the Charter, Plan and Trust Agreeraedtshall not be responsible for any act or
failure to act of another fiduciary. The Commits®ll have the sole responsibility for the adntmaison of the Plan, as more fully described in
Section 13.5 of the Plan and in the Charter tcettient that it is not inconsistent with the prowis of this Article XIII.

135 Plan Administrator . The Committee shall be responsible for the admitisin of the Plan. In addition to any implied
powers and duties that may be necessary or apptea the conduct of its affairs, the Committealldtave the following powers and duties,
including the discretionary power:

(@) to make and enforce such rules and regulationissésil determine to be necessary or proper foatiministration of the Plai

(b) to i.nte.rpret the Plan and to decide all mattersirggithereunder, including the right to remedy pmesambiguities, inconsistencies, ¢
omissions

(c) to determine the right of any person to benefitdenrthe Plan and the amount of such bene

(d) to issue instructions to a Trustee or ineae company to make disbursements and loans Frefirust, and to make any other

arrangement necessary or appropriate to providthéorderly payment and delivery of disburseméats the Trust

(e) to direct the Trustee regarding Plan Investmemid ta select Investment Options, in accordance $éttions 1.33 and 4.7 of the PI
() to delegate to other persons such of its respditigibias it may determint
(9) to employ suitable agents, actuaries, auditors| legunsel, and other advisers as it may deterr
(h) to allocate among its members such of its respditigib as it may determine; ar
6.
0] to prepare, file, and distribute such forms, sta&tets, descriptions, returns, and reports relatrtpeé Plan as may be required by |

The foregoing list of express powers is not intehtiebe either complete or conclusive, but the Cdtemshall, in addition, have such
powers as it may reasonably determine to be negessthe performance of its duties under the Rlad as specified in the Charter. The
decision or judgment of the Committee on any qoesdirising in connection with the exercise of ahitopowers or any matter of Plan
Administration or the determination of benefitslsba final, binding and conclusive upon all past@oncerned.

13.6 Committee Reliance on Professional AdviceThe Committee is authorized to obtain, and actherbiasis of, tables,
valuations, certificates, opinions, and reportaihied by an enrolled actuary, accountant, legahsel, or other advisors.

13.7 Liabilities . The Company shall indemnify and defend any Rtrciary who is an officer, director, or employekthe
Company, another Employer or an Affiliated Emploggainst any claim or liability that arises fronyattion or inaction in connection with
the Plan, subject to the following rule



(a) Coverage shall be limited to actions taken in gtath that the fiduciary reasonably believed weoté opposed to the be
interest of the Plar

(b) Negligence by the fiduciary shall be covered toftilest extent permitted by law; ai
(c) Coverage by the Company shall be reduced to tlenegf any insurance coveray

13.8 Plan Administration Expenses. All reasonable expenses of administering the Rfartuding, without limitation, the
expenses of the Committee) shall be paid out o&fisets of the Trust, in accordance with and t@xttent provided in the provisions of the
Trust Agreement, except to the extent paid by them@any without request by the Company for reimbuesg from the
Trust. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence Gbenmittee may direct the Trustee to charge reddersministrative expenses of the Plan
to Participants, including but not limited to féegprocess domestic relations orders, but onlfa¢ceixtent that such charges to Participants’
Accounts are consistent with ERISA and interpreéagjuidance thereunder issued by the DOL.

13.9 Responsibilities of Trustee Each Trustee shall be responsible for the custdtlyeoassets of the Plan assigned to it,
making disbursements at the order of the Committed,accounting for all receipts and disbursemirgtsissets of the Plan assigned to it.

7.

13.10 Investment Management by Trustee Each Trustee shall be responsible for managingnthestment of the Plan assets
in its custody, or any part thereof, when diredtedo so by the Committee in accordance with thageof the Trust Agreement.

13.11 QDRO Procedures. The Committee shall establish written procedtwedetermine the qualified status of domestic
relations orders and to administer distributiondarmualified domestic relations. Such procedstesd| be consistent with any regulations
prescribed under Section 206(d) of ERISA. The Cdatbe shall promptly notify the Participant and alternate payee (as defined in Section
206(d)(3)(K) of ERISA) of the receipt of an orderathe procedures for determining the qualifiedustaf domestic relations orders. Within a
reasonable period after receipt of an order, th@@ittee shall determine whether the order is giealibnd shall notify the Participant and each
alternate payee of such determination. Duringmemjod in which the qualified status of a domestiations order is being determined (by the
Committee, by a court, or otherwise), the Commitieall direct the Trustee to account separatelyhi@ramounts that would have been payable
to each alternate payee if the order had beenndited to be a Qualified Domestic Relations OrdQRO”). If within 18 months of the
receipt of the order, the order (or modificatiorreof) is determined to be a QDRO, the Committed! slirect the Trustee to pay the segregated
amounts (plus any interest thereon) to the pers@eisons entitled thereto. If within 18 monthgtaf receipt of the order, it is determined that
the order is not qualified, or the issue as to Weethe order is qualified is not resolved, them @ommittee shall direct the Trustee to pay the
segregated amount (plus any interest thereonkgtpéhson or persons who would have been entitledd¢h amounts if there had been no
order. Any determination that an order is quatifibat is made after the close of the 18 monthogeshall be applied prospectively only.

13.12 Service in Multiple Fiduciary Capacities. Any person or group of persons may serve in maa tne fiduciary
capacity with respect to the Plan, in accordandk $&ction 402(c) (1) of ERISA.

13.13 Claims Procedure. Any claim or appeal for benefits under thisrP$hall be made in writing in such form and pursuan
to such procedures as are prescribed by the Coemnatid set forth in the Plan’s summary plan detsonip

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company has executed this amendment onQttisdzly of December, 2009.

CENTURYTEL, INC.

By: /sl Stacey W. Gofi

Name: Stacey W. Go

Title: Executive Vice-President,
General Counsel and Secre




Exhibit 10.1(b

FIFTH AMENDMENT TO THE
CENTURYTEL UNION 401(K) PLAN
AS AMENDED AND RESTATED
EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 31, 2006

WHEREAS, the CenturyTel Union 401(k) Plan (“Plan”) was ameth@nd restated by CenturyTel, Inc. (the “Compaeffgctive December 31, 2006;
WHEREAS , the Company desires to amend the Plan to fultypdp with the final Treasury Regulations under intd Revenue Code § 415;

WHEREAS , the Company reserved the right to amend the iRI&ection 13.1 of the Plan and delegated to thadReent Committee the right to
amend the Plan to comply with changes in goverténg and regulations;

NOW, THEREFORE, effective January 1, 2008, the Plan is amended|esf:
l.
Paragraph (a) of Section 1.14, Compensationis amended and restated in its entirety to readsafollows:

(@) Compensation Effective January 1, 2007, Compensation shadimrthe total amounts paid to a Participant by aplByer reported on
Form W-2 of the Participant plus Elective Deferrateluding Catch-up Contributions, made pursuarféction 3.1(d) of the Plan,
contributions to Code Section 125 plans, contrimgito pay for qualified transportation fringe biélseinder Code Section 132(f)(2), and
effective January 1, 2008, payments made afteraage from employment for services rendered duthiegParticipant’s regular working
hours, provided such payments are made within 20¥iting after severance from employment (or by tlieadrihe Plan Year in which the
severance from employment occurred, if later) arahgayments would have been paid to the Partitjp@or to severance from
employment if the Participant had continued in esypient and would have been treated as Compenstgrch time. Compensation
shall exclude the following unless stated othern

Q) Overtime (for Group B Participants only)owever, if a Group B Participant has fewer tharnm80rs of standard pay, in such
Employee’s payroll period, overtime pay is conveitie standard pay until the Employee has 80 harrPlan purposes (40 hours
if on a weekly payroll)

2) Reimbursements or other expense allowarsces, as meal allowances, imputed income, spewdlts for waiver of benefits,
housing allowance, moving expenses, and all othsh and nc-cash fringe benefit:

3) Deferred compensation, and welfare benefits;

4) Severance pay or termination pay in any fc

The first sentence of Paragraph (b), Section 415 @mensation, of Section 1.14, Compensationis amended to read as follows:

Section 415 Compensation shall mean compensatitraaterm is used in Section 415(c)(3) of the Code
.

Paragraph (b), Correction of Excess Annual Additiors , of Section 5.1, Defined Contribution Limitation, is amended and restated in its entirety
to read as follows:

(b) Correction of Excess Annual Additiondf, as a result of the allocation of forfeituresreasonable error in estimating the Particigant’
Section 415 Compensation, or a reasonable ermstimating the amount of Elective Deferrals thay i@ made with respect to any
Participant under the limits of Section 415 of @ede or under other facts and circumstances peuirily the Commissioner of the Inter
Revenue Service, Annual Additions exceed the litiwitaset forth in Section 5.1(a), the excess welidisposed of in accordance with the
Employee Plans Compliance Resolution System (EPCORS). Proc. 2008-50, 2008-35 I.R.B. 464, or sutieiomethod(s) deemed
acceptable by the Internal Revenue Sen

V.

Paragraph (c), Annual Addition , of Section 5.1, Defined Contribution Limitation, is amended and restated in its entirety to readsafollows:

(c) Annual Addition Annual Addition means annual addition as thanhtes used in Section 415(c)(2) of the Code and3uey Regulation
Section 1.415(-1(b).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company has executed this amendment onSithisdhy of September, 2009.

CENTURYTEL, INC.

By: /sl Stacey W. Gofi

Name: Stacey W. Go

Title: Executive Vice-President,
General Counsel and Secre




Exhibit 10.1(b

SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE
CENTURYTEL UNION 401(K) PLAN
WHEREAS, the CenturyTel Union 401(k) Plan (“Plan”) was ameth@nd restated by CenturyTel, Inc. (the “Compaeffgctive December 31, 2006;

WHEREAS , the Company must amend the Plan to bring it éemmpliance with the Pension Protection Act of 20B8A"), the Heroes Earnings
Assistance and Relief Tax Act of 2008 (the “HEARGtA, and the Worker, Retiree, and Employee Recpyat of 2008 (the “Recovery Act”);

WHEREAS , the Company wishes to revise the Plan’s provisi@garding administration of the Plan;

WHEREAS , the Company reserved the right to amend the iRl&ection 13.1 of the Plan and delegated to thedReent Committee the right to
amend the Plan to comply with changes in govertémng and regulations;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Plan is amended effective as of the datesdstetiow, as follows:

Effective January 1, 2010, Section 1.11, Committees amended to read in its entirety as follows:
Committee means the CenturyLink Retirement Committee, whictihé committee that administers the Plan pursioaftticle XII.
Il
Effective January 1, 2009, Section 1.14, Compensati, is amended to add a new paragraph at the end afich section that reads as follows:

For Plan Years beginning after December 31, 20D&nf individual receiving a differential wage magnt, as defined by Section 3401(h)(2) of
the Code, is treated as an Employee of the Employdang the payment, (ii) the differential wage pent is treated as Compensation, and (iii)
the Plan is not treated as failing to meet the irequents of any provision described in Section 4J4((C) of the Code by reason of any
contribution or benefit that is based on the dédferal wage payment. Clause (iii) of the previeaatence applies only if all Employees of the
Employer performing service in the uniformed sesgicdescribed in Section 3401(h)(2)(A) of the Codeeatitled to receive differential wage
payments (as defined in Section 3401(h)(2) of tbdeJ on reasonably equivalent terms and, if elggiblparticipate in a qualified retirement
plan maintained by the Employer, to make contriingibased on the payments on reasonably equitalems (taking into account Sections 410
(b)(3), (4), and (5) of the Code).

1
.

Effective January 1, 2008, the first and second pagraphs of Subsection (c) of Section 3.1, Electileferrals , are amended in their entirety to
read as follows:

Limitation on Elective Deferral No Participant may make Elective Deferrals urter Plan, or any other qualified plan maintaibgdhe
Employer during any taxable year, in excess ofdibl&ar limitation in Section 402(g) of the Codedffect for such taxable year, except to the
extent permitted under Section 3.1(d) of this Rlad Section 414(v) of the Code, if applicable. Wttstanding any other provisions of the
Plan, the Employer may distribute to the Partictpant later than April 15 following the calendarayr to which the deferral is attributable, any
deferral in excess of the aforesaid limit togetliigh any earnings allocable thereto through the @rttie calendar year to which the deferral is
attributable. A Participant is deemed to notify @emmittee of any Excess Deferrals that arise utidePlan and any other plans of this
Employer. The Employer may also distribute to thetifipant any deferrals, together with any incatiecable thereto through the end of the
calendar year to which the deferral is attributablleich the Participant has advised the Employevriting by March 1 represent excess
deferrals because of amounts deferred in the pireggear by the Participant under any other plar&r@ngements described in Section 401
(k), 408(k) or 403(b) of the Code.

Determination of Earnings Excess Deferrals shall be adjusted for any egmihrough the end of the calendar year to whieldeferral is
attributable. The amount of earnings allocablExoess Deferrals is the income or loss allocabteedParticipant’s Elective Deferral Account
for the Plan Year multiplied by a fraction, the renator of which is such Participant’'s Excess Deiflsrfor the Plan Year and the denominator is
the Participant’s account balance attributablelextive Deferrals as of the beginning of the PlagaiYplus the Participant’s Elective Deferrals
for the Plan Year. Notwithstanding, the Committey use any reasonable method for computing themeallocable to Excess Deferrals,
provided the method is used consistently for aftiBipaants and for all corrective distributions @ndhe Plan for the Plan Year, and is used by
the Plan for allocating income to Participants’ agus.

V.

Effective January 1, 2008, the first sentence of ¢hfirst paragraph of Subsection (e) of Section 3. Average Actual Deferral Percentage Test
under Section 401(k) of the Codeis amended in its entirety to read as follows:

Distribution of Excess ContributionsNotwithstanding any other provisions of thisrRIBxcess Contributions (defined below), plus any
income and minus any loss allocable thereto thrahgtend of the Plan Year in which the Excess Gmuitions was allocated, shall be
distributed no later than the last day of each Rlear to Participants to whose accounts such ExCessributions were allocated for the
preceding Plan Year except to the extent the ExCessributions are classified as Ce-Up Contributions



V.
Effective January 1, 2008, the first two sentencexf the third paragraph of Section 3.7(e) are amendkin their entirety to read as follows:

Determination of Income or LossExcess Contributions shall be adjusted for aogine (gain or loss) through the end of the Plaar e

which the Excess Contributions was allocated. Ticerne or loss allocable to Excess Contributiorecatied to each Participant is the income
or loss allocable to the Participant’s Elective &edl Account (and, if applicable, the QualifiedNBlective Contribution Account or the
Qualified Matching Contribution Account or both) fine Plan Year multiplied by a fraction, the nuater of which is such Participant’s Excess
Contributions for the year and the denominator bicl is the Participant’s account balance attriblatao Elective Deferrals (and Qualified
Non-Elective Contributions or Qualified Matching @@dbutions, or both, if any of such contributicar® included in the ADP test) without
regard to any income or loss occurring during delem Year.

VL.

Effective January 1, 2008, the first sentence of #first paragraph of Subsection (e) of Section 3.8imitations on Employee Contributions and
Employer Matching Contributions , is amended in its entirety to read as follows:

Notwithstanding any other provision of this PlancEss Aggregate Contributions, plus any incomenaimis any loss allocable thereto through
the end of the Plan Year in which the Excess Agagee@ontributions was allocated, shall be forfeitetbrfeitable, or if not forfeitable, shall be
distributed no later than the last day of each Rlear to Participants to whose accounts such Extggsegate Contributions were allocated for
the preceding Plan Year.

VII.
Effective January 1, 2008, the first two sentencexf the second paragraph of Section 3.8(f) are amead in their entirety to read as follows:

Excess Aggregate Contributions shall be adjustedrig income (gain or loss) through the end ofRtan Year in which the Excess Aggregate
Contributions was allocated. The income or lokscable to Excess Aggregate Contributions allocédeshch Participant is the income or loss
allocable to the Participant’s Employee Contribngi@nd Matching Contributions and other amountsrtakto account under this Section 3.8
(including the contributions for the year), by adtion, the numerator of which is such ParticipaBxcess Aggregate Contributions for the year
and the denominator of which is the Participantscaint balance attributable to Elective Employeat@loutions and Matching Contributions
and other amounts taken into account under thisde8.8 as of the beginning of the Plan Year amgadditional such contributions for the
year.

VIII.

Effective January 1, 2007, Section 6.3, Deatls, amended to add a new paragraph at the end of susection to read as follows:

In the case of a death occurring on or after Janlig2007, if a Participant dies while performingatified military service (as defined in
Section 414(u) of the Code), the survivors of thetiBipant are entitled to any additional bengfither than benefit accruals relating to the
period of qualified military service) provided umdbe Plan as if the Participant had resume amu tdveninated employment on account of
death.

IX.

Effective January 1, 2007, the second sentence bétsecond paragraph of Subsection (b)(1) of Sectignl0, Direct Rollover, is amended in its
entirety to read as follows:

However, such portion may be transferred only tindividual retirement account or annuity descrilie&ection 408(a) or (b) of the Code, or
to a qualified defined benefit plan or a qualiféefined contribution plan described in Section 40 403(a) Code that agrees to separately
account for amounts so transferred, including sepraccounting for the portion of such distribuatwhich is includable in gross income and
the portion of such distribution which is not salirdable.

X.
Effective January 1, 2008, the first sentence of 8&on 7.10(b)(2) is amended in its entirety to reads follows:
An eligible retirement plan is an individual retitent account described in Section 408(a) of theeCad individual retirement annuity
described in Section 408(b) of the Code, an anmliy described in Section 403(a) of the Code,aifipd trust described in Section 401(a) of
the Code, or a Roth IRA as described in SectiorAddfdhe Code, that accepts the distributee’s blegrollover distribution.
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XI.

Effective April 6, 2007, Section 7.11, Qualified Duestic Relations Order, is amended to add a new paragraph at the end afich section to read
as follows:

A domestic relations order that otherwise satidfiesrequirements for a qualified domestic relaiorder will not fail to be a qualified domestic
relations order solely because of the time therdsdissued or because the order is issued afteevises, another domestic relations order or
qualified domestic relations order. Such ordesuisject to the same requirements and protectionshvelpply to qualified domestic relations
orders, including the procedures described in Geletion 414(p)(7) during the period the determorais being made



XIl.

Effective January 1, 2010, Article XlI, Administration of the Plan, is amended in its entirety to read as follows:

ARTICLE Xl
FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES AND PLAN ADMINISTRATION

12.1 Allocation of Fiduciary Responsibilities. Fiduciary responsibilities in connection with thiafPshall be allocated in
accordance with the provisions of this Article XHd shall be carried out in accordance with the,Rle Charter of the CenturyLink
Retirement Committee (the “Charter”) and applicdble. It is intended that, to the extent permitbgcapplicable law, each fiduciary shall be
obligated to discharge only the responsibilitiesigreed to such fiduciary and that such fiduciarglisiot be charged with the responsibilities
assigned to any other fiduciary.

12.2 Committee . The Committee shall serve as the Administratodedmed in ERISA Section 3(16)(A). The Committee i
also the Named Fiduciary, as defined in ERISA ®ecti02(a)(2). The Committee shall be charged vhighfull power and responsibility for
administering the Plan in accordance with the teants delegations stated in the Plan and the Charter

12.3 Membership of the Committee. The Committee shall consist of 5 members. Tkairpersons of the Committee shall
be the persons serving from time to time as thedB&fice-President Human Resources and as the S¥ite-President, Treasurer of the
Company (or equivalent positions if such positiaondonger exist). The Chairpersons shall joinfip@int the remaining members of the
Committee from among the officers and employedb@iCompany or an Affiliated Employer as at largenmbers. The Chairpersons may
jointly remove and replace any member of the Conemiat any time and shall replace any member wéigne in writing or who otherwise
becomes unable to serve. If the positions onedgimt positions of Senior Vice-President Humandreses or Senior Vice-President,
Treasurer or both cease to exist within Centurylanka Chairperson resigns his or her position a&rgarson of the Committee or otherwise
becomes unable to serve (unless and until an dguivposition is created and filled or another widiial is appointed to the officer position of
such Chairperson), the vacancy shall be temportiltég by the other most tenured officer in therian Resources Department or Treasury
Department of the Company, as the case may bejsaieither an executive officer of CenturyLink romember of the CenturyLink Pension
Benefit Administration Committee and who has navously resigned as a Chairperson of the Commititethe Committee is required to take
any action before a vacancy is filled, the remanimembers may act before the vacancy is filled.
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124 Duties and Responsibilities of Fiduciaries A Plan fiduciary shall have only those specific gosy duties, responsibilities
and obligations as are explicitly given to suchuéidiry under the Charter, Plan and Trust Agreeraedtshall not be responsible for any act or
failure to act of another fiduciary. The Commits®ll have the sole responsibility for the adntmaison of the Plan, as more fully described in
Section 12.5 of the Plan and in the Charter tcettient that it is not inconsistent with the proeis of this Article XII.

12.5 Plan Administrator . The Committee shall be responsible for the admtisin of the Plan. In addition to any implied
powers and duties that may be necessary or apptea the conduct of its affairs, the Committealldtave the following powers and duties,
including the discretionary power:

(a) to make and enforce such rules and regulationisshsll determine to be necessary or proper foatheinistration of the Pla

(b) to i.nte.rpret the Plan and to decide all mattersirsgithereunder, including the right to remedy pmesambiguities, inconsistencies, ¢
omissions

(c) to determine the right of any person to benefidaurthe Plan and the amount of such bene

(d) to issue instructions to a Trustee or ineae company to make disbursements and loans frefirust, and to make any other

arrangement necessary or appropriate to providthéorderly payment and delivery of disburseméats the Trust

(e) to direct the Trustee regarding Plan Investmemid,ta select Investment Options, in accordance &éttions 1.30 and 4.6 of the Pl
() to delegate to other persons such of its respditigibias it may determint
(9) to employ suitable agents, actuaries, auditors| legunsel, and other advisers as it may deterr
6
(h) to allocate among its members such of its respditigib as it may determine; ar
0] to prepare, file, and distribute such forms, sta&eis, descriptions, returns, and reports relatripé Plan as may be required by I

The foregoing list of express powers is not intehttebe either complete or conclusive, but the Catemshall, in addition, have such
powers as it may reasonably determine to be nemgesthe performance of its duties under the Rlad as specified in the Charter. The
decision or judgment of the Committee on any qoesdirising in connection with the exercise of ahitopowers or any matter of Plan
Administration or the determination of benefitslba final, binding and conclusive upon all pastisoncerned.

12.6 Committee Reliance on Professional Advice The Committee is authorized to obtain, and adherbasis of, tables,
valuations, certificates, opinions, and reportaihied by an enrolled actuary, accountant, legahsel, or other advisors.

12.7 Liabilities . The Company shall indemnify and defend any Rthrciary who is an officer, director, or employekthe
Company, another Employer or an Affiliated Emploggainst any claim or liability that arises fronyatction or inaction in connection with
the Plan, subject to the following rules:



(@) Coverage shall be limited to actions taken in gfadith that the fiduciary reasonably believed weoé apposed to the best interest of the F
(b) Negligence by the fiduciary shall be covered toftilest extent permitted by law; ai
(c) Coverage by the Company shall be reducélet@xtent of any insurance coverage.

12.8 Plan Administration Expenses. All reasonable expenses of administering the Blecluding, without limitation, the
expenses of the Committee) shall be paid out o&fisets of the Trust, in accordance with and t@xtent provided in the provisions of the
Trust Agreement, except to the extent paid by them@any without request by the Company for reimbuesg from the
Trust. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence Gbenmittee may direct the Trustee to charge redderaministrative expenses of the Plan
to Participants, including but not limited to fdegprocess domestic relations orders, but onljéoeixtent that such charges to Participants’
Accounts are consistent with ERISA and interpreéagjuidance thereunder issued by the DOL.

12.9 Responsibilities of Trustee Each Trustee shall be responsible for the custddlye assets of the Plan assigned to it,
making disbursements at the order of the Committeé,accounting for all receipts and disbursemirgtsissets of the Plan assigned to it.

12.10 Investment Management by Trustee Each Trustee shall be responsible for managiagntvestment of the Plan assets
in its custody, or any part thereof, when diredtedo so by the Committee in accordance with thaseof the Trust Agreement.

12.11 QDRO Procedures. The Committee shall establish written procedtwegetermine the qualified status of domestic
relations orders and to administer distributiondarmualified domestic relations. Such procedstesd| be consistent with any regulations
prescribed under Section 206(d) of ERISA. The Cdtesn shall promptly notify the Participant and aiternate payee (as defined in Section
206(d)(3)(K) of ERISA) of the receipt of an orderdathe procedures for determining the qualifiedustaf domestic relations orders. Within a
reasonable period after receipt of an order, the@ittee shall determine whether the order is giealiind shall notify the Participant and each
alternate payee of such determination. Duringmemod in which the qualified status of a domestiations order is being determined (by the
Committee, by a court, or otherwise), the Commitieall direct the Trustee to account separatelyhi®@amounts that would have been payable
to each alternate payee if the order had beenmiited to be a Qualified Domestic Relations Ord€QIRO”). If within 18 months of the
receipt of the order, the order (or modificatiorréof) is determined to be a QDRO, the Committed! slirect the Trustee to pay the segregated
amounts (plus any interest thereon) to the pers@eisons entitled thereto. If within 18 monthgtaf receipt of the order, it is determined that
the order is not qualified, or the issue as to Weethe order is qualified is not resolved, them @ommittee shall direct the Trustee to pay the
segregated amount (plus any interest thereonktpéhson or persons who would have been entitleddb amounts if there had been no
order. Any determination that an order is quatifieat is made after the close of the 18 monttopeshall be applied prospectively only.

12.12 Service in Multiple Fiduciary Capacities. Any person or group of persons may serve in rittaa one fiduciary
capacity with respect to the Plan, in accordandk $&ction 402(c) (1) of ERISA.

12.13 Claims Procedure. Any claim or appeal for benefits under this Pdaall be made in writing in such form and pursuant
such procedures as are prescribed by the Comnaitigset forth in the Plan’s summary plan descriptio
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company has executed this amendment onQltisday of December, 2009.

CENTURYTEL, INC.

By: /sl Stacey W. Gofi

Name: Stacey W. Go

Title: Executive Vice-President,
General Counsel and Secre




Exhibit 10.1(c
AMENDMENT NO. 5
TO THE
CENTURYTEL RETIREMENT PLAN
WHEREAS, the CenturyTel Retirement Plan (“Plan”) was amenatedi restated by CenturyTel, Inc. (the “Companyf@aive December 31, 2006;
WHEREAS , the Company desires to amend the Plan to fultypdp with the final Treasury Regulations under intd Revenue Code § 415;

WHEREAS , the Company reserved the right to amend the iRI&ection 12.2 of the Plan and delegated to thee Counsel of the Company the
authority to adopt any amendment or modificatioth® Plan that is necessary or appropriate to cpmijth applicable laws and regulations;

NOW, THEREFORE, effective January 1, 2008, the Plan is amended|ksf:

l.
The first sentence of the second paragraph under pagraph (d) of Section 2.14, Compensationis amended to read as follows:
For Plan Years beginning after December 31, 20@latnual compensation of each Participant takeraiccount in determining allocations
for any Plan Year beginning after December 31, 288all not exceed $200,000, as adjusted for deb¢ing increases in accordance with
Code Section 401(a)(17)(B) (for 2009, the limi$z45,000).

1.

Paragraph (a), (b) and (c) of Section 5.7, Limitatins on Pensions are amended and restated in their entirety to rea as follows:

5.7 Limitations on Pensions.

(a) In addition to any other limits set forththe Plan, and notwithstanding any other provisibtine Plan, in no event shall the annual
amount of any retirement benefit payable with respea Participant under the Plan exceed the maxirannual amount permitted by
Section 415 of the Code and the regulations thel@unThe determination in the preceding senteha# ke made after taking into
account the retirement benefits payable with resjgethe Participant under all other defined bergfins required to be aggregated
with this Plan under Section 415(f)(1)(A) of thedeo

1

(b) If the limits imposed by subsection (a) @ebavould otherwise be exceeded with respect toreciRant, the retirement benefits with
respect to the Participant under the plans destiibsubsection (a) above shall be reduced urddeHimits are satisfied. Reductions
shall be made in reverse chronological order,ifatn a plan-by-plan basis, beginning with thenplader which the Participant most
recently accrued a benefit or was allocated ana@raddition, and ending with the plan under whieh Participant least recently
accrued a benefit. However, in the event of actdn of benefit from this Plan, reduction shouldib the following sequence:
Sections 6.1(a)(1), 6.1(a)(2), 6.1(a)(3), 6.1(a)64).(a)(5) and 6.1(a)(6). Reductions under thisssction (a) shall be done in
accordance with the Employee Plans Compliance BégplSystem (EPCRS), Rev. Proc. 2008-50, 2008R3BI 464, or such other
method(s) deemed acceptable by the Internal Reveansce.

(c) The limits imposed by subsection (a), above, dtwkpplied on the basis «

1) the assumptions described belc

0] The mortality table used for purposes gliating any benefit or limitation under Code Sect#i5(b)(2)(B),(C) or
(D) shall be the “applicable mortality table” prabed from time-to-time by the Secretary of thedsery for
purposes of Code Section 417

(i) The interest rate used for purposes of@isiifig any benefit or limitation under Code Secdd(b)(2)(B),(C) or (D)
except forms of benefit subject to Section 417¢ahe Code, shall be 59

(iii) The interest rate used to adjust the fation under Code Section 415(b)(2)(B) of the Cfmtdorms of benefit
subject to Section 417(e) of the Code shall bé'dpelicable interest rate” under Code Section 4)L#&{eyears prior
to 2004. For 2004 and 2005, the interest ratd bed.5%. For years after 2005 the interestsh#dl be the greater
of (i) 5.5% or (ii) the rate that provides a behefinot more than 105 percent of the benefit thatild be provided if
the applicable interest rate (as defined in Codei@e417(e)) were the interest rate assump

2

(iv) Other assumptions set forth in the Treasury Reiguisitunder Code Section 4!

2) the definition of compensation in Code Section 4)&() and the Treasury Regulations thereun
3) any cos-of-living increase that the Plan is permitted to take account under Section 415(d) of the Code,
4) any applicable transition rules that presex Participant’s accrued benefit under the Péaof ¢he effective date of the

enactment or amendment of Section 415 of the C



IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company has executed this amendment on&ttisdhy of September, 2009.
CENTURYTEL, INC.

By: /s/ Stacey W. Gofi

Name: Stacey W. Go

Title: Executive Vice-President,
General Counsel and Secre




Exhibit 10.1(c

AMENDMENT NO. 6
TO THE
CENTURYTEL RETIREMENT PLAN
WHEREAS , the CenturyTel Retirement Plan (“Plan”) was aneshdnd restated by CenturyTel, Inc. (the “Compae§fgctive December 31, 2006;
WHEREAS , the Company desires to amend the Plan to relvés@lan’s provisions regarding administration ef Bian;

WHEREAS , the Company must amend the Plan to bring it agmpliance with the Pension Protection Act of 2@BPA"), the Heroes Earnin
Assistance and Relief Tax Act of 2008 (the “HEARGtA, and the Worker, Retiree, and Employee Recpyat of 2008 (the “Recovery Act”);

NOW , THEREFORE , the Plan is amended effective as of the date®htbelow, as follows:
l.

Effective January 1, 2008, Section 2.2, Actuarial diiivalency or Actuarial Equivalent , is amended to read in its entirety as follows:

2.2 Actuarial Equivalency or Actuarial Equivalent means a benefit under which the present valuesoétipected payments is
equal to the present value of the expected beotbiErwise payable under the Plan, determined obakis of the following mortality and
interest assumptions:

Mortality: UP - 1984orality Table
Interest Rate: 8% aenum

For all such determinations to be made on or détevary 1, 2007 with respect to both pre-2007 asttp006 benefit accruals, use the
following mortality and interest assumptions:

Participant mortality: RP2000 Combined Healthy Mty projected to 2010 using Projection Scale Ai8ing blend of 70% male
rates and 30% female rates.

Beneficiary mortality: RP2000 Combined Healthy kédity projected to 2010 using Projection Scale Aing blend of 30% male
rates and 70% female rates.

Interest rate: 8% per annum

Notwithstanding the foregoing, for determinatiofisump sum amounts and for purposes of Sectiore}, ffterest shall be the annual
rate of interest on 30 year Treasury securitiestferSeptember preceding the year in which the lsamp amount is paid and mortality shall be
as provided in the mortality table prescribed by @ommissioner of Internal Revenue under Sectidtied(3)(A)(ii)(I) of the Internal Revenue
Code. Furthermore, on and after January 1, 20@8nterest rate shall be the rate specified byeCRettion 417(e)(3)(C) and mortality shall be
as provided in Code Section 417(e)(3)(B).

For valuing benefits accrued on or before Decer3thed 987, the Consumer Price Index shall be asstoniedrease at least two
percent (2%) per annum.

When the term Actuarial Value is used herein, #listnean the present value of a benefit computétubke factors and assumptions
provided in this Section 2.2.

If the actuarial factors for determining equivalbenefits are changed by Plan amendment (otheralthange in accordance with the
Pension Protection Act of 2006), the benefit adcyyadid in any form shall not be less than the amaletermined for the same form by
applying the prior factors to the Participant’s Aced Benefits as of the date the change is adaptedeffective, whichever is later.

Notwithstanding any other Plan provision to thetcany, effective for distributions with annuity siag dates on or after January 1,
2003 and prior to January 1, 2008, the applicatdeatity table used for purposes of adjusting aegddit or limitation under Code Section 415
(b)(2)(B), (C), or (D) set forth in this Plan arftetapplicable mortality table used for purposesatisfying the requirements of Code Section
417(e) set forth in this Plan is the table presaim IRS Revenue Ruling 2001-62.

Effective for distributions with annuity startingés on or after January 1, 2008, the applicableatity table used for purposes of
adjusting any benefit or limitation under Sectidi5)(2)(B), (C), or (D) of the Code set forth ris Plan and the applicable mortality table
used for purposes of satisfying the requiremenaaftion 417(e) of the Code set forth in this Pisuthe table prescribed in IRS Revenue
Ruling 2007-67.

I.

Effective January 1, 2010, Section 2.12, Committeés amended to read in its entirety as follows:

2.12 Committee means the CenturyLink Retirement Committee, whictihé committee that administers the Plan pursiant
Article X.

Effective January 1, 2009, the flush language is ddd to the end of Section 2.14, Compensation



Effective January 1, 2009, regardless of an Em@syactive or inactive status, Compensation shallde any differential wage payment, as
defined by Section 3401(h)(2) of the Code, paidigyEmployer to a Participant while on qualifieditaiy service (as defined in Code Section
414(u)).

V.
Effective January 1, 2007, paragraph (iii) of Sectin 5.7(c), as amended by Amendment No. 5, is amendda its entirety to read as follows:
The interest rate used to adjust the limitationasr@ode Section 415(b)(2)(B) of the Code for fowhbenefit subject to Section 417(e) of the
Code shall be the “applicable interest rate” urdede Section 417(e) for years prior to 2004, ferythar 2008, and for years after 2008. For
2004 and 2005, the interest rate shall be 5.5%.y€&ars 2006 and 2007, the interest rate shaldgteater of (i) 5.5% or (ii) the rate that
provides a benefit of not more than 105 percehetbenefit that would be provided if the applieaisiterest rate (as defined in Code Section
417(e)) were the interest rate assumption.

V.

Effective January 1, 2007, Section 5.8, Death Beilitef as amended by Amendments No. 1 & 2, is further aemded to adding a new sentence at t
end of such section to read as follows:

If a Participant dies while performing qualifiedlitairy service (as defined in Code Section 414(tng, Participant’'s Beneficiary shall be
entitled to any additional benefits (other thandféraccruals relating to the period of qualifieditary service) provided under the Plan as if the
Participant had resumed and then terminated empoyon account of death.

VI.

Effective January 1, 2007, paragraph (a) of Sectior.4, Timing of Election and Spousal Consentis amended in its entirety to read as follows:

Any election or revocation of a form of benefit Blie made within the one hundred eighty (180) desiod ending on the date of
commencement of benefits to the Participant (omdusuch other period permitted or required by leamd shall be made by giving written
notice in such form and manner as may be requiyetidoCommittee.

VII.

Effective January 1, 2007, the introductory languag to Section 7.5, Notice Requirementss amended in its entirety to read as follows:
Not less than thirty (30) days nor more than onedhed eighty (180) days before the date of comnmeeae of benefits to a Participant (or
during such other period permitted or requireddy)| the Committee shall provide to each Partidigawritten notice that complies with the
content and other requirements of Treasury Regui&il.417(a)(3)-1, including an explanation of:

VIIL.

Effective January 1, 2007, the second sentence @c8on 7.11, Early Commencement Electionis amended in its entirety to read as follows:

The election shall be in writing, in a form accdgi¢ato the Committee, and executed and filed with@ommittee during the one hundred
eighty (180) day period ending on the commencerdata of the Employee’s benefits, or during sucleogeriod permitted or required by law.

IX.

Effective January 1, 2007, the third sentence of ®gection (b)(1) of Section 7.13, Eligible RolloveDistributions , is amended in its entirety to
read as follows:

However, such portion may be transferred only tindividual retirement account or annuity descrifre€ode Section 408(a) or (b) or Code
Section 408A, or to a qualified defined benefitpta qualified defined contribution plan descriledCode Section 401(a), 403(a) or (b), that
agrees to separately account for amounts so traedféncluding separately accounting for the mporf such distribution which is includable
in gross income and the portion of such distributidhich is not so includable.

X.
Effective January 1, 2008, the first sentence of 8&on 7.13(b)(2 is amended in its entirety to reads follows:
An eligible retirement plan is: (A) an individuatirement account or annuity described in Sect@8(d) or (b) of the Code; (B) a Roth IRA
described in Section 408A of the Code; (C) an agrplan described in Section 403(a) or (b) of tlwel€ (D) a qualified trust described in
Section 401(a) of the Code; or (E) an eligible plader Section 457 of the Code maintained by & spatiitical subdivision of a state, or any
agency or instrumentality of a state or politiaabdivision of a state; any of which accepts thérithistee’s eligible rollover distribution.

XL

Effective January 1, 2010, the Plan is amended tald a new paragraph (c) to Section 7.13, Eligible Rlover Distributions , to read as follows:

(c) Non-spouse Beneficiary. For distributions after DebenB1, 2009, a non-spouse Beneficiary who is aifphated beneficiary” under Section
401(a)(9)(E) of the Code and the Treasury Regulattbereunder may execute a direct rollover obraliny portion of his or her distribution to
an individual retirement account or annuity (“IRAf@scribed in Section 408(a) or (b) of the Codeg Bioth IRA described in section 408A of
the Code, that is established on behalf of thegthesed beneficiary and that will be treated asaerited IRA pursuant to Section 402(c)(11
the Code. Such distribution must satisfy the ddin of an“Eligible Rollover Distributio” in Section 7.13(b)(1,

XIl.



Effective January 1, 2010, Article X, Fiduciary Reponsibilities and Plan Administration, is amendedn its entirety to read as follows:
ARTICLE X
FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES AND PLAN ADMINISTRATION
10.1 Allocation of Fiduciary Responsibilities. Fiduciary responsibilities in connection with tRkan shall be allocated in accordance
with the provisions of this Article X and shall barried out in accordance with the Plan, the Chaftehe CenturyLink Retirement Committee (the

“Charter”) and applicable law. It is intended thatthe extent permitted by applicable law, eadhdiary shall be obligated to discharge only the
responsibilities assigned to such fiduciary and sah fiduciary shall not be charged with the cesgibilities assigned to any other fiduciary.

10.2 Committee. The Committee shall serve as the Administratsrjefined in ERISA Section 3(16)(A). The Comneaitig also the
Named Fiduciary, as defined in ERISA Section 402a)rlhe Committee shall be charged with the follver and responsibility for administering the
Plan in accordance with the terms and delegatitaisdin the Plan and the Charter.

10.3 Membership of the Committee. The Committee shall consist of 5 members. T&irpersons of the Committee shall be the
persons serving from time to time as the Senioe\Recesident Human Resources and as the SeniorPvesdent, Treasurer of the Company (or
equivalent positions if such positions no longesgx The Chairpersons shall jointly appoint thenaining members of the Committee from among the
officers and employees of the Company or an Affilias at large members. The Chairpersons mayjearhove and replace any member of the
Committee at any time and shall replace any memberresigns in writing or who otherwise becomeshlm#o serve. If the positions or equivalent
positions of Senior Vice-President Human resouazeSenior Vice-President, Treasurer or both ceasaist within CenturyLink or a Chairperson
resigns his or her position as Chairperson of theQittee or otherwise becomes unable to servegsrded until an equivalent position is created and
filled or another individual is appointed to thdioér position of such Chairperson), the vacanalidhe temporarily filled by the other most tenured
officer in the Human Resources Department or TngaBepartment of the Company, as the case may he isweither an executive officer of
CenturyLink nor a member of the CenturyLink Pendamefit Administration Committee and who has netvously resigned as a Chairperson of the
Committee. If the Committee is required to takg aation before a vacancy is filled, the remainingmbers may act before the vacancy is filled.

10.4 Duties and Responsibilities of Fiduciaries A Plan fiduciary shall have only those spegifawers, duties, responsibilities and
obligations as are explicitly given to such fidugiander the Charter, Plan and Trust Agreementséiadl not be responsible for any act or failurad¢o
of another fiduciary. The Committee shall havegbke responsibility for the administration of #hkan, as more fully described in Section 10.5 ef th
Plan and in the Charter to the extent that it isimeonsistent with the provisions of this Articke

10.5 Plan Administrator . The Committee shall be responsible for the adstiaion of the Plan. In addition to any implienyers and
duties that may be necessary or appropriate todhduct of its affairs, the Committee shall hawe fihllowing powers and duties, including the
discretionary power:

(@) Ft>(IJ make and enforce such rules and regulas it shall determine to be necessary or pfopéne administration of the
an;
(b) to interpret the Plan and to decide allteratarising thereunder, including the right to eempossible ambiguities,
inconsistencies, and omissiol
(c) to determine the right of any person to benefidaurthe Plan and the amount of such bene
(d) to issue instructions to a Trustee or inage company to make disbursements from the Tandtto make any other
arrangement necessary or appropriate to providthéorderly payment and delivery of disbursemémats the Trust
(e) to delegate to other persons such of its respditigibias it may determine
() to retain an enrolled actuai
(9) to employ suitable agents, actuaries, auditors| legunsel, and other advisers as it may deterr
(h) to allocate among its members such of its respditigib as it may determine; ar
@) l;o ;ljrepare, file, and distribute such formisitements, descriptions, returns, and repdetrg to the Plan as may be required
y law.

The foregoing list of express powers is not intehttebe either complete or conclusive, but the Catemshall, in addition, have such
powers as it may reasonably determine to be nemgesthe performance of its duties under the Rladh as specified in the Charter. The
decision or judgment of the Committee on any qoesdirising in connection with the exercise of ahitopowers or any matter of Plan
Administration or the determination of benefitslsba final, binding and conclusive upon all past@oncerned.

10.6 Committee Reliance on Professional Advice The Committee is authorized to obtain, and adhe basis of, tables, valuations,
certificates, opinions, and reports furnished byarolled actuary, accountant, legal counsel, loeroadvisors.

10.7 Liability . The Company shall indemnify and defend any Fthrciary who is an officer, director, or employethe Company,
another Employer or an Affiliate against any claniiability that arises from any action or inactim connection with the Plan, subject to the failag
rules:

(a) Coverage shall be limited to actions talkegood faith that the fiduciary reasonably belidwveere not opposed to the best
interest of the Plar

(b) Negligence by the fiduciary shall be covered toftilest extent permitted by law; ai

(c) Coverage by the Company shall be reduced to tleneaf any insurance coveray



10.8 Plan Administration Expenses. All reasonable expenses of administering the Rfartuding, without limitation, the expenses of
the Committee) shall be paid out of the assethefrust, in accordance with and to the extentigealin the provisions of the Trust Agreement, @tce
to the extent paid by the Company without requgghb Company for reimbursement from the Trustivithstanding the foregoing sentence, the
Committee may direct the Trustee to charge reademaministrative expenses of the Plan to Partitgpancluding but not limited to fees to process
domestic relations orders, but only to the exteat such charges to Participants are consistehtERISA and interpretative guidance thereundereidsu
by the DOL.

10.9 Responsibilities of Trustee Each Trustee shall be responsible for the custédye assets of the Plan assigned to it, making
disbursements at the order of the Committee, aodweting for all receipts and disbursements thetass the Plan assigned to it.

10.10 Investment Management by Trustee Each Trustee shall be responsible for managiadgnivestment of the Plan assets in its
custody, or any part thereof, when directed toalbysthe Committee in accordance with the termthefTrust Agreement.

10.11 Allocation of Investment Management Responsibilitis. The Committee shall have the sole fiduciary resgality for
determining whether investment of the Plan assdtblby a Trustee shall be managed by the Trusteé®; one or more investment managers, or whether
both the Trustee and one or more investment masagerto participate in investment managementiéad, how investment responsibility is to be
divided.

10.12 Appointment and Removal of Investment Managers The Committee shall have the sole fiduciary resgaility for the
appointment or removal of any investment managdrsésall enter into an investment management agneiewith each investment manager appointed
by it on such terms and conditions consistent #ithprovisions of this Plan as it shall deem adlisaEach investment manager shall be resporfsit
managing the investment of such portion of the fTagsshall be placed under its management pursoidmé investment management agreement.

10.13 Ascertainment of Plan Financial Needs The Committee shall have the sole fiduciary raesgulity for periodically ascertaining
the financial needs of the Plan, including the Rldiquidity needs, and shall convey the pertinefidirmation to the Trustee and/or investment marmge
responsible for managing the investments of thefTru

10.14 QDRO Procedures. The Committee shall establish written procedtwedetermine the qualified status of domestic rehest
orders and to administer distributions under QDRSsch procedures shall be consistent with anylagigns prescribed under Section 206(d) of
ERISA. The Committee shall promptly notify the fRapant and any alternate payee (as defined iti@e206(d)(3)(K) of ERISA) of the receipt of an
order and the procedures for determining the gedltatus of domestic relations orders. Withieasonable period after receipt of an order, the
Committee shall determine whether the order isifigdland shall notify the Participant and eaclerilate payee of such determination. During any
period in which the qualified status of a domeggiations order is being determined (by the Conemaitby a court, or otherwise), the Committee shall
direct the Trustee to account separately for thewsnts that would have been payable to each alepetee if the order had been determined to be a
QDRO. If within 18 months of the receipt of theler, the order (or modification thereof) is detered to be a QDRO, the Committee shall direct the
Trustee to pay the segregated amounts (plus aesesitthereon) to the person or persons entitkeeth. If within 18 months of the receipt of théer,
it is determined that the order is not qualifiedth® issue as to whether the order is qualifigtbisresolved, then the Committee shall directthestee
to pay the segregated amount (plus any interegtdhg to the person or persons who would have bagtied to such amounts if there had been no
order. Any determination that an order is quatifibat is made after the close of the 18 monthodeshall be applied prospectively only. Effectiveril
6, 2007, a domestic relations order that othensédisfies the requirements for a QDRO will not faibe a QDRO solely because of the time the ds
issued or because the order is issued after, aagvanother domestic relations order or QDRCGchSun order is subject to the same requirements and
protections which apply to QDROs, including theqadures described in Section 414(p)(7) of the CGhding the period the determination is being
made.

10.15 Service in Multiple Fiduciary Capacities. Any person or group of persons may serve in rtfwaie one fiduciary capacity with
respect to the Plan, in accordance with Sectiorfddd2) of ERISA.

10.16 Benefit Claim Procedure. Any claim or appeal for benefits under this Pdaall be made in writing in such form and pursuant
such procedures as are prescribed by the Comnaitiéset forth in the summary plan description.

ARTICLE XVII
FUNDING-BASED LIMITATIONS ON BENEFITS
UNDER SECTION 436 of the code

171 Application . This Article XVII shall apply notwithstanding anyher provision of the Plan. This Article XVII is
intended to impose restrictions only to the extequired under Section 436 of the Code and thelagns thereunder and shall be applied and
interpreted accordingly. In the event any limiatin this Article XVII is determined not to be rgged by Section 436 of the Code, such
limitation shall not be applied.

17.2 Definitions . Notwithstanding the general definitions in tBisction, any terms used in this Article XVII shadive the
same meaning as provided under Code Section 436&mpitable Treasury regulations.

(a) Adjusted Funding Target Attainment Percentage (AFTAP) for purposes of Code Section 436 is eqadhe funding targe
attainment percentage (FTAP) under Code Sectioneidfept that the total amount of annuity purchésesonhighly
compensated employees which were made by the Blamgdhe preceding two Plan Years is added to temumerator and
denominator

(b) Unpredictable Contingent Event Benefitmeans any benefit payable on account of: (i) paotdown or similar event
(whether full or partial), or (ii) any event (incling the absence of an event) other than attainofeam age, performance of
service, receipt or derivation of compensatiomarurrence of death or disabili

(c) Prohibited Paymentmeans (i) any payment in excess of the monthly arnpaid under a single life annuity (including so
security supplements described in Section 411(af(fhe Code) paid during a prohibited period; &y payment for a
purchase of an irrevocable commitment from an iexsta pay benefits; (iii) any transfer of assetd kabilities to another ple
maintained by the Employer or an Affiliate thatmade in order to avoid or terminate the applicatib@ode Section 436
benefit limitations; and (iv) any other amount itlBed as a prohibited payment by the Commissiafehe Internal Revenue
Service in guidance published in the Internal RerecBulletin.




(d) Section 436 Measurement Datmeans the date that stops or starts the restrictinder Section 436(d) of the Code
(limitations on accelerated benefit distributioagl Section 436(e) of the Code (limitation on biefcruals for plans with
severe funding shortfalls), and is also used f@iapg the limitations on Unpredictable Conting&went Benefits and
limitations on plan amendments that increase lighfibr benefits.

17.3 Limitation on Unpredictable Contingent Event Benefts . No unpredictable contingent event benefit otherwizgable
under the Plan shall be paid during a Plan YetmeifPlan’s AFTAP for the Plan Year is less tharpéfcent (or would be less than 60 percent
taking into account the Unpredictable Contingengiid\Benefit).

17.4 Limitation on Plan Amendments Increasing Liability for Benefits. No amendment to the Plan that has the effect of
increasing liabilities of the Plan by reason ofrg&ses in benefits, establishment of new benefianging the rate of benefit accrual, or
changing the rate at which benefits become norifalfie shall take effect if the AFTAP for the Pléear is less than 80 percent (or would be
less than 80 percent if the benefits attributablihé amendment were taken into account). ThisicBen shall not apply to amendments made
pursuant to a mandatory increase in the vestirgenéfits under the Code or ERISA or in such otlases as may be provided in regulations
under the Code or ERISA, or if the benefit formislaot based on a Participant's compensation, laadate of the benefit increase does not
exceed the contemporaneous rate of increase iagezeompensation for the Plan Participants coveyetie amendment.

17.5 Limitations on Accelerated Benefit Payments

(@) Limitation on accelerated benefit payméhian is less than 60 percent fundetf the Plan’s AFTAP for a Plan Year is less
than 60 percent, no Prohibited Payment will be maitle an Annuity Starting Date within such Plan Yead on or after the
applicable Section 436 Measurement Date. If adhaaint or Beneficiary requests a distribution tisgprohibited under this
Section 17.5, the Participant or Beneficiary maceto receive benefits under another form avaslainider the Plan or to
defer payment to a later date (to the extent peechitnder the Plan and the Coc

(b) Limited payment of accelerated benefits if Plaatiteast 60 percent funded but less than 80 pefaadéed.

Q) General rule. If the Plan’s AFTAP for @aPRIYear is 60 percent or more but less than 8Cepé&ra Participant or
Beneficiary may elect the payment of a benefit waithAnnuity Starting Date on or after the applieaBection 436
measurement date in the form of a prohibited paymoely if the portion of the benefit that is beipgid in a
prohibited payment (as described below) does nogexk the lesser of (A) 50 percent of the presenevaf the
benefits (or, if greater, 50 percent of the amafrény single sum that would otherwise be payalole}B) the
present value of the PBGC guarantee amount, ussignaptions set forth in Section 417(e) of the C

For purposes of this Section 17.5(b)(1), the partibthe benefit being paid in a prohibited paymisrhe
excess of each payment over the smallest paymeimgdihe Participant’s lifetime under the optiofaim
of benefit (treating a period after the Annuity teg Date and during the Participant’s lifetimewhich no
payments are made as a payment of zero).

) Bifurcation of benefit If a distribution would otherwise be prohibitedder this Section 17.5(b), then the Particiy
or Beneficiary may elect to: (A) commence benefiith respect to the entire benefit under anotbemfavailable
under the Plan that is not prohibited; (B) defeyrpant until a later date (to the extent permittader the Plan and
the Code) or (C) bifurcate the benefit into “rested” and “unrestricted” portions, as defined irctRm 436 of the
Code and associated Treasury Regulations. If éingcipant or Beneficiary elects to bifurcate thenbfit, the
Participant or Beneficiary may elect any optiormhi of benefit otherwise available under the Pldh wespect to
the unrestricted portion. With respect to therretstd portion of the benefit, the Participant @r@ficiary may elect
payment in any form of benefit otherwise availalmeler the Plan that is not a prohibited paym

3) Onetime application In the case of a Participant who receives aipitgl payment by reason of the bifurcation
under Section 17.5(b)(2), the Participant cannetehfter receive any additional Prohibited Payndening any
period of consecutive Plan Years to which any Etidn under this Section 17.5 applies. For purpadepplying
this limitation, the benefits provided to Partiaigand Beneficiaries shall be aggregated as pedviuthe Code and
Treasury Regulation:

(c) Limitation on payments during bankruptciNo Prohibited Payment will be made with an Aty @tarting Date that is during
any period in which the Employer is a debtor ireaecunder Title 11 of the United States Code,milai Federal or State la
except for payments made with an Annuity StartimgeDwithin a Plan Year that is on or after the datevhich the Plan’s
actuary certifies that the PI's AFTAP for that Plan Year is at least 100 perc

)(d Distributions of $5,000 or LessThe provisions of this Section 17.5 shall ngtlgfio lump sum payments of $5,000 or

less.

17.6 Cessation of Benefit Accruals If the Plan’s AFTAP is less than 60 percent folanPYear, all benefit accruals under the
Plan shall cease as of the applicable Section 48&shrement Date for the Plan Year.

17.7 Restoration of Payments and Benefits Following Lagsof Restrictions.

(a) Unpredictable contingent event benefité payment of any benefits with respect to apredictable contingent eve
limited by reason of the restrictions in Section3lho benefits shall be paid with respect to saamt following the
restrictions except as otherwise specifically pded in the Plan or any subsequent amendr

(b) Resumption of accelerated benefit paymentpayments were restricted under Section 15u$ such restriction nc
applies as of a Section 436 Measurement Dategstdations of Section 17.5 shall not apply witBpect to benefits
Annuity Starting Dates on or after such Section N@&surement Dat

(c) Cessation of benefit accrual$n the event benefit accruals cease by reastimeaestriction in Section 17.6, then |




will resume effective as of the Section 436 Measwaet Date on which accruals are no longer resttiated (ii) bene
accruals that had been limited will not be resto
17.8 Other Provisions .

(@) Exemption A limitation shall not apply for a Plan Year @&hrall cease to apply for a Plan Year) if the Empidake
action as provided in the Code or Treasury Reguiatas may required in order to avoid applicatibthe limitation.

(b) Notice to Participants and Beneficiar. The Committee (or its designee) shall providg motices to Participants ¢
Beneficiaries that may be required in connectiotinhe application of this Article XVII, in accordee with Sectior
ERISA.

(c) Effective date This Article XVII shall be effective for Plan ‘es beginning on or after January 1, 2008, or $atet
permitted by law

XIV.
Effective January 1, 2008, Section 2(b) of Schedutel(a)(5) is hereby amended in its entirety to rehas follows:

“Applicable Mortality Table” means the mortalityti@ prescribed by the Commissioner of Internal Rexeunder Section 417(e)(3)
(B) of the Internal Revenue Code.

XV.
Effective January 1, 2008, Paragraph (5) of Schedeil6.1(f)-2 of the Plan is hereby amended in its érdty to read as follows:
GATT Assumptions means (i) the “applicable mortality table” (withime meaning of Section 417(e)(3)(B) of the Code) @i) the

“applicable interest rate” (within the meaning @cBon 417(e)(3)(C) of the Code) for the fifth mepreceding the month in which the
applicable benefit commencement date occurs.

XVI.

Effective January 1, 2008, Paragraph (5) of Schedeil6.1(f)-3 of the Plan is hereby amended in its erdty to read as follows:

GATT Assumptions means (i) the “applicable mortality table” (withime meaning of Section 417(e)(3)(B) of the Code) @i) the
“applicable interest rate” (within the meaning @cBon 417(e)(3)(C) of the Code) for the fifth mopreceding the month in which the
applicable benefit commencement date occurs.

XVII.
Effective January 1, 2008, Section 2.2 of paragraph of Schedule 6.1(f)-4 of the Plan is hereby ameadin its entirety to read as follows:
2.2 Actuarial Equivalency or Actuarial Equivalent means a benefit under which the present valuesoétipected payments is

equal to the present value of the expected beotbiErwise payable under the Ohio Plan, determinetcordance with the Schedules included
herein.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, for determinatiofi€ash amounts, interest shall be the annual fateerest on 30 year Treasury
securities for the September preceding the yeahich the cash amount is paid and mortality shalib provided in the mortality table
prescribed by the Commissioner of Internal Revamder Section 417(e)(3)(A)(ii)(I) of the Internaé®enue Code. Furthermore, on and after
January 1, 2008, the interest rate shall be tleesécified by Code Section 417(e)(3(C) and maytahall be as provided in Code Section 417
(e)(3)(B),

When the term “Actuarial Value” is used hereirghiall mean the present value of a benefit compusédy the factors and assumptions
provided in this Section 2.2.

If the actuarial factors for determining equivaleehefits are changed by Ohio Plan amendment (ttaeron a change in accordance
with the Pension Protection Act of 2006), the béregftually paid in any form shall not be less tltla@ amount determined for the same form by
applying the prior factors to the Participant’s Aced Benefits as of the date the change is adaptedeffective, whichever is later.

Effective for distributions with annuity startingigs on or after January 1, 2008, the applicableatity table used for purposes of
adjusting any benefit or limitation under Sectidibé)(2)(B), (C), or (D) of the Code set forth gt Plan and the applicable mortality table
used for purposes of satisfying the requiremenSaaftion 417(e) of the Code set forth in this Pisuthe table prescribed in IRS Revenue
Ruling 2007-67.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company has executed this amendment onQttisdzly of December, 2009.
CENTURYTEL, INC.

By: /s/ Stacey W. Gof

Name: Stacey W. Go

Title: Executive Vice-President,
General Counsel and Secre




Exhibit 10.2(a

AMENDED AND RESTATED
CENTURY LINK
1983 RESTRICTED StOCK PLAN

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, on February 21, 1984, CenturyTel, Inc. (formerlp¥m and doing business as Century Telephone Eigespinc.), a Louisiana
corporation (“CenturyLink”), executed a plan prawigl for awards of restricted stock to key employeeserms and conditions substantially similarhose set
forth herein, which plan was most recently ameratedi restated on May 28, 2009 (the “Plan”); and

WHEREAS, CenturyLink wishes to amend and restate the Plaffézt a corporate name change and to unify tha'®key provisions with those of
CenturyLink’s other equity plans;

NOW THEREFORE, the Plan is hereby amended and restated in iteegn#s of February 23, 2010 to read as follows:

1. Purpose The purpose of the Amended and Restated Ceritkyll983 Restricted Stock Plan (the “Plan”) is it the Company in securing
and retaining key employees of outstanding abiityd to motivate such individuals to exert thesttefforts on behalf of the Company. In addititire
Company expects that it will benefit from the add#erest which such individuals will have in thelfare of the Company as a result of their owngrshi
increased ownership of the Company’s Common Stdtks Plan may be utilized in conjunction with atils@ort or long term incentive plans at the disorebf
the Board of Directors.

2. Definitions As used in this Plan, the following terms shale the meanings indicated:
(@) “Board of Director” or “Boarc” shall mean not less than a quorum of the whole o&Directors of CenturyLink
(b) “Committee” shall mean the Compensation @uttee of the Board of Directors of the Companyaubcommittee of the Compensation

Committee. The Committee shall consist of two erermembers of the Board of Directors, each of wisball qualify as a “non-employee
directo” under Rule 16-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asatly in effect or any successor ru

(c) “Common Stock” shall mean the Company’ssprely authorized shares of Common Stock as tHisitlen may be modified as provided in
Section 7 of the Plai

(d) “Compan” shall mean CenturyLink and its subsidiar|

(e) “Fair Market Value” shall be determinedfaldows: (i) if the Common Stock or other secuiigylisted on an established stock exchange or any
automated quotation system that provides sale tiaosa the closing sale price for a share thereasuch exchange or quotation system on the
applicable date or, if shares are not traded oh dag, on the next preceding trading date; (iihd Common Stock or other security is not lic
on any exchange or quotation system, but bid akeldagrices are quoted and published, the mean batthe quoted bid and asked prices on
the applicable date or, if bid and asked priceqatevailable on such day, on the next precedaygath which such prices were available; and
(iii) if the Common Stock or other security is megularly quoted, the fair market value of a shhegeof on the applicable date as established
by the Committee in good faith and in accordandé Bection 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. Ntbstanding the foregoing, if so
determined by the Committee, “Fair Market Value"yniee determined as an average selling price daripgriod specified by the Committee
that is within thirty days before or thirty daydeafthe date of grant, provided that the commitntergrant the stock right based on such
valuation method must be irrevocable before thenmingg of the specified period, and such valuatizethod must be used consistently for
grants of stock rights under the same and subatgngimilar programs

(e) “Participant” shall mean any person whengployed by the Company on a full-time basis, impgensated for such employment by a regular
salary, and in the opinion of the Committee isaitbne of the key employees of the Company in &ipogo contribute materially to the
continued growth and development and future finarmiccess of the Company or one who has madeificigt contribution to the
Compan'’s operations, thereby meriting special recognit

) “Plar” shall mean the Amended and Restated CenturyLinB F¥&tricted Stock Pla

(9) “Retirement Date” shall be the date on whacParticipant attains age fifty-five (55) and bampleted ten (10) full years of employment with
the Company. The Participant’s years of employmsétit the Company shall be determined by accurmgesuch Participant’s full months of
employment with the Company, in the aggregate aititbwt regard to whether such employment was cantis, and dividing such amount by
twelve (12).

(h) “Subsidiary” shall mean any corporatiornihich the Company owns, directly or indirectly thgh subsidiaries, at least fifty percent (50%) of
the combined voting power of all classes of st

2. Stock Subject to the PlaiThe maximum number of shares of Common Stockhwvhiay be awarded under the Plan after May 28, 2688
not exceed an aggregate of 366,416 shares. All stock shall be shares of Common Stock which baes authorized but unissued or treasury shareareS
of stock awarded under the Plan and later reaadjbyethe Company pursuant to the Plan shall agadoine available for awards under the Plan.

3. Administration. The Plan shall be administered by the Commit&ebject to the provisions of the Plan, the Coneaithall have exclusiy



power to select the employees to whom shares off@mnStock will be awarded under the Plan, to detesrthe number of shares to be awarded to
each employee selected, and to determine the tirtimes when shares will be awarded. The Commdtedl have full power and authority to administad
interpret the Plan and to adopt such rules, reigmstagreements and instruments for implementied?lan and for the conduct of its business a€tremittee
deems necessary or advisable. The Committee'phetations of the Plan, and all determinations erfaglithe Committee pursuant to the powers vestéd in
hereunder, shall be conclusive and binding onexgns having any interest in the Plan or in angrde/granted hereunder. A majority of the mempegsent ¢
any meeting at which a quorum is present, or gascved in writing by all members of the Commitgkall be deemed the action of the Committee. With
respect to Participants who are not subject toi@edb of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ahdse compensation is not subject to Section 16&{rtje
Internal Revenue Code, the Committee may delegade appropriate officer of the Company its autiydo designate Participants, to set the termbéefrants
of restricted stock hereunder to such Participantsto take any and all action with respect to grémsuch Participants that the Committee colkd tander the
terms hereof.

4. Eligibility. The individuals who shall be eligible to panpiate in the Plan shall be any full-time employeéhef Company.
5. Grant of SharesThe eligible Employees who shall receive shaféSommon Stock under the Plan, the number of sharbe received by

each such employee, and, subject to the provigibBgction 7, the conditions under which such sharest be returned to the Company, shall be detedry
the Committee.

6. Terms and Conditions of Awardall shares of Common Stock awarded to Partm:npzmnder this Plan shall be subject to the folfmatierms
and conditions, and to such other terms and camdithot inconsistent with the Plan as shall beaioat in the Agreement referred to in Section 7(e).

@ At the time of the award there shall balelished for each Participant a “Restriction Périgtich shall be a specific period of time to be
determined by the Committee. Shares of stock asdaral Participants may not be sold, assigned, feemasl, pledged or otherwise encumbe
except as hereinafter provided, during the RegiridPeriod. At the time of an award of restricgbdres to a Participant, the Board may also
provide for the Restriction Period to lapse acamgdp the terms designated by the Committee. HEXoeguch restrictions on transfer, the
Participant as owned of such shares shall havbalights of a shareholder of Common Stock, inidgdut not limited to the right to receive
all dividends paid on such shares, subject to theigions of Section 8, and the right to vote ssleares

(b) Except as otherwise provided in Sectior),{@ Participant ceases to be a full-time emplpf the Company, all shares of stock theretofore
awarded to him which are still subject to the lieStns imposed by Section 7(a) shall upon suchitestion of employment be forfeited and
returned to the Compan

(c) The restrictions imposed by Section 7(alldapse with respect to the shares theretoformrded if a Participant ceases to be an employee of
the Company and its subsidiaries by reason ofe@ld, (ii) disability within the meaning of Secti@g(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, (iii)
retirement on or after the Retirement Date, buy drduch vesting and lapsing of restrictions isafically approved by the Committee or its
delegee, or (iv) the termination of the Participmetnployment by the Company, but only if such vgstind lapsing of restrictions is
specifically approved by the Committee or its desig

(d) Any certificate issued in respect of shaearded under the Plan shall be registered imdinege of the Participant and deposited by him,
together with a stock power endorsed in blank, withCompany and shall bear the following lege

The transferability of this certificate and the gsa0f stock represented hereby are subject ttethes and conditions
(including forfeiture) contained in the 1983 Rede&d Stock Plan for CenturyLink, and an Agreemen¢red into between
the registered owner and CenturyLink Copies ohdelan and Agreement are on file in the officehaf ecretary of
CenturyLink, Monroe, Louisiana.

If the shares awarded under the Plan are represbpteook or electronic entry rather than a cexdife, the Company shall take steps to restrict
transfer of the shares as it deems necessary @adly to comply with applicable law.

(e) The Participant shall enter into an Agreenfthe “Agreement”) with the Company in a form sified by the Committee agreeing to the terms
and conditions of the award and such other matierkjding compliance with applicable Federal ahat& Securities Laws, and methods of
withholding required taxes, as the Committee shdtk sole discretion determin

() At the expiration of the Restriction Perimdposed pursuant to Section 7(a), the Company stagliver to the Participant, or his legal
representative, the shares deposited with it patsoaSection 7(d)

7. Change in Capitalizatiorin the event there is a change in classificatibror subdivision or combination of, or stock idiend on the
outstanding Common Stock of the Company, the maxiraggregate number and class of shares as to whiatds may be granted under the Plan shall be
appropriately adjusted by the Committee whose detextion shall be conclusive. Any shares of Comi8ttk or other securities or assets (other theimary
cash dividends) received by a Participant with eespo shares awarded to him which are still sulifethe restrictions imposed pursuant to Secti@) will be
subject to the same restrictions and shall be diggosy the Participant with the Company.

8. Change of Control
4
(@) Unless otherwise provided in the Agreement, a CaarigControl shall meai
@) the acquisition by any person of benefiagainership of 30% or more of the outstanding shafélse Common Stock or 30% or more

of the combined voting power of CenturyLink’s theumstanding securities entitled to vote generallthie election of directors;
provided, howevethat for purposes of this subsection (i), the fellog acquisitions shall not constitute a Chang€afftrol:



Q) any acquisition (other than a Business Goatlon (as defined below) which constitutes a @feaof Control under Section 9
(a)(iii) hereof) of Common Stock directly from t@®mpany

2) any acquisition of Common Stock by the Compsz

3) any acquisition of Common Stock by any esypk benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored antained by the Company or
any corporation controlled by the Company

4) any acquisition of Common Stock by any cogtion pursuant to a Business Combination thas e constitute a Change of
Control under Section 9(a)(iii) hereof;

(ii) individuals who, as of February 23, 20t0nstituted the Board of Directors of CenturyLitike( “Incumbent Board”) cease for any
reason to constitute at least a majority of therBad Directorsprovided, howevethat any individual becoming a director subsequent
to such date whose election, or nomination forteladoy CenturyLink’s shareholders, was approvealwpte of at least two-thirds of
the directors then comprising the Incumbent Boaall e considered a member of the Incumbent Baamr@ss such individual’s
initial assumption of office occurs as a resulanfactual or threatened election contest with Egpethe election or removal of
directors or other actual or threatened solicitatibproxies or consents by or on behalf of a petber than the Incumbent Board;

(i) consummation of a reorganization, shaxelenge, merger or consolidation (including anyhstnansaction involving any direct or
indirect subsidiary of CenturyLink) or sale or atldésposition of all or substantially all of thesass of the Company (a “Business
Combination”);provided, howevethat in no such case shall any such transactiostitote a Change of Control if immediately
following such Business Combinatic

Q) the individuals and entities who were tle@dficial owners of CenturyLink’s outstanding Comm&tock and CenturyLink’s
voting securities entitled to vote generally in giection of directors immediately prior to suchsBiess Combination have
direct or indirect beneficial ownership, respediiyef more than 50% of the then outstanding shafe®mmon stock, and
more than 50% of the combined voting power of trentoutstanding voting securities entitled to \gaaerally in the election
of directors of the surviving or successor corgorgtor, if applicable, the ultimate parent comp#mgreof (the “Post-
Transaction Corporatic’), and

2) except to the extent that such ownershigtea prior to the Business Combination, no pefeswluding the Post-Transaction
Corporation and any employee benefit plan or relatast of either CenturyLink, the Post-Transac@orporation or any
subsidiary of either corporation) beneficially owdsectly or indirectly, 20% or more of the themtstanding shares of
common stock of the corporation resulting from sBeisiness Combination or 20% or more of the combiraing power of
the then outstanding voting securities of such @aon, anc

3) at least a majority of the members of thard of directors of the Post-Transaction Corporetiere members of the
Incumbent Board at the time of the execution ofittitgal agreement, or of the action of the Boafdaectors, providing for
such Business Combination;

(iv) approval by the shareholders of CenturyLink of mpkete liquidation or dissolution of CenturyLir

For purposes of this Section 9, the term “persdwllsnean a natural person or entity, and shadl alean the group or syndicate created when two or
more persons act as a syndicate or other groufudiimg a partnership or limited partnership) foe fsurpose of acquiring, holding, or disposing of a
security, except that “person” shall not includeuaderwriter temporarily holding a security pursutanan offering of the security.

(b) Upon a Change of Control, all shares ofls@mwarded pursuant to this Plan shall automagidstome fully vested, all restrictions or
limitations on any shares of stock awarded shabrmatically lapse and, unless otherwise providethinAgreement, all performance criteria
and other conditions relating to the shares ofksévearded shall be deemed to be achieved at thettivel without the necessity of action by
any person

(c) In the event that the consideration offered to ehealders of CenturyLink in any transaction desdatilvethis Section 9 consists of anything o
than cash, the Committee shall determine the &&h @quivalent of the portion of the consideratiffared that is other than cas

9. Amendment or TerminatioriThe Board may from time to time alter, amendpsund or discontinue the Plan, except that noagiter or
amendment shall, without the approval of a majarityhe stockholders of the Company and entitledote at a duly called stockholderaketing, (i) increase tl
total number of shares which may be awarded urdePtan, except as provided in Section 8, (ii) geathe standards of eligibility of employees eligito
participate in the Plan, (iii) materially increabe benefits accruing to Participants under tha,Ria(iv) materially expand the types of awardailable for grant
under the Plan. No such amendment or modificatfa@il, however, adversely affect, without his verititonsent, any employee with respect to stocldyre
awarded to him.

10. Choice of Law The place of administration of the Plan shall veighin the State of Louisiana and the validityteipretation an
administration of the Plan and of any rules, retioies, determinations or decisions made thereusidall be determined exclusively in accordance withlaw:
of the State of Louisiana. Without limiting thengeality of the foregoing, the period within whiehy action in connection with the Plan must be cemoe(
shall be governed by the laws of the State of Liang without regard to the place where the acinoission complained of took place, the residencangfpart
to such action or the place where the action mayrbeght.

11. Withholding of TaxesParticipant shall advise the Company within 39gof the date of the stock award whether Paaitipiishes to be
taxes at the time of grant or at the time the Ragin Period expires. At the time the Participalgcts to be taxed, Participant shall advise the@any whethe




it shall withhold from regular compensation the amioof applicable taxes or Participant shall pay@ompany the amount of Federal tax required to be
withheld. If so provided in the applicable Agreeme participant will have the right to satisfy lir her withholding tax obligation in whole orpart by
electing (an “Election”) to deliver currently owneHares of Common Stock or to have the Companyhwithfrom the shares the participant otherwise aoul
receive shares of Common Stock having a value ¢quhk minimum amount required to be withheld hvtite value of the shares to be delivered or withhe
being based on the Fair Market Value of the Com®imck on the date that the amount of tax to beheithis determined (the “Tax Date”). Each Electioust

be made prior to the Tax Date. Notwithstandingtlaimg to the contrary in this Plan or any Agreemém Committee may disapprove of any Electionuspsne
or terminate the right to make Elections.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been exatats of the date and year indicated in the Reaitapage 1 hereof.

CENTURYTEL, INC.

By: _/s/ Glen F. Post,
Glen F. Post, |
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 10.2(f
AMENDED AND RESTATED

CENTURYLINK
2005 DIRECTORS STOCK PLAN

Purpose. The purpose of the Amended and Restated Centuky2005 Directors Stock Plan (the “Plan”) is topiate the interests of

CenturyTel, Inc. (“CenturyLink”) and its shareholgldy strengthening CenturyLink’s ability to attramotivate and retain experienced and qualifiedators,
and to encourage the highest level of directorguerance by providing directors with a variety ofigg incentives (the “Incentives”) offering a pragtary
interest in the financial success and growth oft@shink and its subsidiaries (collectively with @eryLink, the “Company”).Incentives may consist of optio
to purchase shares of CenturyLink’s common stotkQGpar value per share (the “Common Stock”),kspreciation rights, shares of restricted stock,
restricted stock units or other stock-based awtirelvalue of which is based upon the value of tam@on Stock, all on terms determined under this.Pks
used in this Plan, the term “subsidiary” means @mporation, limited liability company or other @ntof which CenturyLink owns (directly or indirdg} within
the meaning of Section 424(f) of the Internal Rexeeode of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), 50% oermbthe total combined voting power of all classé
stock, membership interests or other equity intsnssued thereby.

2.

Administration.

2.1 Composition. This Plan shall be administered by the compemsatbmmittee of the Board of Directors of Centuni,ior by a

subcommittee of the compensation committee. Thentittee or subcommittee that administers this Bleadl hereinafter be referred to as the
“Committee.” The Committee shall consist of naté than two members of the Board of Directorshezfovhom shall qualify as a “non-employee
director” under Rule 16b-3 under the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934 (the “1934 Act”), or any successie.

2.2 Authority. The Committee shall have authority to grant Ini#es under this Plan, to interpret this Plan,dtablish any rules or

regulations relating to this Plan that it determsit@be appropriate, to enter into agreements eviffrovide notices to participants as to the teofithe
Incentives (the “Incentive Agreements”) and to makg other determination that it believes necessagdvisable for the proper administration of this
Plan. Its decisions concerning matters relatintdpigPlan shall be final, conclusive and bindimgtioe Company and participants.

3.

Eligible Participants. Members of the board of directors of the Compéhg “Board”) who are not employed by CenturyLinkamy of its

subsidiaries are eligible to receive Incentivesarrttis Plan when designated by the Committee.

4.
the following:

Shares Subject to this Plan. The shares of Common Stock with respect to whickntives may be granted under this Plan shadubgect to

4.1 Type of Common Stock. The shares of Common Stock with respect to whickntives may be granted under this Plan may be

currently authorized but unissued shares or st@nmeently held or subsequently acquired by the Camypas treasury shares, including shares purchase:
in the open market or in private transactions.

4.2 Maximum Number of Shares. Subject to the other provisions of this Sectipthé maximum number of shares of Common Stock

that may be delivered to participants and theirefieraries under this Plan shall be 400,000 shaf€xommon Stock.

4.3 Share Counting. To the extent any shares of Common Stock covieyeah Incentive are not delivered to a participant

beneficiary because the Incentive is forfeitedamaeled, or the shares of Common Stock are notatetl because the Incentive is paid or settled in
cash, such shares shall not be deemed to havelbbeered for purposes of determining the maximummber of shares of Common Stock available for
delivery under Section 4.2 or 4.4(a) of this Pléamthe event that shares of Common Stock are dsaséncentives and thereafter are forfeited or
reacquired by the Company pursuant to rights resempon issuance thereof, such forfeited and réi@zti8hares may again be issued under this

Plan. All shares to which a stock appreciatiohtriglates (not only the net shares) shall be @zliagainst the shares issuable through the Plaapex

as otherwise provided above.

4.4 Limitations on Number of Shares. Subject to Section 4.5, the following additiohalitations are imposed under this Plan:

(@) The maximum number of shares of Com®mmck that may be issued as restricted stockjatesi stock units, or Other
Stock-Based Awards (as defined below) shall beGshares.

(b) If, after shares have been earne@uad Incentive, the delivery is deferred, any toidal shares attributable to dividends
paid during the deferral period shall be disregdride purposes of the limitations of this Section 4

4.5 Adjustment.

(@) In the event of any recapitalizatieglassification, stock dividend, stock split, ddnation of shares or other change in the
Common Stock, all limitations on numbers of shafe€@ommon Stock provided in this Section 4 andrtbmber of shares of Common Stock
subject to outstanding Incentives shall be equjtabjusted in proportion to the change in outstagdihares of Common Stock. In addition, in
the event of any such change in the Common StbekCbmmittee shall make any other adjustment thigtermines to be equitable, including
adjustments to the exercise price of any optiotiherbase price of any stock appreciation rightamgdper share performance objectives of any
Incentive in order to provide participants with #@me relative rights before and after such adjeistm



(b) If the Company merges, consolidagedis all of its assets or dissolves and such a@tim is not a Change of Control, as
defined in Section 11.12 (each of the foregoingrarfdamental Change”), then thereafter upon anycesesor payout of an Incentive
theretofore granted the participant shall be etitb receive (i) in lieu of shares of Common Stpakviously issuable thereunder, the number
and class of shares of stock and securities tohwthie participant would have been entitled purstathe terms of the Fundamental Change if,
immediately prior to such Fundamental Change, tiréigipant had been the holder of record of the lpemof shares of Common Stock subject
to such Incentive or (ii) in lieu of payments basgdn Common Stock previously payable thereundgmnents based on any formula that the
Committee determines to be equitable in order twige participants with substantially equivalewghtis before and after the Fundamental
Change. In the event any such Fundamental Changees a change in the outstanding Common Stockgtregate number of shares
available under the Plan may be appropriately &y the Committee in its sole discretion, whdegrmination shall be conclusive.

5. Annual Grants. Unless the Committee otherwise determines, (i) @aeimber of the Board eligible to receive Incentitresugh this Plan
shall receive an annual grant on the businessalying CenturyLink’s annual meeting of sharehotdend (ii) each person who becomes a membeeof th
Board other than through elections at an annuatingeef shareholders and who is eligible to recéhaentives under this Plan shall receive a grént o
Incentives on the business day following the datd=ligible director becomes a member of the Boditae type or types of Incentives to be grantetitae
terms of such awards shall be determined by theriitiee in accordance with this Plan.

6. Stock Options. The Committee may grant non-qualified stock amtiander the Plan. Each stock option granted &tmmittee under
this Plan shall be subject to the following terms aonditions:

6.1 Price. The exercise price per share shall be deternbigetle Committee, subject to adjustment under 8eeti5; provided that in
no event shall the exercise price be less thafraireMarket Value (as defined below) of a shar€ofmmon Stock on the date of grant, except in tise
of a stock option granted in assumption of or institution for an outstanding award of a compamyu&red by the Company or with which the Comp
combines.

6.2 Number. The number of shares of Common Stock subjedtamption shall be determined by the Committeejestito the
limitations and adjustments provided in Sectioredebf.

6.3 Duration and Time for Exercise.Subject to earlier termination as provided in Sewil1.4 and 11.12, the term of each stock o
shall be determined by the Committee, but may roeed ten years. Each stock option shall becoraeisable at such time or times during its term as
shall be determined by the Committee. The Committay accelerate the exercisability of any stodioapat any time.

3
6.4 Conditions to Exercise. The Committee may, in its discretion, providet tagtock option cannot be exercised unless oneooe
performance goals are achieved.
6.5 Manner of Exercise.
(@) A stock option may be exercised, hole or in part, by giving written notice to ther@pany, specifying the number of

shares of Common Stock to be purchased. The eremoitice shall be accompanied by tender of thefuthase price for such shares, which
may be paid or satisfied by (i) cash; (ii) chedk) ¢elivery of shares of Common Stock, which sfmshall be valued for this purpose at the
Market Value on the business day immediately priecethe date such option is exercised and, unigsswise determined by the Committee,
shall have been held by the optionee for at léashenths; (iv) delivery of irrevocable written imsctions to a broker (with a copy to the
Company) to immediately sell a portion of the skassuable under the option and to deliver promiptithe Company the amount of sale
proceeds (or loan proceeds if the broker lendssfuadhe participant for delivery to the Companypay the exercise price; (v) in such other
manner as may be authorized from time to time kyGbmmittee; or (vi) any combination of the preoegliequal in value to the full amount of
the exercise price; provided that all such paymsh#dl be made or denominated in United Statesudoll

(b) Notice under the preceding paragraply be delivered by telecopy, electronic mail oy aimilar form of transmission
provided that the exercise price of such sharescisived by the Company via wire transfer or otheans on or before the day such
transmission is received by the Company. The adall specify the manner in which any certifisdtar such shares are to be delivered.

(c) An option to purchase shares of Comi@tock in accordance with this Plan shall be dektodave been exercised
immediately prior to the close of business on ttet business date on which the Company has regdiwth (i) written notice of such exercise
and (ii) payment in full of the exercise price the number of shares for which options are beiregg@sed.

(d) In the case of delivery of an unditi check, no shares shall be issued until thelchas been paid in full.

(e) Prior to the issuance of shares ah@on Stock upon the exercise of a stock optiorgrégipant shall have no rights as a
shareholder.

6.6 Repricing. Except for adjustments pursuant to Section 4 &ctions permitted to be taken by the CommitteesuSection 11.12(c
in the event of a Change of Control, unless apatdyethe shareholders of the Company, (a) the eseeprice for any outstanding option granted under
this Plan may not be decreased after the dateaot @nd (b) an outstanding option that has beemegtainder this Plan may not, as of any date that s
option has an exercise price that is greater tharnhen current Fair Market Value of a share of @mm Stock, be surrendered to the Company as
consideration for anything of value, including tirant of a new option with a lower exercise praegther Incentive, a cash payment or Common Stock.

7. Restricted Stock.

7.1 Grant of Restricted Stock. An award of restricted stock may be subject toatiainment of specified performance goals oretarg
restrictions on transfer, forfeitability provisioaad such other terms and conditions as the Coemnitiay determine, subject to the provisions of



Plan.

7.2 Restricted Period. At the time an award of restricted stock is makle,Committee shall establish a period of timeérdpwhich the
transfer of the shares of restricted stock shatelstricted (the “Restricted Period”). Each awafrdestricted stock may have a different Restricted
Period. Unless otherwise provided in the Incenfigeeement, the Committee may in its discretionatecthe Restricted Period terminated upon a
participant’s death, disability, retirement or atbessation of Board service and permit the sateaosfer of the restricted stock. The expiratbthe
Restricted Period shall also occur as provided uSdetion 11.12 upon a Change of Control of the amy.

7.3 Escrow. The participant receiving restricted stock skalier into an Incentive Agreement with the Compsetying forth the
conditions of the grant. Any certificates reprasenshares of restricted stock shall be registéreétle name of the participant and deposited thieh
Company, together with a stock power endorsedankby the participant. Each such certificateIdtedr a legend in substantially the following form

The transferability of this certificate and the saof Common Stock represented by it is subjetitederms and conditions (including
conditions of forfeiture) contained in the Amended Restated CenturyLink 2005 Directors Stock Raa “Plan”) and an agreement
entered into between the registered owner and @grk thereunder. Copies of this Plan and theeagrent are on file and available
for inspection at the principal office of the CenmylLink.

If the shares awarded under the Plan are represbptieook or electronic entry rather than a cexdife, the Company shall take steps to restrict
transfer of the shares as it deems necessary @addily to comply with applicable law.

7.4 Dividends on Restricted Stock. Any and all cash and stock dividends paid wipeet to the shares of restricted stock shall be
subject to any restrictions on transfer, forfeiliabprovisions or reinvestment requirements as@oenmittee may, in its discretion, prescribe in the
Incentive Agreement.

7.5 Forfeiture. In the event of the forfeiture of any sharesesftricted stock under the terms provided in themtige Agreement
(including any additional shares of restricted ktthat may result from the reinvestment of cashstodk dividends, if so provided in the Incentive
Agreement), such forfeited shares shall be surmeddand any certificates cancelled. The partidipahall have the same rights and privileges, @&nd b
subject to the same forfeiture provisions, wittpezs to any additional shares received pursua8etdion 4.5 due to a recapitalization, stock split
other change in capitalization described therein.

7.6 Expiration of Restricted Period. Upon the expiration or termination of the Res&itPeriod and the satisfaction of any other
conditions prescribed by the applicable Incentigge®ment or at such earlier time as provided f@ention 7.2, the restrictions applicable to the
restricted stock shall lapse and a stock certdi¢at the number of shares of restricted stock wapect to which the restrictions have lapsed bleal
delivered, free of all such restrictions and legeather than those required by law, to the pasditir the participant’s estate, as the case may be

7.7 Rights as a Shareholder. Subject to the restrictions imposed under th@sesnd conditions of this Plan and subject to ahgro
restrictions that may be imposed in the Incentigee®ment, each participant receiving restrictedkssall have all the rights of a shareholder with
respect to shares of Common Stock during any pémi@chich such shares are subject to forfeiture r@strictions on transfer, including the right mtes
such shares.

8. Restricted Stock Units.

8.1 Grant of Restricted Stock Units. A restricted stock unit, or RSU, represents tpbtrto receive from the Company on the
scheduled vesting date or other specified paymatet for such RSU, one share of Common Stock. wara of restricted stock units may be subject to
the attainment of specified performance goals yeta, forfeitability provisions and such othemterand conditions as the Committee may determine,
subject to the provisions of this Plan.

8.2 Vesting Period. At the time an award of restricted stock unitmede, the Committee shall establish a periocheé @luring which
the restricted stock units shall vest (the “Vesfiegiod”). Each award of restricted stock unityhave a different Vesting Period. Unless otheewis
provided in the Incentive Agreement, the acceleratif the expiration of the Vesting Period shaiurcas provided under Section 11.12(b) upon a
Change of Control of the Company and may also oasiprovided under Section 11.4 in the event ofitgtion of service as a director under certain
circumstances.

8.3 Dividend Equivalent Accounts. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Riad the applicable Incentive Agreement, as well as
any procedures established by the Committee, fritive expiration of the applicable Vesting Pemdén RSU granted to a participant hereunder, the
Company shall establish an account for the pagitijpnd deposit into that account any securit@sh or other property comprising any dividend or
property distribution with respect to the share€ofmmon Stock underlying the RSU. The participsmatl have no rights to the amounts or other
property in such account until the applicable R®sts.

8.4 Rights as a Shareholder. Each participant receiving restricted stock usitall have no rights as a shareholder with respesiich
restricted stock units until such time as shareSamhmon Stock are issued to the participant.
6
9. Stock-Settled Stock Appreciation Rigs .
9.1 Grant of Stock-Settled Stock Appreciation RightsA stock-settled stock appreciation right, or SARairight to receive, without

payment to the Company , a number of shares of Gamiock, the number of which is determined purst@mthe formula set forth in Section
9.5. Each SAR granted by the Committee under ke $hall be subject to the terms and conditionsided in this Section 9 .

9.2 Number. Each SAR granted to any participant shall refateuch number of shares of Comnftock as shall be determined by
Committee, subject to adjustment as provided iniGed.5.

9.3 Duration and Time for Exercise. The term of each SAR shall be determined by the@ittee, but shall not exceemaximum



term of 10 years. Each SAR shall become exerasattduch time or times during its term as shatlétermined by the Committee. The
Committee may in its discretion accelerate the @gability of any SAR at any time in its discretion

9.4 Exercise. A SAR may be exercised, in whole or in part, byrgy written notice to the Company, specifying thember of SARs
which the holder wishes to exercise. The datettt@Company receives such written notice shateberred to herein as the “Exercise Date.” The
Company shall, within 30 days of an Exercise Ddgdiver to the exercising holder certificates foe shares of Common Stock to which the holder is
entitled pursuant to Section 9.5.

9.5 Payment. The number of shares of Common Stock which $felssuable upon the exercise of a SAR shall lerméted by
dividing:

0] the number of shares of Common @& to which the SAR is exercised, multiplied bg amount of the appreciation in
each such share (for this purpose, the “appreciasiball be the amount by which the Fair Marketiéabf the Common Stock subject to the
SAR on the business day preceding the Exercise &ateeds the “Base Price,” which is an amount)esst than the Fair Market Value of a
share of Common Stock on the date of grant, whietl #e determined by the Committee at the timgraht, subject to adjustment under
Section 4.5); by

(i) the Fair Market Value of a shafe@mmmon Stock on the Exercise Date.

9.6 No Fractional Shares. No fr actional shares of Common Stock shall baésl upon the exercise of a SAR. In lieu theréuef, t
holder of a SAR shall be entitled to purchase trtign necessary to make a whole share at itsN#aiket Value on the Exercise Date.

9.7 Repricing. Except for adjustments pursuant to Section 4 &ctions permitted to be taken by the CommitteesuSection 11.12(c
in the event of a Change of Control, unless apmtdyethe shareholders of the Company, (a) the Base for any outstanding SAR granted under this
Plan may not be decreased after the date of grah(tg an outstanding SAR that has been grantedruthis Plan may not, as of any date that such SAR
has a per share Base Price that is greater thahehecurrent Fair Market Value of a share of Comi8tock, be surrendered to the Company as
consideration for anything of value, including thant of a new SAR with a lower Base Price, anotheentive, a cash payment or Common Stock.

10. Other Stock-Based Awards. The Committee may grant to eligible participdi@sher Stock-Based Awards,” which shall consisawfards,
other than options, restricted stock, restrictedlstinits or SARs provided for in Sections 6 thio@g the value of which is based in whole or int jparthe value
of shares of Common Stock. Other Stock-Based Asvardy be awards of shares of Common Stock or magbeminated or payable in, valued in whole or in
part by reference to, or otherwise based on ota®lm, shares of, or appreciation in the valu&Cainmon Stock (including securities convertiblerchangeabl
into or exercisable for shares of Common Stockilessmed by the Committee consistent with the p@po$this Plan. The Committee shall determindehms
and conditions of any Other Sto8ased Award (including which rights of a sharehaldfeany, the recipient shall have with respec€mmmon Stock associat
with any such award) and may provide that such dvugapayable in whole or in part in cash. An OtS&rck-Based Award may be subject to the attainroent
such specified performance goals or targets a€tmemittee may determine, subject to the provisiithis Plan.

11. General.

111 Duration. No Incentives may be granted under the Plan thter May 1, 2015provided, howevethat Incentives granted prior
such date shall remain in effect until (i) all suobhentives granted under this Plan have eithen kaésfied by the issuance of shares of CommockSto
or the payment of cash or been terminated undetethes of this Plan or the applicable Incentive g@gmnent and (i) all restrictions imposed on shafes
Common Stock in connection with their issuance utigis Plan have lapsed.

11.2 Transferability of Incentives.
(@) No Incentive granted hereunder majrémesferred, pledged, assigned or otherwise enetedtby the holder thereof except:
@) by will;
(i) by the laws of descent and distribof or
(i) pursuant to a domestic relationden, as defined in the Code; or
(iv) in the case of stock options onfypérmitted by the Committee and so provided inltieentive

Agreement, (A) to Immediate Family Members (asmkdibelow), (B) to a partnership in which the gédpant and/or
Immediate Family Members, or entities in which gaeticipant and/or Inmediate Family Members aresible owners,
members or beneficiaries, as appropriate, aredieepartners, (C) to a limited liability companwvitich the participant
and/or Immediate Family Members, or entities inahhihe participant and/or Immediate Family Memlaesthe sole owners,
members or beneficiaries, as appropriate, aredieensembers, or (D) to a trust for the sole berwdfthe participant and/or
Immediate Family Members. “Immediate Family Mendieneans the spouse and natural or adopted chi@@ren
grandchildren of the participant and their respectipouses.
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(b) No such transfer of any Incentive emplaragraph (a) shall be effective to bind the Gamy unless the Company shall have
been furnished with written notice thereof and pycof such evidence as the Committee may deem sa&get® establish the validity of the
transfer and the acceptance by the transfereamsferees of the terms and conditions of this Btahthe applicable Incentive Agreement.

(c) Any attempted assignment, transflgdge, hypothecation or other disposition of arefrtive, or levy of attachment or
similar process upon the Incentive not specificptlymitted herein, shall be null and void and witheffect.

11.3 Dividend Equivalents.In the sole and complete discretion of the Commjtéan Incentive may provide the holder thereof \



dividends or dividend equivalents, payable in cablares, other securities or other property orrientior deferred basis.

11.4 Effect of Termination of Board Service.In the event that a participant ceases to be a reeoflihe Board eligible to participate
the Plan for any reason, including death, disabiéarly retirement or normal retirement, any auiging Incentives then held by such participant e
exercised, may vest or may expire at such timés such manner as is set forth in the applicabtemtive Agreemenprovided, howevethat if the
participant ceases to serve on the Board becagbepsuticipant is ineligible to stand for re-electiunder CenturyLink’s directors retirement poliapy
Incentives then exercisable by such participanii,sinaless otherwise provided in the applicablecimive Agreement, continue to remain outstanding
and exercisable for the remaining term of suchntiges. In its discretion, the Committee may resawy questions under this Plan or any Incentive
Agreement as to whether and when there has beemanation of Board service and the cause or natfiseich termination.

11.5 Additional Conditions. Anything in this Plan to the contrary notwithsdang:

(@) the Company may, if it shall detereninnecessary or desirable for any reason, dirtteeof award of any Incentive or the
issuance of any shares of Common Stock pursuartytdncentive, require the recipient of the Incestias a condition to the receipt thereof or
to the receipt of shares of Common Stock issueslyaunt thereto, to deliver to the Company a writepresentation of present intention to
acquire the Incentive or the shares of Common Sgmtled pursuant thereto for his own account feestment and not for distribution; and

(b) if at any time the Company furthetedeines, in its sole discretion, that the listirggistration or qualification (or any
updating of any such document) of any Incentivehershares of Common Stock issuable pursuant thereecessary on any securities
exchange or under any federal or state securitibtue sky law, or that the consent or approvamf governmental regulatory body is
necessary or desirable as a condition of, or imeotion with the award of any Incentive, the issgaof shares of Common Stock pursuant
thereto, or the removal of any restrictions imposedauch shares, such Incentive shall not be awardsuch shares of Common Stock shal
be issued or such restrictions shall not be remaa®the case may be, in whole or in part, unless Bsting, registration, qualification, consent
or approval shall have been effected or obtaineel &f any conditions not acceptable to the Company.

11.6 Incentive Agreements. An Incentive under this Plan shall be subjecuch terms and conditions, not inconsistent wiih Btan,
as the Committee may, in its sole discretion, pibsand set forth in the Incentive Agreement. Stiechns and conditions may provide for the forfestur
of an Incentive or the gain associated with anntige under certain circumstances to be set forthé Incentive Agreement. In connection with ang
of Incentives hereunder, the Committee shall aigkand approve a form of Incentive Agreement gowegr the terms and conditions of such
Incentives, and cause the Company to prepare @ndnel agreement or notice to each eligible divet¢hat represents the actual number of shares of
Common Stock to which the Incentive relates. Aycopsuch document shall be provided to each sirgletdr, and the Committee may, but need not,
require that such director duly execute and deliwehe Company a copy of such document as a donditecedent to the effectiveness of the grant of
the Incentive. Such document is referred to ia Bian as an “Incentive Agreement” regardless adthér a participant’s signature is required.

11.7 Withholding. The Company shall have the right to withhold fromy @ayments or stock issuances under this Plaio, @ollect as
a condition of payment, any taxes required by lawe withheld.

11.8 No Conferment of Rights.Nothing in this Plan or in any agreement or insteatrexecuted pursuant to this Plan will confer upon
any participant any right to continue to serve derector or affect the right of the Company tanérate the services of any director.

11.9 Deferral Permitted. Payment of cash or distribution of any shareSafhmon Stock to which a participant is entitled emany
Incentive shall be made as provided in the Incenfigreement. Payment may be deferred at the opfitive participant if provided in the Incentive
Agreement.

11.10 Amendment or Discontinuance of this Plan. The Board may amend or discontinue this Plamgtiane;provided, however,
that no such amendment may:

€) without the approval of the sharebkadd (i) increase, subject to adjustments permitegdin, the maximum number of shares
of Common Stock that may be issued through this,RIg materially increase the benefits accruiogarticipants under this Plan, (iii)
materially expand the classes of persons eligiblgatticipate in this Plan, (iv) materially expathe types of awards available for grant under
the Plan, (v) amend Section 11.1 to permit grahteaentives later than May 1, 2015, (vi) matesiathange the method of determining the
exercise price of options or the Base Price of SAR$vii) amend Section 6.6 or Section 9.7 to gerapricing of options or SARs,
respectively, or

10

(b) materially impair, without the consefithe recipient, an Incentive previously grantextept (i) as otherwise provided in
Section 11.16 and (ii) that the Company retainsigiiits to take action under Section 11.12 andi¢tude in Incentive Agreements provisions
authorizing the Committee in its discretion to aglnmvested or unexercisable Incentives.

11.11 Definition of Fair Market Value. Whenever the “Fair Market Valugf Common Stock or some other specified securitgtrbe
determined for purposes of this Plan, it shall eednined as follows: (i) if the Common Stock dnatsecurity is listed on an established stock
exchange or any automated quotation system thaid@® sale quotations, the closing sale price feliare thereof on such exchange or quotation sy
on the applicable date or, if shares are not trasesuich day, on the next preceding trading da}éf the Common Stock or other security is natdid
on any exchange or quotation system, but bid akeldagrices are quoted and published, the mean betthe quoted bid and asked prices on the
applicable date or, if bid and asked prices areamatlable on such day, on the next preceding dawlich such prices were available; and (iii) ¥ th
Common Stock or other security is not regularlytgdothe fair market value of a share thereof enaghplicable date as established by the Committee i
good faith and in accordance with Section 409Ahef€ode. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if so theieed by the Committee, “Fair Market Value”
may be determined as an average selling price gariperiod specified by the Committee that is waiitthiirty days before or thirty days after the dafte
grant, provided that the commitment to grant tleelstight based on such valuation method mustregacable before the beginning of the specified
period, and such valuation method must be usedstendly for grants of stock rights under the same substantially similar progran



11.12 Change of Control.
(@) Unless otherwise provided in the hide Agreement, a Change of Control shall mean:
0] the acquisition by any person of Hemal ownership of 30% or more of the outstandéhgres of the Common Stc
or 30% or more of the combined voting power of @Qeyltink’s then outstanding securities entitled tievgenerally in the election of
directors;provided, howevethat for purposes of this subsection (i), the feileg acquisitions shall not constitute a Chang€aiitrol:

(A) any acquisition (other than a Busm€ombination (as defined below) which constit@&shange of
Control under Section 11.12(a)(iii) hereof) of Coomtock directly from the Company,
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(B) any acquisition of Common Stock bg tbompany,
© any acquisition of Common Stock by amployee benefit plan (or related trust) sporg@remaintained

by the Company or any corporation controlled byGlenpany, or

(D) any acquisition of Common Stock by @orporation pursuant to a Business Combinatiabdiees not
constitute a Change of Control under Section 1a){i#j hereof; or

(i) individuals who, as of February 2810, constituted the Board of Directors of Cenitimi (the “Incumbent
Board”) cease for any reason to constitute at leasajority of the Board of Directorprovided, howevethat any individual becomir
a director subsequent to such date whose electiargmination for election by CenturyLink’s shar&ters, was approved by a vote of
at least two-thirds of the directors then compgdime Incumbent Board shall be considered a mewnfitbe Incumbent Board, unless
such individual’s initial assumption of office ogsias a result of an actual or threatened electotest with respect to the election or
removal of directors or other actual or threates@ttitation of proxies or consents by or on beldlé person other than the
Incumbent Board; or

(iii) consummation of a reorganizationage exchange, merger or consolidation (includimgsach transaction
involving any direct or indirect subsidiary of CantLink) or sale or other disposition of all or stantially all of the assets of the
Company (a “Business Combinationprovided, howevethat in no such case shall any such transactiostitore a Change of
Control if immediately following such Business Canmmtion:

(A) the individuals and entities who wéle beneficial owners of CenturyLink’s outstand®gmmon Stock
and CenturyLink’s voting securities entitled to @generally in the election of directors immediatalior to such Business
Combination have direct or indirect beneficial ovatgp, respectively, of more than 50% of the thetst@anding shares of
common stock, and more than 50% of the combineidgqower of the then outstanding voting securiéiettled to vote
generally in the election of directors of the suivj or successor corporation, or, if applicabihe, tiltimate parent company
thereof (the “Post-Transaction Corporation”), and
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(B) except to the extent that such owmerexisted prior to the Business Combination, aspn (excluding
the Post-Transaction Corporation and any emplogeefit plan or related trust of either CenturyLitte Post-Transaction
Corporation or any subsidiary of either corporatibeneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 20% orore of the then
outstanding shares of common stock of the corpmragsulting from such Business Combination or 20%more of the
combined voting power of the then outstanding \@8acurities of such corporation, and

© at least a majority of the membershefboard of directors of the Post-TransactiornpGration were
members of the Incumbent Board at the time of #eeetion of the initial agreement, or of the actafrihe Board of
Directors, providing for such Business Combination;

(iv) approval by the shareholders of Qeyltink of a complete liquidation or dissolution G&nturyLink.

For purposes of this Section 11.12, the term “p&rsball mean a natural person or entity, and silah mean the group or syndicate created
when two or more persons act as a syndicate or gtbep (including a partnership or limited parstép) for the purpose of acquiring, holdii
or disposing of a security, except that “persorglshot include an underwriter temporarily holdiagecurity pursuant to an offering of the
security.

(b) Upon a Change of Control, all outsliag Incentives granted pursuant to this Plan shabbmatically become fully vested
and exercisable, all restrictions or limitationsamy Incentives shall automatically lapse and, sstetherwise provided in the Incentive
Agreement, all performance criteria and other cthol relating to the payment of Incentives sheldeemed to be achieved at the target level
without the necessity of action by any person.

(c) No later than 30 days after a Chawfg@éontrol of the type described in subsection§)(a) (a)(ii) of this Section 11.12 and
no later than 30 days after the approval by ther@®o&a Change of Control of the type describeduhsections (a)(iii) or (a)(iv) of this Section
11.12, the Committee, acting in its sole discretidgthout the consent or approval of any particip@md notwithstanding any removal or
attempted removal of some or all of the membenetifeas directors or Committee members), may aeffext one or more of the alternatives
listed below, which may vary among individual peigants and which may vary among Incentives heldryindividual participaniprovided,
howeverthat no such action may be taken if it would reButhe imposition of a penalty on the participanter Section 409A of the Code &
result thereof



0] require that all outstanding optioB#Rs or Other Stock-Based Awards be exercised defore a specified date
(before or after such Change of Control) fixed by €Committee, after which specified date all uneised options, SARs and Other
Stock-Based Awards and all rights of participahtréunder shall terminate,

(ii) make such equitable adjustmentsitehtives then outstanding as the Committee depprejriate to reflect such
Change of Control and provide participants withstabtially equivalent rights before and after sGttange of Control grovided,
howeverthat the Committee may determine in its sole dismmethat no adjustment is necessary),
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(i) provide for mandatory conversionexchange of some or all of the outstanding opti8#e€Rs, restricted stock un
or Other Stock-Based Awards held by some or aligipants as of a date, before or after such Chaf@»ntrol, specified by the
Committee, in which event such Incentives shalllbemed automatically cancelled and the Company st or cause to be paid, to
each such participant an amount of cash per slyai@ & the excess, if any, of the Change of CéMatue of the shares subject to
such option, SAR, restricted stock unit or Otherxc8tBased Award, as defined and calculated belowr, the per share exercise price
or base price of such Incentive or, in lieu of suakh payment, the issuance of Common Stock origeswf an acquiring entity
having a Fair Market Value equal to such excess, or

(iv) provide that thereafter, upon angmeise or payment of an Incentive that entitleshibleler to receive Common
Stock, the holder shall be entitled to purchaseceive under such Incentive, in lieu of the numifeshares of Common Stock then
covered by such Incentive, the number and clasbafes of stock or other securities or propertyiising cash) to which the holder
would have been entitled pursuant to the termbi@bgreement providing for the reorganization, sleachange, merger, consolidal
or asset sale, if, immediately prior to such Chamig€ontrol, the holder had been the record owrféine number of shares of Comir
Stock then covered by such Incentive.

(d) For the purposes of conversions @éharges under paragraph (iii) of Section 11.12(€),'Change of Control Value” shall
equal the amount determined by whichever of thievohg items is applicable:

0] the per share price to be paid takda of Common Stock in any such merger, consadidair other reorganization,

(i) the price per share offered to hotdef Common Stock in any tender offer or exchaoffier whereby a Change of
Control takes place, or

(i) in all other events, the fair matkalue of a share of Common Stock, as determiyetidd Committee as of the tii
determined by the Committee to be immediately piodhe effective time of the conversion or exchang

(e) In the event that the consideratidierefd to shareholders of CenturyLink in any tratisacdescribed in this Section 11.12
consists of anything other than cash, the Commiiedl determine the fair cash equivalent of thetipo of the consideration offered that is
other than cash.
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11.13 Repurchase. Upon approval of the Committee, the Company negyrchase all or a portion of a previously grartegntive
from a participant by mutual agreement by paymenhé participant of cash or Common Stock or a doatton thereof with a value equal to the value
of the Incentive as determined in good faith by @menmitteeprovided, howevethat in no event will this section be construegtant the Committee
the power to take any action in violation of Sect&6 or 9.7.

11.14 Liability.

(@) Neither CenturyLink, its affiliates any of their respective directors or officerslsha liable to any participant relating to
participant’s failure to (i) realize any anticipdtieenefit under an Incentive due to the failureatsfy any applicable conditions to vesting,
payment or settlement, including the failure taiatperformance goals or to satisfy the conditigpecified in Section 11.5 or (ii) realize any
anticipated tax benefit or consequence due to @simgapplicable law, the particular circumstanafethe participant, or any other reason.

(b) No member of the Committee will bablie for any action or determination made in gaothfby the Committee with respect
to this Plan or any Incentive.

11.15 Interpretation.

€) Unless the context otherwise requifi@sll references to Sections are to SectiorthigfPlan, (ii) the term “includingtheans
including without limitation, (iii) all reference® any particular Incentive Agreement shall be dego include any amendments thereto or
restatements thereof, and (iv) all references yopamticular statute shall be deemed to includeangndment, restatement or re-enactment
thereof or any statute or regulation substituteddfore.

(b) The titles and subtitles used in flian or any Incentive Agreement are used for coievnee only and are not to be
considered in construing or interpreting this Rdathe Incentive Agreement.

(c) All pronouns contained in this Plaraay Incentive Agreement, and any variations terghall be deemed to refer to the
masculine, feminine or neutral, singular or pluea the identities of the parties may require.

11.16 Compliance with Section 409A. It is the intent of the Company that this Plampty with the requirements of Section 409A of
the Code with respect to any Incentives that cartsthor-qualified deferred compensation under Section 488é the Company intends to operate



Plan in compliance with Section 409A and the Departt of Treasury’s guidance or regulations promgidgahereunder. If the Committee
grants any Incentives or takes any other actiohwioald, either immediately or upon vesting or paymof the Incentive, inadvertently result in the
imposition of a penalty on a participant under Bec#09A of the Code, then the Company, in its@ison, may, to the maximum extent permitted by

law, unilaterally rescindb initio, sever, amend or otherwise modify the grant doadbr any provision of the Incentive) in such mannecessary for
the penalty to be inapplicable or reduced.

15






CERTIFICATION

The undersigned Secretary of CenturyTel, Inc. ({@@mpany”) hereby certifies that the foregoing Arded and Restated CenturyLink 2005
Management Incentive Compensation Plan was (i)mewended to the Company’s Board of Directors (thedi8l”) by its Compensation Committee at a mee
of the Compensation Committee duly held on Febra&ry2005, (ii) adopted by the Board at a meeting teld on February 22, 2005, (iii) approved by th
requisite affirmative vote of the Company’s shatdbos at its 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholdetd ba May 12, 2005, and (iv) adopted by the Boards
current amended and restated form on February@®3).2

Dated: February 23, 20: /s| _Stacey W. Gof
Stacey W. Gof
Secretary



Exhibit 10.2(g
AMENDED AND RESTATED

CENTURYLINK
2005 MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

1. Purpose. The purpose of the Amended and Restated 2005 géament Incentive Compensation Plan (this “Plan"EehturyTel, Inc.
(“CenturyLink”) is to increase shareholder valuel am advance the interests of CenturyLink andutss&liaries (collectively, the “Company”) by furhiag a
variety of equity incentives (the “Incentives”) dg#ed to attract, retain, and motivate officersptayees, consultants, and advisors and to strendtiee
mutuality of interests between such persons anduBdrink’s shareholders. Incentives may consisbptions to purchase shares of CenturyLink’s common
stock, $1.00 par value per share (the “Common 3}pstock appreciation rights, shares of restrictetk, restricted stock units, or other stock-Hameards the
value of which is based upon the value of the Com®imck, all on terms determined under this Plas.used in this Plan, the term “subsidiary” meamg a
corporation, limited liability company or other éntof which CenturyLink owns (directly or indirég} within the meaning of Section 424(f) of thedmal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), &0%tore of the total combined voting power of disses of stock, membership interests, or othetyequ
interests issued thereby.

2. Administration.

2.1 Composition. This Plan shall be administered by the compemsatbmmittee of the Board of Directors of Centuni,ior by a
subcommittee of the compensation committee. Thentittee or subcommittee that administers this Bleadl hereinafter be referred to as the
“Committee.” The Committee shall consist of not/é than two members of the Board of Directorsheafovhom shall (a) qualify as a “non-employee
director” under Rule 16b-3 under the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934 (the “1934 Act”), or any successée, and (b) qualify as an “outside director”
under Section 162(m) of the Code and the regulatibereunder (collectively, “Section 162(m)”).

2.2 Authority. The Committee shall have authority to award Ities under this Plan, to interpret this Plan,gtablish any rules or
regulations relating to this Plan that it deterrsit@be appropriate, to enter into agreements evifitrovide notices to participants as to the teofrthe
Incentives (the “Incentive Agreements”), and to maky other determination that it believes necgssaadvisable for the proper administration othi
Plan. Its decisions concerning matters relatindpi®Plan shall be final, conclusive and bindimgtioee Company and participants. The Committee may
delegate its authority hereunder to the extentigealin Section 3 hereof. The Committee shallhate authority to award Incentives under this Rtan
directors in their capacities as such.

3. Eligible Participants. Employees and officers of the Company (includifficers who also serve as directors of the Compang
consultants and advisors to the Company shall beadigible to receive Incentives under this Plarewhbesignated by the Committee. Employees may be
designated individually or by groups or categorassthe Committee deems appropriate. With regpgmrticipants not subject to Section 16 of tha4l8ct or
Section 162(m), (i) the Committee may delegatdéochief executive officer of CenturyLink its auttp to designate participants, to determine thEefysize an
terms of the Incentives to be received by thesgqgiaants, to determine any performance objectfeeshese participants, and to approve or authdheegorm of
Incentive Agreement governing such Incentives d@hdo{lowing any grants of Incentives pursuantstach delegated authority, the chief executive effiaf
CenturyLink or any officer designated by him magese any powers of the Committee under this Rlatcelerate vesting or exercise periods, to teatai
restricted periods, to waive compliance with spedifrovisions, or to otherwise make determinatiomstemplated hereunder with respect to such It
provided, however, that in no event may (A) thee€kixecutive officer grant stock options at an ebser price other than the Fair Market Value of arsfof
Common Stock on the later of the date of granherdate the participant commences employment WétCompany, unless otherwise determined by the
Committee (subject to the limitations in Sectioh)5(B) any person other than the Committee malygeoathe determinations set forth in Section 45,11 or
Section 11.12 of this Plan, or (C) any person takeaction that the Committee lacks the authodtiake hereunder.

4. Shares Subject to this Plan. The shares of Common Stock with respect to whickntives may be granted under this Plan shadugect to
the following:

4.1 Type of Common Stock. The shares of Common Stock with respect to whichntives may be granted under this Plan may be
currently authorized but unissued shares or slamgsntly held or subsequently acquired by the Camgpas treasury shares, including shares purchiased
open market or in private transactions.

4.2 Maximum Number of Shares. Subject to the other provisions of this Sectipthé maximum number of shares of Common Stock
that may be delivered to participants and theirfieraries under this Plan shall be 4,000,000 shaf€€ommon Stock.

4.3 Share Counting. To the extent any shares of Common Stock covieyeah Incentive are not delivered to a participant
beneficiary because the Incentive is forfeitedanmaeled, or the shares of Common Stock are notateti because the Incentive is paid or settleésm,csuch
shares shall not be deemed to have been delivergaifposes of determining the maximum number afesiof Common Stock available for delivery under
Section 4.2 or 4.4(c) of this Plan. In the evéat shares of Common Stock are issued as Incertiveshereafter are forfeited or reacquired byGbenpany
pursuant to rights reserved upon issuance thesaoh forfeited and reacquired Shares may agaiasped under this Plan. All shares to which a stock
appreciation right relates (not only the net shesball be counted against the shares issuableghrthe Plan, except as otherwise provided above.

4.4 Limitations on Number of Shares. Subject to Section 4.5, the following additiohalitations are imposed under this Plan:

€) The maximum number of shares of Com@&twck that may be issued upon exercise of stptikres intended to qualify as
incentive stock options under Section 422 of thdeéCshall be 4,000,000 shares.

(b) The maximum number of shares of Comi@tock that may be covered by Incentives grantetuthis Plan to any one
individual during any one calendar-year period lsbal600,000.

(c) The maximum number of shares of Comi8tock that may be issued as restricted stockjates stock units, or Other
Stock-Based Awards (as defined below) shall be@@D shares. Such Incentives shall be subjebietainimum vesting periods provided herein, wébpect
to restricted stock, restricted stock units andeD8tock-Based Awards, except that restricted st@stricted stock units and Other Stock-Based rllw/avith
respect to an aggregate of 200,000 shares of CorStomk may be granted without compliance with theimum vesting periods provided in Sections 6.2, 7.
and 9.2.

(d) If, after shares have been earne@uad Incentive, the delivery is deferred, any taldal shares attributable to divider



paid during the deferral period shall be disregdride purposes of the limitations of this Section 4
4.5 Adjustment.

(@) In the event of any recapitalizatimeglassification, stock dividend, stock split, ddnation of shares or other change in the
Common Stock, all limitations on numbers of shafe§&ommon Stock provided in this Section 4 andrtbmber of shares of Common Stock subject to
outstanding Incentives shall be equitably adjustgatoportion to the change in outstanding shafé&ommon Stock. In addition, in the event of angls
change in the Common Stock, the Committee shallenaaly other adjustment that it determines to béagja, including adjustments to the exercise potany
option or the base price of any stock appreciatigim and any per share performance objectivesipfiacentive in order to provide participants wiltle same
relative rights before and after such adjustment.

(b) If the Company merges, consolidagedis all of its assets or dissolves and such a@tim is not a Change of Control, as
defined in Section 11.12 (each of the foregoingrarfdamental Change”), then thereafter upon anycieseeor payout of an Incentive theretofore graried
participant shall be entitled to receive (i) indief shares of Common Stock previously issuablestireer, the number and class of shares of statkecurities
to which the participant would have been entitladspant to the terms of the Fundamental Changmiifiediately prior to such Fundamental Change, the
participant had been the holder of record of thalmer of shares of Common Stock subject to suchithezor (ii) in lieu of payments based upon Common
Stock previously payable thereunder, payments basethy formula that the Committee determines tedpgétable in order to provide participants with
substantially equivalent rights before and afterflandamental Change. In the event any such FientahifChange causes a change in the outstandingn@om
Stock, the aggregate number of shares availablerthd Plan may be appropriately adjusted by thar@ittee in its sole discretion, whose determinatiball be
conclusive.

5. Stock Options. The Committee may grant incentive stock opti@ssguch term is defined in Section 422 of the Cod@pn-qualified stock
options. Any option that is designated as a norHiptstock option shall not be treated as an imiee stock option. Each stock option grantedhsy t
Committee under this Plan shall be subject to ¢tlewing terms and conditions:

5.1 Price. The exercise price per share shall be deternbiyetle Committee, subject to adjustment under 8eeti5; provided that in
no event shall the exercise price be less thakaireMarket Value (as defined below) of a shar€ofmmon Stock on the date of grant, except in tise cha
stock option granted in assumption of or in substih for an outstanding award of a company acduinethe Company or with which the Company comhines

5.2 Number. The number of shares of Common Stock subjedtamption shall be determined by the Committeejestito the
limitations and adjustments provided in Sectioredebf.

5.3 Duration and Time for Exercise. Subject to earlier termination as provided int®es 11.4 and 11.12, the term of each stock
option shall be determined by the Committee, bug nt exceed ten years. Each stock option shabibe exercisable at such time or times duringeitsitas
shall be determined by the Committee. The Committag accelerate the exercisability of any stockoopat any time.

5.4 Conditions to Exercise. The Committee may, in its discretion, providet thatock option cannot be exercised unless ongooe
performance goals are achieved, including any agdtspecified in Section 10.

5.5 Manner of Exercise.

€) A stock option may be exercised, hole or in part, by giving written notice to the @pany, specifying the number of
shares of Common Stock to be purchased. The sgemotice shall be accompanied by tender of theéuthase price for such shares, which may be qaid
satisfied by (i) cash; (ii) check; (iii) deliveryf shares of Common Stock, which shares shall beegdfor this purpose at the Fair Market Value anlibsiness
day immediately preceding the date such optioxéased and, unless otherwise determined by ther@itiee, shall have been held by the optioneetfteast
six months; (iv) delivery of irrevocable writtensinuctions to a broker approved by the Companyh(aitopy to the Company) to immediately sell aiporof
the shares issuable under the option and to dgdinaenptly to the Company the amount of sale proséedloan proceeds if the broker lends funds ¢o th
participant for delivery to the Company) to pay &xercise price; (v) in such other manner as magubieorized from time to time by the Committee(\ay any
combination of the preceding, equal in value tofthlkamount of the exercise price; provided thhsach payments shall be made or denominated itedn
States dollars.

(b) Notice under the preceding paragmaply be delivered by telecopy, electronic mail oy similar form of transmission,
provided that the exercise price of such sharescisived by the Company via wire transfer or otheans on or before the day such transmission évest by
the Company. The notice shall specify the mammevrhich any certificates for such shares are tddiwered.

(c) An option to purchase shares of Com@tock in accordance with this Plan shall be debroéave been exercised
immediately prior to the close of business on tte business date on which the Company has regdioth (i) written notice of such exercise andg@yment in
full of the exercise price for the number of shemrsvhich options are being exercised.

(d) In the case of delivery of an undeti check, no shares shall be issued until thelchas been paid in full.
(e) Prior to the issuance of shares agh@on Stock upon the exercise of a stock optiorgrégipant shall have no rights as a
shareholder.
5.6 Repricing. Except for adjustments pursuant to Section 4 &ctions permitted to be taken by the CommitteesuSection 11.12(¢

in the event of a Change of Control, unless apptdnethe shareholders of the Company, (a) the eseeprice for any outstanding option granted urhblisrPlan
may not be decreased after the date of grant greh(butstanding option that has been granted whigePlan may not, as of any date that such oftaman
exercise price that is greater than the then ctFain Market Value of a share of Common Stocksbeendered to the Company as consideration fahamy of
value, including the grant of a new option withoaér exercise price, another Incentive, a cash payimr Common Stock.

5.7 Incentive Stock Options. Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the cary, each of the following additional provisiorisad
apply to the grant of stock options that are ineshtb qualify as incentive stock options:

(@) Any incentive stock option authorizewier this Plan shall contain such other provisiasthe Committee shall deem
advisable, but shall in all events be consistett and contain or be deemed to contain all promsi@quired in order to qualify the options as ise stock
options.



(b) All incentive stock options must brugted within ten years from the date on which Bien was adopted by the Board of
Directors.

(c) No incentive stock option shall bamed to any participant who, at the time suchoopis granted, would own (within the
meaning of Section 422 of the Code) stock possgsaore than 10% of the total combined voting powfaall classes of stock of the corporation that Eye
such participant or its parent or subsidiary coagion.

(d) The aggregate Fair Market Value (deteed with respect to each incentive stock opésrof the time such incentive stock
option is granted) of the Common Stock with respecethich incentive stock options are exercisabletlie first time by a participant during any calanyear
(under this Plan or any other plan of the Compag)l not exceed $100,000. To the extent that Bottation is exceeded, such options shall notrbated, for
federal income tax purposes, as incentive stocloogt

6. Restricted Stock.

6.1 Grant of Restricted Stock. An award of restricted stock may be subject toatiainment of specified performance goals oretarg
restrictions on transfer, forfeitability provisioaad such other terms and conditions as the Coemnittay determine, subject to the provisions ofPés. To
the extent restricted stock is intended to qualgyperformance-based compensation” under Sec6@(ni), it must be granted subject to the attainnoént
performance goals as described in Section 10 ared the additional requirements by imposed by Sectig2(m).

6.2 Restricted Period. At the time an award of restricted stock is makle,Committee shall establish a period of timeérdpwhich the
transfer of the shares of restricted stock shatelsericted (the “Restricted Period"Each award of restricted stock may have a diffeRatricted Period. Exce
as provided in Section 4.4(c), a Restricted Peofoat least three years is required, except thasfing of the shares is subject to the attainmesgpecified
performance goals, the Restricted Period may beyeaeor more. Incremental periodic vesting of joms of the award during the Restricted Period is
permitted. Unless otherwise provided in the Insenfgreement, the Committee may in its discretieclare the Restricted Period terminated upon a
participant’s death, disability, retirement or atbermination by the Company and permit the saleasfer of the restricted stock. The expiratibthe
Restricted Period shall also occur as provided uSéetion 11.12 upon a Change of Control of the Qamy.

6.3 Escrow. The participant receiving restricted stock shateemto an Incentive Agreement with the Compartjirsg forth the
conditions of the grant. Any certificates repreasenshares of restricted stock shall be registeréde name of the participant and deposited tighCompany,
together with a stock power endorsed in blank leyphrticipant. Each such certificate shall belagand in substantially the following form:

The transferability of this certificate and the gsaof Common Stock represented by it is subjetitederms and conditions (including
conditions of forfeiture) contained in the Amendetl Restated CenturyLink 2005 Management Ince@mpensation Plan (the “Plan”) and
an agreement entered into between the registeradraand CenturyLink thereunder. Copies of thisi\Rliad the agreement are on file and
available for inspection at the principal office@énturyLink.

If the shares awarded under the Plan are represbpteook or electronic entry rather than a cexife, the Company shall take steps to restrict
transfer of the shares as it deems necessary @aidy to comply with applicable law.

6.4 Dividends on Restricted Stock. Any and all cash and stock dividends paid wipeet to the shares of restricted stock shall be
subject to any restrictions on transfer, forfeiliépprovisions or reinvestment requirements as@oenmittee may, in its discretion, prescribe in liheentive
Agreement.

6.5 Forfeiture. In the event of the forfeiture of any shares ofrieted stock under the terms provided in the ItieenAgreement
(including any additional shares of restricted ktthat may result from the reinvestment of cashstodk dividends, if so provided in the Incentivgréement),
such forfeited shares shall be surrendered andentificates cancelled. The participants shallehtne same rights and privileges, and be subjdbtetsame
forfeiture provisions, with respect to any addiibsehares received pursuant to Section 4.5 duedoagitalization, stock split or other changeapitalization
described therein.

6.6 Expiration of Restricted Period. Upon the expiration or termination of the Res&itPeriod and the satisfaction of any other
conditions prescribed by the applicable Incentigge®ment or at such earlier time as provided f@dntion 6.2, the restrictions applicable to thsrieted stock
shall lapse and a stock certificate for the nundfeshares of restricted stock with respect to whiehrestrictions have lapsed shall be delivened 6f all such
restrictions and legends other than those reqliydew, to the participant or the participant’satst as the case may be.

6.7 Rights as a Shareholder. Subject to the restrictions imposed under th@sesnd conditions of this Plan and subject to ahgro
restrictions that may be imposed in the Incentigee®ment, each participant receiving restrictedkssall have all the rights of a shareholder wétspect to
shares of Common Stock during any period in whigthsshares are subject to forfeiture and restristan transfer, including the right to vote sucérss.

7. Restricted Stock Units.

7.1 Grant of Restricted Stock Units. A restricted stock unit, or RSU, represents tgbtrto receive from the Company on the
scheduled vesting date or other specified paymatet fdr such RSU, one share of Common Stock. vlara of restricted stock units may be subject & th
attainment of specified performance goals or tadetfeitability provisions and such other termsl @onditions as the Committee may determine, stbjethe
provisions of this Plan. To the extent an awardesfricted stock units is intended to qualify performance-based compensation” under Section 1)62&(must
be granted subject to the attainment of performagoeds as described in Section 10 and meet the¢i@uili requirements imposed by Section 162(m).

7.2 Vesting Period. At the time an award of restricted stock unitmede, the Committee shall establish a periocheé tluring which
the restricted stock units shall vest (the “Vesfagiod”). Each award of restricted stock units may haveferifit Vesting Period. Except as provided in $&
4.4(c), a Vesting Period of at least three yearsdsiired, except that if vesting of the RSUs igject to the attainment of specified performancalgiahe Vestin
Period may be one year or more. Incremental perieeisting of portions of the award during the \fagtPeriod is permitted. The acceleration of thgiraxion
of the Vesting Period shall occur as provided urkstion 11.12(b) upon a Change of Control of tbenfany and may also occur as provided under Setfig!
in the event of termination of employment underdlieumstances provided in the Incentive Agreement.

7.3 Dividend Equivalent Accounts. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Rlad the applicable Incentive Agreement, as well as
any procedures established by the Committee, fitite expiration of the applicable Vesting Pemwddn RSU granted to a participant hereunder, thagany
shall establish an account for the participant@eybsit into that account any securities, casthergroperty comprising any dividend or propetistribution
with respect to the shares of Common Stock undeglshe RSU. The participant shall have no rigbtthe amounts or other property in such accourik tinet



applicable RSU vests.

7.4 Rights as a ShareholderEach participant receiving restricted stock uritalishave no rights as a shareholder with respestich
restricted stock units until such time as shareS8amhmon Stock are issued to the participant.
8. Stock-Settled Stock Appreciation Rigkt
8.1 Grant of Stock-Settled Stock Appreciation Rights. A stock-settled stock appreciation right, or SAdRa right to receive, without

payment to the Company, a number of shares of CanBback, the number of which is determined purstattie formula set forth in Section 8.5. Each SAR
granted by the Committee under the Plan shall bgesuto the terms and conditions provided in 8gstion 8:

8.2 Number. Each SAR granted to any participant shall relatguch number of shares of Common Stock as sealktermined by tr
Committee, subject to adjustment as provided iniGed.5.

8.3 Duration. The term of each SAR shall be determined by thea@ittee, but shall not exceed a maximum term ofddys. The
Committee may in its discretion accelerate the @gability of any SAR at any time in its discretion

8.4 Exercise. A SAR may be exercised, in whole or in part, byirgg written notice to the Company, specifying thenber of SARs
which the holder wishes to exercise. The datettteaCompany receives such written notice shateberred to herein as the “Exercise Date.” The Gany
shall, within 30 days of an Exercise Date, deligethe exercising holder any certificates for thares of Common Stock to which the holder is exdipursuant
to Section 8.5.

8.5 Payment. The number of shares of Common Stock which dfeissuable upon the exercise of a SAR shall bermhiried by
dividing:

@ the number of shares of Common Séscto which the SAR is exercised, multiplied by @ngount of the appreciation in ei
such share (for this purpose, the “appreciatiorlidie the amount by which the Fair Market Valugtef Common Stock subject to the SAR on the busidag
preceding the Exercise Date exceeds the “Base,Pvibéch is an amount, not less than the Fair MaXkaue of a share of Common Stock on the daterarfity
which shall be determined by the Committee atitne bf grant, subject to adjustment under Sectidy; &y

(b) the Fair Market Value of a share oh@non Stock on the Exercise Date.

8.6 No Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock shall beddsupon the exercise of a SAR. In lieu thereaf,itblde
of a SAR shall be entitled to purchase the pontiecessary to make a whole share at its Fair Maf&lete on the Exercise Date.

8.7 Repricing. Except for adjustments pursuant to Section 4 &ctions permitted to be taken by the CommitteesuSection 11.12(c
in the event of a Change of Control, unless apmtdyethe shareholders of the Company, (a) the Base for any outstanding SAR granted under thés Phay
not be decreased after the date of grant and (bytanding SAR that has been granted under thrsrRay not, as of any date that such SAR has ahzee
Base Price that is greater than the then curréntMreaket Value of a share of Common Stock, beenntered to the Company as consideration for anytbiin
value, including the grant of a new SAR with a lo\Base Price, another Incentive, a cash payme@bormon Stock.

9. Other Stock-Based Awards.

9.1 Grant of Other Stock Based Awards. Subject to the limitations described in Sectigh i@ereof, the Committee may grant to
eligible participants “Other Stock Based Awardstiigh shall consist of awards, other than optioestricted stock, restricted stock units or SAR¥jated for in
Sections 5 through 8, the value of which is basedHole or in part on the value of shares of Comi@tmtk. Other Stock Based Awards may be awards of
shares of Common Stock or may be denominated aiyeyn, valued in whole or in part by referenceaiootherwise based on or related to, sharesrof, o
appreciation in the value of, Common Stock (inahgdéecurities convertible or exchangeable intoxer@sable for shares of Common Stock), as deeméled
Committee consistent with the purposes of this PlEme Committee shall determine the terms anditiond of any Other Stock Based Award (includingieth
rights of a shareholder, if any, the recipient khave with respect to Common Stock associated avithsuch award) and may provide that such awgdyable
in whole or in part in cash. An Other Stock-Basedhrd may be subject to the attainment of suchifipdgerformance goals or targets as the Committeg
determine, subject to the provisions of this Pl&o.the extent that an Other Stock-Based Awardtenided to qualify as “performance-based compessati
under Section 162(m), it must be granted subjettigattainment of performance goals as describ&®ction 10 and meet the additional requiremenposed
by Section 162(m).

9.2 Vesting Terms. Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.4(t)enStock-Based Awards granted under this Se&isimall be
subject to a vesting period of at least three yearsept that if vesting of the award is subjedti®attainment of specified performance goalsjramum vesting
period of one year is allowed. Incremental periodisting of portions of the award over the requiresting period is permitted.

10. Section 162(m) Awards. To the extent that shares of restricted stocirioted stock units or Other Stock-Based Awardsiggd under the
Plan are intended to qualify as “performance-basedpensation” under Section 162(m), the vestingngor payment of such awards shall be conditimrethe
achievement of one or more performance goals ared satisfy the other requirements of Section 162(ffje performance goals pursuant to which suchdava
shall vest, be granted or be paid out shall becairsycombination of the following performance meaaswapplied to the Company or one or more of issidins,
subsidiaries or lines of business: return on gquish flow, assets or investment; shareholdarmgthanges in revenues, operating income, cash flash
provided by operating activities, earnings or eagniper share; customer growth; customer satisfacti an economic value added measure. The peafaren
goals may be subject to such adjustments as acéfisgen advance by the Committee, including atiients made pursuant to written guidelines that are
approved or confirmed in advance by the Committeer any performance period, the performance objsimay be measured on an absolute basis oiveelat
to a group of peer companies selected by the Cumenrelative to internal goals or industry benehks, or relative to levels attained in prior years

11. General.

11.1 Duration. No Incentives may be granted under the Plan thter May 1, 2015; provided, however, that Incesgigranted prior t
such date shall remain in effect until (i) all suobentives granted under this Plan have eithen kadésfied by the issuance of shares of CommockSinthe
payment of cash or been terminated under the tefitnés Plan or the applicable Incentive Agreensamd (ii) all restrictions imposed on shares of Camm
Stock in connection with their issuance under Bian have lapsed.

11.2 Transferability of Incentives.



€) No Incentive granted hereunder matrémesferred, pledged, assigned or otherwise enetedtby the holder thereof except:

@) by will;

(i) by the laws of descent and distribot

(iii) pursuant to a domestic relationden, as defined in the Code; or

(iv) in the case of stock options onfypérmitted by the Committee and so provided inltteentive Agreement, (A) to

Immediate Family Members (as defined below), (Ba fgartnership in which the participant and/or Irdiate Family Members, or entities in
which the participant and/or Immediate Family Memsbere the sole owners, members or beneficiargeappropriate, are the sole partners, (C)
to a limited liability company in which the pariigint and/or Immediate Family Members, or entitiee/hich the participant and/or Immediate
Family Members are the sole owners, members orfioearées, as appropriate, are the sole member@pto a trust for the sole benefit of the
participant and/or Immediate Family Members. “Intlia¢e Family Members” means the spouse and natudopted children or
grandchildren of the participant and their respectipouses. To the extent that an incentive stptikn is permitted to be transferred during
lifetime of the participant, it shall be treate@itbafter as a non-qualified stock option.

(b) No such transfer of any Incentive emplaragraph (a) shall be effective to bind the Gamy unless the Company shall have
been furnished with written notice thereof and pycof such evidence as the Committee may deem sa@ge® establish the validity of the transfer #mel
acceptance by the transferee or transferees ¢éthmes and conditions of this Plan and the apple#itentive Agreement.

(c) Any attempted assignment, transflEgdge, hypothecation or other disposition of arehtive, or levy of attachment or
similar process upon the Incentive not specificptlymitted herein, shall be null and void and witheffect.

11.3 Dividend Equivalents. In the sole and complete discretion of the Con@ajtan Incentive may provide the holder theredii wi
dividends or dividend equivalents, payable in cablares, other securities or other property orrientior deferred basis.

114 Effect of Termination of Employment or Death. In the event that a participant ceases to bexgiayee of the Company for any
reason, including death, disability, early retirener normal retirement, any outstanding Incentites held by such participant may be exercised, veat or
may expire at such times or in such manner ag i®gh in the Incentive Agreement. In its distwet the Committee may resolve any questions utidgePlan
or any Incentive Agreement as to whether and wherethas been a termination of employment andahsecor nature of such termination.

11.5 Additional Conditions. Anything in this Plan to the contrary notwithsdarg:

(@) the Company may, if it shall detereninnecessary or desirable for any reason, dirtteeof award of any Incentive or the
issuance of any shares of Common Stock pursuartytdncentive, require the recipient of the Incestias a condition to the receipt thereof or tordueipt of
shares of Common Stock issued pursuant therettgliver to the Company a written representatioprefent intention to acquire the Incentive or therass of
Common Stock issued pursuant thereto for his owonwatt for investment and not for distribution; and

(b) if at any time the Company furthetadmines, in its sole discretion, that the listiregistration or qualification (or any
updating of any such document) of any Incentivthershares of Common Stock issuable pursuant thereecessary on any securities exchange or amger
federal or state securities or blue sky law, ot tha consent or approval of any governmental @guy body is necessary or desirable as a condifioor in
connection with the award of any Incentive, theigsge of shares of Common Stock pursuant theretbeaemoval of any restrictions imposed on sudres,
such Incentive shall not be awarded or such ster€®@mmon Stock shall not be issued or such reigmns shall not be removed, as the case may hehate or
in part, unless such listing, registration, quadifion, consent or approval shall have been effiest®btained free of any conditions not acceptéblbe
Company.

11.6 Incentive Agreements. An Incentive under this Plan shall be subjedutoh terms and conditions, not inconsistent wiih Fthan,
as the Committee may, in its sole discretion, pibe@and set forth in the Incentive Agreement. tSiegems and conditions may provide for the forfiedtaf an
Incentive or the gain associated with an Incentivder certain circumstances to be set forth idrthentive Agreement, including if the participaohtpetes
with the Company or engages in other activitie$ &ne harmful to the Company. In connection witlgeants of Incentives under this Plan, the Conteeit
shall authorize and approve a form of Incentivee®gnent governing the terms and conditions of socéritive that apply to all similarly-situated award
recipients, and cause the Company to prepare andodl agreement with or notice to each awardpiecit that reflects the actual number of shares of
Common Stock to which the Incentive of such reciprelates. A copy of such document shall be ghedito each such award recipient, and the Committee
may, but need not, require that such award redipiely execute and deliver to the Company a copsuch document as a condition precedent to the
effectiveness of the grant of the Incentive. Sdebument is referred to in this Plan as an “Incenfigreement” regardless of whether a participasigaature
is required.

11.7 Withholding.

(@) The Company shall have the right tihnkold from any payments or stock issuances utidsrPlan, or to collect as a
condition of payment, any taxes required by laweovithheld.

(b) If so provided in the applicable Intge Agreement, a participant will have the riginsatisfy his or her withholding tax
obligation in whole or in part by electing (an “Et®n”) to deliver currently owned shares of Common Stadlodave the Company withhold from the share:
participant otherwise would receive shares of Comi@tock having a value equal to the minimum amoeqaired to be withheld, with the value of the gisatio
be delivered or withheld being based on the FairkeliaValue of the Common Stock on the date thattheunt of tax to be withheld is determined (thexT
Date”). Each Election must be made prior to the Tax Datetwithstanding anything to the contrary in thisPbr any Incentive Agreement, the Committee
disapprove of any Election or suspend or termittegaight to make Elections.

11.8 No Continued Employment. No participant under this Plan shall have anftrigecause of his or her participation, to corgiimu
the employ of the Company for any period of timecany right to continue his or her present or atier rate of compensation.

11.9 Deferral Permitted. Payment of cash or distribution of any shares ah@on Stock to which a participant is entitled unaey
Incentive shall be made as provided in the Incenfigreement. Payment may be deferred at the opfitive participant if provided in the Incentive ikgment.



11.10 Amendment or Discontinuance of this Plan The Board may amend or discontinue this Plamgtiane; provided, however,
that no such amendment may:

€) without the approval of the sharebkadd (i) increase, subject to adjustments permitegdin, the maximum number of shares
of Common Stock that may be issued through this,Rig materially increase the benefits accruiagarticipants under this Plan, (iii) materiallypexd the
classes of persons eligible to participate in &, (iv) materially expand the types of awardailable for grant under the Plan, (v) amend Sectibd to permi
grants of Incentives hereunder later than May 152Qvi) materially change the method of deterngrtine Base price of options or the Base Price dR§hor
(vii) amend Section 5.6 or 8.7 to permit repricafgptions or SARS, respectively, or

(b) materially impair, without the consefithe recipient, an Incentive previously grantextept (i) as otherwise provided in
Section 11.16 and (ii) that the Company retainsighits to take action under Section 11.12 ana¢tude in Incentive Agreements provisions authogzhe
Committee in its discretion to cancel unvestedr@xercisable Incentives.

11.11 Definition of Fair Market Value. Whenever the “Fair Market Valugf Common Stock or some other specified securitgtre
determined for purposes of this Plan, it shall eednined as follows: (i) if the Common Stock dnertsecurity is listed on an established stock amxgh or any
automated quotation system that provides sale tiaonsa the closing sale price for a share therea$uch exchange or quotation system on the apjdicktie or,
if shares are not traded on such day, on the mexeging trading date; (ii) if the Common Stoclotrer security is not listed on any exchange ortafiom
system, but bid and asked prices are quoted anispet, the mean between the quoted bid and agikezbmn the applicable date or, if bid and askéckp are
not available on such day, on the next precediygotiavhich such prices were available; and (iihé Common Stock or other security is not regulgtioted,
the fair market value of a share thereof on thdiegige date as established by the Committee i daith and in accordance with Section
409A. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if so detamed by the Committee, “Fair Market Value” may béetmined as an average selling price during a gerio
specified by the Committee that is within thirtyyddefore or thirty days after the date of gramyled that the commitment to grant the stocktriggsed on
such valuation method must be irrevocable befaeebrginning of the specified period, and such t@nanethod must be used consistently for grantstatk
rights under the same and substantially similaggnms.

11.12 Change of Control.
(@) Unless otherwise provided in the hine Agreement, a Change of Control shall mean:

@) the acquisition by any person of Hérial ownership of 30% or more of the outstandahgres of the Common Stc
or 30% or more of the combined voting power of Qeyltink’s then outstanding securities entitled tiergenerally in the election of directors;
provided, however, that for purposes of this sutisedi), the following acquisitions shall not caitste a Change of Control:

(A) any acquisition (other than a Buss€ombination (as defined below) which constit@e&shange of
Control under Section 11.12(a)(iii) hereof) of Coomtock directly from the Company,

(B) any acquisition of Common Stock bg thompany,

© any acquisition of Common Stock by amployee benefit plan (or related trust) sporg@remaintained
by the Company or any corporation controlled byG@enpany, or

(D) any acquisition of Common Stock by @orporation pursuant to a Business Combinatiabdiees not
constitute a Change of Control under Section 1a){i#j hereof; or

(ii) individuals who, as of February 2810, constituted the Board of Directors of Centiml (the “Incumbent
Board”) cease for any reason to constitute at leasajority of the Board of Directors; providedweyer, that any individual becoming a
director subsequent to such date whose electiommination for election by CenturyLink’s shareteis, was approved by a vote of at least
two-thirds of the directors then comprising theumbent Board shall be considered a member of thenibent Board, unless such individual's
initial assumption of office occurs as a resultinfactual or threatened election contest with iEdpethe election or removal of directors or
other actual or threatened solicitation of proxiesonsents by or on behalf of a person other thahncumbent Board; or

(i) consummation of a reorganizationage exchange, merger or consolidation (includmgsach transaction
involving any direct or indirect subsidiary of CantLink) or sale or other disposition of all or stintially all of the assets of the Company (a
“Business Combination”); provided, however, thahinsuch case shall any such transaction constit@eange of Control if immediately
following such Business Combination:

(A) the individuals and entities who wée beneficial owners of CenturyLink’s outstand@®gmmon Stock
and CenturyLink’s voting securities entitled to @@enerally in the election of directors immediatalior to such Business
Combination have direct or indirect beneficial ovahep, respectively, of more than 50% of the thetstanding shares of common
stock, and more than 50% of the combined votinggraf the then outstanding voting securities esdito vote generally in the
election of directors of the surviving or successanporation, or, if applicable, the ultimate pareompany thereof (the “Post-
Transaction Corporation”), and

(B) except to the extent that such owhigrexisted prior to the Business Combination, aspn (excluding
the Post-Transaction Corporation and any emplogeefit plan or related trust of either CenturyLitte Post-Transaction
Corporation or any subsidiary of either corporakibeneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 20% orore of the then outstanding
shares of common stock of the corporation resufiiagn such Business Combination or 20% or morénefdombined voting power of
the then outstanding voting securities of such a@ton, and

© at least a majority of the memberghefboard of directors of the Post-TransactiornpGration were
members of the Incumbent Board at the time of #eeetion of the initial agreement, or of the actadrihe Board of Directors,
providing for such Business Combination; or
(iv) approval by the shareholders of Qeyltink of a complete liquidation or dissolution G&nturyLink.

For purposes of this Section 11.12, the term “p&rsball mean a natural person or entity, and silah mean the group or syndicate created
when two or more persons act as a syndicate or gthap (including a partnership or limited parstep) for the purpose of acquiring, holding, ompdising of €



security, except that “person” shall not includeuaderwriter temporarily holding a security pursutanan offering of the security.

(b) Upon a Change of Control, all outsliag Incentives granted pursuant to this Plan shabbmatically become fully vested
and exercisable, all restrictions or limitationsamy Incentives shall automatically lapse and, sstetherwise provided in the Incentive Agreemeht, a
performance criteria and other conditions relatmthe payment of Incentives shall be deemed tachéeved at the target level without the necessigction by
any person.

(c) No later than 30 days after a Chawfgéontrol of the type described in subsection§)(a) (a)(ii) of this Section 11.12 and
no later than 30 days after the approval by ther®o&a Change of Control of the type describedubsections (a)(iii) or (a)(iv) of this Section 12, the
Committee, acting in its sole discretion without tonsent or approval of any participant (and ribistéanding any removal or attempted removal of soredl
of the members thereof as directors or Committesbees), may act to effect one or more of the adtiives listed below, which may vary among individua
participants and which may vary among Incentivdd bg any individual participant; provided, howeytrat no such action may be taken if it would teisuthe
imposition of a penalty on the participant undect®a 409A of the Code as a result thereof:

@) require that all outstanding optioB#Rs or Other Stock-Based Awards be exercised tdefore a specified date
(before or after such Change of Control) fixed by €ommittee, after which specified date all uneised options, SARs and Other Stock-
Based Awards and all rights of participants thedeurshall terminate,

(i) make such equitable adjustmentsitehtives then outstanding as the Committee depprejariate to reflect such
Change of Control and provide participants withstabtially equivalent rights before and after sGttange of Control (provided, however, t
the Committee may determine in its sole discreti@i no adjustment is necessary),

(iii) provide for mandatory conversionetchange of some or all of the outstanding opfiSA&Rs, restricted stock un
or Other Stock-Based Awards held by some or aligpants as of a date, before or after such Chafi@ontrol, specified by the Committee,
in which event such Incentives shall be deemednaatically cancelled and the Company shall pay amse to be paid, to each such participant
an amount of cash per share equal to the excemsy,ifof the Change of Control Value of the shardsgect to such option, SAR, restricted si
unit or Other Stock-Based Award, as defined andutated below, over the per share exercise pridmsee price of such Incentive or, in lieu of
such cash payment, the issuance of Common Stosdcorities of an acquiring entity having a Fair kérValue equal to such excess, or

(iv) provide that thereafter, upon angmise or payment of an Incentive that entitleshibleler to receive Common
Stock, the holder shall be entitled to purchaseoceive under such Incentive, in lieu of the nunmdfeshares of Common Stock then covered by
such Incentive, the number and class of sharetok ®r other securities or property (includingtga® which the holder would have been
entitled pursuant to the terms of the agreementighreg for the reorganization, share exchange, erem@pnsolidation or asset sale, if,
immediately prior to such Change of Control, thédbohad been the record owner of the number ashaf Common Stock then covered by
such Incentive.

(d) For the purposes of conversions @éharges under paragraph (iii) of Section 11.12(€),'Change of Control Value” shall
equal the amount determined by whichever of thieohg items is applicable:

0] the per share price to be paid takda of Common Stock in any such merger, consadidair other reorganization,

(i) the price per share offered to hotdef Common Stock in any tender offer or exchaoffier whereby a Change of
Control takes place, or

(i) in all other events, the fair matkalue of a share of Common Stock, as determiyetidd Committee as of the tii
determined by the Committee to be immediately piodhe effective time of the conversion or exchang

(e) In the event that the consideratifiered to shareholders of CenturyLink in any tranige described in this Section 11.12
consists of anything other than cash, the Commdttedl determine the fair cash equivalent of theipo of the consideration offered that is otheartttash.

11.13 Repurchase. Upon approval of the Committee, the Company negyirchase all or a portion of a previously grartegntive
from a participant by mutual agreement by paymenhé participant of cash or Common Stock or a doatton thereof with a value equal to the valughef
Incentive determined in good faith by the Commitevided, however, that in no event will this e be construed to grant the Committee the pawéake
any action in violation of Section 5.6 or 8.7.

11.14 Liability.

(@) Neither CenturyLink, its affiliates @ny of their respective directors or officerslkha liable to any participant relating to
participants failure to (i) realize any anticipated benefitlanan Incentive due to the failure to satisfy applicable conditions to vesting, payment or setéet,
including the failure to attain performance goalswosatisfy the conditions specified in Section5ldr (ii) realize any anticipated tax benefit onsequence due
to changes in applicable law, the particular cirstances of the participant, or any other reason.

(b) No member of the Committee (or offioéthe Company exercising delegated authoritthefCommittee under Section 3
thereof) will be liable for any action or deterntioa made in good faith with respect to this Plamwoy Incentive.

11.15 Interpretation.

() Unless the context otherwise requiig¢sll references to Sections are to SectiorthisfPlan, (i) the term “includingfheans
including without limitation, (iii) all reference® any particular Incentive Agreement shall be dego include any amendments thereto or restatantiesteof,
and (iv) all references to any particular statinallsbe deemed to include any amendment, restateonee-enactment thereof or any statute or regulat
substituted therefore.

(b) The titles and subtitles used in flian or any Incentive Agreement are used for coievnee only and are not to be
considered in construing or interpreting this Rdathe Incentive Agreement.

(c) All pronouns contained in this Plaraay Incentive Agreement, and any variations thierghall be deemed to refer to the
masculine, feminine or neutral, singular or plueal the identities of the parties may requ



(d) Whenever any provision of this Platharizes the Committee to take action or makerdeteations with respect to
outstanding Incentives that have been granted arded by the chief executive officer of CenturyLimkder Section 3(i) hereof, each such reference to
“Committee” shall be deemed to include a referdncany officer of the Company that has delegatediaidtrative authority under Section 3(ii) of tiitan
(subject to the limitations of such section).

11.16 Compliance with Section 409A. It is the intent of the Company that this Plampdy with the requirements of Section 409A of
the Code with respect to any Incentives that caristnon-qualified deferred compensation underiGe@09A and the Company intends to operate the iRla
compliance with Section 409A and the Departmenfrehsurys guidance or regulations promulgated thereundehe Committee grants any Incentives or te
any other action that would, either immediatelypon vesting or payment of the Incentive, inadvehyeresult in the imposition of a penalty on atmapant
under Section 409A of the Code, then the Compamiys idiscretion, may, to the maximum extent petediby law, unilaterally rescind ab initio, sevamend or
otherwise modify the grant or action (or any pr@nsof the Incentive) in such manner necessarytferpenalty to be inapplicable or reduced.

Kk kkhkkkkk*k*k

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned Secretary of CenturyTel, Inc. (@@mpany”) hereby certifies that the foregoing Arded and Restated CenturyLink 2005
Management Incentive Compensation Plan was (i)mewended to the Company’s Board of Directors (thedi8l”) by its Compensation Committee at a mee
of the Compensation Committee duly held on Febra&ry2005, (ii) adopted by the Board at a meeting teld on February 22, 2005, (iii) approved by th
requisite affirmative vote of the Company’s shatdlcs at its 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholdetd ba May 12, 2005, and (iv) adopted by the Boarils
current amended and restated form on February®3).2

Dated: February 23, 20: /s| _Stacey W. Gof
Stacey W. Gof
Secretary
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AMENDED AND RESTATED

CENTURYLINK LEGACY EMBARQ 2008 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLA N

Section 1. Purpose. The purposes of the Amended and Restated Centikrylegacy Embarg 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (tH&l&n”) are to
encourage certain Employees and Outside Direcfa@enturyTel, Inc. (the “ Company and its Affiliates to acquire a proprietary inést in the growth and
performance of the Company, to generate an incgdeasentive to contribute to the Company’s futunecess and prosperity, thus enhancing the valtigeof
Company for the benefit of stockholders, and toamake the ability of the Company and its Affiliatesattract and motivate individuals of exceptiotadént upon
whom, in large measure, the sustained progresaitigrand profitability of the Company depend.

Section 2. General Interpreté/Principles and Definitions.

(@) General Interpretive Principle§) Words in the singular include the plural ance versa, and words of one gender include thergender,
in each case, as the context requires; (ii) thrage€hereof,” “herein,” and “herewith” and words gifnilar import will, unless otherwise stated, beswued to
refer to this Plan and not to any particular privisof this Plan, and references to Sections angeAgices are references to the Sections of andnflges to
this Plan unless otherwise specified; (iii) the évtincluding” and words of similar import when usiedthis Plan mean “including, without limitationjhless
otherwise specified; and (iv) any reference to drfy. federal, state, or local statute or law isndeg to also refer to all amendments or successeigions
thereto, as well as all rules and regulations pigated under such statute or law, unless the contaerwise requires.

(b) Definitions As used in the Plan, the following terms wilveahe meanings set forth below:

“ Affiliate " means any Person with whom the Company woulddsge¢d as a “single employer” for purposes of Caeetion 414(b) or (c), but
replacing the 80 percent requirement in the reguiatunder Code Sections 414(b) and (c) with ads@gnt requirement, and any Person in which the@om
has a significant equity interest, as determinethbyCommittee.

“ Award " means any Option, Restricted Stock, Performarm@@ & Performance Unit, Restricted Stock Unit, St#ppreciation Right, or Other Stock
Unit award granted under the Plan.

“ Award Agreement means any written or electronic agreement, contoaaither instrument or document designating aradgranted under the Pl
“ Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company or successor thereto.

“ Business Day means any day other than a Saturday, Sundayyoday designated as a holiday by the Federal gavent.

“ Change of Control has the meaning of that term set forth in Secfidnprovided, however, that the Committee maykdista other definitions of
“Change of Control”, as appropriate, to comply witbde Section 409A and the regulations thereunder.

“ Change in Contral has the same meaning as the term “Change of @léntr

“ Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as astend

“ Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Boaalsatbcommittee thereof. Except as provided ini@e&(c), any such subcommittee
that is appointed by the Compensation Committeebgicomposed of not less than two Directors, edethom is both a Non-Employee Director, and an
“outside director” within the meaning of Code Sentil62(m).

“ Common StockR means the Company’s common stock, $1.00 par vadueshare.

“ Company” means CenturyTel, Inc., a Louisiana corporation.

“ Covered Employeé& means an Employee who meets the definition of&zed employee” under Code Section 162(m)(3).

“ Director " means a member of the Board.

“ Disability " means, in the case of a Participant, such Ppditti (i) is unable to engage in any substantiaifghactivity by reason of any medically
determinable physical or mental impairment which ba expected to result in death or can be expéctiadt for a continuous period of not less thanrbnths,
or (i) is, by reason of any medically determinaphg/sical or mental impairment which can be exptberesult in death or can be expected to lash for
continuous period of not less than 12 months, vegincome replacement benefits for a period dfless than three months under an accident anthhgah
covering employees of Company.

“ Employee” means any employee of the Company or any Affiliat

“ Exchange Act means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asdet:

“ Executive Officer’ means an officer of the Company who is subje¢hwoliability provisions of Section 16 of the Excige Act.

“ Exercise Daté means the first Business Day on which the Compauogives (i) written notice to exercise from adwwslof an Award subject to
exercise; (ii) payment in full of any exercise prior the number of Shares for which the Awardemg exercised; and (iii) such other attestations,

representations, or other documentation as the Gbeenmay specify.

“ Fair Market Valu€' of a Share or some other specified security whietst be determined for the purposes of this Plaans: (i) if the Common Stock
or other security is listed on an established stoahange or any automated quotation system tbatdas sale quotations, the closing sale pricafsiare



thereof on such exchange or quotation system oappkcable date or, if shares are not traded ch day, on the next preceding trading date; (iihé&
Common Stock or other security is not listed on exghange or quotation system, but bid and askedsare quoted and published, the mean between the
quoted bid and asked prices on the applicableatai€bid and asked prices are not available arhglay, on the next preceding day on which suateprivere
available; and (iii) if the Common Stock or othecsrity is not regularly quoted, the fair markeleaof a share thereof on the applicable date ableshed by
the Committee in good faith and in accordance @itlde Section 409A. Notwithstanding the foregoifigp determined by the Committee, “Fair Market W&l
may be determined as an average selling price gariperiod specified by the Committee that is waitthiirty days before or thirty days after the daftgrant,
provided that the commitment to grant the stochtrlzased on such valuation method must be irrevedafore the beginning of the specified period| aach
valuation method must be used consistently fortgrahstock rights under the same and substansatiylar programs.

“ Grant Dateé’ means, unless the Committee provides a more peweéthod of determining the Grant Date, the dat®f which an Award is made to a
Participant. For an Option, the Grant Date calweoa date earlier than the date of the action gm@utite Option.

“ Incentive Stock Optiofi means an Option that is intended to meet theirements of Code Section 422.

“ Non-Employee Directof has the meaning provided for in Rule 16b-3(b)(BYler the Exchange Act.

“ Nonqualified Stock Optiofi means an Option that is not intended to be amrtice Stock Option.

“ Option” means any right granted under the Plan allowingréid®ant the opportunity to purchase Shares et guice or prices and during such pel
or periods as the Committee determines.

“ Other Stock Unif' means an award, right, or interest relating &yed in whole or in part by reference to, or otfiee based on Shares, that is granted
pursuant to Section 9.

“ Qutside Director’ means a member of the Board who is not an Emgloye
“ Participant’ means an Employee or Outside Director who isglestied to receive an Award under the Plan undeid®eg(b).

“ Performance Award means any Award that will be issued, granted ansidfl, or become vested or payable, as the caséenapon the achieveme
of designated performance goals, pursuant to Settio

“ Performance Periotimeans that period designated by the Committékeatime a Performance Award is granted during tviperformance relative to
the designated performance goals is to be measured.

“ Performance Sharemeans any grant pursuant to Section 9 of a walited by reference to a designated number of Shahésh value may be paid to
the Participant by delivery of such property as@oenmittee determines, including cash, Sharesppicambination thereof, upon or following achievernef
designated performance goals during the PerformBeded.

“ Performance Unit means any grant pursuant to Section 9 of a walitad by reference to a designated amount of pyppé#rer than Shares, which
value may be paid to the Participant by deliverguwéh property as the Committee determines, inetudash, Shares, or any combination thereof, upon o
following achievement of designated performancdgydaring the Performance Period.

“ Person” means any individual, corporation, partnershgsagiation, joinistock company, trust, unincorporated organizatomgovernment or politic:
subdivision thereof.

“ Restricted Stock means any Share issued pursuant to Section 6wigigubject to both a substantial risk of forfestand restrictions on the holder’s
right to sell, transfer, pledge, or assign suchhr&hd@he Committee, in its sole discretion, mayasgsuch other restrictions (including any resticon the right
to vote such Share, and the right to receive asl davidends), which restrictions may lapse sepérair in combination at such time or times, intéfisnents or
otherwise, as the Committee deems appropriate.

“ Restricted Stock Unit or “ RSU ” means any grant pursuant to Section 7 of a tigheceive a Share (or a cash payment equal tbaheéMarket
Value of a Share) at some future date.

“ Restricted Stock Unit Accouritor “ RSU Account” means an account established on the Companykstfoo each Participant who is granted an
Award of RSUs.

“ Share” means a share of Common Stock.

“ Stock Appreciation Right or “* SAR " means a right granted pursuant to Section 8dseive, as of some future date, an amount equaktotmber of
Shares with respect to which the SAR is exercigrdiiplied by the excess of (i) the Fair Market Walof one Share on the Exercise Date, over (ipthike
Price.

“ Strike Price” means the per-Share price used as the baseliasureefor the value of a SAR, as specified in the® Agreement.

Section 3. Administration an&ligibility.

() Administration This Plan shall be administered by the CommitfBee Committee shall have authority to grant Adgannder this Plan, to
interpret this Plan, to establish any rules or l&tiuns relating to this Plan that it determine®éoappropriate, to enter into Award Agreements Warticipants



and to make any other determination that it beBevecessary or advisable for the proper administratf this Plan. The Committee may delegateq(i) t
officers, Employees, independent contractors, adees of the Company, matters involving the routideninistration of the Plan and which are not iy
required by any provision of this Plan to be perfed by the Board or the Committee; and (ii) ithauty under the Plan to the extent provided inti®ec3(c)
hereof.

(b) Eligible Participants Employees and Outside Directors of the Compayl become eligible to receive Awards under thanRvhen
designated by the Committee, provided that suckgpewas not an Employee or Director of Centurylaskof June 30, 2009. Employees may be designated
individually or by groups or categories, as the @uttee deems appropriate.

(c) Delegation to the Chief Executivei€Hr . With respect to participants who are neithersiat Directors nor subject to Section 16 of the
Exchange Act or Code Section 162(m), (i) the Corteaitmay delegate to the chief executive office€efturyLink its authority to designate Participants
determine the type, size and terms of the Awardretoeceived by these Participants, to determigeparformance objectives for these Participantd,tan
approve or authorize the form of Award Agreementegoing such Awards, and (ii) following any granfsAwards pursuant to such delegated authority, the
chief executive officer of CenturyLink or any officdesignated by him may exercise any powers oftramittee under this Plan to accelerate vesting or
exercise periods, to terminate restricted peritmwgaive compliance with specified provisions, @otherwise make determinations contemplated helerunith
respect to such Awards; provided, however, thabievent may (A) the chief executive officer grattick options at an exercise price other than gieNfarket
Value of a Share on the later of the Grant Datihedate the Participant becomes an Employee eciir of the Company, unless otherwise determiryettid
Committee (subject to the limitations in Sectioh)}((B) any Person other than the Committee maleofthe determinations set forth in Section 4(a)l
Section 11 of this Plan, or (C) any Person takeamtipn that the Committee lacks the authorityateethereunder.

Section 4. Shares Subject taP and Participant Limits.

€) Plan Limit Subject to adjustment as provided in Sectioi, 4le total number of Shares available for issagnasuant to Awards is twenty
million five hundred and fifty thousand (20,550,00@\ny Shares issued hereunder may consist, iferrain part, of authorized and unissued Sharéseasury
Shares. Shares issued by the Company as a réthét Gompany’s assumption or substitution of @rtdtng grants under a plan of a company acquired in
corporate transaction shall not reduce the Sha@tahble for issuance under the Plan.

0] Shares subject to an Option or SAR willdeeinted as one (1) Share at the time of grantdgogses of the limit set forth in Section 4
(a). A grant of a Tandem SAR and related Optioenetthe exercise of the Tandem SAR or Option resuithe cancellation of the
other, will be counted as one Share at the tingraft for purposes of the limit set forth in Segti&{a). All Shares subject to a SAR,
to the extent the SAR is exercised and whethepbBhares are actually issued upon exercise, widnsidered issued for purpose
the limit set forth in Section 4(c

(i) Shares subject to a grant of RestricteattRSUs, Performance Units payable in Share$ofPeaince Shares, Other Stock Units or
any other Award that results in the Company tramisfg the full value of a Share (or a number of i@saequal to the full value)
granted under the Award will be counted as thr¢eifares at the time of grant for purposes ofithé et forth in Section 4(a

(iii) Shares subject to Awards that are thasrdbrfeited, cancelled, expire, or are settledash or otherwise without the issuance of
Shares, will again be available for issuance utiiePlan. Shares subject to an Award may not dgaimade available for issuance
under the Plan if such Shares ¢

(A) Shares that were subject to an Option, kstmitled Stock Appreciation Right or other stoektled Award and were not issued
or delivered as a result of the net settlementiohsAward;

(B) Shares delivered, withheld, or otherwise used totha exercise price or withholding taxes relatedrnt Award; ol
© Shares repurchased on the open market with the@dsmf an Option exercis

(b) Participant Limit No Participant will be granted one or more Avgod Options and/or SARs in any calendar year éogenore than
1,370,000 Shares. No Participant will be granteel @ more Awards of RSUs, Restricted Stock, Pevémice Units payable in Shares or Performance Shares
any calendar year covering more than 685,000 ShidesParticipant will be granted cash-based Pavémice Units or other cash-based Awards the value of
which may be paid, credited or vested in any caepédar in excess of $7.5 Million. The maximumrsHanits set forth herein will be adjusted to #ent
necessary to reflect adjustments made under Setfijn

(c) Adjustments in Authorized Shares the event of any merger, reorganization, otidation, recapitalization, stock dividend, extrdioary
cash dividend, split-up, spin-off, forward or resestock split, or other change in the corporatesire affecting the Shares, an equitable adjustmél be
made in the aggregate number and class of Shaiieb wiay be issued under the Plan, in the numbecksd of Shares that may be subject to an Optien o
SAR granted to any individual in any year underRten, in the number, class and Option price of&haubject to outstanding Options granted unaePtan, it
the value of, or number or class of Shares subjedther Awards granted under the Plan, and imtheber and type of Shares or other securitiesfegetas the
annual per-participant limitations in Section 4@ls)may be determined by the Committee to be apiptepm its sole discretion, to prevent dilutian o
enlargement of benefits or potential benefits ideghunder the Plan or any Award and (where appégansistent with the requirements of Code Sasté09A
and 162(m). Adjustments under this Section 4(d)mait result in the right to purchase or receirecfional Shares under any Award. In the eventéeulation
of any adjustment under this section results iraetional number of Shares, the number of Shargiestito an affected Award will be rounded dowrhe
nearest whole number.

Section 5. Stock Options.

(@) Eligibility and Grant of Optian Options may be granted hereunder to Participeitiier alone or in addition to other Awards. T@mmittee
in its sole discretion will designate whether arti@pis an Incentive Stock Option or a Nonqualif@ck Option. Unless the Option Award Agreen




specifically designates an Option as an IncentieelSOption, such Option is deemed to be a NonfjedlStock Option. Each grant of Options to a
Participant under the Plan will be evidenced byAarard Agreement in such form as the Committee masnftime to time approve.
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(b) Number of SharesEach Option Award Agreement will state thatavers a specified number of Shares, as determipéidebCommittee.
(c) Exercise PriceEach Award Agreement will state the exercisegper Share purchasable under an Option, detedrbinthe Committee in

its sole discretion; provided that such exercisegpshall not be less than the Fair Market ValuthefShare on the Grant Date of the Option.

(d) Option Period Subject to the limitations described below ict#m 5(f) relating to Incentive Stock Options, kaoward Agreement will sta:
the term of each Option, not to exceed ten yeisd fat the Grant Date by the Committee in its slideretion.
(e) Method of Exercise
@) An Option may be exercised, in whole opart, by giving written notice to the Company, sfy@eg the number of Shares to be

purchased. The exercise notice shall be accomgpayi¢ender of the full purchase price for suchr8sawhich may be paid or
satisfied by (1) cash; (2) check; (3) delivery bB&es, which shares shall be valued for this pwrabshe Fair Market Value on the
business day immediately preceding the date sutio®is exercised and, unless otherwise determiyeitie Committee, shall have
been held by the Participant for at least six mgn{th) delivery of irrevocable written instructiottsa broker approved by the
Company (with a copy to the Company) to immediasell}y a portion of the shares issuable under th&o®pnd to deliver promptly to
the Company the amount of sale proceeds (or loacepds if the broker lends funds to the participantelivery to the Company) to
pay the exercise price; (5) in such other mannenagbe authorized from time to time by the Comeeittor (6) any combination of
the preceding, equal in value to the full amourthefexercise price; provided that all such paymehall be made or denominated in
United States dollar:

(i) Notice under the preceding paragraph may be delivby telecopy, electronic mail or any similar foofrtransmission, provided th
the exercise price of such shares is receiveddZtmpany via wire transfer or other means on farbehe day such transmission is
received by the Company. The notice shall spebifymanner in which any certificates for such Share to be delivere

(i) An Option to purchase Shares in accordawdh this Plan shall be deemed to have been imegfimmediately prior to the close of
business on the Exercise De

(iv) In the case of delivery of an uncertified checkStares shall be issued until the check has badnrptull.
v) Prior to the issuance of Shares upon the exer€iaeOption, a Participant shall have no rights abareholder
() Incentive Stock OptionsNo Incentive Stock Option will be exercisabléeathe expiration of ten years from the date tipgidd is granted. |

accordance with rules and procedures establishéldeb@ommittee, the aggregate Fair Market Valuge(d@ned as of the time of grant) of the Sharef wit
respect to which Incentive Stock Options held by Barticipant that are exercisable for the finsteiby such Participant during any calendar yeaeuttte Plan
(and under any other benefit plans of the Comparof any parent or subsidiary corporation of therpany) shall not exceed $100,000 or, if differéime,
maximum limitation in effect at the time of granmtder Code Section 422. The terms of any Incer8ieek Option granted hereunder shall comply imesdpects
with the provisions of Code Section 422.

(9) Form of SettlementAll Options will be settled in the form of Share
(h) Repriced Options Subject to StockkolApproval. The Committee may grant Options in replacemé@piions previously granted under

this Plan or any other compensation plan of the @aomy, for such purposes and on such terms (inagu@istion price) as it deems appropriate, subject to
stockholder approval if such replacement grant ddne deemed to be a repricing under the ruleseoNiw York Stock Exchange.

0] No Reload GrantsOptions will not be granted in considerationd&oad will not be conditioned upon the delivery biages to the Company in
payment of the exercise price and or tax withh@dibligation under any other Option.

0] Other Terms As the Committee deems desirable, each Optignbaasubject to additional terms and conditionsimeonsistent with the
provisions of the Plan.

Section 6. Restricted Stock.

€) Eligibility and Issuance of ResteidtStock Restricted Stock may be issued hereunder tacReants, for such consideration not less than the
minimum consideration required by applicable las/ttee Committee may determine, either alone odditn to other Awards. The provisions of Redatt
Stock need not be the same with respect to eadicipant. Each grant of Restricted Stock to aiBigeint under the Plan will be evidenced by an Advar
Agreement in such form as the Committee may franetio time approve.

(b) Number of SharesEach Award Agreement will state that it covergpacified number of Shares of Restricted Stockledsrmined by the
Committee.

(c) Restrictions. A Participar’s right to retain Shares of Restricted Stock wallsibject to such restrictions as are set fortherAward



Agreement, including but not limited to, continyselformance as an Employee or Outside Directoafastriction period specified by the Committee,
or the attainment of specified performance goatsajectives (as described in Section 10(b)), ap lbesestablished by the Committee with respectith s
Award. The Committee may in its sole discretioguiee different periods of service or different foemance goals and objectives with respect toifignt
Participants, (ii) different grants of Restricted& Awards, or (iii) separate, designated portiohthe Shares constituting a Restricted Stock Awakny grant
of Restricted Stock will contain terms such tha &ward is either exempt from Code Section 409&amplies with such Section.

(d) Lapse of RestrictionsThe restrictions on each Share of RestrictedkStall lapse in accordance with the terms settfantthe applicable
Award Agreement.

(e) Dividends Any and all cash and stock dividends paid wétspect to the Shares of Restricted Stock shallibjea to any restrictions on
transfer, forfeitability provisions, or reinvestmeaquirements as the Committee may, in its digmmeprescribe in the Award Agreement.

® Other Terms As the Committee deems desirable, each Restr&tieck Award may be subject to additional ternd @onditions not
inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan.

Section 7. Restricted Stock (s

(@) Eligibility and Grant of Restrict&lock Units {RSUS) . RSUs may be granted hereunder to Participantscin amount and upon such ter
as the Committee will determine, either alone axddition to other Awards. Each Award of RSUs aaticipant under the Plan will be evidenced byAamard
Agreement that specifies the restrictions, the remalh Shares subject to the RSUs granted, andatheh provisions as the Committee may determine in
accordance with the Plan and Code Section 409A.

(b) Voting Rights A Participant will have no voting rights withsgect to Shares subject to RSUs.
(c) Crediting Restricted Stock Unit§he Company will establish an RSU Account orbitsks for each Participant granted an Award of

RSUs. RSUs will be credited to the Participant®RAccount as of the Grant Date of such RSU. R$toints will be maintained for recordkeeping pugsos
only and the Company will not be obligated to sggte or set aside assets representing securit@heramounts credited to RSU Accounts. The alibg to
make distributions of securities or other amoungslited to RSU Accounts will be an unfunded, unsedwbligation of the Company.

(d) Restrictions The Committee may impose such restrictions obdR$cluding time-based restrictions, restrictibased on the achievement
of specific performance goals (as described ini®&edi0(b)), time-based restrictions following theheevement of specific performance goals (as desdrin
Section 10(b)), restrictions based on the occugai@ specified event, and/or restrictions unggtieable securities laws.
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(e) Lapse of RestrictionsThe restrictions on each RSU will lapse in adeorce with the terms set forth in the applicableafdvAgreement.
() Settlement of RSU Accounts
0] General The Company will settle an RSU Account by deiivg to the holder thereof (which may be the Pavént or his or her

Beneficiary, as applicable) either (i) an amountash equal to the Fair Market Value of a Sharef éise Settlement Date multiplied
by the number of Shares underlying the RSUs thediterd to the Participant's RSU Account (or a sfiettiportion in the event of any
partial settlement), or (ii) a number of Sharesaddo the whole number of Shares underlying the 88ldn credited to the
Participant’s RSU Account (or a specified portiarthie event of any partial settlement). Any fragél RSUs remaining in the RSU
Account on the Settlement Date will be distribuiredash in an amount equal to the Fair Market Valua Share as of the Settlement
Date multiplied by the remaining fractional RSI

(ii) Settlement Date The “ Settlement Dattfor all RSUs credited to a Participant’'s RSU Aaoowill be the date on which the
restrictions applicable to an Award of RSUs hayséal as specified in the RSU Award Agreem

(9) Other Terms As the Committee deems desirable, each AwaRiSt§s may be subject to additional terms and camdithot inconsistent wi
the provisions of the Plan.

Section 8. Stock Appreciatidrights.

() Eligibility and Grant of Stock Apmiation Rights (SARS') . Stock Appreciation Rights may be granted hereutal®articipants either alol
or in addition to other Awards. SARs may, but neet] be granted in connection with a specific @piiin such case, a “* Tandem SAR Any Tandem SAR
must be granted at the same time the related Ojstigranted. SARs granted to a Participant undePian will be evidenced by an Award Agreement that
contains the terms and conditions of the SAR asrdeted by the Committee.

(b) Term of SAR Unless otherwise provided in the Award Agreem@jtno SAR will have a term of more than ten (€ars from the Grant
Date of the SAR, and (b) Tandem SARs will veshatgame time and in the same proportions as thedeOptions.

(c) Strike Price The Strike Price of a SAR will be determinedtbg Committee in its sole discretion; provided tth&t Strike Price shall not be
less than the Fair Market Value of a Share on ttentDate of the SAR.

(d) Exercise and PaymenExcept as may otherwise be provided by the Cdtamin an Award Agreement, SARs will be exercibgdhe
delivery of a written notice to the Company, settiarth the number of Shares with respect to withehSAR is to be exercised. The Committee mayigeothal
payment with respect to an exercised SAR may ococw& fixed date which may not be the same as tleeciSe Date, but in no event shall the payment deter
after the later of the end of the calendar yeda-of2 months following the date on which the SARxgrcised, and may provide for additional paynient
recognition of the time value of money and any yéletween the Exercise Date and the payment datg.payment by the Company in settlement of a SAR
be made in cash, Shares, other property, or anpication thereof, as the Committee, in its solemison, determines.
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(e) Grant Limitations The Committee may on the Grant Date impose #mgrdimitations upon the exercise of SARs thakeiems necessary or
desirable in order for the Award to qualify for eemption from Section 16(b) of the Exchange A&ty grant of SARs shall contain terms such thahsb&Rs
are exempt from Code Section 409A.

(I Exercise of Tandem SARSTo the extent that a SAR is granted in connectith, or related to, an Option (a “ Tandem SARhe terms of
such Tandem SAR will provide that (i) the relateption will be forfeited upon the exercise of sucdn@iem SAR or alternatively, that the Tandem SAR bvel
cancelled upon the exercise of the related Opfigrthe Tandem SAR may be exercised only with egspo the Shares for which its related Optiorhent
exercisable, (iii) each Tandem SAR will expire atel than the expiration of the related Option, @wydthe value of the payout with respect to tlemdem SAR
will be no more than one hundred percent (100%hefdifference between the exercise price per Stfdtee related Option and the Fair Market Value $leare
of the Shares subject to the related Option atithe the Tandem SAR is exercised.

(9) Repriced SARs Subject to Stockholeproval. The Committee may grant SARs in replacementARSpreviously granted under this P
or any other compensation plan of the Companystich purposes and on such terms (including Stnilee)Pas it deems appropriate, subject to stocldrold
approval if such replacement grant would be deetmé@ a repricing under the rules of the New Yaidc® Exchange.

(h) No Fractional SharesNo fractional Shares shall be issued upon theceseeof a SAR. In lieu thereof, the holder of ARSshall be entitled
to purchase the portion necessary to make a wh@eeSat its Fair Market Value on the Exercise Date.

@) Other Terms As the Committee deems desirable, each SAR reaybject to additional terms and conditions nobirsistent with the
provisions of the Plan.

Section 9. Performance Sharé®rformance Units, and Other Stock Units.

(@) Eligibility and Grant for AwardsPerformance Shares, Performance Units, and Gtieek Units may be granted hereunder, for such
consideration not less than the minimum considenatquired by applicable law, as the Committee detgrmine, either alone or in addition to other
Awards. Each grant of such an Award to a Partidipader the Plan will be evidenced by an Awarde®gnent in such form as the Committee may from tone
time approve.

(b) Other Terms As the Committee deems desirable, each Perfaen@hare, Performance Unit, or Other Stock Unit tragubject to
additional terms and conditions not inconsisterihwlie provisions of the Plan.
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Section 10. Performance AwardSgction 162(m) Provisions.

€) Terms of Performance AwardExcept as provided in Section 11, Performance® will be issued, granted, or adjusted, or bexwested
or payable, only after the end of the relevantdéterince Period. The Performance Period, the pedioce goals to be achieved for each Performanded?ére
maximum amount of the Award to be distributed upatisfaction of those performance goals and angragrms or conditions that the Committee deems
appropriate and consistent with the requirementaafe Section 162(m) for “qualified performancedzhsompensationiill be determined by the Committee
its sole discretion.

(b) Performance Goald~or Performance Awards subject to this Secti@rttie lapsing of restrictions thereon, or the ingsthereof, and the
distribution of cash, Shares, or other propertyspant thereto, as applicable, shall be subjed¢tea@thievement of one or more objective performgoeds
established by the Committee, which shall be baseithe attainment of one or any combination offthlewing metrics, and which may be establishecaan
absolute or relative basis for the Company as dewroany of its subsidiaries, operating divisigo@t ventures, or other operating units:

0] earnings measures (including OIBDA, operating inepor net income), either in the aggregate or pai-Share basis
(i) growth or rate of growth in earnings (either in dggregate or on a [-Share basis

(i) cash flow provided by operations, either in theraggte or on a p-Share basis

(iv) growth or rate of growth in cash flow (either iretaggregate or on a |-Share basis’

(v) free cash flow (either in the aggregate on +Share basis’

(vi) reductions in expense levels, determined eithex Gompan-wide basis or in respect of any one or more busineds;

(vii) operating and maintenance cost management and g@egbooductivity

(viii)  stockholder returns (including return on assetgstments, equity, or gross sales, either vergamial targets or external comparisc

(ix) return measures (including return on assets, equitgsted capital or sale:
) growth or rate of growth in return measures (inglgdeturn on assets, equity, invested capitabt#sy;
(xi) share price (including attainment of adfied per-Share price during the Performance Rlegoowth measures, or total shareholder

return including relative to an index or peers tmiament of a specified g-Share price for a specified period of tim
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(xii) strategic business criteria, consisting of one orexbjectives based on meeting specified revanaeket share, market penetratior



geographic business expansion goals, objectivelytified project milestones, production volume Isyeost targets, and goals rela:
to acquisitions or divestitures; and.

(xiii)  achievement of business or operationzdlg such as market share, customer satisfactanpnoduct or services revenue and/or
business developmer

provided that applicable performance goals maydpdied on a pre- or post-tax basis; and providethér that the Committee may, when the applicable
performance goals are established, provide thabtineula for such goals may include or exclude gemmeasure specific objectives, such as losees fr
discontinued operations, extraordinary gains osdesthe cumulative effect of accounting changegyiaitions or divestitures, foreign exchange intpand any
unusual, nonrecurring gain or loss. In additiothi foregoing performance goals, the performanadsgshall also include any performance goals whrehset
forth in a Company bonus or incentive plan, if ampjch has been approved by the Company'’s stockhsldvhich are incorporated herein by referenaechS
performance goals shall be set by the Committeeritng within the time period prescribed by, arithd otherwise comply with the requirements of, €od
Section 162(m).

(c) Adjustments Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan ottre&an Section 4(c) or Section 11, with respect ¥ Award that is subject to this
Section 10, the Committee may not adjust upwardsthount payable pursuant to such Award, nor magiite the achievement of the applicable perforreanc
goals except in the case of the death or Disalwfithe Participant, or upon a Change of Control.

(d) Other RestrictionsThe Committee has the power to impose such o#strictions on Performance Awards as it deemsssgy or
appropriate to insure that such Awards satisfyeajlirements for “performance-based compensatidtiiimthe meaning of Code Section 162(m)(4)(B).

(e) Section 162(m) LimitationsNotwithstanding any other provision of this Rldnhe Committee determines at the time any Awargranted
to a Participant that such Participant is, orksllf to be at the time he or she recognizes incfamfederal income tax purposes in connection witbh Award, a
Covered Employee, then the Committee may providettiis Section 10 is applicable to such Award.

® Reapproval Requirementf Awards are made under this Section 10, ttas Phust be reapproved by the Comparshareholders no later th
the first shareholders meeting that occurs in ifte year following the year in which the sharetesl previously approved the provisions of this BectO, if
additional Grants are to be made under this Sediioand if required by Code Section 162(m) or #wutations thereunder.
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Section 11 Change of Control.
(@) Unless otherwise provided in the AdvAgreement, a Change of Control shall mean:
@) the acquisition by any Person of beneficial ownigrefi 30% or more of the outstanding Shares or 8%hore of the combined votit

power of CenturyLink’s then outstanding securigesitied to vote generally in the election of diges; provided, however, that for
purposes of this subsection (i), the following asijions shall not constitute a Change of Cont

(A) any acquisition (other than a Business Cioiatiion (as defined below) which constitutes a @feaof Control under Section 11
(a)(iii) hereof) of Common Stock directly from tl®mpany

(B) any acquisition of Common Stock by the Compsz

© any acquisition of Common Stock by any esypk benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored antained by the Company or
any corporation controlled by the Company

(D) any acquisition of Common Stock by any @wgtion pursuant to a Business Combination thas e constitute a Change of
Control under Section 11(a)(iii) hereof;

(i) individuals who, as of February 23, 20t0nstituted the Board of Directors of CenturyLitteg “Incumbent Board”) cease for any
reason to constitute at least a majority of therBad Directors; provided, however, that any indivél becoming a director subsequent
to such date whose election, or nomination forteladoy CenturyLink’s shareholders, was approvealwpte of at least two-thirds of
the directors then comprising the Incumbent Boaall e considered a member of the Incumbent Baar@ss such individual’s
initial assumption of office occurs as a resulainfactual or threatened election contest with idpethe election or removal of
directors or other actual or threatened solicitatibproxies or consents by or on behalf of a Rerther than the Incumbent Board;

(i) consummation of a reorganization, shaxetenge, merger or consolidation (including anyhstnansaction involving any direct or
indirect subsidiary of CenturyLink) or sale or atldésposition of all or substantially all of thesass of the Company (a “Business
Combination”); provided, however, that in no suelse shall any such transaction constitute a Chah@entrol if immediately
following such Business Combinatic
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(A) the individuals and entities who were tteméficial owners of CenturyLink’s outstanding Comm&tock and CenturyLink’s
voting securities entitled to vote generally in giection of directors immediately prior to suchsBiess Combination have
direct or indirect beneficial ownership, respediiyef more than 50% of the then outstanding shafe®mmon stock, and
more than 50% of the combined voting power of trentoutstanding voting securities entitled to \gaaerally in the election
of directors of the surviving or successor corgorgtor, if applicable, the ultimate parent compémgreof (the “Post-
Transaction Corporati(”), and

B) except to the extent that such ownershipted prior to the Business Combination, no Pe(sanluding the Post-Transaction
Corporation and any employee benefit plan or rdlatest of either CenturyLink, the Post-Transact@orporation or any



subsidiary of either corporation) beneficially owdsectly or indirectly, 20% or more of the themtstanding shares of
common stock of the corporation resulting from sBeaisiness Combination or 20% or more of the combirating power of
the then outstanding voting securities of such a@ton, anc

©) at least a majority of the members of thard of directors of the Post-Transaction Corporetiere members of the
Incumbent Board at the time of the execution ofittitgal agreement, or of the action of the Boafdaectors, providing for
such Business Combination;

(iv) approval by the shareholders of CenturyLink of mpkete liquidation or dissolution of CenturyLir

For purposes of this Section 10, the term “Persbrall have the meaning provided in Section 2(b)shall also mean any group or syndicate created
when two or more Persons act as a syndicate or gthap (including a partnership or limited parstep) for the purpose of acquiring, holding, ormpaising of a
security, with the exception of an underwriter temgpily holding a security pursuant to an offerofghe security.

(b) Upon a Change of Control, all outsliag Awards granted pursuant to this Plan shathmatically become fully vested and exercisable, all
restrictions or limitations on any Awards shall@ugtically lapse and, unless otherwise providettiénAward Agreement, all performance criteria atiteo
conditions relating to the payment of Awards sballdeemed to be achieved at the target level witheunecessity of action by any Person.

(c) No later than 30 days after a Chaofg@ontrol of the type described in subsection§)ay (a)(ii) of this Section 11 and no later thah days
after the approval by the Board of a Change of f@biof the type described in subsections (a)(iii{a)(iv) of this Section 11, the Committee, actingts sole
discretion without the consent or approval of aaytieipant (and notwithstanding any removal orrafteed removal of some or all of the members theasof
directors or Committee members), may act to efieet or more of the alternatives listed below, whithy vary among individual Participants and whiciym
vary among Awards held by any individual Participgmovided, however, that no such action may keraf it would result in the imposition of a petyabn the
Participant under Section 409A of the Code as altrtésereof:
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@) require that all outstanding Options, SABsQther Stock Units be exercised on or befonpezified date (before or after such Change
of Control) fixed by the Committee, after which sified date all unexercised Options, SARs, and O8teck Units, and all rights of
Participants thereunder shall terming

(ii) make such equitable adjustments to Awards theriamdsg as the Committee deems appropriate toctefleeh Change of Control @
provide Participants with substantially equivalgghts before and after such Change of Controlvjoiexd, however, that the
Committee may determine in its sole discretion tlmadjustment is necessar

(iii) provide for mandatory conversion or exoge of some or all of the outstanding Options, SARSUs, Performance Units, or Other
Stock Units held by some or all Participants aa date, before or after such Change of Controkifpé by the Committee, in which
event such Awards shall be deemed automaticallgetlad and the Company shall pay, or cause to lak fwaeach such Participant an
amount of cash per share equal to the excessy,ifofiuthe Change of Control Value of the sharegextitio such Option, SAR, RSU,
Performance Unit or Other Stock Unit, as defined eaiculated below, over the per share exercise mni base price of such Award
or, in lieu of such cash payment, the issuanceash@on Stock or securities of an acquiring entityihg a Fair Market Value equal to
such excess; «

(iv) provide that thereafter, upon any exeraspayment of an Award that entitles the holdeteimeive Common Stock, the holder shall be
entitled to purchase or receive under such Awartieu of the number of Shares then covered by gweérd, the number and class of
shares of stock or other securities or propertglfsing cash) to which the holder would have bewtitled pursuant to the terms of the
agreement providing for the reorganization, shachange, merger, consolidation or asset salenifiediately prior to such Change
Control, the holder had been the record owner ®hiiimber of Shares then covered by such Av

(d) For the purposes of conversions @éharges under paragraph (iii) of Section 11(c),'@ange of Control Value” shall equal the amount
determined by whichever of the following items jphcable:
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@) the per share price to be paid talead of Common Stock in any such merger, consabidatr other reorganization,
(i) the price per share offered to hotdef Common Stock in any tender offer or exchaoffler whereby a Change of Control takes pl
or
(iii) in all other events, the fair matkalue of a share of Common Stock, as determigettidd Committee as of the time determined by

the Committee to be immediately prior to the effectime of the conversion or exchange.

(e) In the event that the consideratiffared to shareholders of CenturyLink in any tranigen described in this Section 10 consists of laimgt
other than cash, the Committee shall determindéaiheash equivalent of the portion of the considien offered that is other than cash.

) If an Award provides for or is subjd¢o acceleration under Section 11(a), the prowssiof this Section shall apply to the Award. Usles
otherwise provided in a Participant's employmentagqent, if any, or any other plan or arrangemetftinvthe Company to which the Participant is atpar
Participant, if an acceleration of vesting, exabibty, or settlement of an Award, together withather payments or benefits contingent on thergesof
Control within the meaning of Code Section 280®@&yment’), would constitute a “parachute paymentthin the meaning of Section 280G, and thus bgest
to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of théeGthe “ Excise Ta¥), then such Payment will be reduced to the Reduwemount. The “ Reduced Amouht
will be either (x) the largest portion of the Payrhthat would result in no portion of the Paymesinly subject to the Excise Tax or (y) the largestipn, up to
and including the total, of the Payment, whichemmiount, after taking into account all applicabléefial, state and local employment taxes, incomestaand th:
Excise Tax (all computed at the highest applicatéeginal rate), results in the Particif’s receipt, on an aft-tax basis, of the greater amount of the Payr



notwithstanding that all or some portion of the faypt may be subject to the Excise Tax. If a radodh payments or benefits (or a cancellatiorhef t
acceleration of vesting, exercisability or settlainef an Award) constituting a “parachute paymestiecessary so that the Payment equals the Reducednt,
such reduction and/or cancellation of acceleratidhoccur in the order that provides the maximuecoromic benefit to the Participant. In the evéat t
acceleration of vesting, exercisability, or seti#rnof an Award is to be reduced, such accelerati®m will be canceled in the order that providesmaximum
economic benefit to the Participant.
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Section 12. Amendments and Termination.

(@) Amendment and Termination of thenPla’he Board may amend, alter or discontinue tl@ Bl whole or in part without the approval of the
Company'’s stockholders, except that (i) any amemirmealteration shall be subject to the appro¥dahe Company’s stockholders if such stockholdgrapal
is required by any federal or state law or regatatr the rules of any stock exchange on whictSt@res may then be listed and (ii) no amendmeetagibn, or
discontinuation will be made that would impair tights of a Participant under any outstanding Awarithout the Participant’s consent, or that withthe
approval of the stockholders would, except asawigled in Section 4(c) of the Plan, increase tal ttumber of Shares reserved for the purposeseoPtan. No
amendment, alteration or discontinuation will caasg payments to be made any earlier than arewiteprovided hereunder, unless permitted by Caabtich
409A.

(b) Amendment of AwardsThe Committee may amend the terms of any Awaedetofore granted, prospectively or retroactivbly, no such
amendment will impair the rights of any Participaithout the Participant’'s consent. The Committey also substitute new Awards for Awards previgusl
granted to Participants, but it may not (i) substitnew Options or SARs having a lower exerciseepior previously granted Options or SARs haviragher
exercise price or (ii) substitute another AwarddarOption or SAR which has an exercise price alloeehen current Fair Market Value.

Section 13. General Provisians
(a) Non-Transferability.
@) No Award granted hereunder may be transferred gelédassigned or otherwise encumbered by the hifldezof except
(A) by will;

(B) by the laws of descent and distribution:

©) in the case of Options only, if permittedthe Committee and so provided in the Award Agreem(1) to Immediate Family
Members (as defined below), (2) to a partnershiphiich the Participant and/or Immediate Family Mensh or entities in
which the Participant and/or Immediate Family Memstare the sole owners, members or beneficiarseappropriate, are the
sole partners, (3) to a limited liability compamyhich the participant and/or Immediate Family Mbams, or entities in
which the participant and/or Immediate Family Memsbere the sole owners, members or beneficiargesppropriate, are the
sole members, or (4) to a trust for the sole béwoéthe participant and/or Imnmediate Family Mensbetimmediate Family
Members” means the spouse and natural or adoptieleshor grandchildren of the Participant and thiegpective
spouses. To the extent that an Incentive Stocio® permitted to be transferred during the iifet of the Participant, it
shall be treated thereafter as a Nonqualified S@gton.
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(i) No such transfer of any Award under paragraphhall e effective to bind the Company unless then@any shall have bee
furnished with written notice thereof and a copysoth evidence as the Committee may deem necdssasyablish the validity of the
transfer and the acceptance by the transfereamsferees of the terms and conditions of this Btahthe applicable Award
Agreement

(i) Any attempted assignment, transfer, pledgypothecation or other disposition of an Awandevy of attachment or similar process
upon the Award not specifically permitted hereimalsbe null and void and without effe:

(b) Effect of Award No Participant will have any claim to be grantey Award under the Plan, and there is no obbgafor uniformity of
treatment of Participants under the Plan.

(c) Effect of Award AgreementThe prospective recipient of any Award underPRfen will not, with respect to such Award, be dedrno have
become a Participant, or to have any rights witipeet to such Award, until and unless such reciggacutes an Award Agreement or other instrument
evidencing the Award and delivered a fully executegy thereof to the Committee or Plan Administraémd otherwise complied with the then applicabtens
and conditions.

(d) Adjustment of Awards The Committee will be authorized to make adjwsita in Performance Award criteria or in the teemd conditions
of other Awards in recognition of unusual or nonreing events affecting the Company or its finahstatements or changes in applicable laws, reignisior
accounting principles. The Committee may corregtdefect, supply any omission or reconcile anyirgistency in the Plan or any Award in the mannelrta
the extent it deems desirable to carry it intoeffdn the event the Company assumes outstandipdpgee benefit awards or the right or obligatiomtake
future awards in connection with the acquisitioranbther corporation or business entity, the Comesitnay, in its discretion, make such adjustmentke
terms of Awards under the Plan as it deems apm@tapri

(e) NorCompetition. The Committee has full power and authority teedmine whether, to what extent and under whatiaistances any Awa
will be canceled, forfeited or suspended. In patér, but without limitation, all outstanding Avelsrto any Participant will be canceled if the Réptint, without
the consent of the Committee, while employed bgrowiding services as an Outside Director to thenGany or an Affiliate or after termination of such
employment or service as an Outside Director, eeg@gcompetition with the Company or its Affiliateas provided in the applicable Award Agreemerdtber
employment agreement between the Participant an€tmpany
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() Payment of ConsideratiorExcept as otherwise required in any applicabl@adl Agreement or by the terms of the Plan, renigief Awards
under the Plan are not required to make any payorgmiovide consideration other than the rendeoinggervices.

(9) Withholding The Company is authorized to withhold from anyakd granted or payment due under the Plan the anedwvithholding
taxes due with respect to an Award or payment meteuand to take such other action as may be regessthe opinion of the Company to satisfy all
obligations for the payment of such taxes. The gamy will also be authorized to withhold the detfiwvef Shares to a Participant, or accept previoosmed
Shares from a Participant, in payment for the vottlimg of taxes.

(h) Other Compensation Arrangemenidothing contained in this Plan shall preventBoard of Directors from adopting other or addiibn
compensation arrangements, subject to stockhopfeogal if such approval is required; and suchrageanents may be either generally applicable oriegige
only in specific cases.

@) Governing Law The validity, construction, and effect of thefhnd any rules and regulations relating to the Rill be determined in
accordance with the laws of the State of Louisiameé applicable Federal law.

Severability If any provision of this Plan is or becomesodeemed invalid, illegal or unenforceable in amjsgliction, or would disqualify
the Plan or any Award under any law deemed appédapthe Committee, such provision will be consttwr deemed amended to conform to applicable ¢aws
if it cannot be construed or deemed amended withothe determination of the Committee, materialtgring the intent of the Plan, it shall be $eia and the
remainder of the Plan will remain in full force aefflect.

(k) Code Section 409A Complianc&his Plan shall be interpreted at all timestiotsa manner that the terms and provisions of e €omply
with Code Section 409A, the regulations promulgdbedteunder, regulatory interpretations or annoonasgs with respect to Section 409A and applicaldécjal
decisions construing Section 409A.

0] Dividend Equivalents Whenever cash dividends are paid or non-casHetids or distributions are made with respect tar&h the
Committee may elect to credit dividend equivaléatany Award other than Options or SARs. Suchddind equivalents may be paid immediately or suligect
the same restrictions imposed on the underlying rAwa

Section 14. Effective Date of Plan. The Plan was originally effective on May 1, 200& date of its approval by the stockholders obkm
Corporation. No Award will be granted pursuantie Plan after May 1, 2018, the tenth anniversésuoh effective date, but any Award granted ohefore
such date may extend beyond that date.
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* * % * * * *x *

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned Secretary of CenturyTel, Inc. ({@@mpany”) hereby certifies that the foregoing Arded and Restated CenturyLink Legacy Embarqg
2008 Equity Incentive Plan was (i) assumed by thm@any in its merger with Embarq Corporation, whitdsed on July 1, 2009, and (iii) adopted by tloar@
in its current amended and restated form on Fep2@&r2010. .

Dated: February 23, 20: /s/ _Stacey W. Got
Stacey W. Gof
Secretary



CenturyTel, Inc.

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED GTK DIVIDENDS

Net income before extraordinary ite
Income taxes

Pre-tax income before extraordinary ite

Adjustments to earning

Fixed charge

Capitalized interes

Preferred stock dividenc

Gross earnings from unconsolidated cellular pastmp!
Distributed earnings from unconsolidated cellulartpership

Earnings, as adjusted

Fixed charges
Interest expens

Interest capitalize

Preferred stock dividends (pre-tax)
Total fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferredkstlividends

(UNAUDITED)

Year ended December &

Exhibit 12

2009 2008 2007
(Dollars in thousands
$ 511,25 365,73. 418,37(
301,88: 194,35 200,57:
813,13! 560,08 618,94:
373,91 204,87 214,77
(3,480) (2,409 (1,27¢)
(19 (24€) (597)
(19,08 (12,04 (14,579
20,10( 15,96( 10,22¢
$ 1,184,56: 766,22 827,49
$ 370,41 202,21 212,90¢
3,48( 2,40¢ 1,27¢
18 24€ 591
$ 373,91 204,87 214,77!
3.17 3.74 3.8t




Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
CenturyTel, Inc.:

We consent to incorporation by reference in thei®egion Statements (No. 333-91361 and No. 333t&88Yon Form S-3, the Registration Statements 88e.
60061, No. 333-160391, No. 333-37148, No. 333-608@6 333-150157, No. 333-124854 and No. 333-15pb88-orm S-8, and the Registration Statements
(No. 33-48956, No. 333-17015 and No. 333-155521famm S-4 of CenturyTel, Inc. of our reports datéarch 1, 2010, with respect to the consolidateded
sheets of CenturyTel, Inc. and subsidiaries aseafenber 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related coasatidtatements of income, comprehensive incorsg, ca
flows, and stockholders’ equity for each of thergda the three-year period ended December 31,,20G9related financial statement schedule, and the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting as of December 31, 2009, which reports appethe December 31, 2009 annual report on Fd+ bf
CenturyTel, Inc.

Our report on the consolidated financial statememtsides an explanatory paragraph regarding CgnélyInc.’s change in the method of accounting for
business combinations, non-controlling interestsearnings per share in 2009 and for uncertaiptaxions in 2007.

/sl KPMG LLP

March 1, 2010



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Glen F. Post, Ill, Chief Executive Officer anceBident, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of CenturyTel, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fact necessary to make the st
made, in light of the circumstances under whichhsstatements were made, not misleading with regpebe period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects fihancial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his report

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined shamge
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15 (e)) and internatrob over financial reporting (as defined in Exaoba Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and haw

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduries tiesigned under our supervision, to er
that material information relating to the registraincluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is m&dewn to us by others within those entit
particularly during the period in which this rep@teing preparec

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed under our supervi
to provide reasonable assurance regarding thebiléiaof financial reporting and the preparatioh fmancial statements for external purpose
accordance with generally accepted accounting iplee;

c¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiis report our conclusions about the effectes
of the disclosure controls and procedures, aseoétid of the period covered by this report basesuch evaluation; ar

d) disclosed in this report any change in the regissanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrastmost recent fisc
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarte2609) that has materially affected, or is reasonbkeély to materially affect, the registrastinterna
control over financial reporting; ar

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbldve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial reporting, tte
registran’s auditors and the audit committee of the regi¢'s board of directors

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controtiofinancial reporting which are reasonably lit
to adversely affect the registr’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmnhcial information; ant

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanaggement or other employees who have a significéatn the registrand’ internal control ove
financial reporting

Date: March 1, 201 /sl Glen F. Post, Il
Glen F. Post, Il
Chief Executive Office
and Presider




Exhibit 31.z
CERTIFICATIONS
I, R. Stewart Ewing, Jr., Executive Vice Presidemtl Chief Financial Officer, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of CenturyTel, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitéde a material fact necessary to make the stat
made, in light of the circumstances under whichhsstatements were made, not misleading with regpebe period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects fihancial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his report

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined shamge
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15 (e)) and internatrab over financial reporting (as defined in Exaoga Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and hawvi

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurbs ttesigned under our supervision, to er
that material information relating to the registraimcluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is maa®wn to us by others within those entit
particularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing preparec

b) designed such internal control over financial répgt or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be designed under our supervisio
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfjalif financial reporting and the preparation d@fiahcial statements for external purpose
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples;

c¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and pres@nthds report our conclusions about the effectasno
the disclosure controls and procedures, as ofridleoéthe period covered by this report based @h gwaluation; an

d) disclosed in this report any change in the regisisanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrastmost recent fisc
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter2609) that has materially affected, or is reasondikély to materially affect, the registrastinterna
control over financial reporting; ar

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evafuatimternal control over financial reporting, tte
registran’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of director:

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssethe design or operation of internal controtofinancial reporting which are reasonably lik&
adversely affect the registri's ability to record, process, summarize and refrmncial information; ani

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveasnagement or other employees who have a significd@tin the registrars’ internal control ovt
financial reporting

Date: March 1, 201 /sl R. Stewart Ewing, J
R. Stewart Ewing, Ji
Executive Vice President ai
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32
CenturyTel, Inc.

March 1, 2010

Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, N.E.
Washington, D.C. 20549

Re: CenturyTel, Inc
Certification of Contents of Form 10-K for the yearding December 31, 2009
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned, acting in their capacities agthief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial ioéf of CenturyTel, Inc. (the “Companygertify tha
Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2009 of the Comfaly complies with the requirements of Sectii(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 193
the information contained in the Form KCfairly presents, in all material respects, theaficial condition and results of operations of@menpany as of the dat
the periods covered by such report.

A signed original of this written statement reqditgy Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyll be retained by the Company and furnis
Securities and Exchange Commission or its stafhupquest.

Very truly yours,

/s/ Glen F. Post, IlI /sl R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.
Glen F. Post, | R. Stewart Ewing, J
Chief Executive Office Executive Vice President ai

and Preside Chief Financial Office



